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Cyrus Ives Names 1900-07A ["A" as of 11/8/15, at Gilbert Miller]

Abele, C W  1903 C W Abele 11 Charles St Work Harness sale [?];  
Acker, Mary E  May 22, 1897 Estate of Georgia Hotch[kiss] Received of Winsted Savings Bank $100.  Paid E M 
Northrop $35.00; Alice Catlin $18.58 [?]; C D Sweet $18.00; Fannie Metcalf $3.00; J E Pine $12.00; Mary E Acker 
$8.14;
Albert  3/12/00 Mr Sheets & Albert called in eve;  
Alden, J  9/2/07 J Alden Wife and 2 children took tea with us, they were stopping at Mr Nelson's;  
Aldrich, Mr  12/4/07 Mr Aldrich & Ruth Nelson called in Eve;  
Alice [cow]  1908 Memoranda Turned Alice Sept 22, 1908;  1908 [1909?] Memoranda Turned Alice Aug 19, Due May 
19;  
Alison, Charles  1905 Memoranda Chas Alison Ridgeboro N Hampshire;  1/5/06 Wrote to Gust B Nelson Springfield, & 
Chas Alison;  

Alvord, G H  1902 [memoranda] Dr To G H Alvord 6 Chairs $6.00  Paid;  11/13/02 Went to Winsted with Potatoes to 
Spear, Barrel apples for Fenn got some shingle & 6 chairs;  1903 Rev A Alvord 507 Chestnut St Springfield;  
Andrews, C  1/11/04 butchered an old sow.  G Miller C Andrews & G Chaffee helped;  
Andrews, Eugene B  1896 Poll Tax payer;  

Andrews Rev S B  1/3/00 Mr Andrews called;  1/21/87 Mr Andrews preached;  3/26/00 Attended the funeral of Father at 

house.  Rev S B Andrews preached assisted by Rev Bliss of New Boston from words in Job 5th chapter 26th verse 
["Thou shalt come to thy grave in a full age, like as a shock of corn cometh in in his season."], buried at Colebrook 

River;  5/13/00 Rev Andrews preached text Luke 14th chapter 24th verse ["For I say unto you, That none of those men 

which were bidden shall taste of my supper."];  5/20/00 Rev Andrews preached text Luke 10th chapter 28th verse, This 
do and then shalt live.  ["Thou shalt love the Lord thy God with all thy heart, and with all thy soul, and with all thy 

strength, and with all thy mind; and thy neighbour as thyself."];  5/27/00 Rev Andrews preached text Ezekiel 21st 

chapter 21st verse ["For the King of Babylon stood at the parting of the way, at the head of the two ways, to use 
divination:  he made his arrows bright, he consulted with images, he looked in the liver."];  

Andrews Rev S B [contd]  6/10/00 Rev S B Andrews preached his farewell Sermon Text 1st Corinthians 16th chapter 

13th verse [Watch ye, stand fast in the faith, quit you like men, be strong."];  6/20/00 Carrie was married to Wm J 
Cooley in eve by Rev S B Andrews, 20 present;  9/28/02 Rev S B Andrews & Wife here at Church;  
Andrews Mrs S B  6/10/00 Rev S B Andrews preached his farewell Sermon...prayer meeting in evening Mrs Andrews 
led;  
Arnold  11/5/02 J MacDonald came after 5 Pigs for Arnold;  
Arnold, B  6/15/02 Carried Wm Cooley to B Arnold to go home;  
Arnold, Mike  10/9/05 Carried 4 [pigs] to Mike Arnold in afternoon;  1906 taxes Michel [sic] Arnold, $128.52;  
Atkins, George H  10/18/00 Frank worked in forenoon I called on Truman Coe.  Went in afternoon to Geo Atkins stayed 
to supper went back to Frank;  10/19/00 Mr Atkins came over to Frank's in morning.  We went up to Amherst College 
looked around came to Franks took dinner;  10/4/01 Visited with Frank we picked a few apples in forenoon.  Wife & I 
drove to Mr Atkins in afternoon Nellie & Boy went with us;  6/8/02 Spent the day at Franks.  Mr G H Atkins and Wife 
called towards night;  4/10/04 Nellie & Lib, Frank & I went to So Amherst to Church.  Saw Atkins people & T Coe, there; 
4/13/07 Got news of G H Atkins death;  
Atwood, Rev  10/6/01 Rev Atwood of New Boston preached text Jeremiah 18th chapter last clause of 6th verse ["Behold 
as the clay is in the potter's hand, so are ye in mine, O house of Israel."];  
Austin, Mrs  3/29/04 Mrs Austin buried;  

Baird, George  March 1897 Due for shoveling snow x Geo Baird 20 hours $3.00;  
Baker, Rev O G  7/21/00 Rev O G Baker of Vergenes Vt spent the night;  7/22/00 Rev O G Baker of Vergenes Vt 
preached as a candidate;  
Baldwin & Moffat  6/6/05 took 10 Bushel Potatoes to Baldwin & Moffatt Winsted 50 cts per Bushel;  1906 C A Barnes 
39 Pratt St Winsted Ct.  With Baldwin & Moffett;  
Barber  5/2/03 Went to Barber place got a load of ashes;  
Barnes  3/30/01 Got wagon fixed at Barnes;  10/16/02 Went to Barnes mill on Phelon lot got some sticks for sleepers;  
3/24/06 Went through the Hollow found good sleighing from Barnes, came back through So W Street, hard getting 
through from School House to Magranis;  
Barnes, C A  1906 C A Barnes 39 Pratt St Winsted Ct.  With Baldwin & Moffett;  
Barnes, Dea  6/3/00 Called to see Dea Barnes found him sick;  
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Barnes, Dwight  March 1897 Due for shoveling snow Dwight Barnes & boy 10 hours $1.50;  1/12/05 Dwight Barnes 
came got a Rooster and a Gallon Vinegar;  12/3/06 took Nell to D Barnes;  6/15/07 Started to take cow to D Barnes, his 
Bull gone;  
Barnes, Ellen Frisbie  4/2/05 Twins born to Leroy and Ellen Frisbie Barnes son & daughter;  
Barnes, James  1896 Poll Tax payer;  
Barnes, Leroy  4/2/05 Twins born to Leroy and Ellen Frisbie Barnes son & daughter;  
Barnes, Lewis  8/14/03 Mowed a piece in south lot had G Chaffee in afternoon Mr Nelson and Lewis Barnes helped 
awhile;  7/30/04 Mowed by hand around the cellar on Granger lot.  Got in hay out of orchard & west side of Granger lot 
7 loads.  Lewis Barnes worked;  7/20/05 Fred and Lewis finished mowing the Granger lot and mowed some on Fenn 
place, got in 3 loads;  7/21/05 Mowed on the Fenn place got in 3 loads.  Fred Chapman & Lewis Barnes helped me;  
7/23/05 Lewis Barnes & Fred C stayed here;  7/24/05 Carried Fred & Lewis to Hall Pond;  7/25/05 Mowed on Fenn lot 
got in 2 loads.  Fred & Lewis finished hand mowing after 4 PM;  7/26/05 Fred & Lewis mowed the north lot;  1905 

Memoranda Lewis Barnes Work  July 22[nd] 3 days;  26[th] 2 days Paid $8.00;  7/23/06 Lewis Barnes came up mowed 
on Granger lot;  7/24/06 Lewis Barnes mowed on Fenn place;  7/26/06 Fred and Lewis mowed on Fenn place;  7/27/06 
Fred and Lewis mowed on Fenn lot all day;  7/28/06 Fred & Lewis mowed on Fenn lot in morning;  7/31/06 Lewis 
finished mowing Fenn lot;  8/1/06 Lewis mowed;

Barnes, Lewis [contd]  8/6/06 Lewis and I opened and turned over hay;  1906 Memoranda Lewis Barnes Work Haying  

Monday July 23[rd] = 3/4 Day;  Tuesday 24[th] 1;  Thursday 26[th] 1;  Friday 27[th] 1;  Saturday 28[th] 3/4;  [sum =] 41/2 days[.]  

July 31[st] 1 day;  August 1[st] 1/2;  2
[nd] 1;  August 6[th] 1;  [sum =] 8 [days];  8x[$]1.60 [= $]12.80;  

Barnes, Linus  12/18/00 Went down street in eve, got some Eggs of L Barnes;  2/25/1 Called to Linus Barnes;  
11/14/01 Went to A Frost in afternoon.  Called to see Linus Barnes;  1/1/02 Called at G Miller, G Treat, Store, Linus 
Barnes took Dinner with S W Decker;  1/29/02 Went to the Hall cleared out stove pipe called at Linus Barnes;  2/10/02 
took flooring to the Parsonage...Called at Frisbie & Linus Barnes;  3/8/02 went down street towards night called at 
Treats & Linus Barnes;  6/11/02 L Barnes & Brother called;  2/6/03 left Whites on Charles St [Waterbury] went to Mill 
plain called on L Barnes took Dinner, took 6:15 train to Meriden stayed with Mr Fenn;  9/23/04 Went to Winsted...Linus 
Barnes of Waterbury came up with me;  9/29/04 Linus Barnes called took Dinner;  
Barnes, Vincent E  5/14/97 May 14 Paid V E Barnes Mortgage + Int $70.00 [from estate of Julia Sperry];  5/4/01 Went 
down street...saw Will Eaton & V E Barnes;  3/12/02 took Wife to Ladies Society V E Barnes there;  1906 taxes, non-
resident Vincent Barnes, Westfield $80.40;  
Barnes, William Emerson  May 1896 Dog Owners Wm E Barnes [no number];  5/7/01 Called at W E Barnes when we 
came home [from Westfield];  1906 non-resident taxes William Emerson Barnes, Mundale, $51.50;  

Bates, Rev Mr C S  12/1/01 Frank Harry & I went to Church in sleigh Rev Mr Bates from Otis preached.  Text John 18th 

chapter a part of the 37th verse, Art thou then a King, thou sayest I am a King;  1/26/02 went to Church Rev C S Bates 
preached took Dinner with us;  2/2/02 Will Cooley, Harry, & I went to Church 5 present.  Mr Bates preached;  2/9/02 

Will, Harry, & I went to Church, Mr Bates did not come;  2/16/02 Rev C S Bates preached, Text Hosea 2nd chapter 15th 

verse, And the valley of Achor shall be a door of hope;  2/26/02 called at Parsonage, on Mr Bates;  2/28/02 Called to G 
Millers and at Mr Bates.  Went down south road to see if could get through with team;  3/8/02 Mr Bates called;  3/9/02 
W Cooley, Harry, & I went to Church 9 present.  Mr Bates gave a Bible talk on Moses prayers to God;  3/16/02 

Reverend Mr Bates preached from Matthew 1st chapter last clause 23rd verse They shall call his name Emmanuel 

["which being interpreted is, God with us."];  3/23/02 Mr Bates preached Text Proverbs 22nd chapter 28th verse ["Remove
Bates, Rev Mr C S [contd]  3/30/02 Rev Mr Bates preached Text Luke 24th chapter 36th to 43rd verses inclusive [Jesus 
appeared after arising from the dead and ate broiled fish and honeycomb];  4/13/02 Rev Mr Bates preached Text 

Revelation 1st chapter 18th verse, I am He that liveth and was dead & behold I am alive forevermore [", Amen; and have 

the keys of hell and of death."];  4/20/02 Rev C S Bates preached Text John 14th chapter 19th verse ["Yet a little while, 
and the world seeth me no more; but ye see me:  because I live, ye shall live also."];  4/21/02 Attended a surprise party 

at Rev Bates, his 10th anniversary gave him Lead Dishes;  4/27/02 Rev Bates preached;  4/28/02 Harry went to 
Westfield with Mr Bates;  5/4/02 Rev C S Bates preached;  5/7/02 Went to Westfield with Mr Bates and up to Chicopee 
to attend Conference of Cong Churches;  5/11/02 prayer meeting in Eve, Mr Bates led;  5/20/02 Mr Bates & Wife 
called;  6/15/02 Rev Bates preached;  6/22/02 Mr Bates preached a good sized congregation;  7/13/02 Mr Bates 

preached, Text, and the Evening and the Morning Genesis 1st Chapter;
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Bates, Rev Mr C S [contd]  7/16/02 Mr Bates married Tilden & Phelae [?] Huamason [?] of Otis;  7/27/02 Rev Bates 
preached Lo I am with you even unto the end;  9/15/02 Mr Bates called in eve;  10/19/02 Mr Bates preached;  10/24/02 

Decker & Family, Miller & Rev Bates here in Eve;  10/26/02 Bates preached, Text Joshua 14th chapter 14th verse 
["Hebron therefore became the inheritance of Caleb the son of Jephennuh the Kenezite unto this day, because that he 

wholly followed the Lord God of Israel."];  11/30/02 Mr Bates preached Text Judges 16th chapter part of 20th verse 
[Samson, after being shorn] I will go out as at other times [before] and shake myself;  12/21/02 Walked to Church rode 
up with Mr Bates;  1/4/03 Rev Bates preached, Communion Service;  1/9/03 Harry went to Tolland Club house to Social 
with Mr Bates;  1/16/03 Rev Mr Bates & Wife called just at night;  1/19/03 Went to G Miller's in Eve, Mr Bates was 
there;  2/15/03 Em & I went to Church Mr Bates preached;  2/28/03 went to Millers and down to store called at Mr 
Bates;  3/29/03 Harry rode over to Tolland with Mr Bates;
Bates, Rev Mr C S [contd]  7/20/03 Mr Bates & Wife called in afternoon;  8/16/03 Rev Bates preached Text John 17th 

chapter 19th verse ["And for their sakes I sanctify myself, that they also might be sanctified through the truth."];  9/15/03 

Rev Dr Emrich & Bates called in afternoon;  9/27/03 Mr Bates preached his farewell Sermon Text Job 19th chapter 25th 

verse, For I know that my Redeemer liveth ["and that he shall stand at the latter day upon the earth."];  9/29/03 Wife & I 
went to S Deckers in Eve to see Mr Bates he had gone;  11/15/03 We went to Church took Burton with us Rev C S 
Bates here and preached to us Text, Whom say ye that I am.  Decker took him to Tolland, called here when came 
back;  4/15/05 Got letter from Rev Bates and Harry Hakes;  
Bates, Mrs Mary  10/13/07 The remains of Mrs Mary Bates of Chester brought to this Cemetery and buried;  
Bates, William C  6/1/00 took Carrie to Wm Bates to get a dress;  8/6/02 Carried Wife to Wm Bates in afternoon, took 
supper with Ladies Society;  12/28/04 Wife & I went to Wm C Bates, trees in road loaded with Ice, took Dinner there, 
got back about 3 PM;  10/12/05 Went to Wm Bates got 4 Pullets and a rooster;  11/11/05 Carried 2 Pigs to Wm Bates 
in afternoon;  11/21/07 W Bates & Fred Stevens came after Pigs;  
Bates, Mrs W C  12/21/00 Took Wife to Mrs W Bates to see about getting dress made.  Went from there to Westfield 
left her to Carrie's to spend a week;  1/4/01 Carried Wife to Mrs Bates to get a dress fitted;  1/12/01 Carried Wife to Mrs 
Bates to get a Dress used sleigh for first time;  7/22/02 Carried Wife to Mrs Wm Bates Mertie went to Mrs Peebles;  
9/13/02 Wife and I went to Mrs Bates after her dress in afternoon;  1/14/05 took Wife to Mrs W C Bates to get her 
dress;  9/2/05 Carried Wife to Mrs Wm Bates found her gone, called on Mrs Henry Peebles;  9/5/05 carried Wife to Mrs 
Bates went up North Lane road;  
Beardsley, Mr  9/8/02 Mr Fenn and Mr Beardsley of Meriden came about 7;  9/9/02 looked about with Mr Fenn on the 
old place...they started for home about 1:30;  
Belle [cow]  1904 Memoranda Belle to Millers Jan 2, 1905 Due Oct 2, 1905;  1/2/05 took Belle to Millers;  1905 
Memoranda Turned Belle to Millers Jan 2, 1905 Due Oct 2;  
Bessie  4/29/02 Wife and I went to Westfield took Dinner with Carrie, Bessie & Boy there;  
Betsey [cow]  1906 Memoranda Betsey Oct 14, Due July 14;  7/15/07 got Betsey and calf from north lot;  
Bill, Kansas N  8/11/06 Went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs.  Carried the wool sent it to K N Bill Lyme Ct;  1906 
Statement from Kansas N Bill for wool with check to balance, Sept 3, 1906;  
Black Pond  12/2/03 Frank & Will went to Black Pond fishing caught 71;  
Blair, Henry A  9/14/03 Went to Henry Blair Blandford got a Buck, took Dinner with him got home about 4 PM;  11/2/03 I 
took Henry Blairs Buck home got home 1:30;  9/19/05 Went to H A Blairs got his Buck, left him to Deckers;  10/30/05 
took H Blair's Buck home;  
Blakesley, H  1897 [Paid] H Blakesly $4.00 [from the Estate of Julia Sperry];  

Bliss, Rev  3/26/00 funeral of Father at house.  Rev S B Andrews preached assisted by Rev Bliss of New Boston;  
Bodurtha, Elmer  10/20/03 Mrs S S Bodurtha of Agawam and Son came stayed all night;  10/21/03 Mrs Bodurtha & Son
went on Beech Hill came back stayed all night;  10/22/03 Mrs Bodurtha & Elmer started for home;  11/6/05 Recieved 
letter from Elmer Bodurtha;  

Bodurtha, Henry E  10/29/02 S S Bodurtha and H E Bodurtha Candidate for Representative from Agawam called;  
[back of diary] Campaign Card for Henry E Bodurtha Agawam Mass Democratic Candidate for Representative;  
Bodurtha, S S  11/23/00 Went to Southwick with 20 bushel Potatoes for S S Bodurtha took Dinner at D Jacksons;  
6/16/02 Went to Agawam with wool took Dinner at Dewey Jackson's.  Stayed all night with S S Bodurtha;  10/29/02 S S 
Bodurtha and H E Bodurtha Candidate for Representative from Agawam called;  6/3/03 Went to Agawam with wool 
took dinner at D Jacksons.  Stayed all night with S S Bodurtha;  6/14/04 Went to Agawam with wool took Dinner with 
Dewey Jackson stayed all night with S S Bodurtha got 21 cents for wool.  Carried Welch, Decker, Sheets, & Hargers:  
365 lbs;  
Bodurtha, Mrs S S  10/20/03 Mrs S S Bodurtha of Agawam and Son came stayed all night;  10/21/03 Mrs Bodurtha & 
Son went on Beech Hill came back stayed all night;  10/22/03 Mrs Bodurtha & Elmer started for home;  8/17/05 
Hubbard took Stage for Westfield going to Agawam, to his Sister's Mrs Bodurtha;  
Bood  3/1/01 took Dinner at Deweys Bood [Beood?] & Wife there;  
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Booth, T  5/5/05 took old Sow to Booth W Hartland left her;  5/6/05 Milo brought Sow home for me;  5/8/05 Went to 
Booths on Williams Hill got Millers Sow in forenoon;  6/5/05 took young Sow to Booth's Boar West Hartland in morning;  
11/13/05 M B Miller came up got scalding tub, and carried my Sow to Booths W Hartland Ct;  1905 Memoranda Turned 
young Sow Dec 15 [at Booth's] Due Apr 6, 1906;  3/10/06 Went...to Booths West Hartland with hog in afternoon;  
4/7/06 Carried Wife to Harger's, drove to Booth's W Hartland got 3 bags grain;  1906 Memoranda Took young Sow to 
Booth March 10 Due June 30;  1/8/07 Albert took my young Sow to Booths left her;  1/12/07 Went to Booths, Hartland 
got my Sow;  4/29/07 Took Brunk sow to Booth in forenoon;  6/15/07 Took Sow to T Booths left her;  6/17/07 Went to 
Booth got the sow;  11/13/07 Went to Booths with Sow brought her back;  12/13/07 took young Sow to Booths brought 
her back;  1908 Memoranda Took Sow to Booths Nov 23, 1908  Due March 15, 1909;
Booth, T [contd]  1907 Memoranda Took Sow to Booths Jan 11 Due to Pig May 3 Paid.  Took Brunk Sow to Booths 
April 29, Due Aug 19.  Took Sow to Booths due Oct 6 1907.  Took Brunk Sow to Booths Nov 13, Due March 6, 1908.  
Took young Sow to Booths Dec 13, Due April 3, 1908;  
Brazee  5/30/02 Twining & Brazee from Westfield came early in morning fishing.  Hays Carl and 3 others came later, 
did not catch many;  
Breckenridge, Albert  2/5/03 Called on Dr Moore and Albert Breckenridge [in Torrington], took train to Waterbury.  Went 
to Geo White [former husband of the late Jennie Brown] 102 Charles St took Dinner.  Went with Mrs White to Bank St 
called on Mrs Joice [?], returned to White stayed all night;  
Breckenridge, Flora  6/6/01 Flora Breckenridge married to Albert Goldthwaite Hadley Mass;  10/5/01 Started for home 
called on Flora at So Hadley got to Westfield at 1:30 took Dinner at Carrie's got home at 6 o'clock;  
Breckenridge, Lovina  8/15/00 Went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs took dinner with Orpha.  Ira, Dim, & Lovina there & 
Myrtie, she & Mary Welch came home with me;  9/4/01 Wm Breckenridge & Wife came up from Torrington Ct;  9/5/01 
William and Lovina stayed here;  9/6/01 Visited with Will & Lovina in the morning, they went to Otis stayed all night;  
9/7/01 Will & Lovina came back from Otis about noon;  9/9/01 Will and Lovina start for home, Torrington Ct;  5/8/02 
Lovina Breckenridge & Theda Smith came about 1 o'clock;  5/10/02 Visited some with Lovina;  5/11/02 Went to Church 
took Lovina.  Theda walked down with Harry;  5/18/02 Wife & I and Lovina went to Church stayed to Sunday School;  
5/21/02 Went to Ladies Society...Lovina and Theda went down;  5/22/02 Carried Em, Lovina, & Theda to Tolland took 
Dinner;  5/23/02 Went to Winsted...Lovina went with me, to go home;  6/19/03 Went to Winsted with Butter, Eggs, 
Potatoes, & Lamb brought Lovina Breckenridge & Betsy Smith home with me;  6/21/03 Made some Ice Cream Lib 
played on Organ Lovina & Sister Smith sung;
Breckenridge, Lovina [contd]  6/26/03 took Em, Lovina B, & Betsy Smith to Tolland took Dinner with Len & Lib;  6/28/03 
Lovina & [I] went to Church;  6/30/03 Carried Sister Smith to Warren Hawleys Cold Spring, met Henry Spring there 
Lovina went with us;  7/2/03 Went to Winsted with Eggs and Butter...Lovina B went with [me] took car home to 
Torrington;  
Breckenridge, Stilman  2/7/07 Went to Winsted...noon Trolley to Torrington...funeral of Wm F Breckenridge...S D 
Smith, Mrs J G Spear, & Stilman Breckenridge there;  
Breckenridge, William  9/4/01 Wm Breckenridge & Wife came up from Torrington Ct;  9/5/01 William and Lovina stayed 
here;  9/6/01 Visited with Will & Lovina in the morning, they went to Otis stayed all night;  9/7/01 Will & Lovina came 
back from Otis about noon;  9/9/01 Will and Lovina start for home, Torrington Ct;  2/4/03 Harry carried me to Riverton.  
Walked to Winsted took Trolley to Torrington stayed to Wm Breckenridge;  2/5/03 Called on Dr Moore and Albert 
Breckenridge, took train to Waterbury.  Went to Geo White...Went with Mrs White to Bank St called on Mrs Joice [?], 
returned to White stayed all night;  1906 Wm Breckenridge Migeon Ave 265 Torrington Conn;  2/5/07 Received word of 

Wm Breckenridge Death, 761/2 yrs;  2/7/07 Went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs.  Took noon Trolley to Torrington to 
attend the funeral of Wm F Breckenridge stayed there all night.  S D Smith, Mrs J G Spear, & Stilman Breckenridge 
there;  
Brice  1/1/05 Wife & I attended Church, had Communion Service, a good attendance.  Geo H Chaffee, John Brice 
[Boice?], Fred Chapman, Ruth Nelson united with the Church by confession.  Mrs Dora Coolidge & Miss Augusta 
Cornwell by letter;  
Brodrib [possibly Brodrik]  7/30/01 Harry & I went to mill got a load of wood for Mrs Brodrib;  8/15/01 Went to Winsted 
with Butter & Eggs, 28 cts Brodrib Boy went with me;  8/24/01 Mrs Brodrib & children came up took them home in the 
rain;  9/10/01 Went to Winsted...took 2 Boxes to Depot for Mrs Brodrib;  9/27/01  Went onto Brodrib's place picked up a 
few apples;  2/3/03 Got a load of Hay from the Latham Barn & 1 from Brodrib's;  
Brodrick, J  5/4/00 J Brodrik [Brodrib?] came went to Welch's got a box of tiles took them to him;  6/30/00 Went to 
Winsted got Mrs Brodrik [sic] and children;  8/30/00 took a Barrel of apples to Welch for Brodrik;  
Bronson, Wells  1906 taxes Wells Bronson, $85.88;  
Bronson, E W  4/10/03 Carrie & I went up north way by Deckers & A Phelon to A Clapp.  I went to Bronson's;  4/22/03 
got Henry Miller to help me load the young sow took her to E W Bronson's left her;  4/25/03 Went to E W Bronsons got 
the young sow took some Boards to Hatties House;  
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Brown  9/5/03 Went to Frosts mowed some with machine.  Decker & Brown worked;  2/4/05 Clark from Camp place 
took his Horses to Browns.  The roads badly drifted;  
Brown, Jennie  [Back of 1903 diary] Jennie Brown White wife of George White Died April 8, 1900;  
Brownell, A S  4/18/06 Wrote to A S Brownell about Society lot;  4/30/06 Went to Mr Coolidge and to Tolland, gave 
deed of Society lot to A S Brownell, Yonkers NY;  
Brunk, William  3/11/01 Brunk Boys came over stayed nearly all day;  4/26/01 sawed some for Brunk;  5/2/01 Brunk 
drew out a ton of Fertilizer;  10/14/01 Brunk Boys came over stayed nearly all day;  4/9/02 Brunk Boys came over in 
afternoon;  4/16/02 sawed 2 long sticks for Brunk;  4/17/02 sawed some sleepers for Brunk;  4/19/02 Harry helped 
Brunk raise Barn;  5/1/02 Brunk brought out a ton of Fertilizer for me;  11/28/02 Sold 3 sheep to Wm Brunk $5.00;  
11/29/02 Brunk took his 3 sheep home;  12/10/02 Brunk Boys here in Eve;  12/26/02 Tolland Social at Brunk's;  1/20/03 
Harry came back from Tolland and went to Brunks to a surprise party;  1/29/03 Brunk brought a load of Fertilizer from 
Westfield;  10/21/03 Brunk got one of his [lambs];  11/5/03 Carried Em to Brunks and Martha went to New Boston with 

her;  1903 Memoranda Wool 171/2 cts Sold at 19 cts;  Bought of Newton 89 [=$]15.05 [calc=$15.575];  Stanard 411/2 

[=$]7.25 [calc = $7.2625];  Brunk 61/2 [=$]1.13 [calc=$1.1375];  Miller 47 = [$]8.90 [calc = $8.225];  A Frost 19 $3.61 
[calc = $3.325];  [sum =]201 [calc = 203];  Amount Wool 343;
Brunk, William [contd]  6/20/04 Went over to Brunks in morning after my calves;  12/27/04 Social at Brunks in Eve did 

not go;  1904 Memoranda Dr to Mrs Brunk to 6 lbs wool 191/2 cts per lb = $1.17 + 1 Pelt $0.30 = $1.47.  Brunk brought 
his 2 sheep and 2 Lambs about May 20 to Pasture took them home about Oct 20.  $2.00 + Balance on Fertilizer $3.90 
= $5.90 minus wool $1.47 Dr $4.43 Cr 1 sheep $3.00 = $1.43.  Fertilizer $8.40 Cr Lamb $4.50 = $3.90;  4/24/05 went to 
Brunk with Nell;  5/12/05 Went to Magranis up to Hodges over across to Brunk's with cow Nell, did not find a Bull;  
5/22/05 Went to Brunk's in Eve;  6/29/05 drove the yearling Heifers to Brunks turned them into pasture;  1905 
Memoranda Wm Brunk Cr  to Pasturing 2 yearling 3 weeks Each;  Drawing 13 Bushel Potatoes to Westfield;  Pasturing 
2 Heifers 9 weeks Each 24 weeks in all:  "X"ed out;  1/6/06 Went to Brunks in morning;  9/11/06 drove to Brunks their 
cattle in mowing;  3/2/07 went to Brunks bought a shoat $8;  3/6/07 Got a shoat at Brunk;  4/29/07 Took Brunk sow to 
Booth in forenoon;  8/21/07 Brunk Sow had 6 Pigs;

Brunk, William [contd]  8/26/07 went on north lot looked for cow May found her on Brunks meadow;  1907 Memoranda  
Took Brunk Sow to Booths April 29, Due Aug 19.  Took Brunk Sow to Booths Nov 13, Due March 6, 1908;  
Brunk, Martha  11/5/03 Carried Em to Brunks and Martha went to New Boston with her;  
Brunk, Will  11/9/03 Will Brunk & Geo Chaffee helped me kill two Pigs in the afternoon;  
Bryan  11/6/00 Went to Granville Center voted for Bryan for President;  
Burse  7/16/02 Burse [Binse?] & Wilder called for Butter;  

Cable, A  2/27/03 took a log to Cables for shingle, went to Roberts mill on Slocum lot drew out my lumber;  4/13/03 
Went to the old saw mill got a load of shingle stuff took it to Cables mill brought back 738 shingle;  4/18/03 Em & I 
started for Barkhamsted to see Lib called to Cables found she had come home, drove to Ben Clark's made a call;  
7/6/03 Went to Cables got some shingle;  8/20/03 Went to Cables got a load of shingle;  11/11/03 Went to A Cables 
got 3,000 shingle $2.75 per M;  
Cable, Alice  12/23/06 Carrie & I went to Church a small congregation Stolls [?] and Alice Cables there;  
Cable, Stolls  12/23/06 Carrie & I went to Church a small congregation Stolls [?] and Alice Cables there;  
Callihan, Patrick  1896 Poll Tax payer;  
Camp, J R  3/27/01 took a Barrel of apples, $2.50 at J R Camp;  
Camp, L L  5/10/07 Went to Winsted with 3 Barrels of apples sold to L L Camp, $3 Per Bbl;  
Carl  5/15/00 Hays, Carl, & Jeffrey came out to fish;  5/30/02 Twining & Brazee from Westfield came early in morning 
fishing.  Hays, Carl and 3 others came later, did not catch many;  5/12/03 Hays, Carl, & Jeffies [sic] came from 
Westfield to go fishing;  
Carroll, J L  7/3/06 Went to Winsted bought 2 Grindstones of J L Carroll, $7.  Sheets had one of them;  
Case  9/29/02 Eaton went to Case's;  7/9/04 Sold cow to Case;  4/28/05 Case called;  8/26/05 Eaton went to Cases got 
through here for present;  

Case, A H  4/20/00 Went to Tolland in afternoon got Horse shod.  Saw A Case there;  5/14/00 A H Case brought his 
wool and took some Fertilizer;  6/3/05 A H Case called;  1905 Memoranda  A H Case 1 bag fertilizer $1.80;  4/16/07 
Went to A H Case in afternoon got some maple sugar;  4/20/07 A H Case called;  1907 Memoranda April 16, Dr to A H 

Case.  To 751/2 lbs sugar @ 121/2 cts = $9.44 plus 1 Gallon Syrup $1.00.  Paid $10.44;  
Case, Mrs A  6/26/01 Mrs A Case brought some wool;  12/21/05 Mrs A Case and Roxie called in afternoon;  5/8/06 Mrs 
Case & Roxie called;  
Case, Roxie  12/21/05 Mrs A Case and Roxie called in afternoon;  5/8/06 Mrs Case & Roxie called;  
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Case, Mrs Sarah  9/22/03 Carried Sister Lib to Barkhamsted through the hollow went to Case's Store took Dinner with 
Mrs Sarah Case;  
Catlin, Mrs Alice  May 22, 1897 Estate of Georgia Hotch[kiss] Received of Winsted Savings Bank $100.  Paid E M 
Northrop $35.00; Alice Catlin $18.58 [?]; C D Sweet $18.00; Fannie Metcalf $3.00; J E Pine $12.00; Mary E Acker 
$8.14;  [Georgia Hotchkiss] Legacies July 1897 x Mrs Catlin $300.00;  
Chaffee, George H  1/1/00 S Decker & Geo Chaffy helped me kill a hog.  Went to Hall place in afternoon[.]  H Lee 
called & N Frisbie paid money for Cong So;  2/3/00 drew 9 loads of ice...Geo Chaffee cut in forenoon;  11/17/00 
Butchered Pig in forenoon G Chaffee helped;  7/8/01 Harry helped Geo Chaffee plow out Potatoes;  7/10/01 Harry 
helped Chaffee plow out corn;  11/15/01 Geo Chaffee, Harry, & I helped M Nelson kill his hog.  We killed ours in 
afternoon weighed 240 Chaffee helped;  12/6/02 Chaffee brought [bought?] some Beef;  2/10/03 Harry helped Chaffee 
get hay;  2/23/03 Harry helped Chaffee shovel out north road drifted bad;  3/2/03 Went to Harger's helped Chaffee kill a 
Pig;  4/4/03 Chaffee called got his Boots;  5/26/03 Butchered a Hog in afternoon G Miller & G Chaffee helped;  8/14/03 
Mowed a piece in south lot had G Chaffee in afternoon Mr Nelson and Lewis Barnes helped awhile;  9/6/03 Worked for 
A Frost on his upper lot.  G Chaffee worked there, [&] G Miller;  10/19/03 Chaffee helped me clean up rye 13 Bush;  
10/21/03 Got Chaffee to help get in the rowen;
Chaffee, George H [contd]  11/9/03 Will Brunk & Geo Chaffee helped me kill two Pigs;  11/23/03 G Chaffee helped me 
butcher hog for M Nelson in forenoon.  We butchered one for Mr Harger in afternoon;  1/11/04 butchered an old sow.  
G Miller, C Andrews, & G Chaffee helped;  1/18/04 Worked at getting Ice drew 3 load in afternoon Geo Chaffee helped 
me;  1/20/04 Chaffee came down sawed ice in afternoon I drew 3 loads;  1/29/04 Went to River drew 4 loads Ice.  G 
Chaffee sawed for me;  2/1/04 G Chaffee came down, paid him for cutting Ice;  6/11/04 G Chaffee helped me in 
afternoon finished [planting corn];  9/15/04 drove to Harger he was gone looked at Chaffee sheep;  11/10/04 Butchered 
a Pig Chaffee helped me;  11/11/04 Chaffee helped me on the drain got it opened, to Barn;  12/14/04 G Chaffee came 
down got a plank to repair sled;  1/1/05 Geo H Chaffee, John Brice [Boice?], Fred Chapman, Ruth Nelson, united with 
the Church by confession.  Mrs Dora Coolidge & Miss Augusta Cornwell by letter;  1/27/05 Geo Chaffee & Albert 
Sheets called they were shoveling out the roads;
Chaffee, George H [contd]  3/29/05 Geo Chaffee helped me on wood pile he sawed and I split;  4/7/05 Geo Chaffee 
helped me on the wood pile, he sawed and I split;  4/19/05 George Chaffee helped me, sawed wood near old mill;  
5/4/05 George Chaffee and [blank space] Clark were married at Hargers in Eve;  5/13/05 About 25 went to N Harger's 
in Eve to call on Geo Chaffee and Wife, we surprised them;  8/29/05 Geo Chaffee called in Eve;  9/9/05 Geo Chaffee 
called in Eve;  
Champlin, Mr William R  May 1896 Dog Owners Wm R Champlin 1;  10/2/00 Harry & I went to Wm Champlin to look at 
sheep he was gone;  10/8/00 Harry & [I] went to Wm Champlin, bought 2 sheep & a Lamb.  Went to H Peebles.  Killed 
the Lamb a good one;  
Chandler, J  7/6/01 Went to Tolland got 2 shoes set on Horse at H Munn's drove to J Chandler's to sell him the South 
lot;  10/12/07 Eaton took Horse went to Chandler got his trunk;  
Chapin, Rev  9/1/07 Went to Church Abner went with me.  Rev Mr Chapin of New Salem preached as a candidate;  
9/7/07 Rev Chapin stayed with us, all night;  9/8/07 Rev Chapin preached came back from Tolland stayed with us all 
night;  

Chapman  2/13/00 sawed for Magranis & Chapman;  2/14/00 sawed for Magranis & Chapman;  6/25/00 took Carrie's 
trunk to E Granville...Went to Chapman's;  3/14/02 Sawed shingle for Chapman Boys;  3/15/02 Sawed shingle for 
Chapman Boys, they came over got a load in afternoon;  3/17/02 split logs for shingle for Chapman;  3/18/02 Finished 
sawing shingle for Chapman;  5/28/02 Went to Chapmans;  5/29/02 Chapman Boys came up and plowed awhile;  
6/18/02 Butchered calf for Chapman;  6/19/02 Went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs took Calf for Chapman;  1/24/05 
Drew 4 loads of Ice from Parsons Pond 37 cakes 20 inches thick.  Chapman boys cut, left 75 cakes on Pond;  
Chapman, Mrs  10/22/00 Went to Mrs Chapman got 10 Bushel Potatoes;  
Chapman, Charles  1/23/05 I got out bobs went to Chapmans.  Fred & Chas going to cut for me tomorrow;  2/19/06 
Charlie Chapman sawed ice for me I drew 8 loads 63 cakes from river below the bridge;  2/20/06 Chapman drew ice in 
the forenoon 4 loads I packed, he cut and I drew in afternoon;  2/21/06 C Chapman drew 4 loads of ice 32 cakes, in 
forenoon.  I packed and covered it with sawdust to keep it.  Chapman went home after dinner;  3/13/06 Henry Miller 
sawed my wood pile with Gasoline Engine, Charlie Chapman helped us;  3/21/06 C Chapman called;  11/19/07 Charlie 
Chapman came up and plowed turf north of Barn;  
Chapman, Edmund R  May 1896 Dog Owners E R Chapman 1;  3/1/00 Edmund R Chapman Died aged 62 yrs;  3/4/00 
Attended the funeral of E R Chapman at the Church;  
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Chapman, Fred  8/30/01 Worked for A Frost on his upper lot Fred Chapman worked;  1/15/02 Fred Chapman came up 
in morning to see about getting logs sawed;  4/13/04 Fred Chapman called;  4/24/04 Harry took his clothes to F Hales, 
in afternoon, Fred Chapman went with him;  8/4/04 Fred Chapman helped me, mowed in sheep lot, raked and bound 
the rye.  Got in hay in afternoon;  8/5/04 Fred & I mowed a while in south lot, rained we quit;  8/8/04 Fred & Harry 
mowed some in south lot and on Fenn place;  8/11/04 Fred & Harry mowed all day on Fenn place;  8/15/04 cut a piece 
in south lot Fred clipped [?] after;  1/1/05 Geo H Chaffee, John Brice [Boice?], Fred Chapman, Ruth Nelson united with 
the Church by confession.  Mrs Dora Coolidge & Miss Augusta Cornwell by letter;  1/23/05 I got out bobs went to 
Chapmans.  Fred & Chas going to cut for me tomorrow;  2/7/05 Chapman boys watered the cattle Fred stayed all night 
and done chores;  2/17/05 Miller & Frisbie drew 4 loads Ice each from Parsons Pond Decker & Fred Chapman packed 
it.  Decker went home towards night Horse sick.  Fred Chapman stayed all night;

Chapman, Fred [contd]  2/18/05 Fred Chapman finished packing Ice in morning;  2/22/05 Fred Chapman sawed wood 
awhile;  2/24/05 Fred Chapman sawed wood for me;  3/19/05 Fred Chapman called just at night took supper;  7/9/05 
Fred Chapman stayed here all night;  7/10/05 Fred Chapman helped me [hay];  7/15/05 Fred mowed some on Granger 
lot;  7/20/05 Fred and Lewis finished mowing the Granger lot and mowed some on Fenn place, got in 3 loads;  7/21/05 
Mowed on the Fenn place got in 3 loads.  Fred Chapman & Lewis Barnes helped me;  7/22/05 Worked on Fenn lot 
mowed and cocked it up.  Fred was sick in morning;  7/23/05 Lewis Barnes & Fred C stayed here;  7/24/05 Carried 
Fred & Lewis to Hall Pond;  7/25/05 Mowed on Fenn lot got in 2 loads.  Fred & Lewis finished hand mowing after 4 PM;  
7/26/05 Fred & Lewis mowed the north lot;  7/27/05 Fred helped roll [hay]...took Mollie to E M Moores in morning;

Chapman, Fred [contd]  1905 Memoranda Fred Chapman Work  July 10[th] 10 hours;  11[th] 9 ; 12[th] 8 ; 13[th] Sheets 5 ; 

14[th] 10; 15[th] 10; 17[th] 10;  18[th] 10; 19[th] 7; 20[th] 10; 21[st] 10; 22[nd] 7; total = 106; $19.50 minus $3.60 = $15.90; Paid 

July 26;  Memoranda Fred Chapman Dr  July 13 To repairs on Wheel $0.75; Soap $0.25; 15[th] Cash $2.00; 18 + 31 + 
28 + 31 = 108;  2/18/06 Fred Chapman came up took supper;  3/12/06 Fred Chapman sawed ice on Parsons Pond, 
Goodniss drew 4 loads, I packed it;  3/23/06 Frisbie and Fred Chapman broke road to Nelsons;  3/27/06 Fred 
Chapman came up;  6/10/06 Fred called;  7/20/06 Fred Chapman mowed the rough corner;  7/25/06 Fred mowed in 
forenoon on Fenn lot;  7/26/06 Fred and Lewis mowed on Fenn place;  7/27/06  Fred and Lewis mowed on Fenn lot all 
day;  7/28/06 Fred & Lewis mowed on Fenn lot in morning;  8/6/06 got in 6 loads [hay] in afternoon Fred helped;  1906 

Memoranda Fred Chapman work.  Friday [?] July 21[st] 1 day;  25[th] 1;  26[th] 1;  27[th] 1;  28[th] 1/2;  [sum =] 41/2 days $1.60
Chapman, Fred [contd]  5/24/07 Chapman harrowed awhile, in forenoon;  
Chapman, William  11/24/01 Went to Church G Miller, Wm Chapman, & myself comprised the congregation Mr Curtis 
last Sermon to us;  11/27/01 took a pig to Mr Chapman;  12/14/01 split some shingle logs for Chapman;  4/14/04 N 
Frisbie came with Will Chapman & J Hunt & team got Shingle Mill;  
Charlie [Sheets?]  4/14/00 Frank went to Holyoke with goods with Charlie;  
Chase  10/24/02 Picked some apples on Chase lot for Fenn;  
Clapp, A  4/10/03 Carrie & I went up north way by Deckers & A Phelon to A Clapp.  I went to Bronson's
Clark  11/28/04 Took young Sow to [Tunxis] Club farm left her.  Clark the manager was fishing, Ice 4 inches thick;  
12/3/04 Went to Club farm got Sow;  2/3/05 A man on Camp place in Tolland got stuck in snow East of Fenn place, left 
his horses here, walked home;  2/4/05 Clark from Camp place took his Horses to Browns.  The roads badly drifted;  
2/6/05 Clark went past with his family for home been at Dugdales since Thurs [Feb 2];  
Clark, Miss  5/4/05 George Chaffee and [blank space] Clark were married at Hargers in Eve;  5/13/05 About 25 went to 
N Harger's in Eve to call on Geo Chaffee and Wife, we surprised them;  
Clark, Ben  8/28/01 Harry went down to Ben Clark's cutting Tobacco;  9/2/01 Harry came home from Ben Clarks;  
4/18/03 Em & I started for Barkhamsted to see Lib called to Cables found she had come home, drove to Ben Clark's 

made a call;  9/6/04 Went to Ben W Clark's 25 th anniversary, a large Company present;  3/13/07 Ben Clark came up 
sold him a mow of hay in Fenn Barn $80;  
Clark, Ella  11/6/01 Wife & I, Harry, Ruth Nelson, & Ella Clark went to H Peebles to a Social in eve;  7/30/05 Went to 
Church not many out, Ruth & Ella rode up with me;  
Clark, Ernest  11/24/02 Harry took the old Sow to Ernest Clark's & Luke Moore;  
Clark, Fred  1/28/00 Went to Church Fred Clark was there;  
Clark, Harry  5/17/02 Harry, Theda Smith, and Ruth Nelson went to Harry Clark's to a surprise party;  
Clark, Wallace  11/4/05 Butchered Pig 240 lbs...took 1/2 of it to Tolland sold it to Wallace Clark 8 cts per lb;  

Clum, Mr  8/10/01 Cooley & Harry, Mr Clum [?] & F Magranis went to Otis fishing;  11/8/01 Mr Clum called, in forenoon; 
Coe  5/29/01 Harry went to Coe;  
Coe, T  9/20/00 drove to T Coe got some rye straw to bind corn with;  2/10/05 Decker here done chores helped shovel 
out south road got as far as T Coe's;  
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Coe, Talcott S  9/22/01 Went to Church T S Coe & Wife came up and attended;  6/15/05 Went to Winsted...Called to 
Talcott Coe, found him quite low;  6/23/05 Talcott S Coe Died aged 78 yrs;  6/26/05 Attended funeral of T S Coe at W 
Hartland, in forenoon;  
Coe, Truman  10/18/00 Frank worked in forenoon I called on Truman Coe.  Went in afternoon to Geo Atkins stayed to 
supper went back to Frank;  10/3/01 Called on Truman Coe a few moments just at night;  4/10/04 Nellie & Lib, Frank & 
I went to So Amherst to Church.  Saw Atkins people & T Coe, there;  
Coe, Ward  1896 Poll Tax payer;  11/16/02 We all attended Church.  Mrs Peebles was there, Ward Coe and Mother;  
4/3/04 Ward Coe came up in Eve;  12/5/04 Ward Coe came to see about Chickens;  12/16/04 Decker came down to 
get long sleigh for Ward to carry saw off;  4/5/05 Ward Coe came just after Dinner looked at Pigs;  4/20/05 Ward Coe 
came got 2 Pigs;  12/22/05 Ward Coe called on his way to Wech's [meant Welch's?] with a dead pig;  12/26/05 Ward 
Coe called;  

Colton, Mr  2/1/05 Wife & I went to N Frisbie in Eve to a Social, about 40 present.  Mr Colton of Granville Center talked 
on what he saw in England;  1/16/06 Went to Hall to Oyster supper in Eve, a talk from Colton & Fred Emmons;  
Colton, Henry D  1906 clipping Granville  The warrant for the collection of the 1906 taxes has been handed over to Tax 
Collector Henry D Colton.  Taxes are due September 1.  All not paid on or before October 1 will draw interest at the 
rate of 6 per cent.  from September 1.  The total valuation is figured at $405,998; rate, $20 per thousand; exempt on 
account of soldiers and their wives, $8500.  The bills for the county and state tax have been received, and are as 
follows:  State tax $455; county, $472.75;  
Cook, Rev  10/6/07 Rev Cook of Boston preached;  
Cook, N H [New Hampshire?]  6/15/07 Sent 2 Pigs on Stage to N H Cook in morning;  
Cooley, Burton Loring  12/7/00 [Carrie gave birth to Burton Loring Cooley];  10/26/01 Carrie & boy spent the day with 
Mrs Sheets;  10/27/01 Carrie & I went to Church Wife took care of the Baby;  12/28/01 took Carrie & Boy to Len's;  
1/5/02 Went to Len's got Carrie & boy;  1/03/02 Went down got Mrs C W Magranis to come up and see Carrie's Baby, 
not well;  6/9/02 Started from Franks at 7:30 drove to Westfield, arrived at noon took Dinner at Carrie's done some 
trading drove home brought the Boy with us;  7/1/02 Wife and I went to Westfield took the little Boy in to Carrie;  
9/21/02 Will took Carrie and baby back to Westfield in afternoon, left the boy;  10/11/02 Wife & I went to 
Westfield...took the boy home;  12/8/02 W Cooley Telephoned that Carrie was sick.  Wife & I drove in brought the Boy 
home with us got back at 6;  12/23/02 Wife & I went to Westfield took Carrie's Boy home he was sick, they called a Dr 
said there was no symptoms of Diptheria;  2/2/03 Em & I went to Westfield with big Sleigh got Carrie and the 2 
Children, to stay awhile;
Cooley, Burton Loring  3/18/03 drove to Hargers got a Gallon maple syrup.  Carrie & Children rode up with me;  4/2/03 
Carrie & Children went to Magranis;  4/12/03 Carrie, the boy, & I went to Church;  4/24/03 Went down street took some 
nails to shingle Hatties House the Boys went with me;  4/28/03 Wife, Carrie, & Children & I went to Tolland to visit 
sisters;  5/10/03 Carrie, Boy, & I went to Church;  5/12/03 took Carrie and children to Westfield, to stay awhile;  

11/10/03 Carried 11/2 Pigs to Westfield to Osborne Bros 231 lbs 71/2 cts, took Dinner with Carrie brought the boy home 
with me;  11/15/03 We went to Church took Burton with us;  11/26/03 Started at 9 o'clock for Westfield.  Wife, Harry 
Hakes, & Grandson Burton went with me to Carries to Thanksgiving Dinner had Turkey.  Frank came down came 
home with us;  1/12/04 Carried Hog to Egleston Westfield...Burton came home with me;  1/24/04 Went to Church took 
the boy with us;  1/29/04 Went to Millers got a can of Oil, Carrie and Children rode down;  1/31/04 Em & Burton & I 
went to Church;  2/14/04 Em & I went to Church took Burton;
Cooley, Burton Loring  2/21/04 Wife and Burton & myself went to Church;  2/23/04 took Carrie and Children to 
Magranis, for the day;  2/27/04 took Carrie and Children to Westfield;  4/13/04 Ladies Society had Sugar Eat in Eve.  
Burton & [sic] stayed home;  4/17/04 Harry, Burton, & I went to Church;  4/23/04 Wife & I went to J Northway's New 
Boston got some of Aunt Electas things.  Burton stayed with Len;  5/10/04 Went to Westfield Wife and Grandson 
Burton Cooley went with me;  6/10/04 Went to Westfield got 5 Bags Fertilizer at Depot Burton went home with me;  
9/16/04 went to Westfield got Carrie and 3 Children;  9/21/04 Went to New Boston fair, Myrtle Hakes and Burton 
Cooley went with me;  9/25/04 Myrtle, Carrie, and 2 of her children went to Church with me.  Em took care of Baby 
Edith;  10/2/04 Went to Church Carrie, Burton, & Dorothy went with me;  10/5/04 Went to Riverton got some grain.  
Burton went with me;  10/2/04 Went to Church Carrie and 2 children went with me;  10/16/04 Went to Church, Wife, 
Burton, & Dorothy Cooley went with me;
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Cooley, Burton Loring  10/23/04 Carrie & 2 Children went to Church with me;  10/28/04 drove to Deckers in the 
morning, down to Frisbies mill to see Goodniss about plowing.  Carrie and 2 children went with me;  10/30/04 Went to 
Church Wife and Burton Cooley went with me;  11/2/04 Took Carrie and children home to Westfield;  12/31/04 Wife & I 
drove to Westfield to Carries...found the Children well;  4/8/05 Went to Westfield got Carrie and children;  4/9/05 Wife & 
I went to Church Burton went with us;  4/16/05 Went to Church Carrie and Burton went with me;  4/23/05 went to 
Church Carrie, Burton, and Dorothy went with me, Easter Service;  4/30/05 Wife & I went to Church Burton Cooley went
with us;  8/25/06 Carrie and Children came from Washington DC;  9/2/06 Went to Church, Carrie, Burton, and Dorothy 
went with me;  9/9/06 Went to Church, Carrie, Burton, and Dorothy went with me;  9/10/06 Took light wagon to Munns 
shop to have axles put in Burton and Dorothy went with me;  9/11/06 Went to Mr Coolidge Telephoned to Dr Farraine 
[?] to come and see Burton;
Cooley, Burton Loring  9/13/06 drove to Magranis, to Mr Coolidge had him Telephone to Mercy Hospital Springfield to 
send ambulance after Burton.  Mr Magranis took Carrie to Springfield.  The ambulance took Burton;  9/14/06 Magranis 
called in Eve, said Burton and Carrie got to Springfield all right;  9/17/06 Got letter from Carrie, Burton better;  9/28/06 
drove to Westfield took car to Springfield went to Mercy Hospital to see Burton Cooley, Carrie went with me, found him 
very sick did not speak to us;  10/2/06 Went to Mr Coolidge in morning called up Hospital Burton worse...sent telegram 
to W Cooley to come;  10/10/06 Went to Mr Coolidge, Telephoned to Hospital, Burton a little better;  10/13/06 Harry 
took horse carried Will and Carrie to Westfield going to Springfield to see Burton;  11/26/06 Started for Westfield at 9 
AM got Burton and his Mother just out of Mercy Hospital;  11/29/06 Magranis called invited us down to Eat 
Thanksgiving dinner.  Wife & I, Carrie and 3 Children went;  12/15/06 Went down town Carrie & Children went with me;  
12/16/06 Carrie, Burton, & I went to Church;
Cooley, Burton Loring  12/22/06 Carrie & Children went to Magranis;  12/24/06 Went with Carrie, Burton, and Dorothy 
to Church;  12/27/06 Carried Carrie and 3 Children to Westfield left them at Mrs Parsons, they are going home to 
Washington DC;  6/26/07 Went to Westfield got Burton Cooley got 2 Screen Doors;  6/30/07 Burton and I went to 
Church;  4/7/07 took William and Burton to top of Ore Hill in Eve to see the fireworks we got quite cool;  7/7/07 Went to 
Church Burton & William went with me;  7/11/07 Went to Munn got Horse shod, the boys went with me;  7/14/07 The 
boys and I went to Church;  7/21/07 Burton & I went to Church;  8/4/07 Burton & I went to Church;  8/22/07 Went to 
Riverton got some grain Burton Cooley went with me;  9/12/07 Burton and I went to Blandford to the Fair, Albert Sheets 
went with us;  9/28/07 Went to Mr Magranis with Wife & Burton;  10/3/07 Went to E Hartland to Cattle Show, Wife and 
Burton Cooley went with me;  10/10/07 Harry started back via Westfield Emeline & Burton rode in with him;  11/11/07 
Burton & I went to Church;
Cooley, Burton Loring  11/23/07 Went to Winsted Burton Cooley went with me;  11/30/07 Went to Frisbie mill got a load 

of sawdust Burton went with me;  12/7/07 Burtons [7th] birthday.  Harriet Sheets came down stayed awhile with him;  
12/8/07 went to Church Burton did not feel well enough to go;  
Cooley, C  4/18/00 Frank Magranis & C Cooley drew out lumber & got in logs;  
Cooley, Charlie  5/7/01 Em & I went to Westfield took Dinner with Carrie, Charlie Cooley was there;  

Cooley, Dorothy  6/7/02 Wife & I drove to Westfield took a lunch at Carrie's drove to Holyoke to Frank's got there about 
4 PM.  Stayed all night.  A Daughter born to Carrie early in morning [Dorothy Cooley Parkman?];  9/21/02 Will took 
Carrie and baby back to Westfield in afternoon, left the boy;  2/2/03 Em & I went to Westfield with big Sleigh got Carrie 
and the 2 Children, to stay awhile;  3/6/03 took some Corn to H Dickinson brought home some grain Carrie & Baby 
went with [sic] called to Gibbons;  3/18/03 drove to Hargers got a Gallon maple syrup.  Carrie & Children rode up with 
me;  4/2/03 Carrie & Children went to Magranis;  4/28/03 Wife, Carrie & Children & I went to Tolland to visit sisters;  
5/12/03 took Carrie and children to Westfield, to stay awhile;  1/25/04 drove to Westfield got Carrie and Dorothy;  
1/29/04 Went to Millers got a can of Oil, Carrie and Children rode down;  2/23/04 took Carrie and Children to Magranis, 
for the day;  2/27/04 took Carrie and Children to Westfield;  9/16/04 went to Westfield got Carrie and 3 Children;
Cooley, Dorothy  9/25/04 Myrtle, Carrie, and 2 of her children went to Church with me.  Em took care of Baby Edith;  
10/2/04 Went to Church Carrie, Burton, & Dorothy went with me;  10/9/04 Went to Church Carrie and 2 children went 
with me;  10/16/04 Went to Church, Wife, Burton, & Dorothy Cooley went with me;  10/23/04 Carrie & 2 Children went 
to Church with me;  10/28/04 drove to Deckers in the morning, down to Frisbies mill to see Goodniss about plowing.  
Carrie and 2 children went with me;  11/2/04 Took Carrie and children home to Westfield;  12/31/04 Wife & I drove to 
Westfield to Carries...found the Children well;  4/8/05 Went to Westfield got Carrie and children;  4/23/05 went to 
Church Carrie, Burton, and Dorothy went with me, Easter Service;  4/29/05 Took Carrie, Dorothy, and Baby Edith to 
Westfield;  8/25/06 Carrie and Children came from Washington DC;  9/2/06 Went to Church, Carrie, Burton, and 
Dorothy went with me;  9/9/06 Went to Church, Carrie, Burton, and Dorothy went with me;  9/10/06 Took light wagon to 
Munns shop to have axles put in Burton and Dorothy went with me;
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Cooley, Dorothy  9/16/06 Went to Church Dorothy went with me;  9/23/06 Went to Church Dorothy went with me;  
10/7/06 Carrie & Dot, Will & Harry, & I went to Church;  10/14/06 Went to Church Dorothy went with me;  10/24/06 
Carrie took Horse went to Society with Children;  10/25/06 Em, Carrie, and the Children went to Tolland spent the day;  
11/4/06 Went to Church wife and Dorothy went with me;  11/18/06 Went to Church, Carrie and Dorothy went with me;  
11/25/06 Went to Church Dorothy went with me;  11/29/06 Magranis called invited us down to Eat Thanksgiving dinner. 
Wife & I, Carrie and 3 Children went;  12/15/06 Went down town Carrie & Children went with me;  12/22/06 Carrie & 
Children went to Magranis;  12/24/06 Went with Carrie, Burton, and Dorothy to Church;  12/27/06 Carried Carrie and 3 
Children to Westfield left them at Mrs Parsons, they are going home to Washington DC;  

Cooley, Edith Emeline  9/16/04 went to Westfield got Carrie and 3 Children;  9/25/04 Myrtle, Carrie, and 2 of her 
children went to Church with me.  Em took care of Baby Edith [born 4/29/04];  11/2/04 Took Carrie and children home 
to Westfield;  12/31/04 Wife & I drove to Westfield to Carries...found the Children well;  4/8/05 Went to Westfield got 
Carrie and children;  4/27/05 Carrie & Edith went with Lib to Deckers in afternoon;  4/29/05 Took Carrie, Dorothy, and 
Baby Edith to Westfield;  8/25/06 Carrie and Children came from Washington DC;  10/24/06 Carrie took Horse went to 
Society with Children;  10/25/06 Em, Carrie, and the Children went to Tolland spent the day;  11/29/06 Magranis called 
invited us down to Eat Thanksgiving dinner.  Wife & I, Carrie and 3 Children went;  12/15/06 Went down town Carrie & 
Children went with me;  12/22/06 Carrie & Children went to Magranis;  12/27/06 Carried Carrie and 3 Children to 
Westfield left them at Mrs Parsons, they are going home to Washington DC;  
Cooley, F B  1902 [back of diary] Slip "Paid Miller $57.31 Recd from Winsted Sav Bank.  Money gave So. by F B 
Cooley";  
Cooley, Ralph B  1906 taxes Ralph B Cooley, $312.20;  
Cooley, William J  2/3/00 drew 9 loads of ice Will Cooley cut;  4/11/00 [Frank] & Wife, Carrie & Cooley went to the 
ministers to tea;  5/6/00 E A & Frank Marganis, Wm J Cooley united with the Church;  6/20/00 Carrie was married to 
Wm J Cooley in eve by Rev S B Andrews, 20 present;  6/21/00 Carrie & her Husband went to Winsted in afternoon;  
6/23/00 Will & Carrie came up from Winsted went to Chicopee;  8/11/00 Cooley & Carrie came out in afternoon;  
8/12/00 Cooley & Carrie drove to Magranis awhile started back at 4 PM;  11/12/00 brought Cooley out to work on 
Library;  3/20/01 drove to Westfield at 9:30 got Carrie got home at 2.  Will walked out;  2/23/01 Will Cooley helped me 
saw wood awhile;  4/1/01 Will & Harry set 6 [9?] sap trees;  4/4/01 Cooley & Harry went to Tolland;  4/8/01 run the mill 
in afternoon Will Cooley helped me;  4/9/01 Worked repairing race Will Cooley & Harry helped;  4/11/01 worked a 
graveling the Dam Will Cooley & Harry helped;  4/13/01 took Carrie to Westfield Will went with Magranis;  6/30/01 Wm 
Cooley was here when we got home from Church;
Cooley, William J  7/21/01 Carrie & Will here.  Ben Jones & Willie went to Mill Pond and washed;  7/27/01 Wm Cooley 
came over from E Granville to spend Sunday;  8/3/01 Went to Tolland carried Wife & Carrie out Wm Cooley came 
towards night;  8/4/01 Will Cooley, Harry, & I went to Church...Harry carried Will as far as the narrows toward night;  
8/10/01 Cooley & Harry, Mr Clum [?] & F Magranis went to Otis fishing;  8/17/01 Cooley came about 10;  8/23/01 
Carried Cooley onto Granville Hill;  8/26/01 took Carrie & Will to Westfield;  11/26/01 Wm Cooley came on Stage;  
11/27/01 Cooley went to Magranis spent the day;  11/28/01 Will Cooley and Carrie here to eat with us;  11/29/01 Will 
shot at a fox;  12/2/01 Frank carried Cooley to Westfield;  12/24/01 Cooley came out in Stage;  1/24/02 Wm Cooley 
came on the Stage;  1/26/02 W Cooley & Wife, Harry, & I went to Church;  1/29/02 Will & Harry went fishing;  1/30/02 
Frank Magranis, Will, & Harry went to the Hall Pond fishing;  2/1/02 Harry & Will & Burt Magranis went hunting shot a 
fox, on Chestnut Hill;  2/2/02 Will Cooley, Harry, & I went to Church;
Cooley, William J  2/3/02 Will & Harry & I went on mill pond cut Ice;  2/4/02 Will & I cut Ice in forenoon Harry drew.  Will 
cut some in afternoon I packed;  2/5/02 Wm Cooley sawed and Harry drew and I packed Ice, drew 10 loads 80 cakes 
16X19, weigh about 185 to the cake;  2/6/02 Will cut Harry drew I packed got in 80 cakes;  2/9/02 Will, Harry, & I went 
to Church;  2/10/02 Will & Harry went fishing on B Pond;  2/12/02 Will & Harry went a fishing on Black Pond caught 8;  
2/13/02 Will & Harry went fishing on Hall Pond;  2/15/02 Will Cooley helped me cut 2 maple trees;  2/16/02 Em & I, 
Cooley, & Harry went to Church;  2/20/02 Will Cooley & I shoveled snow awhile down West Harry shoveled East;  
2/26/02 Will, Harry, & Henry Miller went after Coons;  3/1/02 Will Cooley & Harry shoveled snow on south road in 
forenoon...Will & I worked on wood pile;  3/5/02 Will & Harry went a fox hunting;  3/9/02 W Cooley Harry & I went to 
Church;  3/12/02 Will & I built a sap arch in forenoon Harry gathered the sap;  3/21/02 sawed for myself Harry & Will 
Cooley helped me;  3/22/02 Wll and I run the mill;
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Cooley, William J  3/23/02 Wife & I & Cooley & Harry went to Church;  3/24/02 run the mill, W Cooley helped me;  
3/25/02 Carried Cooley & Carrie to Westfield;  6/13/02 Will Cooley came on Stage;  6/15/02 Carried Wm Cooley to B 
Arnold to go home;  8/30/02 Will Cooley came out on Stage;  9/20/02 Will Cooley came about 11 in eve;  9/21/02 Will 
took Carrie and baby back to Westfield in afternoon, left the boy;  10/25/02 loaded a load of stove wood Harry took it to 
Westfield to Cooley;  11/4/02 Harry went to Westfield with wood to Cooley;  12/2/02 Harry went to Westfield with load of 
stove wood to Cooley;  12/8/02 W Cooley Telephoned that Carrie was sick.  Wife & I drove in brought the Boy home 
with us got back at 6;  12/10/02 got letter from Will Carrie has Diptheria;  1/22/03 Went to Westfield to W J Cooley got 
Mrs Ives got home about 4;  1/26/03 Wm Cooley and Frank Magranis went to the Hall Pond fishing;  1/27/03 Will & 
Harry went fishing;  1/28/03 Cooley went home;  3/21/03 Will Cooley came on Stage;  3/22/03 Cooley was here, went 
down and called on his Mother awhile;
Cooley, William J  3/24/03 Carried Cooley to Valley Brook [bridge down] he went back to Albany;  4/25/03 Frank and 
Harry & Will came;  4/26/03 Frank & Nellie, Harry, Will Cooley, & myself went to Church;  4/27/03 Frank & Will went 
trouting;  4/29/03 Will went back to Albany in afternoon;  12/1/03 W Cooley came out on Stage;  12/2/03 Frank & Will 
went to Black Pond fishing caught 71;  12/4/03 Will went to Hall Pond fishing, fair luck;  12/5/03 Wife and I went to New 
Boston attended the funeral of Aunt Electa Dimock...Will here done chores;  12/6/03 Carried W Cooley to Twining 
Hollow going home to Westfield, James McDonald was going to carry him to Mundale;  2/27/04 took Carrie and 
Children to Westfield, found Will at House, got home at 4:15;  3/9/04 W J Cooley came out about noon, stayed all night; 
3/11/04 W Cooley watered cattle at noon;  5/22/04 W Cooley came;  7/7/04 Wm Cooley came on Stage;  7/9/04 Frank 
carried Cooley to Granville Center;  5/3/05 Will Cooley came;  5/4/05 Will Cooley went trouting caught 6 lbs;  10/2/06 
called up Hospital Burton worse...sent telegram to W Cooley to come;

Cooley, William J  10/6/06 Carrie & Will came in Stage;  10/7/06 Carrie & Dot, Will & Harry & I went to Church.  Will & 
Carrie went to Magranis just at night.  Harry went after them in Eve;  10/8/06 Harry & Will went hunting got one grey 
squirrel;  10/9/06 Will, Carrie, & Harry went after chestnuts on Chestnut Hill;  10/10/06 Will & Harry went hunting no 
luck;  10/12/06 Will & Harry went hunting in morning;  10/13/06 Harry took horse carried Will and Carrie to Westfield 
going to Springfield to see Burton;  11/9/07 Chas Moody called to see about Cooleys stove;  
Coolidge, Rev  10/25/03 Went to Church Rev Coolidge preached as a candidate Text Be ye reconciled to God, a good 
Sermon;  11/22/03 Rev Coolidge preached Text, What shall it profit a man if he gain the whole world &c;  11/29/03 
Frank, Harry, and I went to Church Rev Coolidge preached;  1/3/04 so cold and blustering did not go to Church, done 
chores and read.  Mr Coolidge called when he came from Tolland;  1/27/04 Mr Coolidge called in afternoon;  2/20/04 
Mrs Sheets & Children, Mr Coolidge the Pastor & Wife & baby came in afternoon;  3/6/04 Church had Service in Hall 
had communion.  Mr Coolidge about sick;  3/13/04 Rev Coolidge preached text in Judges The Sword of the Lord and of 
Gideon;  6/24/04 Mr Coolidge & Mr Sargent called;  9/11/04 no Service Mr Coolidge away on vacation;  11/24/04 took 
Dinner at Parsonage, a party of 12 there;  2/7/05 Chapman boys watered the cattle Fred stayed all night and done 
chores.  Mr Coolidge called said I needed a Dr so called Ward from New Boston.  Came about 10 found temperature 

104 left medicine for 1/2 hour;  2/24/05 Mr Coolidge called;

Coolidge, Rev  5/3/05 Mr Coolidge called cut some scions to graft with;  5/14/05 Wife & I went to Church, Mr Coolidge 

was sick but he preached;  5/21/05 Mr Coolidge preached a Sermon about women and a good one, Text Philippians 4th 

chapter 3rd verse ["And I intreat [sic] thee also, true yokefellow, help those women which labored with me in the 
gospel..."];  6/14/05 Mr Coolidge called just at night;  8/1/05 Mr Coolidge called in the forenoon;  8/16/05 took Hubbard 
& Eaton down street called on B F Jones, Mr Coolidge;  12/31/05 Went to Prayer meeting in Eve, had a good meeting 
subject Looking backward, Mr Coolidge the Pastor led;  1/6/06 Mr Coolidge & Wife and Ruth Nelson called in 

afternoon;  1/7/06 Mr Coolidge preached Text Exodus 4th chapter 3rd verse Cast it on the ground [and Moses' rod 
became a serpent], Communion Service;  1/28/06 We went to Church Mrs [sic] Coolidge preached.  Went to Prayer 
meeting in Eve Mrs Coolidge led;  2/4/06 Congregation voted to hire Mr Coolidge for 4 years;

Coolidge, Rev  2/23/06 funeral of Dea J P Hall at Tolland Mr Coolidge preached the Sermon Text Acts 13th chapter 36th 

verse, ["For David"] After he had served his own generation ["by the will of God"] fell on sleep ["and was laid unto his 
fathers"];  3/1/06 Went to Mr Coolidge's in morning, posted a warrant in Church;  3/16/06 Mr Coolidge called just at 
night;  3/17/06 Burt Moore called, and Mr Coolidge in afternoon;  3/21/06 Sheets, Miller, C H Treat, and Rev H A 
Coolidge called in Eve talked over Cemetery Corporation;  4/3/06 Mr Coolidge called towards night;  4/14/06 Went to 
Mr Coolidge in Eve;  4/30/06 Went to Mr Coolidge and to Tolland, gave deed of Society lot to A S Brownell, Yonkers 
NY;  6/25/06 helped Mr Coolidge get in 2 small loads hay;  8/25/06 Sick...Mr Coolidge came up 3 times Doctored me 
felt better in Eve;  9/11/06 Went to Mr Coolidge Telephoned to Dr Farraine [?] to come and see Burton;  9/12/06 Went 
to Mr Coolidge in morning;  9/13/06 drove to Magranis, to Mr Coolidge had him Telephone to Mercy Hospital Springfield 
to send ambulance after Burton;
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Coolidge, Rev  10/2/06 Went to Mr Coolidge in morning called up Hospital Burton worse;  10/10/06 Went to Mr 
Coolidge, Telephoned to Hospital, Burton a little better;  10/21/06 Carrie & I went to Prayer meeting in Eve, Mr Coolidge 
present;  10/30/06 Went to Westfield...Mr Coolidge & Hat Decker in there;  11/21/06 drove to Rev Coolidge, Carrie 
went to Springfield with him;  12/10/06 Went to store and to Mr Coolidge in forenoon;  12/26/06 Carried Wife to Mr 
Coolidge in afternoon;  12/30/06 Went to bed sick got Albert Sheets to do the chores Mr Coolidge called gave me some 
medicine;  12/31/06 Sick in bed with Grippe.  Mr Coolidge called to see me and Telephoned for Dr Ward of N Boston 
he came over;  1/4/07 Mr Coolidge, Mabel Rivers, Ruth Nelson called in Eve;  1/23/07 Carried Wife down to Mr 
Coolidge.  Expected to have a Ladies Society but did not;  1/25/07 Mr Coolidge called in afternoon;  2/18/07 Mr 
Coolidge and B F Jones called;  4/11/07 Em & I called on Mr Coolidge in Eve;  6/13/07 Went to Mr Coolidge got some 
drier and painted the sitting room;
Coolidge, Rev  6/27/07 Albert Sheets came down we went to Cemetery, we helped B Jones, C H Treat, Mr Coolidge 

mow it;  8/11/07 Mr Coolidge preached his farewell Sermon Text Romans 11th chapter 1st verse ["I say then, Hath God 
cast away his people?  God forbid.  For I also am an Israelite, of the seed of Abraham, of the tribe of Benjamin."].  Pat 
& Len came to Church, A Frost here;  8/14/07 Mr Coolidge & Wife drove in yard to say good Bye, in Eve;  9/18/07 Mr 
Coolidge called in Eve;  10/24/07 Mr Coolidge called, going to Tolland;  

Coolidge, Mrs Dora  10/16/04 Went to prayer meeting at Hall in Eve Mrs Coolidge led;  1/1/05 Wife & I attended 
Church, had Communion Service, a good attendance.  Geo H Chaffee, John Brice [Boice?], Fred Chapman, Ruth 
Nelson united with the Church by confession.  Mrs Dora Coolidge & Miss Augusta Cornwell by letter;  1/19/05 B Jones, 
Lib, Mrs Coolidge, and Ruth Nelson, called, during the day;  12/31/05 Went to Prayer meeting in Eve, had a good 
meeting subject Looking backward, Mr Coolidge the Pastor led Mrs Coolidge presided at the Organ;  1/6/06 Mr 
Coolidge & Wife and Ruth Nelson called in afternoon;  1/9/06 Mrs Coolidge called in Eve;  1/28/06 We went to Church 
Mrs [sic] Coolidge preached.  Went to Prayer meeting in Eve Mrs Coolidge led;  5/22/06 Decker & Lib helped Em paper 
Kitchen.  Mrs Coolidge called carried them home;  10/28/06 Carrie & I went to Prayer meeting in Eve, Mrs [sic] 
Coolidge led;  8/14/07 Mr Coolidge & Wife drove in yard to say good Bye, in Eve;  
Coombs, Mr  1/24/03 Mr Coombs from Hartford stayed with us all night;  1/25/03 Mr Coombs from Hartford preached 
he stopped with [sic] I carried him to Tolland;  
Cornell, Miss A  [Memoranda] Miss A Cornell Chicks wgt here 31.["X"ed out];  
Cornwell, Miss Augusta  8/7/04 Frank & I went to Church and prayer meeting in Eve.  Miss Augusta Cornwell [?] led the 
meeting;  1/1/05 Wife & I attended Church, had Communion Service, a good attendance.  Geo H Chaffee, John Brice 
[Boice?], Fred Chapman, Ruth Nelson united with the Church by confession.  Mrs Dora Coolidge & Miss Augusta 
Cornwell by letter;  10/15/05 Went to Prayer meeting in the Eve.  Miss Cornwell led;  12/6/05 We went to Miss Agusta 
[sic] Cornwell's to a Social in Eve, 40 present, a fine time;  
Crane, W  6/20/04 W Crane of NY called;  
Currie, Samuel  1/17/00 Went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs...drove to E Manchester to see Sam'l Currie but was 
gone;  [Memoranda] Samuel Currie Euclid Minnesota Formerly Colebrook River;  
Curtis, Rev G A  8/26/00 Rev Curtis preached from Judges 18th chapter 14th verse.  ["Then answered the five men that 
went to spy out the country of Laish, and said unto their brethren, Do you know that there is in those houses and ephod,
and teraphim, and a graven image, and a molten image? now therefore consider what ye have to do."];  9/2/00 Rev G A

Curtis preached had Communion Service;  9/16/00 Rev Curtis preached from Zecharia 4th chapter 6th verse ["Then he 
{the angel of the Lord} answered and spake unto me, saying, This is the word of the Lord unto Zerubbabel, saying Not 
by might, nor by power, but by my spirit, saith the Lord of hosts."], a good sermon;  10/7/00 Rev Curtis Preached.  Text 

John 18th chapter 40th verse Not this man but Barabbas;  12/13/00 Minister Curtis called just at night;  12/22/00 Rev 
Curtis called in the morning;  2/18/01 Mr Curtis called took my sleigh to go to Westfield;  3/17/01 Mr Curtis preached 
Text For the son of man came not to be ministered unto but to minister and give his life for many;  4/29/01 Mr Curtis 
called in eve;  5/5/01 Rev Curtis preached in New Boston;
Curtis, Rev G A  5/12/07 Rev Curtis preached Text Philippians 3rd chapter 10th verse ["That I may know him, and the 
power of his resurrection, and the fellowship of his sufferings, being made comfortable unto his death;"];  6/16/01 Miss 

Susan Merrill led the meeting Mr Curtis text Mark 14th chapter 34th verse.  Tarry ye here & watch;  6/23/01 Went to 

Church Mr Curtis away read one of Talmadge's Sermons;  7/7/01 Rev G A Curtis preached Text Mark 14th chapter 34th 

verse Tarry ye here and watch [Same as June 16th??];  7/12/01 Mr Curtis called;  7/14/01 Mr Curtis preached Text 

Judges 3rd chapter 5th verse ["And the children of Israel dwelt among the Canaanites, Hittites, and Amorites, and 

Perizzites, and Hivites, and Jubusites:"];  8/25/01 Mr Curtis preached Text Luke 8th chapter 13th verse ["They on the 
rock are they, which, when they hear, receive the word with joy; and these have no root, which for a while believe, and 

in a time of temptation fall away."], Matthew 13th chapter 21st 22nd verses ["Yet hath he not root in himself...he 
becometh unfruitful."];
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Curtis, Rev G A  9/15/01 Rev Curtis preached Text Luke 8th chapter 18th verse ["Take heed therefore how ye hear:  for 
whosoever hath, to him shall be given; and whosoever hath not, shall be taken even that which he seemeth to have."];  

10/20/01 Rev Curtis preached Text 1st Samuel 17th chapter a part of 45th verse, But I come to thee in the name of the 

Lord of hosts;  10/27/01 Rev G A Curtis preached, Text Mark 8th chapter 36th verse ["For what shall it profit a man, if he 

shall gain the whole world, and lose his own soul?"];  11/3/01 G A Curtis preached Text Revelation 1st chapter 8th verse 
["I am Alpha and Omega, the beginning and the ending, saith the Lord, which is, and which was, and which is to come, 
the Almighty."];  11/13/01 Went to Academy attended meeting to accept the resignation of Pastor Curtis in Eve;  

11/17/01 Rev G A Curtis preached Text Ezekiel 11th chapter last clause of 5th verse ["for I know the things that come 
into your mind, every one of them."], a good Sermon;
Curtis, Rev G A  11/24/01 Went to Church G Miller, Wm Chapman, & myself comprised the congregation.  Mr Curtis 

last Sermon to us Text 1st Chronicles 16th chapter 31st verse, ["Let the heavens be glad, and let the earth rejoice:  and 
let men say among the nations,"] The Lord reigneth;  12/2/01 went to Rev Curtis Auction;  
Curtis, Mr Will  8/12/05 Mrs Parsons, Sarah, & a Mr Curtis of Westfield came out spent the night;  9/15/07 Mrs Parsons 
and Sarah, Will Curtis and Mother drove out about noon;  

Darling, George  5/14/03 George Darling shot and Killed himself at C Moody just at night;  5/17/03 The remains of Geo 
Darling buried in this Cemetery funeral at C H Moody's house;  
Davis  11/8/04 took some apples to Holcomb Bros for a cask of Cider.  Stopped to Town Hall voted for Parker & Davis 
for President and Vice President;  
Davis, Mrs  12/26/03 Sheets came down about 2 in morning to have me go to East Granville after Nurse Mrs Davis, 
went, got back at 7;  
Decker, Burt  6/17/05 Burt Decker came selling Papers;  
Decker, C W  1897 Paid C Decker $3.75 [from the Estate of Julia Sperry];  6/13/05 Went to C W Deckers, called to 
Parsonage.  Decker & J Hunt digging a well.  Called to store went to Frisbie mill;  
Decker, Hat  10/30/06 Went to Westfield with Sheep & 2 Lambs, Eaton rode with me.  Carrie came back with me Mr 
Coolidge & Hat Decker in there;  
Decker, Fred  2/11/00 Went to Church...Fred Decker & Wife there;  8/10/05 S W Decker came in Eve to see if [I?] 
could take Fred Wife & children to Winsted tomorrow;  7/7/07 Went to Church Burton & William went with me.  Fred 
Decker & family there;  
Decker, Mrs Fred  2/11/00 Went to Church...Fred Decker & Wife there;  8/10/05 S W Decker came in Eve to see if 
could take Fred Wife & children to Winsted tomorrow;  8/11/05 Went to Winsted took Butter, Eggs, & 3 Lambs.  Fred 
Decker's Wife & children went with me;  
Decker, Mrs 7/10/03 Carried Wife to the Hall to help clean it Mrs Decker & Mrs Hunt helped;  2/28/05 Shermie Decker 
came in morning with G Treats Horse got my sleigh for his mother to go to Winsted;  10/29/05 prayer meeting in the 
Evening.  Mrs Decker led;  1/30/07 Carried Wife to Aid Society Annual meeting Mrs Decker chosen President;  
10/24/07 Mrs Decker & Mrs Frisbie called;  
Decker, Sherman W  May 1896 Dog Owners Sherman W Decker 1;  1/1/00 S Decker & Geo Chaffy helped me kill a 
hog;  5/11/00 S Decker drew over some Pine logs;  5/19/00 sawed pine for Decker;  5/22/00 sawed for Decker and 
Magranis, Pine;  5/27/00 prayer meeting in the eve, S W Decker led;  5/29/00 S Decker plowed No W of house;  6/6/00 
S W Decker came over got some seed corn;  6/8/00 Decker plowed for me;  6/28/00 Em & I went to store up to S 
Deckers, to get him to plow;  6/29/00 S Decker plowed for me west of house Harry drove for him;  9/9/00 Sherman 
Decker called in eve;  9/29/00 Went to S W Deckers in the morning put up some Potatoes;  11/28/00 Sawed for 
Magranis & Decker;  2/12/01 Decker came over helped me kill a 2 year old steer;  5/4/01 Went down street and up to S 
W Decker's back to PO;  8/17/01 Went to Hargers got cow went up to Harmon place got Decker to come over and see 
her;  10/15/01 took Wife to Deckers & to Welchs just at night;  10/22/01 Sherman Decker called in eve;  1/1/02 Called 
at G Miller, G Treat, Store, Linus Barnes, took Dinner with S W Decker;
Decker, Sherman W [contd]  1/4/02 Franklin Miller and Sherman Decker called on an errand;  1/22/02 Wife and I drove 
to S W Deckers just at night they have the measles;  4/28/02 S Decker dragged an hour on turf for me;  6/21/02 Miller, 
Decker, Harry, & I went to the Academy, cleaned the upper room;  6/26/02 Went to H Peebles in eve got a Jack Screw 
Decker went with me;  8/3/02 went to prayer meeting in the evening Decker led;  10/24/02 Decker & Family, Miller, & 
Rev Bates here in Eve;  10/29/02 Went to S Decker to Social in the Eve.  S S Bodurtha and H E Bodurtha Candidate 
for Representative from Agawam called;  2/12/03 S Decker called in Eve;  3/16/03 Went to Deckers in Eve;  4/10/03 
Carrie & I went up north way by Deckers & A Phelon to A Clapp.  I went to Bronson's;  5/30/03 Went to Mr Nelsons 
helped about sawing off his Bulls horns...Decker sawed them off;  7/8/03 S W Decker and Mr Severance called here in 
Eve;  7/9/03 drove to Deckers in Eve with Wife;  9/5/03 Went to Frosts mowed some with machine.  Decker & Brown 
worked;
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Decker, Sherman W [contd]  9/29/03 Wife & I went to S Deckers in Eve to see Mr Bates he had gone;  10/15/03 sold 7 
[sheep] to S W Decker;  10/31/03 Went to Deckers got Miller drag sowed some rye and dragged it in;  11/12/03 
butchered a sheep carried it to Deckers to go to Westfield;  11/13/03 S Decker came over just at night returned the 
wagon;  11/15/03 Rev C S Bates here and preached to us...Decker took him to Tolland, called here when came back;  
6/1/04 drove to Deckers in morning;  6/14/04 Went to Agawam with wool took Dinner with Dewey Jackson stayed all 
night with S S Bodurtha got 21 cents for wool.  Carried Welch, Decker, Sheets, & Hargers:  365 lbs;  7/6/04 drove to 
Deckers in Eve;  7/18/04 Decker called in Evening;  8/10/04 Went to Deckers & store;  9/26/04 Got up sheep in 
morning.  Decker came over we drove them to his place to pasture;  10/28/04 drove to Deckers in the morning, down to 
Frisbies mill to see Goodniss about plowing;  10/31/04 Went to Deckers got Newton Buck;  11/14/04 Went to Deckers 
got my sheep, roads drifted some, nearly a foot of snow on ground;
Decker, Sherman W [contd]  12/7/04 We went to Deckers to a Social a pleseant time;  12/16/04 Decker came down to 

get long sleigh for Ward to carry saw off;  1904 Memoranda S W Decker Wool 56 lbs 18 1/2 cts per lb = $10.36.  Paid 
Interest on Society note $7.50.  Balance due Decker $2.86.  Due me on sheep $5.00  Paid Sept 26;  2/8/05 S W 
Decker came to stay and help take care of me and do chores;  2/9/05 S W Decker here to see to things;  2/10/05 
Decker here done chores helped shovel out south road got as far as T Coe's;  2/12/05 Decker done chores took Horse 
drove home got his folk went to Church;  2/13/05 Decker started for Winsted about 6, with my Butter & Eggs, got home 
about 8 left sleigh near Latham place, roads all full of snow, had a hard day;  2/14/05 Decker shoveled out the road so 
got sleigh home in afternoon.  G Miller and Lib started for Tolland roads bad they stopped here.  Miller plowed out the 
road helped Decker get sleigh home.  Decker went home after done chores;  2/15/05 Decker doing my chores, he and 
Milo Miller shoveled snow on cross road north of School House;
Decker, Sherman W [contd]  2/16/05 Decker here doing chores, he and Millers folks finished breaking the cross road, 
in forenoon...Decker went to P Stevens in afternoon to Dr cow;  2/17/05 Miller & Frisbie drew 4 loads Ice each from 
Parsons Pond Decker & Fred Chapman packed it.  Decker went home towards night Horse sick;  2/18/05 Sherman 
came over butchered Pig Albert Sheets and Shermie helped, they went home after dinner;  2/24/05 S Decker came 
over in morning, Eat breakfast with [me] took Horse went to Winsted with Butter and Eggs for me stayed all night;  
2/25/05 S Decker got back from Winsted about 6 PM;  2/27/05 S W Decker called in the afternoon;  4/21/05 S W 
Decker came over, in morning;  4/25/05 Decker came got some hay;  4/27/05 Carrie & Edith went with Lib to Deckers 

in afternoon;  4/28/05 Decker came over got 1/2 Bushel Potatoes 3 Bags Fertilizer at Millers;  6/12/05 Decker came 
along been trouting;  8/10/05 S W Decker came in Eve to see if [I] could take Fred['s] Wife & children to Winsted 
tomorrow;  8/20/05 Prayer meeting in Eve Decker led the meeting;
Decker, Sherman W [contd]  9/10/05 Wife and I drove up north and to Deckers in Eve;  9/19/05 Went to H A Blairs got 
his Buck, left him to Deckers;  10/3/05 took 9 sheep to Deckers Albert helped;  10/4/05 Carried Wife to S Deckers and 
to Frisbies;  10/11/05 Carried 2 [3?] sheep to Deckers;  10/14/05 Went to G Millers to S Deckers & to store in the Eve;  
10/16/05 Went to Deckers got my sheep home;  12/4/05 Decker came over Dr a cow, that lost a calf yesterday;  
12/29/05 Annual Church Dinner at the Hall and roll call, also business meeting.  S W Decker Clerk C A Sheets 

Treasurer, about 15 present;  3/20/06 butchered a 2 yr old Heifer took 1/2 to Miller 1/4 to Decker;  5/4/06 Decker came 
got 6 Bags Fertilizer;  5/22/06 Weighed some hay at Fenn barn for S W Decker...Decker & Lib helped Em paper 
Kitchen.  Mrs Coolidge called carried them home;  6/16/06 Wife & I went to Deckers in afternoon;  9/27/06 Went to 
Deckers got a load sawdust;  10/15/06 Went to Deckers to prayer meeting in Eve;  2/13/07 Miller carried load to 
Gibbons Hall to caucus.  Sheets, Decker, Frisbie, Treat, & I went with him;

Decker, Sherman W [contd]  3/4/07 Went to Town meeting rode with G Miller he carried Decker, Jones, & Frisbie;  
5/19/07 Prayer meeting in Eve S W Decker led;  8/18/07 Gilbert & Lib called Em rode to Sheets and around to Deckers 
with them;  9/10/07 took Buck to Deckers, went to C D Treats got fanning mill;  9/23/07 Went to Frisbies mill near 
Deckers got a load of sawdust;  10/28/07 Went to Deckers got my Buck;  11/27/07 Decker called;  

Decker, Shermie   2/18/05 Sherman came over butchered Pig Albert Sheets and Shermie helped, they went home after 
dinner;  2/28/05 Shermie Decker came in morning with G Treats Horse got my sleigh for his mother to go to Winsted;  
Deming, Frank  3/20/00 Stayed with Father all day he is failing Frank & Minnie Deming called;  

Deming, H P  10/15/01 Harry & I drove to Sandy Brook to H P Deming to look at some sheep got home at noon;  
Deming, Mrs  8/27/07 Mrs Deming, Eva Smith, & Len came over took dinner;  
Deming, Minnie  3/20/00 Stayed with Father all day he is failing Frank & Minnie Deming called;  
Den [cow?]  5/4/00 Harry took Den & Kit to Marganis to Pasture;  
Denslow  1/2/00 Went to Westfield carried a hog to Marshall & Denslow;  
Denslow, B  4/13/06 Went to Winsted with a carcass of a veal calf sold to B Denslow 120 lbs @ 101/2 cts;  
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Dewey, C S  3/1/01 took Dinner at Deweys Bood [Beood?] & Wife there;  1/2/02 Went to Winsted with Eggs & Butter 
Eggs 40 cts per Doz Butter 28 & 30 took Dinner at C S Dewey;  11/10/02 Went to Winsted with 7 Barrels of apples for 
Mr Fenn shipped to Meriden, took Dinner at C Dewey's;  12/18/02 Went to Winsted with Butter, took Dinner to C 
Dewey's;  1/2/03 went to Winsted Em went with me...We took Dinner at C Deweys Mrs Nellie Rood there;  8/19/04 
Frank went to Winsted with me, took 2 Lambs to Fancher market took dinner at Deweys;  3/9/07 Went to Winsted 

carried 1/2 Pig 157 lbs to Dewey 8 cts;  11/4/07 Went to Winsted with Eggs and Butter carried 2 Lambs for Albert 
Sheets.  Horse taken lame had Dr Judson see him, called it rheumatism.  Stayed all night at Deweys;  
DeWolf, B  5/11/01 Went out to Pats in afternoon with Wife.  B DeWolf & Wife drove in through shower;  
Dickinson, Howard B  3/8/00 Went to E Granville called to Holcomb Bros Shop.  Went to Dickinson mill got my grist;  
2/2/01 took some corn to Dickinson to have ground;  3/13/01 Went to Granville got a grist of corn at H Dickinson;  
2/24/02 took some corn to H Dickinson, got some meal oats & cracked corn;  3/4/02 took some rye and corn to 
Dickinson to have ground brought home 500 cob meal;  3/10/02 Went to E Granville with a sled got some grain at H B 
Dickinson took over some corn brought back cob meal;  3/6/03 took some Corn to H Dickinson brought home some 
grain;  4/16/03 put up some rye.  Went to H B Dickinson got it ground, got 2 Bags meal $1.20;  2/5/04 Went to H B 
Dickinson got 8 Bags grain & Bag Oats meal $1.20;  1/3/06 Went to Dickinsons got some grain;  1/10/06 Dickinson 
Library meeting in afternoon;  3/26/06 Went to E Granville got Horse shod at Oysler, got some grain at Dickinson & 
Gibbons;  1906 taxes Howard B Dickinson, $47.20;  2/27/07 Went to Dickinson's got some grain;  5/28/07 Went to 
Dickinsons Granville got 3 Bags grain;  

Dickinson, Lester B  8/17/02 We all attended Church L Dickinson and Wife from E Granville present;  5/15/06 Started 
for Westfield at 4 AM, took Hog to L Dickinson to carry to Springfield;  1906 taxes Lester B Dickinson, $78.40;  
Dimock, Aunt Electa  4/28/00 John Northway came over brought Aunt Electa;  4/29/00 We all went to Church Aunt 
Electa went with us;  9/10/00 drove to New Boston got Aunt Electa;  9/13/00 attended the fair at Blandford.  Wife and 
Aunt Electa went with me;  9/23/00 Went to Church Aunt Electa went with us;  10/24/00 Carried Aunt Electa to New 
Boston in afternoon;  1/12/02 wrote to Aunt Electa in the evening;  10/20/03 Em & I went to New Boston to see Aunt 
Electa found her quite well;  12/2/03 Aunt Electa Dimock died at 8:30 PM, 79 yrs 9 mos;  12/3/03 Ed Miner came over 
to tell us of Aunt Electa's death.  Em & I went over to J Northways where she died stayed all night;  12/5/03 Wife and I 
went to New Boston attended the funeral of Aunt Electa Dimock at John Northway's buried at Otis, drove home through 
E Otis got home at 5;  12/9/03 Em & I went to New Boston to John Northway to see about Aunt Electa affairs.  Lib rode 
over with us from Pat's;  3/19/04 Em & I went to New Boston got 2 trunks full of Aunt Electas things;  4/23/04 Wife & I 
went to J Northway's New Boston got some of Aunt Electas things;  
Dodge, Rev  1/4/02 Rev Dodge from Woburn came to preach tomorrow;  1/5/02 Rev Dodge preached as a candidate 

from Proverbs 4th chapter 23rd verse ["Keep they heart with all diligence; for out of it are the issues of life."]...Rev Dodge 
spent the night with us;  
Doll [cow]  1/31/05 went to Millers with cow Doll;  3/10/05 took Doll to Nelson's;  1905 Memoranda Turned Kit to Nelson 
March 8, Due Dec 8.  Turned Doll to Nelson's March 10.  Due Dec 10;  1/19/06 took Doll to Millers;  4/28/06 Butchered 

the cow Doll, G Miller helped me.  Weighed 384 without Hide or tallow.  Miller had 1/2 Frisbie a quarter;  1906 
Memoranda  Took Doll to Millers Jan 19 due Oct 19 and Feb 9 Due Nov 9  ["X"ed out];  
Dowd, Harrison  9/19/04 Harrison Dowd called;  
Downs, S C  5/26/01 S C Downs and Wife & Mrs McArthur attended Church;  
Downs, Mary A  1896 Mrs Julia Sperry Property sold:  Cattle $51.50;  Grass $10.00;  4 Hens $2.00;  Manure $5.00, 
Total $68.50.  Real Estate $175.00;  May 19 sold the Real Estate for $200, and Deeded it to Mary A Downs May 24 
rec[eive]d check for same;  
Dudley  8/19/05 went to Winsted took 2 Lambs and shipped the axles back to Dudley New London Ct;  
Dugdale  2/6/05 Clark went past with his family for home been at Dugdales since Thurs [Feb 2];  
Dutton, Fred L  2/21/01 Went to Fred Dutton in afternoon Harry visited the Hollow School, rode down with me.  Called 
on Mr Frost when came back;  8/9/02 Mrs Andrew Hunt died at Duttons in eve, aged 67 yrs;  1905 Memoranda Cr To 
Theo Wachter March 3 Check F L Dutton $3.75;  
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Eaton, William  1896 Poll Tax payer;  7/10/00 Wm Eaton commenced work;  7/13/00 Will mowed in Granger lot;  
8/13/00 Eaton, Webster, Harry, & I went to Otis Reservoir after Bullheads caught some;  9/15/00 Eaton repaired 
carriage;  10/24/00 Will Eaton came up we put up staging on House commenced shingling;  10/25/00 Worked at 
shingling...Eaton helped;  5/4/01 Went down street...saw Will Eaton;  10/1/01 Wm Eaton called;  4/16/02 W Eaton 
called;  6/17/02 W Eaton came in evening;  6/18/02 Went down to the Parsonage with Eaton carried the paints down so 
he could paint;  6/27/02 Commenced raising new Barn getting ready to move it Eaton helped me;  7/5/02 Harry carried 
Eaton to Westfield;  7/8/02 Will worked at the Parsonage;  7/9/02 Will worked at framing Barn;  7/10/02 Harry and Will 
went fishing to Otis;  7/21/02 Harry & Eaton went to Noyes Pond fishing;  7/28/02 Eaton worked on Barn frame;  
7/31/02 Harry and Will mowed some in Granger lot;  8/1/02 Harry & Eaton mowed;  8/8/02 Will & Harry mowed;  8/9/02 
Harry & Eaton mowed;  8/12/02 Eaton mowed;  8/13/02 Eaton worked at haying;
Eaton, William [contd]  9/29/02 Eaton went to Case's;  10/7/02  Eaton went to Painting windows in academy;  10/14/02 
Eaton worked on windows in afternoon;  10/15/02 Eaton worked on the Windows puttying in the glass;  10/16/02 Eaton 
worked [put in sleepers];  10/17/02 Worked at laying Kitchen floor Eaton worked;  10/18/02 helped Eaton about laying 
floor in Kitchen;  10/20/02 helped Eaton some about floor;  10/30/02 Eaton & I worked on Barn frame tuneing it;  
10/31/02 Eaton and I worked on Barn put on a few Boards hung stable door;  11/1/02 Eaton helped me finish the Doors 
to manure shed;  11/19/02 Eaton came just at night;  11/24/02 took Eaton, tools, and trunk to North Granby;  2/3/04 W 
Eaton called;  2/4/04 Eaton here to Dinner;  3/17/04 M Nelson & W Eaton called in Eve;  3/24/04 Eaton and Wetherwax 
called;  3/28/04 Eaton sawed wood;  3/29/04 Eaton sawed wood & painted wagon;  3/30/04 Worked with Eaton on 
wood pile;  4/2/04 Worked on wood pile, Eaton helped me;  6/22/04 Eaton called;  9/18/04 B F Jones & W Eaton called 
towards night;  3/10/05 W Eaton called in afternoon;

Eaton, William [contd]  6/9/05 Wm Eaton came took Dinner;  8/14/05 W Eaton came we put up staging commenced 
shingling the north roof of House;  8/15/05 Eaton stripped off some shingle before breakfast.  We shingled it up got wet 
through.  Visited with Hubbard some, he and Eaton went to Nelsons in afternoon;  8/16/05 took Hubbard & Eaton down 
street called on B F Jones, Mr Coolidge;  8/17/05 Eaton & I worked at shingling;  8/18/05 put on the cornice on west 
End of north roof Eaton helped;  8/21/05 Eaton finished shingling House in forenoon;  8/22/05 set in Posts for Barbed 
wire fence between Sheets & me.  Eaton helped stretch wire in afternoon, he went to Potter place in morning got 75 
feet Pine for Eave troughs;  8/23/05 helped Eaton put up eave troughs on north roof of House;  8/24/05 Will made 2 
Doors for new Barn;  8/25/05 Eaton helped me repair stable Door;  8/26/05 Eaton went to Cases got through here for 
present;  10/16/05 Eaton came about noon;  2/20/06 Jones & Eaton called;  2/22/06 Eaton here to Dinner;  
Eaton, William [contd]  10/30/06 Went to Westfield with Sheep & 2 Lambs, Eaton rode with me;  11/22/06 Wm Eaton 
helped me make a door for hatchway;  11/23/06 W Eaton here made a door for sheep stable;  11/27/06 Commenced 
shingling south roof Cow Barn Will Eaton helped;  11/28/06 Will went with me up East Hill got a log drew it to Frisbies 
mill brought back lumber;  11/30/06 Will Eaton got wood in wood house, and shingled in afternoon;  12/3/06 Eaton here 
we put up Eave trough on south side cow Barn;  7/15/07 W Eaton stayed all night;  7/18/07 Mowed with Horse...for 
Sheets...Will Eaton worked for him in afternoon;  7/19/07 Eaton worked for me mowed;  7/22/07 Will & I helped mow 
the Parsonage lot;  7/23/07 Will mowed in Granger lot;  7/26/07 Will mowed in afternoon;  7/27/07 Will mowed on 
Granger lot;  7/31/07 Will mowed around the [Fenn] barn;  8/3/07 Eaton & Albert Sheets worked [haying];  8/5/07 Albert 
& Eaton worked [haying];  8/6/07 Eaton mowed all day;  8/7/07 Wm Eaton & Albert Sheets helped [haying];  8/8/07 Will 
& Albert helped [haying];  
Eaton, William  10/11/07 Wm Eaton came took Dinner and stayed all night;  10/12/07 Eaton took Horse went to 

Chandler got his trunk;  10/19/07 Eaton came got his trunk;  1907 Memoranda Expenses for Haying.  Wm Eaton 181/2 

day $25.75.  Albert Sheets $9.00.  Total = $34.75;  

Ed  8/11/01 Wife & I went to New Boston attended Church, took lunch at J Northways he was gone to Mill River.  Ed 
came.  Called to Pats;  

Egeleston  10/12/00 took 3 sheep to Westfield 179 lbs, 8 cts per lb.  Egleston & Co had them;  1/12/04 Carried Hog to 
Egleston Westfield weighed 435, 6 cts per lb;  11/18/05 Went to Frisbies telephoned to Egleston about calves;  12/5/05 
Went to Westfield with 4 Bushel Potatoes for Mrs Parsons, 2 muttons and 1 Lamb to Egleston;  

Emerich, Rev Dr  9/13/03 Church at 1:30 Rev Dr Emerich Sec Home Missionary Society spoke;  9/15/03 Rev Dr 
Emrich & Bates called in afternoon;  8/5/04 went to the Church heard Dr Emerick from Boston preach;  7/6/05 Wife & I 
went to meeting in Eve, Dr Emerick and Wife here, he preached;  7/25/07 Dr Emerich here held meeting in Eve;  
Emmons, Fred  1/16/06 Went to Hall to Oyster supper in Eve, a talk from Colton & Fred Emmons;  
Ensworth, L L  1906 L L Ensworth & Son Corner Front & Ferry St Hartford Ct  Wagon Supplies;  
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Fancher  6/30/04 Went to Winsted took Veal to Fancher at 10 cents;  8/19/04 Frank went to Winsted with me, took 2 
Lambs to Fancher market took dinner at Deweys;  6/6/05 took calf to A B Fancher 10 cts 114 lbs, Hide $1.40 $12.80.  7 
weeks old Mollies calf;  6/15/05 Went to Winsted with Eggs & Butter, took a calf for A Frost to Fancher, 116 lbs;  
9/21/07 Went to Winsted with Butter Eggs and 2 Lambs sold to Fancher & Son 82 lbs 14 cts;  
Fard, Mrs  10/25/07 Went to Winsted with 10 Bushel Potatoes to Mrs Fard [Ford?];  
Farnham, Charles  6/18/00 Sheets came with wool also Chas Farnham;  5/20/03 C Farnham brought his wool down did 
not buy it;  
Farnham,  Giles  4/17/00 Sawed Black Ash for G Farnham, he drew them in;  4/18/00 Sawed for Giles Farnham, black 
ash;  4/19/00 Giles Farnham drew out his lumber;  
Farnham, Henry D  May 1896 Dog Owners Henry D Farnham 1 Paid;  
Farraine, Dr  9/11/06 Went to Mr Coolidge Telephoned to Dr Farraine [?] to come and see Burton;  

Feely  6/14/02 Feely came with wool;  8/13/06 took 2 Pigs to J Hitchcock W Hartland came back by J Feeley's;  
Fenn Bros  1903 Memoranda Dr  To Fenn Bros to balance on Hay Sold $6.15;  Sent check for $8.85;  1903 Paid Tax 
$9.89;  
Fenn, Abner  2/7/03 went with Mr Fenn to East Meriden called on Alden & Abner Fenn at shop where they worked took 
2:15 train to Springfield, changed for Holyoke & Trolley to Amherst to Franks stayed all night;  8/31/07 Abner Fenn 
came in afternoon we went on north lot got a few berries he spent the night;  9/1/07 Went to Church Abner went with 
me;  9/2/07 Visited with Abner;  

Fenn, J Alden  2/7/03 went with Mr Fenn to East Meriden called on Alden & Abner Fenn at shop where they worked 
took 2:15 train to Springfield, changed for Holyoke & Trolley to Amherst to Franks stayed all night;  10/28/06 J Alden 
Fenn called, came up with Olin Nelson;  10/20/07 Alden Fenn called, he came last night with the Nelsons;  
Fenn, Hubbard H  10/28/03 put up 4 Barrels of apples to go to H H Fenn Meriden;  10/29/03 Went to Riverton took 5 
Barrels of apples, sent by Wachter to Winsted to ship to H H Fenn;  11/18/04 took 4 Barrels of apples to Riverton sent 
by Wachter to Winsted to go to H H Fenn;  8/14/05 H H Fenn of Meriden came by Stage stayed all night;  8/15/05 
Visited with Hubbard some, he and Eaton went to Nelsons in afternoon;  8/16/05 took Hubbard & Eaton down street 
called on B F Jones, Mr Coolidge.  Hubbard called on Snow.  Hubbard & [sic] went to Harger, picked a few 
Huckleberries;  8/17/05 Hubbard took Stage for Westfield going to Agawam, to his Sister's, Mrs Bodurtha;  11/14/05 put 
up 2 Barrels of apples, 1 to send to Hartford, 1 to H H Fenn Meriden Ct.  Carried them to Riverton, Wachter to take 
them to Winsted;  7/19/06 Hubbard Fenn and Wife came down from Blandford stayed all night;  7/20/06 Hubbard & 
Wife went to Blandford;  10/27/06  Went to Riverton took 4 Barrels of apples to Wachter to go to Fenn;  10/31/07 took 5 
Barrels of apples to Riverton to go to Meriden, to H H Fenn;  
Fenn, Nathan  3/11/00 Wrote to Mr Fenn in evening;  8/7/02 Mowed a little on Fenn place;  8/8/02 Will & Harry mowed 
some on Fenn place;  8/9/02 Harry & Eaton mowed on Fenn place we got in 2 loads;  8/12/02 Eaton mowed on Fenn 
place;  8/13/02 Eaton worked at haying on Fenn place;  8/14/02 We worked on the Fenn place got in several loads;  
8/15/02 Worked on Fenn place got in 2 loads;  8/16/02 Worked on Fenn place.  Mowed the corner lot finished the 
place;  9/8/02 Mr Fenn and Mr Beardsley of Meriden came about 7;  9/9/02 looked about with Mr Fenn on the old place, 
called to Nelsons, they started for home about 1:30;  10/10/02 picked some apples on Fenn place;  10/20/02 picked a 
few apples on Fenn lot;  10/24/02 Picked some apples on Chase lot for Fenn;  11/10/02 Went to Winsted with 7 Barrels 
of apples for Mr Fenn shipped to Meriden;  11/13/02 Went to Winsted with Potatoes to Spear, Barrel of apples for 
Fenn;  11/28/02 fixed stable at Fenn place took 9 Lambs down there;  12/30/02 took 3 spring wagon to Fenn Barn;  
1/28/03 Moved 2 small loads of hay from Fenn place;
Fenn, Nathan [contd]  2/6/03 left Whites on Charles St went to Mill plain called on L Barnes took Dinner, took 6:15 train 
to Meriden stayed with Mr Fenn;  2/7/03 went with Mr Fenn to East Meriden called on Alden & Abner Fenn at shop 
where they worked took 2:15 train to Springfield, changed for Holyoke & Trolley to Amherst to Frank's stayed all night;  
4/6/03 brought Sheep and Lamb up from Fenn place;  4/12/03 had a Lamb at the Fenn Barn;  4/30/03 Harry & I went to 
the old mill drew up the carriage & saw frame put it in the Fenn Barn;  5/1/03 dug post holes to divide the lot on Fenn 
place south of the road;  5/2/03 Took down wire fence on Fenn place;  5/4/03 Worked on fence on Fenn place;  5/5/03 
Worked on fence on Fenn place;  5/6/03 Worked on Fenn place putting up Barbed wire fence south of road;  5/8/03 
finished fencing on the Fenn place;  7/30/03 mowed a little in afternoon on Fenn place;  7/31/03 Mowed some on Fenn 
place south of Hen houses and East;  8/1/03 Worked on Fenn place;  8/3/03 mowed a little on Fenn place;  8/7/03 
Mowed on Fenn lot;  8/8/03 Mowed the corner lot on Fenn place;
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Fenn, Nathan [contd]  8/10/03 Mowed on Fenn place East side of drain;  8/11/03 Mowed on the Fenn place got in 4 
loads A Hunt helped us;  8/12/03 finished the Fenn place;  8/25/03 drew a small load of Hay from Fenn Barn;  9/10/03 
picked pears got some hay from Fenn place;  10/7/03 Picked a few apples on Fenn place;  11/1/03 Albert Sheets drove 
my young cattle down I put them in Barn till towards night put them in Fenn lot;  4/2/04 took Sleigh to Fenn place got 
the buggy home from Latham place;  5/7/04 got out some manure on the Fenn place a part of the day 6 loads;  5/16/04 
got out manure on Fenn place;  5/17/04 Got out manure on the Fenn place;  5/18/04 Got out manure on Fenn place, 8 
loads;  5/19/04 got out manure on Fenn place;  5/21/04 finished getting out manure on Fenn place in forenoon 4 [?] 
loads 28 load in all, bushed it in afternoon;  8/8/04 Fred & Harry mowed some in south lot and on Fenn place;  8/9/04 
Mowed on Fenn place got in 4 load there;  8/12/04 finished mowing on Fenn place got in 6 load;  8/15/04 Got in 2 loads 
on Fenn place;
Fenn, Nathan [contd]  8/17/04 Miller mowed the corner lot on Fenn.  Got in 4 loads from south lot 4 from Fenn lot;  
10/13/04 picked apples on Fenn place in afternoon;  10/14/04 Picked up apples on Fenn place;  10/26/04 picked up 
apples in House lot and some on Fenn Place;  11/12/04 put up 4 Barrel of apples to send to Fenn;  11/13/04 Got the 
sheep in Barn and Cow up from Fenn place;  11/27/04 Got the yearlings out of Fenn mowing put them in Barn;  
12/13/04 took 3 spring wagon to Fenn Barn got 2 sleighs home;  1/28/05 Frisbie and a gang of men breaking roads 
near Fenn place, drifts deep;  2/3/05 A man on Camp place in Tolland got stuck in snow East of Fenn place, left his 
horses here, walked home;  4/5/05 Went to Fenn place put Bob Slays into new stable;  4/14/05 took 2 sleighs to Fenn 
place put them in little stable;  4/21/05 Sheets came down got 2 small loads hay from Fenn place;  5/20/05 fixed a little 
fence on Fenn place;  7/20/05 Fred and Lewis...mowed some on Fenn place;  7/21/05 Mowed on the Fenn place got in 
3 loads;  7/22/05 Worked on Fenn lot mowed and cocked it up;
Fenn, Nathan [contd]  7/24/05 Got in 2 loads hay in the morning from Fenn place;  7/25/05 Mowed on Fenn lot got in 2 
loads.  Fred & Lewis finished hand mowing after 4 PM;  7/26/05 raked the last in Barn lot on Fenn place, got in 4 loads, 
finished Fenn place;  8/21/05 got 20 Posts of Sheets East of his House on Fenn lot;  9/10/05 Nathan Fenn died at 
home in Meriden Ct, 81 years old;  10/7/05 picked some [apples] on Fenn place;  10/17/05 took mower and Horse rake 
to Fenn place;  11/18/05 Got the cattle from Fenn place put them into barn;  1/19/06 got the 3 spring wagon from Fenn 
barn;  1/29/06 Fixed sleigh at Fenn place;  1/31/06 Cut willows on Fenn lot south of Barn;  3/23/06 got my business 
sleigh up from Fenn barn;  5/1/06 turned cows into Fenn pasture for first time;  5/22/06 Weighed some hay at Fenn 
barn for S W Decker;  6/4/06 Burned some on Fenn place in afternoon;  6/30/06 Mowed around the Fenn barn got out 
the mower;  7/24/06 Lewis Barnes mowed on Fenn place;  7/25/06 Fred mowed in forenoon on Fenn lot;  7/26/06 Fred 
and Lewis mowed on Fenn place;
Fenn, Nathan [contd]  7/27/06  Fred and Lewis mowed on Fenn lot all day;  7/28/06 Fred & Lewis mowed on Fenn lot in 
morning;  7/30/06 turned over some hay and raked it up on Fenn place;  7/31/06 Lewis finished mowing Fenn lot;  
8/2/06 got in 2 small loads on Fenn lot;  8/7/06 Mowed part of the corner lot on Fenn place;  8/10/06 finished mowing 
corner on Fenn place;  9/26/06 Picked a few grapes on Fenn place;  10/4/06 Put Horse rake & mower into Fenn Barn;  
10/11/06 Picked apples in pasture in forenoon, a few on Fenn place in afternoon;  10/13/06 picked apples on the Fenn 
place;  10/15/06 picked apples on Fenn place;  10/16/06 Drew in the apples from...Fenn place;  10/31/06 Got cow and 
Heifer home from north lot turned them on Fenn pasture;  3/13/07 Ben Clark came up sold him a mow of hay in Fenn 
Barn $80;  4/29/07 put up 3 sleighs in Fenn barn;  7/31/07 mowed a part of the corner lot on Fenn place;  8/1/07 
Mowed awhile south of Barn on Fenn place;  8/2/07 Mowed on Fenn place East of hen houses;  8/3/07 got in 2 loads 
hay from Fenn place;  8/5/07 Mowed on Fenn lot;

Fenn, Nathan [contd]  8/7/07 finished mowing the Fenn lot;  8/8/07 Got in 2 loads hay in the morning on the Fenn place; 
8/16/07 drew a little load of hay from Fenn barn;  10/15/07 picked some [apples] beside road near Fenn place;  
10/16/07 Picked a few apples in Fenn place, fixed up the wire beside road turned cows into Fenn mowing;  12/2/07 Cut 
wood on Sheets on Fenn lot;  12/3/07 Cut wood on Sheets Fenn lot;  12/4/07 put 2 wagons in Fenn Barn...drew 2 loads 
wood from Fenn lot;  12/5/07 drew 6 loads wood from Fenn lot to House;  12/11/07 Cut wood in afternoon on Sheets, 
Fenn lot;  12/13/07 Cut wood in forenoon on the Fenn lot;  12/17/07 Drew 4 loads wood from Fenn lot to House;  
12/18/07 drew 5 loads wood from Fenn lot;  12/19/07 drew wood from Fenn lot to House;  12/20/07 drew 4 loads wood 
from Fenn lot;  12/25/07 Chopped wood in Fenn woods in forenoon;  
Fenn, Mrs Nathan  7/18/00 Mrs Nathan Fenn died in Meriden Ct;  
Fift, [Tift?] William C  1896 Poll Tax payer;  

Fisher, Miss Emma  3/1/05 Em spent the afternoon with Lib at G Millers.  Ruth Nelson & Miss Emma Fisher called;  
Fowler, Miss  10/22/05 went to Church Homer Hale & Miss Fowler from Tolland were over;  
Fowler, Mrs Betsy  8/8/00 Went out to Pats in afternoon.  Horse run tipped us over near Mrs Betsy Fowler place run to 
E Moores hurt us some.  Oliser [?] S Brought Gertie home;  
Fowler, Ellen  4/15/00 Miss Ellen Fowler died at Geo W Treat at 11 AM.  Em & I went down there in afternoon W Munn 
& Wife there;  
Frank  2/14/00 Magranis & Frank came to the mill;  
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French  4/21/04  Went to Winsted not very muddy, roads dry from French's;  11/3/05 Went to Winsted through Mill 
Street, putting in new culverts near French's;  
Frisbie, Charles  11/3/02 Harry drew a load of wood to Joe Swift & one to C Frisbie;  1896 Poll Tax payer;  
Frisbie, Estelle  4/26/07 Mrs Louise Johnson & Estelle & Porter Frisbie called in Eve;  
Frisbie, Frank  9/9/04 Went to Winsted with Butter, Eggs, 2 Lambs, and a calf for A Frost.  Frank Frisbie rode down 
with me;  
Frisbie, Fred  8/26/04 [went to] Winsted with Eggs, Butter, Lambs, & Potatoes...Fred Frisbie rode up with me;  
Frisbie, Lottie  7/8/04 Went to Winsted got some Dentist work done.  Lottie Frisbie went with me;  7/28/04 Went to 
Winsted took 2 Lambs 76 lbs took Butter & Eggs.  Lottie Frisbie came up with me rained hard drove under Yales [?] 
shed;  
Frisbie, May  3/6/03 May Frisbie died;  3/8/03 Attended funeral of May Frisbie;  
Frisbie, Nelson  1/1/00 N Frisbie paid money for Cong So;  9/6/00 Frisbies mill burned in morning;  11/20/01 Went to 
Frisbie to social in eve;  2/10/02 took flooring to the Parsonage...Called at Frisbie & Linus Barnes;  10/27/02 N Frisbie 
came up went to the mill with him sold him shingle mill $50.00;  1/3/03 Nelson Frisbie came up, in forenoon;  4/14/04 N 
Frisbie came with Will Chapman & J Hunt & team got Shingle Mill;  6/9/04 Went to Frisbies mill got a load of sawdust;  
6/22/04 Went to Frisbie mill got a load of sawdust;  7/25/04 Went to Frisbies mill south of W G got a load of sawdust;  
9/28/04 Went to A Frosts got mower and drew up a load of sawdust from Frisbies;  10/10/04 Went to Frisbies mill got a 
load of sawdust;  10/28/04 drove to Deckers in the morning, down to Frisbies mill to see Goodniss about plowing;  
11/5/04 Went to Frisbies mill got a load of sawdust;  12/2/04 Went to Frisbies house and his mill got a load of sawdust;  
1/4/05 Frisbie and a gang of men broke out roads;  1/28/05 Frisbie and a gang of men breaking roads near Fenn place, 
drifts deep;
Frisbie, Nelson [contd]  1/29/05 wind blew some last night and filled up the roads in places.  Frisbie drove up and 
plowed them out;  2/1/05 Wife & I went to N Frisbie in Eve to a Social, about 40 present.  Mr Colton of Granville Center 
talked on what he saw in England;  2/16/05 Miller & Frisbie drew 2 loads Ice each from Parsons Pond in afternoon;  
2/17/05 Miller & Frisbie drew 4 loads Ice each from Parsons Pond;  3/4/05 Went to Frisbies mill got a load sawdust put 
on Ice;  3/6/05 Drew 2 loads of sawdust from Frisbie mill south of West Granville on Pease place;  3/7/05 Drew 2 loads 
of sawdust from Frisbie mill put it on Ice;  3/9/05 Went to Frisbies mill got a load of sawdust put it in cow Barn;  5/16/05 
drew 2 loads of sawdust from Frisbie mill on Pease lot put 1 in Ice House;  6/13/05 Went to C W Deckers, called to 
Parsonage...Called to store went to Frisbie mill;  6/30/05 Got a load of sawdust at Frisbies mill;  8/4/05 Went to Frisbies 
mill got a load of shingle;  8/5/05 Went to Frisbie mill got some shingle and sawdust, Frank went with me;  8/12/05 
Went to Frisbies mill got some shingle & 32 feet boards;
Frisbie, Nelson [contd]  8/18/05 Went to Frisbie's mill in Eve got some shingle;  9/4/05 Went to Frisbies mill got a load 
of sawdust;  10/26/05 Went to Frisbies mill got a load of sawdust Arial rode down with me;  11/18/05 Went to Frisbies 
telephoned to Egleston about calves.  Got a load of sawdust from Frisbies mill;  12/15/05 Went to Frisbies mill got a 
load of sawdust.  Em rode down street with me;  1905 Memoranda Nelson Frisbie Dr To Shingle mill $50.  Balance on 
shaft $1.50;  Veal $3.68;  sum = $55.18  X  Paid;  1905 Memoranda 1902  Nelson Frisbie Cr.  To Lumber from Barnes 

mill on the Phelon lot 272 feet;  Ditto 1/2 for shingle.  1905 Ditto shingle 6 M for House.  Boards for House 32 ft.  

Drawing Ice from Parsons Pond, 1 Day;  Plank for floor in sheep Barn 220 feet;  1906 1/2 M shingle;  Pine boards;  
Settle Apr 10, 1906 Due Frisbie $8.00;  C W Ives;  1/8/06 Went to Frisbies mill with boards and runner plank, to get 
split, brought back some 2 Inch plank;  1/9/06 Went to Frisbie mill got some sled runners;  1/27/06 got a load of 
sawdust from Frisbies;  2/22/06 Went to Frisbies mill got a load sawdust;  
Frisbie, Nelson [contd]  3/7/06 Went to Frisbies mill got a load of sawdust;  3/16/06 drew 3 Hemlock logs to Frisbie mill;  
3/22/06 Frisbie and Fred Chapman broke road to Nelsons;  3/29/06 drew 2 loads of sawdust from Frisbies mill;  

4/28/06 Butchered the cow Doll, G Miller helped me.  Weighed 384 without Hide or tallow.  Miller had 1/2 Frisbie a 
quarter;  5/30/06 Went to Frisbies mill stuck up some boards brought home a load of sawdust;  6/30/06 Got a load of 
sawdust at Frisbie mill;  11/3/06 Went to old mill place got a load of logs, took one to Frisbie mill;  11/19/06 Drove to 
Frisbies in Eve;  11/28/06 Went to Frisbies mill in morning got some boards & a Bunch shingle.  Will went with me up 
East Hill got a log drew it to Frisbies mill brought back lumber;  2/13/07 Miller carried load to Gibbons Hall to caucus.  
Sheets, Decker, Frisbie, Treat, & I went with him;  3/4/07 Went to Town meeting rode with G Miller he carried Decker, 
Jones, & Frisbie;  3/11/07 Drew 2 loads sawdust from Frisbie old mill place;  4/20/07 Went to Millers and Frisbie mill;  
6/17/07 Got a load of sawdust at Frisbie mill;  

Frisbie, Nelson [contd]  6/19/07 Went to Frisbie old mill got a load of Boards;  6/20/07 Went to Frisbie old mill got load 
boards;  9/23/07 Went to Frisbies mill near Deckers got a load of sawdust;  10/30/07 Went to Frisbies mill got a load of 
sawdust put it under Church shed;  11/27/07 went to Frisbies mill got a load sawdust;  11/30/07 Went to Frisbie mill got 
a load of sawdust;  12/24/07 Went to store and to Frisbie mill got a load of sawdust;  
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Frisbie, Mrs  2/1/02 Carried Wife to the Parsonage she & Mrs Frisbie worked at cleaning it;  3/4/03 Attended Fund & 
Society meeting in afternoon.  Em stayed at Frisbies;  9/11/04 Wife and I drove to Cemetery.  Mrs Frisbie rode up with 
us;  10/4/05 Carried Wife to S Deckers and to Frisbies;  11/21/05 Carried Em to Mrs Frisbies;  10/24/07 Mrs Decker & 
Mrs Frisbie called;  
Frisbie, Porter  4/26/07 Mrs Louise Johnson & Estelle & Porter Frisbie called in Eve;  5/3/07 Went to Winsted...Porter 
Frisbie rode down with me;  
Frost, Arial  1/16/00 Arial Frost brought the Buck home;  2/17/00 went to A Frosts;  1/25/00 Mr Frost came home with 
us took supper;  4/3/00 Went to Mr A Frosts got 10 bushel Potatoes;  6/21/00 A Frost brought his wool;  8/1/00 took the 
mower to Mr Arial Frost, mowed for him.  We got in three loads, Frank Harrington worked for him;  8/2/00  Worked for 
Mr Frost mowed with machine in forenoon raked with Horse in afternoon;  8/3/00 Mowed with Horse for Mr Frost in 
forenoon raked in afternoon.  Recoer [?] & Harrington worked;  8/18/00 Went onto A Frosts...mowed on his upper lot;  
8/20/00 to Mr Frosts upper lot and mowed with machine;  9/24/00 Killed some Chickens and 2 Lambs of Frost;  10/2/00 
Mr Frost brought up 2 Lambs butchered them;  10/22/00 A Frost brought a Lamb 117 lbs.  Butchered 2 in afternoon;  
11/8/00 A Frost got 2 Pigs;  11/13/00 Frost brought a calf up, butchered it and a Lamb;  12/1/00 A Frost came up took 
dinner with us;  12/7/00 Frank...went to Mr Frosts in afternoon;  1/1/01 Attended Dickinson Library meeting.  Chosen 
one of Committee with H Ripley & A Frost;
Frost, Arial [contd]  2/21/01 Went to Fred Dutton...Called on Mr Frost when came back;  3/19/01 drove to C W Terretts 
down to A Frost;  5/23/01 Mr Frost came up got some Butter;  6/11/01 Went to Mr Frost, helped him plant Potatoes.  
Butchered a calf for him;  6/15/01 Planted corn for Arial Frost, he drew out manure put it in the hill;  6/17/01 Harry 
worked for Mr Frost planting corn;  6/18/01 Harry worked for Mr Frost planting corn;  6/19/01 Went to Winsted carried a 

calf for Mr Frost weighed 86 lbs 91/2 cts $8.17 Hide $1.00;  7/3/01 Wife & I went to Mr Frosts in evening;  8/2/01 took 
mower to Mr Frosts;  8/5/01 Went to Mr Frosts mowed the knoll;  8/6/01 Went to A Frost's mowed awhile with mower;  
8/8/01 Went to Frosts about 9 o'clock mowed awhile turned over hay;  8/9/01 Went to Mr Frosts mowed a small piece 
with mower opened hay got in 2 loads before Dinner and 4 after, left out 20 heaps.  D Frost came with 10 cows;  
8/12/01 Went to Frost's mowed a small piece with mower, mowed until noon by hand;  8/13/01 Went to Frosts mowed 
awhile by hand;  8/16/01 Went to Mr Frosts mowed on south end of lot with mower;
Frost, Arial [contd]  8/19/01 Went to Frost's mowed a while with mower;  8/29/01 drove up to Sheets went down on 
Frosts upper lot mowed with machine;  8/30/01  Worked for A Frost on his upper lot Fred Chapman worked;  8/31/01 
Worked for Frost...finished machine work;  9/19/01 A Frost called a few moments had been to Tolland;  10/9/01 Frost 
brought up 3 Lambs I butchered;  10/24/01 Harry went to A Frosts got his oxen;  10/25/01 Harry & I plowed with Frosts 
oxen;  10/26/01 Harry and I plowed and drew stone with Frosts oxen;  11/11/01 A Frost brought his sheep up;  11/14/01
Went to A Frost in afternoon.  Called to see Linus Barnes;  1/8/02 Arial Frost called in afternoon;  5/5/02 A Frost came 
up with oxen drew logs for me;  6/10/02 A Frost called;  6/30/02 A Frost came up with oxen we moved the Barn in 2 
hours;  7/10/02 Frost came up;  7/12/02 Frost came up with oxen got in 4 loads [hay];  7/14/02 Mowed in forenoon for A 
Frost;  7/15/02 Frost came to help [haying], oxen run away broke cart;  7/16/02 Went to Society in afternoon drove to 
Frost's;
Frost, Arial [contd]  8/22/02 Went to A Frosts mowed some with machine.  Jack Smith & H Treat came there to work for 
A Frost;  8/23/02 Worked for Frost mowed some with machine;  8/25/02 Worked for Mr Frost;  9/1/02 Went on to 
Frosts upper lot mowed awhile with machine raked by hand;  9/2/02 Worked for A Frost;  12/1/02 Frost got the Buck;  
4/29/03 Frank went to Frosts;  5/9/03 Frost came got 2 Pigs;  5/21/03 Harry went to Frosts sheared his and our Sheep;  
6/1/03 Em & I went to Frosts in Eve got some wool;  6/6/03 Harry & I went to A Frosts got my sheep that he had been 
keeping for me;  6/9/03 A Frost called in morning;  8/20/06 A Frost came up got Mower & Rake;  8/21/03 Harry & I went 
to A Frosts worked at haying;  8/22/03 Worked for A Frost;  8/24/03 Worked for Frost;  9/2/03 Went to Frosts about 10, 
raked up some hay.  G Miller & Milo came down in afternoon got in 4 loads;  9/4/03 Went to A Frost's mowed some 
with machine G Miller worked got in 2 loads;  9/5/03 Went to Frosts mowed some with machine.  Decker & Brown 
worked;

Frost, Arial [contd]  9/6/03 Worked for A Frost on his upper lot.  G Chaffee worked there, [&] G Miller;  9/8/03 Worked 
for A Frost on his upper lot;  9/21/03 Went to A Frost's in afternoon mowed a piece of grass with machine;  12/1/03 

Frank went to A Frost, in morning;  1903 Memoranda Wool 171/2 cts Sold at 19 cts;  Bought of Newton 89 = $15.05 

[calc=$15.575];  Stanard 411/2 = $7.25 [calc = $7.2625];  Brunk 61/2 = $1.13 [calc=$1.1375];  Miller 47 = $8.90 [calc = 

$8.225];  A Frost 19 = $3.61 [calc = $3.325];  sum = 201 [calc = 203];  Amount Wool 343;  A Frost Dr  Aug 21st work 

$1.50; 22nd $1.00;  24th $1.50;  Sept 2nd $0.75;  4th $1.50;  5th $1.50;  7th $1.00;  8th $1.00; Sept 21st $0.60;  sum 
=$10.35 minus Discount $1.35 = $9.00;  Cr July 1, 1904 $4.00;  Cash 4 Dr $5.00;  Transferred to 1904 Book;  1/16/04 
A Frost came up got the Buck;  7/1/04 A Frost called took Dinner;  8//23/04 Went with mower to Arial Frost's mowed in 
afternoon;  8/24/04 a good hay day.  Went to Frosts about 9;  8/25/04 Went to Frosts mowed in forenoon;
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Frost, Arial [contd]  9/9/04 Went to Winsted with Butter Eggs 2 Lambs and a calf for A Frost.  Frank Frisbie rode down 
with me;  9/28/04 Went to A Frosts got mower and drew up a load of sawdust from Frisbies;  10/6/04 A Frost brought 2 
Lambs butchered them in afternoon;  12/19/04 A Frost got Sheets Buck from here;  1904 Memoranda Arial Frost Dr 
Aug 25, Haying $1.25;  26th $1.55;  + $0.75 = $3.55;  Paid.  Sept 28, 1904 Balance due for haying in 1903, $3.00;  
3/15/05 A Frost called took Dinner;  6/15/05 Went to Winsted with Eggs & Butter, took a calf for A Frost to Fancher, 
116 lbs;  6/29/05 Went to Winsted with Eggs and Butter, took a veal carcass for Arial Frost, 10 cts 102 lbs;  9/5/05 A 
Frost came up;  10/18/05 Went to Arial Frosts Auction in afternoon things sold fairly well;  10/25/05 Arial Frost stayed 
all night;  10/26/05 Went to Frisbies mill got a load of sawdust Arial rode down with me;  11/5/05 Arial Frost united with 
the Church;  11/10/05 A Frost came took Dinner went home and came back and stayed all night;
Frost, Arial [contd]  11/11/05 Carried A Frost to the cemetery and B Jones fixed the stones of Mr & Mrs Smith, Frost, 
Lawrence Smith, & Burts [Cyrus's son Burton];  8/14/06 Arial Frost and Dan Frost of Suffield came spent the night;  
11/3/06 Went to Frost place got some Plank;  11/24/06 went to A Frost place got some shingle;  8/10/07 Arial Frost 
came stayed all night;  8/11/07 Mr Coolidge preached his farewell Sermon...Pat & Len came to Church, A Frost here;  
8/12/07 Arial Frost went away in morning;  
Frost, D  8/9/01 Went to Mr Frosts mowed a small piece with mower opened hay got in 2 loads before Dinner and 4 
after, left out 20 heaps.  D Frost came with 10 cows;
Frost, Dan  8/14/06 Arial Frost and Dan Frost of Suffield came spent the night;  
Frost, Mr & Mrs Smith [?]  11/11/05 Carried A Frost to the cemetery and B Jones fixed the stones of Mr & Mrs Smith 
Frost, Lawrence Smith & Burts [Cyrus's son Burton];  
Fuller, Rev E C  5/13/06 Wrote to Rev E C Fuller NH, and to John Murdock in Eve;  

Gaylord, A  5/17/01 Went to Riverton carried a Pig to C Howd & Potatoes to A Gaylord Hartland;  
Gaylord, Mrs Nat  12/12/00 Mrs Nat Gaylord's remains brought to W Hartland;  
Georgia  8/19/00 wrote to Frank & Georgia;  
Gette, Ly  4/7/05 Ly Gette went past with a load of calves;  

Gibbons  3/24/00 went to Granville Corners to see Gibbons.  Telephoned to Frank Ives & J C [Jimmie] Hakes;  3/6/03 
took some Corn to H Dickinson brought home some grain Carrie & Baby went with [sic] called to Gibbons;  3/26/06 
Went to E Granville got Horse shod at Oysler, got some grain at Dickinson & Gibbons went over with Horse sled;  
2/13/07 Miller carried load to Gibbons Hall to caucus.  Sheets, Decker, Frisbie, Treat, & I went with him;  
Gibbons, J M  2/18/01 J M Gibbons Died;  1906 taxes Estate of J M Gibbons $52.50;  
Gibbons, William C  1906 taxes William C Gibbons, $65.30;  
Gibbs, J W  9/5/00 Carried Wife to Ladies Society called to G Treats. J W Gibbs & Wife & Wesley Gibbs there;  
9/21/00 J W Gibbs & Wife called;  
Gibbs, Mrs J W  9/5/00 Carried Wife to Ladies Society called to G Treats. J W Gibbs & Wife & Wesley Gibbs there;  
9/21/00 J W Gibbs & Wife called;  6/28/02 Mrs J W Gibbs called in afternoon;  7/30/02 Wife and I went to Granville 

Center Attended the 100th anniversary of the Church.  Mrs J W Gibbs stayed with us all night;  10/15/07 Mrs Gibbs 
came stayed all night;  
Gibbs, Sam  9/28/01 Harry & I drove to Otis looked at Sam Gibbs sheep;  10/17/01 Drove to E Otis bought some sheep 
of Sam Gibbs, Harger went up with me;  10/21/01 drove to Uhl's [Vehl's?] place got Sam Gibbs came back to A Soule 
drove sheep into his barn caught 9 brought them home;  

Gibbs, Wesley  9/5/00 Carried Wife to Ladies Society called to G Treats. J W Gibbs & Wife & Wesley Gibbs there;  
Gill, W F  May 1896 Dog Owners W F Gill 1;  
Goldthwaite, Albert  6/6/01 Flora Breckenridge married to Albert Goldthwaite Hadley Mass;  
Goodniss  8/16/00 took Mrs Parsons & friend Em and drove to Goodness [?] up to cemetery;  9/14/00 drove to 
Goodniss in eve;  9/15/00 dug around some stone in potato piece Goodniss drew them off;  5/5/04 Fire East of 
Goodness [Goodners?];  10/28/04 drove to Deckers in the morning, down to Frisbies mill to see Goodniss about 
plowing;  10/31/04 Goodniss came over and plowed west side of orchard;  12/11/05 took the young Sow to Goodniss 
and left her;  3/10/06 Went to Goodniss and Parsons pond in the morning...and to Goodniss in Eve;  3/12/06 Fred 
Chapman sawed ice on Parsons Pond, Goodniss drew 4 loads, I packed it;  3/13/06 Goodniss drew one load ice in 
morning;  3/15/06 Goodniss came with a load of Fertilizer in morning;  3/26/06 Goodniss brought load Fertilizer;  
11/11/07 Went to Goodniss to get him to plow;  
Goodwin, J M  7/20/00 Mowed the knoll on J M Goodwin lot;  7/27/01 Cut the grass on Godwin lot, raked and drew it 
home in afternoon 45 heaps 2 loads;  
Gorham  5/31/04 Went down street stuck up some boards drove to Gorham place called to Parsonage, Store and G 
Treats repaired fence up north;  
Gowdy  6/12/02 Osborne & Gowdy [?] came with wool;  
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Granger Lot  1/13/00 drew 5 loads of manure on the Granger lot;  2/9/00 drew 2 loads of manure on a sled onto the 
Granger lot;  2/12/00 drew out 6 loads of manure on Granger lot;  3/9/00 got out manure on Granger lot mowing;  
7/13/00 Will mowed in Granger lot;  7/14/00 got in...1 [load hay] from Granger lot;  7/16/00 Went to mowing on west 
side of Granger lot;  10/15/00 picked up apples in Granger lot;  10/27/00 put the cows in Granger lot;  7/20/01 raked a 
little in Granger lot, got in 4 loads from orchard & 1 from Granger lot;  7/22/01 Mowed with mower west side of Granger 
lot.  Ben finished the east side;  7/23/01 finished mowing the Granger lot;  7/31/02 Harry and Will mowed some in 
Granger lot;  8/2/02 Mowed a piece in Granger lot;  8/4/02 finished mowing Granger lot;  9/29/02 Picked the apples in 
the Granger lot;  3/7/03 got out 5 loads of manure spread it on Granger mowing;  3/28/03 drew manure on Granger lot;  
4/3/03 got out 7 loads manure on west side Granger lot on the grass;  4/27/03 Harry & I fixed fence around the Cow 
pasture in forenoon, dug Post holes in afternoon west side Granger lot;
Granger Lot [contd]  4/29/03 drew a load of Posts and set them on north side of Granger lot;  6/11/03 put up wire fence 
west side of Granger lot;  7/13/03 Mowed around the old cellar on Granger lot;  7/14/03 Spread out hay in Granger lot.  
Got in 2 loads north [of] House in forenoon, raked the Granger lot got 2 loads there between showers;  7/17/03 Mowed 
a piece in Granger lot by hand;  7/27/03 Mowed all the west side of Granger lot and old lane;  7/28/03 finished the 
Granger lot;  12/14/03 got out 7 loads manure from manure shed, put it on the Granger lot, on the west side;  2/29/04 
Got out 7 loads manure on Granger lot;  3/8/04 drew out 8 loads manure onto Granger lot;  3/9/04 Cleaned manure out 
of the sheep stable drew it onto Granger lot;  3/21/04 got out 6 loads manure on Granger lot;  3/28/04 drew out 4 loads 
of manure on the Granger lot;  7/16/04 Mowed a little around the old cellar on Granger lot;  7/29/04 [mowed] a piece in 
Granger lot in afternoon;  7/30/04 Mowed by hand around the cellar on Granger lot.  Got in hay out of orchard & west 
side of Granger lot 7 loads.  Lewis Barnes worked;
Granger Lot [contd]  8/3/04 Harry helped me, mowed a piece of light grass in Granger lot;  9/27/04 picked up apples in 
Granger lot;  9/29/04 picked up apples on Granger lot;  7/15/05 Fred mowed some on Granger lot;  7/17/05 Mowed the 
west side of Granger lot;  7/20/05 Fred and Lewis finished mowing the Granger lot;  9/11/05 Picked up a few apples on 
Granger lot put up the gaps so could turn cows in;  9/15/05 Cool in the morning with a little frost on Granger lot but 
none around the buildings;  9/17/05 Got May Jr turned her in Granger lot;  7/23/06 Lewis Barnes came up mowed on 
Granger lot;  7/25/06 finished mowing west side Granger lot;  10/23/06 Picked up some apples on Granger lot;  11/9/06 
Got out 6 loads manure on Granger lot;  11/10/06 Got out 4 loads manure on Granger lot;  11/13/06 drew out 4 loads of 
manure out of hog pen put on the Granger lot;  3/26/06 Got out 6 loads of manure on Granger lot;  3/27/07 Got out 4 
loads manure on Granger lot;  6/3/07 Knocked manure on the Granger lot in the afternoon;  7/23/07 Will mowed in 
Granger lot;  7/25/07 Mowed some in Granger lot;  
Granger Lot [contd]  7/27/07 Will mowed on Granger lot;  7/29/07 finished mowing Granger lot;  7/30/07 got 2 [loads 
hay] from Granger lot;  10/23/07 Got out 4 loads manure spread it on Granger lot;  11/16/07 burned some brush on 
Granger lot;  
Granger, L  9/21/00 drove to L Granger's & to H Ripley;  6/6/01 L Granger came in the morning;  
Granger, Lyman  7/24/05 Carried Fred & Lewis to Hall Pond, called on Lyman Granger;  
Granny [cow]  1905 Memoranda Turned Granny to Millers Nov 19 due Aug 19, 1906;  1906 Memoranda Granny Due 
Aug 19, 1906;  1908 [1909?] Memoranda Took Granny to Nelsons March 11 Due Dec 11;  
Griffin, Norman  8/19/05 went to Winsted...Norman Griffin rode over from Riverton;  
Guptill, W T   1906 W T Guptill Topsham Maine  Member of the Grange;  

Hallbound, H W  April 1914  Estate of Emeline O Ives...Paid H W Hallbound counsel fee $25.00;  
Hakes, Gertie  1/29/00 Put sewing machine in a crate to send Gertie;  1/30/00 Went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs, 
carried Sewing Machine sent to Gertie by Ex;  7/31/00 Went to Winsted took a Lamb Butter & Eggs.  Gertie came 
home with me;  8/8/00 Went out to Pats in afternoon.  Horse run tipped us over near Mrs Betsy Fowler place run to E 
Moores hurt us some.  Oliser [?] S Brought Gertie home;  9/11/00 Went to Winsted Gertie went with me to go to 
Canaan;  8/28/01 Went to Winsted...Gertie & Myrtle came up with me;  9/6/01 Harry & his Sisters went to Tolland;  
9/8/01 Harry carried his Sisters to Westfield they return to NJ tomorrow;  7/12/02 Harry went to Winsted got his Sisters;  
7/19/02 Harry and his Sisters went to Tolland in afternoon;  7/20/02 went to Church Mertie & Gertie went with me;  
7/25/02 Harry carried his Sisters & Mary Welch to Winsted;  8/15/03 Harry went to Winsted got his Sisters;  9/3/03 
Went to Winsted...took Gertie & Mertie down;  7/13/05 went to Winsted...Gertie & Myrtle Hakes came home with me;  
7/16/05 Harry and Sisters attended Church with me;  7/22/05 Harry carried his sisters to Winsted, going back to Jersey C
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Hakes, Harry  1/6/00 Went to mill got a load of sawdust Harry went with me;  2/9/00 Harry & I went down to mill got a 
load of saw dust;  2/10/00 Harry & I went to the mill...Sawed a little;  2/13/00 Harry & I went to the mill [&] sawed;  
2/15/00 Harry & I went to Winsted;  2/19/00 Harry & I went down west beside of the road cut some wood;  2/20/00 
Harry & I went down west in pasture near the road cut alders;  2/21/00 Harry & I cut alders for wood down west;  
2/24/00 Harry went into the Hollow to an entertainment;  2/26/00 Harry & I cut alders beside road on hill down west;  
2/27/00 Harry & I cut brush on flat down west;  3/2/00 Harry & I cut ice;  3/3/00 Harry & I cut ice;  3/17/00 Harry & I drew 
wood to the house;  4/6/00 [Frank] & Harry went to Winsted in afternoon to get some teeth pulled;  4/14/00 Harry & I 
worked in the mill;  5/4/00 Harry took Den & Kit to Marganis to Pasture;  5/17/00 Harry & I planted Potatoes;  5/19/00 
Harry & I run the mill sawed pine for Decker;  6/2/00 Harry & I plowed the lane repaired fence around north lot;  6/6/00 
Harry & I went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs;  6/9/00 Harry dragged in the old lane;
Hakes, Harry [contd]  6/29/00 S Decker plowed for me west of house Harry drove for him;  7/3/00 Harry & I went to 
Winsted with Butter & Eggs Harry had some teeth filled;  7/4/00 Harry went into the Hollow to a Picnic;  7/5/00 Harry 
dragged a piece for Millet;  8/4/00 Harry mowed on north lot;  8/13/00 Eaton, Webster, Harry, & I went to Otis Reservoir 
after Bullheads caught some;  8/21/00 Harry & I...mowed a small load brought it home;  8/22/00 Harry went 
blackberrying;  8/23/00 took Mertie and Harry to Winsted to go to Canaan to visit their Father;  8/28/00 Went to Winsted 
with Butter & Eggs.  Harry came back;  9/12/00 Harry & I went to Blandford fair;  9/14/00 Went into the pasture got 

some apples that Harry picked up yesterday [blown off on 12th by remnants of Galveston Hurricane];  9/18/00 
sowed...rye.  Harry dragged it in;  9/19/00 Wife, Harry, and I went to New Boston to Cattle Show;  10/2/00 Harry & I 
went to Wm Champlin to look at sheep he was gone;  10/8/00 Harry & [I] went to Wm Champlin, bought 2 sheep & a 
Lamb;  10/13/00 Harry & I got in corn fodder;
Hakes, Harry [contd]  10/16/00 Harry went hunting and drew wood from mill in afternoon;  10/31/00 Harry drew up 
wood;  11/1/00 Harry drew up wood;  11/2/00 Harry drew wood;  11/3/00 Harry & I went to the Church sawed split and 
put in wood;  11/14/00 Harry & I went to Winsted took calf & a Lamb.  Got shoes for Harry, pair felt boots for myself;  
11/25/00 Harry & I went to Church;  12/9/00 Went to Church alone Harry sick with cold;  12/22/00 Harry drew saw dust 
from the mill;  12/23/00 Harry & I went to Church;  12/24/00 Harry bushed in some manure;  12/25/00 Harry went 
skating on Parsons pond;  12/26/00 Harry & I cut wood and brush in cow pasture;  12/27/00 Harry & I cut wood & brush 
in pasture;  12/29/00 Harry & [I] cut wood;  12/30/00 Harry & [I] went to Church;  1/5/01 Harry & I cut some logs and 
brush in the pasture;  1/7/01 Harry & [I] cut wood and brush in pasture;  1/8/01 Harry & I cut brush and wood in cow 
Pasture;  1/9/01 Harry drew wood on wagon...he went into Hollow skating in eve;  1/10/01 Harry drew 2 load of wood on
wagon;  1/12/01 Harry drew wood;
Hakes, Harry [contd]  1/14/01 Harry drew wood in forenoon and Ice in afternoon;  1/19/01 Cut 4 loads of Ice.  Harry 
drew it;  1/21/01 Cut 4 loads of Ice Harry drew them;  1/23/01 Harry drew a load of wood;  1/24/01 Harry drew wood;  
1/25/01 Harry drew 2 loads of wood;  1/26/01 Harry & I cut down a white ash tree 26 inches Diam, west side pasture;  
2/1/01 Harry & I cut wood above the bridge on bank of the river;  2/3/01 Harry helped Mr Nelson do his chores;  2/7/01 
Harry helped break out the roads;  2/9/01 Harry went to PO;  2/10/01 Harry & I went to Church;  2/11/01 Harry & I went 
down near the Bridge cut wood;  2/21/01 Harry visited the Hollow School;  2/22/01 Harry went to Tolland to make a 
visit;  2/25/01 Harry at Tolland;  2/26/01 Pat brought Harry over in eve;  3/7/01 Harry & I worked on woodpile;  3/8/01 
Harry & I worked on wood pile;  3/13/01 took Harry to Tolland he is going out to help Pat on wood pile;  3/24/01 Harry 
came home from Pats;  3/29/01 Harry & I went down opposite of the mill cut stove wood for Academy;  4/1/01 Will & 
Harry set 6 [9?] sap trees;  4/4/01 Cooley & Harry went to Tolland;
Hakes, Harry [contd]  4/5/01 helped Harry get some wood to the sap place down west, he cut it and boiled sap;  4/6/01 
Harry boiled sap, syruped off towards night;  4/9/01 Worked repairing race Will Cooley & Harry helped;  4/11/01 worked 
a graveling the Dam Will Cooley & Harry helped;  4/15/01 Harry gathered & boiled sap;  4/19/01 Harry & I worked in the 
mill;  4/25/01 Harry & I went to Winsted;  4/30/01 Harry drew out lumber in forenoon, packed shingle in afternoon;  
5/2/01 Harry went to East Granville got some grain;  5/6/01 Harry got out manure;  5/8/01 Harry drew saw dust;  
5/16/01 Harry & I planted in afternoon;  5/17/01 Harry & I planted a few Potatoes;  5/21/01 Harry & I planted Potatoes;  
5/24/01 Harry dragged [oats] in;  5/27/01 Harry went fishing;  5/29/01 Harry went to Coe;  5/30/01 Harry rode his Wheel 
as far as Wright place rode back with me;  6/3/01 Harry went to Tolland to work a few days;  6/8/01 Harry came back 
from Pats;  6/10/01 Harry went out to Tolland to help Pat;  6/15/01 Harry came back from Tolland;  6/17/01 Harry 
worked for Mr Frost planting corn;
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Hakes, Harry [contd]  6/20/01 Harry & I planted some sweet corn for fodder;  6/24/01 Harry & I peeled bark in the little 
sap place;  6/25/01 Harry & I peeled Bark down west south side of road next to Mr Nelson lot;  6/26/01 Harry fixed 
flower bed;  7/2/01 Very hot, the warmest day in Winsted for Years.  Harry & I went to Winsted;  7/4/01 Harry went to 
Picnic;  7/8/01 Harry helped Geo Chaffee plow out Potatoes;  7/9/01 Harry & I went to Westfield got back at 3 PM, hoed 
a little while;  7/10/01 Harry helped Chaffee plow out corn;  7/29/01 Harry Wife & I picked berries awhile on upper lot;  
7/30/01 Harry & I went to mill got a load of wood...Wife, Harry, & I picked Berries awhile;  7/31/01 Harry worked for B 
Magranis;  8/4/01 Will Cooley, Harry, & I went to Church...Harry carried Will as far as the narrows toward night;  8/5/01 
Harry worked for Chas Magranis;  8/6/01 Harry & Miller Boys went to Otis;  8/10/01 Cooley & Harry, Mr Clum [?] & F 
Magranis went to Otis fishing;  8/12/01 Harry worked for Magranis;  8/21/01 Harry got wood into Wood House;  8/22/01 
Harry & [I] got wood into Wood House and piled it up;
Hakes, Harry [contd]  8/28/01 Harry went down to Ben Clark's cutting Tobacco;  9/2/01 Harry came home from Ben 
Clarks;  9/3/01 Harry & I went to Tolland on Society lot and mowed;  9/6/01 Harry & his Sisters went to Tolland;  9/7/01 
Harry & Myrtie went to Mrs H Peebles in afternoon;  9/8/01 Harry carried his Sisters to Westfield they return to NJ 
tomorrow;  9/12/01 Harry & I went to Blandford Fair, a poor show and drill, they played a game of Ball Westfield & 
Granville;  9/13/01 Harry went to Hargers in morning got cow;  9/18/01 Wife and I went to New Boston to Cattle 
Show...Harry went on his wheel;  9/20/01 Harry & [I] cut the corn fodder;  9/28/01 Harry & I drove to Otis looked at Sam 
Gibbs sheep;  9/30/01 Harry & I got out manure;  10/1/01 Harry worked for Burt Magranis;  10/9/01 Harry bushed over 
the piece we sowed yesterday;  10/12/01 Harry went hunting;  10/15/01 Harry & I drove to Sandy Brook to H P Deming 
to look at some sheep;  10/18/01 Harry drew wood from mill;  10/19/01 Harry went hunting.  I went...to the Hall in eve, 
Squirrel hunters had a supper;  10/24/01 Harry went to A Frosts got his oxen;
Hakes, Harry [contd]  10/25/01 Harry & I plowed with Frosts oxen;  10/26/01 Harry and I plowed and drew stone with 
Frosts oxen;  10/29/01 Harry drew wood from the mill;  10/31/01 Harry went to Tolland got some Ice of J Rogers [?];  
11/2/01 Harry & I drew off some stone;  11/4/01 Harry went to Tolland got wagon repaired;  11/6/01 Wife & I, Harry, 
Ruth Nelson, & Ella Clark went to H Peebles to a Social in eve;  11/8/01 Harry & I blasted rocks west of the House;  
11/10/01 Rev Kilbrox [?] preached...Harry carried the minister to Tolland;  11/12/01 fixed a shoe for Harry;  11/15/01 
Geo Chaffee, Harry, & I helped M Nelson kill his hog;  11/19/01 Harry chopped wood;  11/26/01 Harry & I went to mill 
sawed out some sled runners;  11/29/01 Harry & I went down west cut and drew Hemlock logs to the mill;  11/30/01 
Harry went to Riverton got some grain;  12/1/01 Frank, Harry, & I went to Church;  12/4/01 Harry & Frank went to G 
Millers in eve;  12/6/01 Harry & I went to woods got out logs & Bark;  12/10/01 Harry went to Munn.  We cut and drew 
logs in afternoon;  12/11/01 Harry & I cut logs, drew to mill;

Hakes, Harry [contd]  12/13/01 Harry & I cut down 2 Beech trees;  12/14/01 Harry & I went to mill;  12/17/01 Harry went 
to Munn got some hoops fixed for [the tube];  12/18/01 Harry & I cut down some beech trees in Pasture cut off the 
limbs;  12/30/01 Harry took Hind axle to Munns to get bolts out;  1/3/02 Harry drew wood;  1/4/02 Harry drew wood;  
1/6/02 Harry drew wood part of the day;  1/10/02 Harry sawed wood in forenoon and drew some in afternoon;  1/11/02  
Harry drew some of the Beech limbs;  1/13/02 Harry drew wood;  1/14/02 Harry & I cut logs near race for timber;  
1/15/02 Harry drew what logs we had cut, and we cut more in afternoon;  1/26/02 W Cooley & Wife Harry & I went to 
Church;  1/29/02 Will & Harry went fishing;  1/30/02 Frank Magranis, Will, & Harry went to the Hall Pond fishing;  2/1/02 
Harry & Will & Burt Magranis went hunting shot a fox, on Chestnut Hill;  2/2/02 Will Cooley, Harry, & I went to Church;  
2/3/02 Will & Harry & I went on mill pond cut Ice;  2/4/02 Will & I cut Ice in forenoon Harry drew;
Hakes, Harry [contd]  2/5/02 Wm Cooley sawed and Harry drew and I packed Ice, drew 10 loads 80 cakes 16X19, 
weigh about 185 to the cake;  2/6/02 Will cut Harry drew I packed got in 80 cakes;  2/9/02 Will Harry & I went to 
Church;  2/10/02 Will & Harry went fishing on B Pond;  2/11/02 Harry and I drew out manure;  2/12/02 Will & Harry went 
a fishing on Black Pond caught 8;  2/13/02 Will & Harry went fishing on Hall Pond;  2/14/02 Harry drew a load 
[sawdust];  2/15/02 Harry drew Hemlock in forenoon & 2 maple logs;  2/16/02 Em & I, Cooley, & Harry went to Church;  
2/20/02 Will Cooley & I shoveled snow awhile down West Harry shoveled East;  2/26/02 Will, Harry, & Henry Miller 
went after Coons;  2/27/02 Harry shoveled snow awhile;  3/1/02 Will Cooley & Harry shoveled snow on south road in 
forenoon.  Harry shoveled south of school house;  3/5/02 Will & Harry went a fox hunting;  3/6/02 Harry drew sled 
length wood to house;  3/7/02 Harry drew wood;  3/8/02 Harry & I got out manure;  3/9/02 W Cooley, Harry, & I went to 
Church;  3/11/02 helped Harry get out and set about 75 sap tubs;



Page 25 PTI1977

Hakes, Harry [contd]  3/12/02 Harry gathered the sap;  3/18/02 Harry boiled sap and syruped off;  3/21/02 sawed for 
myself Harry & Will Cooley helped me;  3/22/02 Harry gathered and boiled;  3/23/02 Wife & I & Cooley & Harry went to 
Church;  3/26/02 Harry gathered sap;  3/28/02 Harry gathered sap;  4/3/02 Harry drew out Lumber;  4/4/02 tried to run 
on the cut off saw belt got my foot caught and hurt it quite bad Harry had to get Horse and carry me home;  4/5/02 
Harry and Em went to New Boston to attend the funeral of Chas A Ives wife aged 22 yrs;  4/6/02 Wife & Harry went to 
Church;  4/10/02 Harry went to Granville got some grain;  4/14/02 Harry & I went to mill split a log for shingle;  4/17/02 
Harry fixed the Dam;  4/18/02 Harry & I drew dung;  4/19/02 Harry helped Brunk raise Barn;  4/23/02 Harry & I drew off 
rocks;  4/28/02 Harry went to Westfield with Mr Bates;  5/8/02 Harry dragged a piece for Potatoes;  5/11/02 Went to 
Church took Lovina.  Theda walked down with Harry;  5/12/02 Harry & Theda went to PO in Eve.  Harry & I planted 
some Potatoes;  5/14/02 Harry went to plowing;
Hakes, Harry [contd]  5/15/02 Harry & I planted Potatoes for G Miller;  5/16/02 Harry plowed and dragged;  5/17/02 
Harry, Theda Smith, and Ruth Nelson went to Harry Clark's to a surprise party;  5/21/02 Harry worked for Magranis;  
5/22/02 Harry worked for Marganis;  5/27/02 Harry & I, G Miller, & Milo went to academy tore off plaster in afternoon;  
5/28/02 Harry & I went down street screened some sand to plaster the Academy;  5/29/02 Harry took the young sow to 
Luke Moores;  5/31/02 Harry dragged and got out some manure;  6/2/02 Harry & I went to Burt Magranis planted 
Potatoes;  6/3/02 Harry went to Beech Hill got some sand;  6/4/02 Harry drew timber from mill to House;  6/10/02 Harry 
cultivated corn and Potatoes in forenoon;  6/11/02 Harry & I planted Sweet Corn & Beans;  6/13/02 Harry & Miller Boys 
went to Otis;  6/14/02 Harry cultivated Corn & Potatoes;  6/20/02 Harry & I Cultivated and Hoed corn.  He mowed a 
little;  6/21/02 Miller, Decker, Harry, & I went to the Academy, cleaned the upper room;  7/5/02 Harry carried Eaton to 
Westfield;  7/7/02 sawed a little timber for the Barn frame Harry drew it up;
Hakes, Harry [contd]  7/9/02 Harry went to Tolland got Horse shod;  7/10/02 Harry and Will went fishing to Otis;  
7/12/02 Harry went to Winsted got his Sisters;  7/19/02 Harry and his Sisters went to Tolland in afternoon;  7/21/02 
Harry & Eaton went to Noyes Pond fishing;  7/24/02 Harry mowed;  7/25/02 Harry carried his Sisters & Mary Welch to 
Winsted;  7/26/02 Harry & Em went to Hall in afternoon put up Lamps;  7/31/02 Harry and Will mowed some in Granger 
lot;  8/1/02 Harry & Eaton mowed;  8/8/02 Will & Harry mowed;  8/9/02 Harry & Eaton mowed;  8/11/02 Harry oiled 
Harness;  8/12/02 Harry & I went Huckelberrying;  8/13/02 Harry & I went to Winsted he had some teeth fixed;  8/18/02 
We all went Berrying in forenoon Harry & I went awhile in afternoon picked for our own use;  8/19/02 Harry wheeled in 
wood in afternoon I piled it;  8/20/02 Harry and I went to mill peeled 2 trees near the River peeled some more East side 
River;  8/21/02 Harry & I went to Winsted he went to Canaan;  8/28/02 Went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs.  Harry 
came home with me from Canaan;  9/3/02 Harry went to Blacksmith shop in morning;
Hakes, Harry [contd]  9/4/02 Harry went to Munn shop got Horse shod dug Potatoes the rest of the day;  9/5/02 Harry 

and I dug Potatoes;  9/10/02 Went to Blandford Fair...Harry took 5 sheep & Buck up got 1st Premium;  9/11/02 Harry 
went to Blandford Fair;  9/15/02 Harry drew dirt in forenoon in driveway;  9/18/02 Harry carried Welch's roll home drew 
dirt;  9/19/02 Harry & I got wood in to Wood House;  9/20/02 Harry and I got wood into the wood House;  9/22/02 Harry 
went to Riverton got some grain;  9/25/02 Harry and I finished cutting the Corn;  9/29/02 Harry went down street;  
9/30/02 Harry & I with G Miller & Milo worked on platform between Church and academy;  10/1/02 Mr Miller & Milo, 
Harry, & I worked at building platforms at the Church & Academy;  10/2/02 Harry & I picked apples;  10/7/02 Harry 
worked for Miller picking apples;  10/21/02 Harry & I husked corn awhile;  10/22/02 Harry & I husked corn;  10/25/02 
loaded a load of stove wood Harry took it to Westfield to Cooley;  10/27/02 Harry plowed in afternoon;  10/31/02 Harry 
plowed for rye;  
Hakes, Harry [contc]  11/3/02 Harry drew a load of wood to Joe Swift & one to C Frisbie;  11/4/02 Harry went to 
Westfield with wood to Cooley;  11/8/02 Wife & Harry went to the Hall to clean up.  I husked corn, Harry helped me in 
afternoon;  11/10/02 Harry finished husking corn;  11/12/02 Harry & I picked up a load of Cider apples on G Millers he 
took them to H Peebles;  11/15/02 Harry went after cider;  11/19/02 Harry & I worked at covering the Barn on East side 
and some on north;  11/21/02 Harry & I worked covering Barn;  11/24/02 Harry took the old Sow to Ernest Clark's & 
Luke Moore;  11/27/02 Harry went to Pats stayed all night;  11/28/02 Harry went to Milo Marshall's to Social in Eve;  
11/29/02 Harry got out manure out of Hog pen;  12/1/02 Harry drew out manure;  12/2/02 Harry went to Westfield with 
load of stove wood to Cooley;  12/6/02 Harry went to Luke Moore's with Sow;  12/7/02 Harry & I went to Church;  
12/9/02 27 below...Harry cut wood in the forenoon;  12/10/02 Harry worked for G Miller Chopping;  12/15/02 cut wood 
back of the old mill.  Harry drew to House;  
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Hakes, Harry [contd]  12/19/02 Harry went to Hall Pond fishing;  12/20/02 Harry went fishing;  12/22/02 Harry and I 
shingled the Hen House;  12/24/02 Harry went to Christmas tree at Church in Eve;  12/26/02 Cut sled length wood back 
of the old mill Harry drew;  12/27/02 Cut 5 loads wood Harry drew it;  12/30/02 Harry drew up a load of sawdust, took 3 
spring wagon to Fenn Barn, drew 3 load of wood;  1/1/03 Harry went to Parsons Pond fishing caught 6;  1/7/03 Cut Ice 
12 inches Harry drew;  1/8/03 Cut Ice, Harry drew it;  1/9/03 Harry went to Tolland Club house to Social with Mr Bates;  
1/15/03 Harry finished packing Ice;  1/16/03 Harry sawed some [wood];  1/17/03 Harry went to Otis fishing;  1/19/03 
Harry went to Tolland;  1/20/03 Harry came back from Tolland and went to Brunks to a surprise party;  1/21/03 Harry 
went to Munn got Horse shod;  1/22/03 Harry gone to Tolland;  1/27/03 Will & Harry went fishing;  2/4/03 Harry carried 
me to Riverton.  Walked to Winsted took Trolley to Torrington stayed to Wm Breckenridge;  
Hakes, Harry [contd]  2/9/03 left Frank at 10 on Trolley to Holyoke, to train to Westfield.  Harry met me with Horse & 
sleigh got home at 3 PM fair sleighing;  2/10/03 Harry helped Chaffee get hay;  2/12/03 Harry went to Tolland got Horse 
shod.  We worked on wood pile in afternoon;  2/13/03 Harry went to Winsted got some teeth fixed;  2/14/03 Harry and I 
sawed wood with cross cut saw split some;  2/16/03 Harry and I worked on wood pile he sawed & I split;  2/18/03 Harry 
was sick with cold did not set [sic] up any;  2/19/03 Harry better;  2/20/03 I sawed wood and Harry split;  2/21/03 I 
sawed wood and Harry split;  2/22/03 Harry & I went to Church;  2/23/03 Harry helped Chaffee shovel out north road 
drifted bad;  2/26/03 Harry & I went over on Slocum lot to Burt Roberts mill drew in my logs drew back 2 loads.  Harry 
went over to Pat's to help move hay;  3/2/03 Harry came home from Tolland and went back;  3/8/03 Harry came home 
carried him to Tolland is working for J P Hall;  3/28/03 Harry came home;  3/29/03 Harry rode over to Tolland with Mr 
Bates;  
Hakes, Harry [contd]  4/11/03 Harry came home in Eve, he is working for Marsh marking lumber;  4/25/03 Frank and 
Harry & Will came;  4/26/03 Frank & Nellie Harry, Will Cooley, & myself went to Church;  4/27/03 Harry & I fixed fence 
around the Cow pasture in forenoon, dug Post holes in afternoon west side Granger lot;  4/28/03 Harry fixed fence 
around north lot;  4/30/03 Harry & I went to the old mill drew up the carriage & saw frame put it in the Fenn Barn;  
5/1/03 Harry went to Winsted;  5/2/03 Harry went to Roberts mill on Slocum lot got some posts;  5/11/03 Harry & I 
planted Potatoes;  5/15/03 Harry worked getting out manure for Corn;  5/16/03 Harry took old Sow to Club House;  
5/18/03 helped Harry get out manure;  5/20/03 Harry went fishing;  5/21/03 Harry went to Frosts sheared his and our 
Sheep;  5/22/03 Harry dragged on corn piece and we planted some;  5/23/03 Harry sheared Miller sheep;  5/28/03 
Harry went to B Thompsons W Hartland sheared sheep;  5/29/03 Harry came home from Thompson and started for 
Canaan to visit his Father;  6/2/03 Harry came back from Canaan;  

Hakes, Harry [contd]  6/6/03 Harry & I went to A Frosts got my sheep that he had been keeping for me;  6/9/03 Harry & 
I put in the floor sleepers in Barn put up 2 Rafters commenced boarding the Gable End;  6/10/03 Harry & I worked at 
boarding Gable End of Barn;  6/12/03 Harry went fishing;  6/20/03 Harry & I took a Heifer out of North lot turned her into 
Hargers lot;  6/23/03 Harry drew a load of Boards & a load of saw dust from the mill;  6/24/03 Harry went fishing;  
6/25/03 Harry worked on Barn;  6/29/03 Harry went to Westfield got Em & Sister Smith;  7/4/03 Harry went to Picnic at 
West Granville;  7/21/03 Harry & I shingled;  7/29/03 Harry went to Granville Center old Home week day;  8/15/03 Harry 
went to Winsted got his Sisters;  8/21/03 Harry & I went to A Frosts worked at haying;  8/23/03 Harry and I went to 
Church;  8/31/03 Carried Harry to Winsted to take train to Salisbury Ct where he expects to work;  11/25/03 drove to 
Riverton and on to Wallens [?] Hill met Harry Hakes brought him up;  
Hakes, Harry [contd]  11/26/03 Started at 9 o'clock for Westfield.  Wife, Harry Hakes, & Grandson Burton went with me 
to Carries to Thanksgiving Dinner had Turkey.  Frank came down came home with us;  11/27/03 Harry & Nic Newton 
went to Hall Pond fishing Frank carried them up, got 111/2 lbs;  11/28/03 Harry & Frank went to Tolland got Horse shod 
at Munn's;  11/29/03 Frank, Harry, and I went to Church Rev Coolidge preached Frank carried Harry to Riverton, going 
to Salisbury in morning;  12/20/03 Wrote to Frank & Harry in Eve;  4/2/04 Harry came;  4/4/04 Harry got down some 
sap tubs I helped him set 50 trees;  4/5/04 helped Harry about setting the pan & set a few trees;  4/6/04 Harry syruped 
off, and made some sugar;  4/8/04 Harry helped about chores, and worked for Magranis;  4/12/04 F S Hale called took 
Dinner, has hired Harry to work for him;  4/13/04 Worked on wood pile Harry helped me in afternoon, finished it;  
4/15/04 Harry syruped off he went to Tolland in afternoon;  4/16/04 Harry gathered sap;  4/17/04 Harry, Burton, & I went
to Church;  
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Hakes, Harry [contd]  4/18/04 Harry boiled sap and syruped off, gathered the tubs.  I cut a little wood helped Harry 
some;  4/19/04 Went to Riverton got some grain.  Harry rode down with me going to Canaan;  4/21/04  Harry came on 
Wheel;  4//24/04 Harry took his clothes to F Hales, in afternoon, Fred Chapman went with him;  5/1/04 Harry came in 
morning;  5/14/04 Harry came home;  5/16/04 arose at 4 AM [Sunrise 4:38], carried Harry to Tolland;  8/3/04 Harry 
helped me, mowed a piece of light grass in Granger lot;  8/8/04 Fred & Harry mowed some in south lot and on Fenn 
place;  8/11/04 Fred & Harry mowed all day on Fenn place;  8/13/04 Carried Frank to Tolland...Harry went to Winsted;  
8/15/04 Harry got back at noon;  8/30/04 Harry came back from Springfield;  8/31/04 Harry helped me unload the 

wagon...carried Em to Society Supper;  9/1/04 Harry helped me in afternoon, dug 16 bushel cobblers in 21/2 hours;  
9/3/04 Harry & I dug Potatoes;  9/6/04 Harry & I dug Potatoes;  9/6/04 Harry & [I] dug Potatoes in forenoon;  9/7/04 
Harry went to Springfield;  9/10/04 Harry came at noon;  
Hakes, Harry  9/12/04 Harry helped me finish digging Potatoes;  9/14/04 Harry took Stage for Westfield going to Albany 
to school;  12/8/04 packed a Barrel of apples sent to Harry, G Miller took them to Westfield;  12/10/04 Got 2 letters from 
Harry;  12/11/04 Wrote to Harry;  4/15/05 Got letter from Rev Bates and Harry Hakes;  4/17/05 Put Harry's wheel in a 
crate to send him by Express;  4/18/05 sent Harry's wheel by Stage;  7/15/05 Harry Hakes came in Evening by way of 
Westfield;  7/16/05 Harry and Sisters attended Church with me, Harry went to Westfield with the team he came out with 
last night, came back on Wheel to Millers;  7/18/05 Harry raked [hay] and loaded 2 loads, he went to P L Slocum on his 
wheel stayed all night;  7/20/05 Harry went to Westfield on Wheel, and to Mt Tom;  7/22/05 Harry carried his sisters to 
Winsted, going back to Jersey City;  7/23/05 Fred Slocum took Harry to Westfield he is going back to his work Glens 
Falls;  
Hakes, Harry  1905 Reciept for Registered Mail:  Letter No 5  PO W Granville  Jan 28, 1905 from C W Ives addressed 
to Harry F Hakes Albany NY 1 class postage prepaid  Postmaster, per L E Welch;  1/7/06 in Eve wrote to Harry and 
Carrie;  3/18/06 wrote to Harry in Eve;  10/5/06 Went to Winsted...Harry Hakes came up with me;  10/6/06 Harry went 
hunting, in morning, he went to Tolland got horse shod;  10/7/06 Carrie & Dot, Will, & Harry, & I went to Church.  Will & 
Carrie went to Magranis just at night.  Harry went after them in Eve;  10/8/06 Harry & Will went hunting got one grey 
squirrel;  10/9/06 Will, Carrie, & Harry went after chestnuts on Chestnut Hill;  10/10/06 Will & Harry went hunting no 
luck;  10/12/06 Will & Harry went hunting in morning...Harry went to Pats towards night;  10/13/06 Harry took horse 
carried Will and Carrie to Westfield going to Springfield to see Burton;  10/14/06 Harry started for Glens Falls, Milo 
carried him to Westfield;  10/8/07 Harry Hakes came;  10/9/07 Harry went to Tolland in afternoon;  10/10/07 Harry 
started back via Westfield;  
Hakes, James C  3/24/00 went to Granville Corners to see Gibbons.  Telephoned to Frank Ives & J C Hakes [Father 
Truman Ives died];  7/7/02 James Hakes and family came stayed all night;  7/8/02 James & family went back to 
Canaan;  5/29/03 Harry...started for Canaan to visit his Father;  6/2/03 Harry came back from Canaan;  2/20/05 
recieved letter from J C Hakes answered it;  2/27/05 Wrote to J C Hakes in Eve;  
Hakes, Myrtle  8/15/00 Went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs took dinner with Orpha.  Ira, Dim, & Lovina there & Myrtie, 
she & Mary Welch came home with me;  8/23/00 took Mertie and Harry to Winsted to go to Canaan to visit their Father; 
8/28/01 Went to Winsted...Gertie & Myrtle came up with me;  9/1/01 Wife, Myrtle, and myself attended Church;  9/6/01 
Harry & his Sisters went to Tolland;  9/7/01 Harry & Myrtie went to Mrs H Peebles in afternoon;  9/8/01 Harry carried his 
Sisters to Westfield they return to NJ tomorrow;  7/12/02 Harry went to Winsted got his Sisters;  7/19/02 Harry and his 
Sisters went to Tolland in afternoon;  7/20/02 went to Church Mertie & Gertie went with me;  7/22/02 Carried Wife to 
Mrs Wm Bates Mertie went to Mrs Peebles;  7/25/02 Harry carried his Sisters & Mary Welch to Winsted;  8/15/03 Harry 
went to Winsted got his Sisters;  9/3/03 Went to Winsted...took Gertie & Mertie down;  9/20/04 Went to Winsted took 
some apples and Potatoes...brought Myrtle Hakes up;  9/21/04 Went to New Boston fair, Myrtle Hakes and Burton 
Cooley went with me;

Hakes, Myrtle [contd]  9/23/04 Went to Winsted with Butter Eggs & Lambs.  Myrtle went with me got her teeth fixed;  
9/25/04 Myrtle, Carrie, and 2 of her children went to Church with me.  Em took care of Baby Edith;  7/13/05 went to 
Winsted...Gertie & Myrtle Hakes came home with me;  7/16/05 Harry and Sisters attended Church with me...Mertie & I 
went to prayer meeting in Eve;  7/22/05 Harry carried his sisters to Winsted, going back to Jersey City;  
Hale, Frances  8/7/01 went to Tolland got Horse shod.  Frances & Homer Hale came to shop [Munn's?];  4/12/04 F S 
Hale called took Dinner, has hired Harry to work for him;  4/24/04 Harry took his clothes to F Hales, in afternoon, Fred 
Chapman went with him;  
Hale, George  1/25/06 George Hall [meant "Hale"?] burried;  
Hale, Homer  8/7/01 went to Tolland got Horse shod.  Frances & Homer Hale came to shop [Munn's?];  10/22/05 went 
to Church Homer Hale & Miss Fowler from Tolland were over;  
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Hale, Wellington F  1906 [Clipping]  Death of W F Hale [In pencil: Jan 31, 06]  End Came Today Following a Few Days' 
Illness from Pneumonia.  From Wednesday's Citizen.  Wellington F Hale, a well known resident of John Street, died at 
his home this morning at 2 o'clock of pneumonia after a brief illness.  Mr Hale attended the funeral of his cousin last 
Friday and complained then of not feeling well.  He was born in Tolland, Mass., in March, 1844, and resided in that 
town all his life until his removal to Winsted five years ago last fall.  For some time past Mr Hale had been sexton of the 
Second Congregational Church and janitor of the Hurlburt National bank, which positions he filled very satisfactorily.  
He was always industrious, working quietly but faithfully and winning the respect and esteem of all his acquaintances.  
Before his removal to Winsted he was a member of the Congregational church at Tolland.  The bereaved family has 
the tender sympathy of their many friends.  Mr Hale was twice married.  His first wife, Georgia Marshall, died 22 years 
ago and he next married his wife's niece, Harriet Marshall, on March 12, 1886, who survives him with three children, 
Frances E Hale, daughter by his first wife; Charles W of Waterbury and Merton who lives at home here.  A brother 
George Hale, was a member of Co. F, 27th Mass. Vol. infantry and was shot while in the service at Roanoke island.  
The funeral will be held at the Second Congregational chapel Saturday at 2 PM, Rev N M Calhoun officiating.  Burial 
will be at the South cemetery;  
Hale, Mrs W F  11/17/05 Went to Winsted took Butter and Eggs, took a Jar to Mrs W F Hale 23 cts;  

Hale, Watson  11/24/00 Watson Hale's Wife Died;  [Newspaper clipping] Mrs Watson I Hale, 43, died after a short 
illness of typhoid fever.  Watson Hale is stopping in Winsted, Ct, where his youngest son is quite ill with typhoid fever.  
Jan 4 Mrs O E Slocum died, aged 64.  Mrs Slocum was mother of the late Mrs Hale and cared for her in her last illness; 
Hale, Mrs Watson I  11/24/00 Watson Hale's Wife Died;  [Newspaper clipping] Mrs Watson I Hale, 43, died after a 
short illness of typhoid fever.  Watson Hale is stopping in Winsted, Ct, where his youngest son is quite ill with typhoid 
fever.  Jan 4 Mrs O. E. Slocum died, aged 64.  Mrs Slocum was mother of the late Mrs Hale and cared for her in her 
last illness;  

Hall  1/1/00 Went to Hall place in afternoon;  1/30/02 Frank Magranis, Will, & Harry went to the Hall Pond fishing 
carried them up, took Wife to Parsonage;  1/26/03 Wm Cooley and Frank Magranis went to the Hall Pond fishing;  

11/27/03 Harry & Nic Newton went to Hall Pond fishing Frank carried them up, got 111/2 lbs;  12/4/03 Will went to Hall 
Pond fishing, fair luck;  9/22/07 Em & I drove to Pease, Hall, & Hayes place, in afternoon;  
Hall, Earnest  3/30/06 Went to Ernest [sic] Halls, W Hartland, got some grain he brought me from Riverton;  
Hall, George  1/25/06 George Hall [meant "Hale"?] burried;  
Hall,  J P  2/24/03 Wife & I went to New Boston to J Northway's, he had gone to Winsted took Dinner there called at A 
Snow & J P Hall's & at Len;  3/8/03 Harry came home carried him to Tolland is working for J P Hall;  2/23/06 Wife, Lib, 

& myself attended the funeral of Dea J P Hall at Tolland Mr Coolidge preached the Sermon Text Acts 13th chapter 36th 

verse, ["For David"] After he had served his own generation ["by the will of God"] fell on sleep ["and was laid unto his 
fathers"];  
Hall, Mrs J P  6/5/00 Mrs J P Hall & Daughter came over took Dinner with us;  6/25/07 Mrs Hodges & Mrs J P Hall 
came spent the day;  
Hall, M A  10/8/04 M A Hall came down got 4 Pigs $10;  8/15/06 M A Hall got 4 Pigs $9;  
Hall, O L  8/16/06 Dug 1/2 bushel Potatoes for O L Hall;  

Hall, Steve  6/23/03 Steve Hall came stayed all night;  
Hall, Mrs W C  8/23/01 Mrs W C Hall & Kate of Plainville came stayed all night;  8/25/01 Mrs Hall, Carrie, & myself went 
to Church went to the cemetery;  8/27/01 took Mrs Hall to Malvina Terretts;  
Hallet, C B 6/22/00 Went to Winsted with wool 352 lbs sold to C B Hallet 22 cts paid 20 cts;  7/5/01 Went to Winsted 
with Wool to C B Hallett 300 lbs 18 cts;  
Hanover 5/23/04 Hanover plowed a piece in sheep lot for potatoes.  I drew stone off from it, went to Treat's got drag;  
6/6/04 Hanover plowed corn ground;  12/20/04 Went to Magranis after some grain Hanover was to leave there did not 
find it;  
Hardin, Orlo  11/22/00 Orlo Hardin's remains brought from Granby Buried Tolland;  [Newspaper clipping] Orlo Harding, 

95, a lifelong resident and one well preserved mentally and physically, died suddenly while on a visit in Granby, Ct.;
Harger, Dinah  4/30/07 Diah [sic] Harger burried;  
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Harger, Nelson  1897 Paid by Town of Granville Nelson Harger repairing sluices $1.25;  2/2/00 Went up to Sheets & 
Harger's in the evening;  4/20/00 Frank & Wife called to Hargers;  7/23/00 Mowed with machine for Harger in forenoon;  
11/24/00 Helped Sheets butcher Hargers 2 Pigs;  12/31/00 Mr Harger & Albert Sheets [called] in afternoon;  2/23/01 
Em & I went to Mr Hargers in afternoon;  2/25/01 Called to...Nelson Harger;  5/20/01 Frank & I went to Hargers in 
afternoon and to Mr Nelsons in eve;  7/7/01 Went to East Granville after Dr Rockwell for Mr Harger;  7/24/01 Mowed for 
Harger with machine;  [Memoranda] July 26 took 2 cows to Nelson Hargers to Pasture.  Aug 16 got one home she was 
there 3 weeks.  Got Nell home Sept 13, there 7 weeks.  Both there 10 weeks at 1 shilling per week $11.67 [or possibly 
$1.67?] Paid;  8/2/01 Went to Hargers to see Cows;  8/16/01 Went to Hargers to see about cow;  8/17/01 Went to 
Hargers got cow went up to Harmon place got Decker to come over and see her;  8/22/01 Went to Hargers just at 
night;  10/16/01 Harger & Mrs Nelson called;
Harger, Nelson [contd]  10/17/01 Drove to E Otis bought some sheep of Sam Gibbs, Harger went up with me;  11/1/01 
Harger came settled with him;  1/1/02 went to C Sheets, N Harger got some Eggs;  1/3/02 Mr Harger and Albert Sheets 
called;  1/27/02 Went to Hargers in morning;  2/10/02 Harger called in afternoon;  2/14/02 Went on Hargers lot got a 
load of saw dust to cover Ice;  2/25/02 Went to Hargers;  3/28/02 Harger came down in morning got his things I got to 
Winsted for him;  5/6/02 Harger came got 2 Pigs;  5/13/02 Took the women up to Hargers in evening;  6/3/02 I went to 
Harger after cow did not find her;  6/4/02 Went to Hargers got cow;  8/16/02 Went to Harger just at night, bought his 
Lambs;  8/20/02 Butchered 5 Lambs 3 of them bought of Harger;  10/27/02 Went to Hargers looked at cow, he came 
here settled with him;  [memoranda] Took Kit to Harger to Pasture May 31, Got her Home Aug 7.  Cow May was there 
4 weeks Took calf there May 1.  Took Nell to Harger July 21, got her home Sept 22 10 weeks [calc=9].  Settled with 
Harger Oct 27;  
Harger, Nelson [contd]  11/17/02 Ed Peebles got 2 Pigs Harger came down to buy one;  11/18/02 Went to Hargers got 
a trowel patched the Kitchen;  1/28/03 Harger & Wife called he wanted to buy hay;  2/23/03 Went to Mr Hargers in 
morning sawed wood;  3/2/03 Went to Harger's helped Chaffee kill a Pig;  3/16/03 Went to Hargers in morning;  
3/18/03 drove to Hargers got a Gallon maple syrup.  Carrie & Children rode up with me;  4/2/03 Harger called 

[Memoranda:  Nelson Harger Dr  To Hay on Fenn place $16.00;  Cr Cash $10.00;  Apr 2nd Cash $6.00;  X  Paid  X];  
5/15/03 Harger came down got some seed corn;  6/20/03 Harry & I took a Heifer out of North lot turned her into 
Hargers lot;  8/5/03 N Harger called;  8/10/03 took grey cow to Hargers in Eve;  9/1/03 Went to Hargers in morning and 
to Millers;  9/10/03 Harger came down in afternoon;  9/11/03 took a cow to Hargers;  9/17/03 Went to Hargers in 
morning salted cattle on north lot;  9/25/03 Went to Hargers in morning with cow;  11/23/03 G Chaffee helped me 
butcher hog for M Nelson in forenoon.  We butchered one for Mr Harger in afternoon;  
Harger, Nelson [contd]  11/30/03 Went to Hargers killed a Pig;  12/19/03 drove to Hargers paid him for Beef, 51/2 cts 

119 lbs Em rode up too, found Mrs H in bed with measles;  1903 Memoranda  Nelson Harger Dr  Aug 17th To grass 

$2.50;  Cr to 76/12 Doz Eggs $1.88;  Sept 2nd 61/2 Doz Eggs 27 $1.75;  Paid;  3/14/04 Harger called in morning;  3/28/04 
Harger came down;  4/4/04 Went to Hargers in afternoon;  5/26/04 took Nell to Nelson;  5/30/04 Went up north fixed 
Barbed wire fence beside road, called to Hargers;  6/14/04 Went to Agawam with wool took Dinner with Dewey 
Jackson stayed all night with S S Bodurtha got 21 cents for wool.  Carried Welch, Decker, Sheets, & Hargers:  365 lbs;  
8/27/04 Harger & Wife called;  9/15/04 drove to Harger he was gone looked at Chaffee sheep;  11/19/04 Went to 
Nelson Harger's helped kill his Pig weighed 333 lbs, 9 months old;  1/17/05 Drove to N Hargers with Wife to see about 
Society;  1/31/05 Franklin Miller & Nelson Harger called;  3/10/05 took Doll to Nelson's;  3/13/05 M Nelson & N Harger 
called in afternoon;  3/23/05 Mr Harger called just at night;  
Harger, Nelson [contd]  3/28/05 Went to Sheets in the morning saw Harger there;  4/6/05 a shower about 10 AM.  Mr 
Harger called through the shower;  4/13/05 helped butcher Pig for Harger in afternoon;  4/18/05 Harger called;  4/21/05 
Harger got 2 Pigs;  5/4/05 George Chaffee and [blank space] Clark were married at Hargers in Eve;  5/13/05 About 25 
went to N Harger's in Eve to call on Geo Chaffee and Wife, we surprised them;  6/22/05 Ladies had a supper after the 
shower Mr Harger furnished;  7/13/05 went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs took a calf for Harger;  8/8/05 Frank [& I] 
went up to Hargers and into north woods looked around;  8/16/05 Hubbard & [sic] went to Harger, picked a few 
Huckleberries;  9/1/05 Went to Hargers in afternoon tried to get my sheep;  9/2/05 Went to Hargers after sheep did not 
get them;  9/6/05 Went to Hargers in the morning got 4 of my sheep;  9/16/05 Harger called in afternoon;  10/6/05 
Carried 29 lbs chickens to Hotel Winchester 18 cts and 19 lbs Fowl for Harger 16 cts;  11/9/05 Went to G Millers got 
some Ice, and to Hargers got a cider Barrel;  
Harger, Nelson  4/7/06  Carried Wife to Harger's, drove to Booth's W Hartland;  8/18/06 Went on north lot salted cattle 
went to Hargers;  11/16/06 Harger called;  11/19/06 Harger called;  11/25/06 drove to Harger just at night got his 
carriage to go to Westfield tomorrow;  1/5/07 Harger called;  4/4/07 Harger called;  4/9/07 Went to Hargers in afternoon 
got 2 barrels apples;  9/15/07 Frank went up with me, we called to Hargers;  

Harger, Mrs Nelson  12/19/03 drove to Hargers paid him for Beef, 51/2 cts 119 lbs Em rode up too, found Mrs H in bed 
with measles;  8/27/04 Harger & Wife called;  8/10/06 Mrs Harger called in afternoon;  3/16/07 Mrs Harger and Mrs 
Sheets called in afternoon;  
Harger, Sam  10/9/06 Sam Harger buried in west part of Tolland;  
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Harmon  8/17/01 Went to Hargers got cow went up to Harmon place got Decker to come over and see her;  
Harrington  3/23/03 Went in afternoon to G Millers, G Treats Store, & Harrington.  Bridge at Valley brook down;  
Harrington, F & Co  12/19/04 Wrote to F Harrington & Fertilizer Company in Eve;  
Harrington, Frank  1896 Poll Tax payer;  8/1/00 took the mower to Mr Arial Frost...Frank Harrington worked for him;  
8/3/00 Mowed with Horse for Mr Frost in forenoon raked in afternoon.  Recoer [?] & Harrington worked;  4/15/03 Frank 
Harrington called paid $10 on rent;  1903 Memoranda Frank Harrington Dr To Hattie Smith for rent of place $40.  Cr 

Cash $30.  Balance due for rent April 15th $10;  
Hartshorn, Mr Newton  12/30/02 Mr Hartshorn of Sandisfield stayed with us;  5/31/03 Mr Newton Hartshorn & Wife 
called on way to Springfield;  
Hawley, Warren  6/30/03 Carried Sister Smith to Warren Hawleys Cold Spring, met Henry Spring there Lovina went 
with us;  
Hayes  8/15/06 helped Miller on Hayes place, get in hay;  9/22/07 Em & I drove to Pease, Hall, & Hayes place, in 
afternoon;  
Hayes, Thomas W  1896 Poll Tax payer;  
Hays  5/15/00 Hays, Carl, & Jeffrey came out to fish;  5/30/002 Twining & Brazee from Westfield came early in morning 
fishing.  Hays, Carl, and 3 others came later, did not catch many;  5/12/03 Hays, Carl, & Jeffies [sic] came from 
Westfield to go fishing;  
Haynes, E T  9/6/01 Sold Kate to E T Haynes Springfield $40;  
Hayward, William  [Back of 1903 diary] Wm Hayward Died Oct 10, 1888;  
Hearn, J J  12/12/03 Went to Westfield took some Potatoes to Mrs Parsons & J J Hearn bought a center tobe [?] and 
some grain took Dinner at Carrie's got home about 6;  
Hedeler, Louis  1905 Memoranda Louis Hedeler Silver Spangled Hamburger Meriden Conn;  
Hill, Mike  2/29/04 Mike Hill called to see about Pigs;  5/9/04 Hill & J Rogers got Fertilizer;  5/11/05 M Hill called sold 
him a bag Fertilizer and a Pig $3.50;  12/6/05 M Hill helped me cut wood west of the old sawmill south side of the road;  
12/7/05 M Hill cut wood for me;  12/8/05 Hill chopped wood till 10:30;  1905 Memoranda Fertilizer M Hill 1 bag $1.80;  
1/16/07 Cut 2 loads wood near the river drew them to House.  Expected Hill to chop;  1/31/07 Went to M Hill in 
afternoon to see if he would chop for me;  
Hilton, Charles W  1903 Charles W Hilton Somerset Co Maine Oxford Sheep;  
Hitchcock  10/23/02 Went to Winsted took Butter and Eggs, took 2 Pigs to Hitchcock W Hartland, $5.00;  
Hitchcock, A  6/23/04 Em & Nellie went to A Hitchcocks in morning;  
Hitchcock, Mrs Albert  8/6/05 Mrs Albert Hitchcock and Benjamin came to Church called took Dinner;  
Hitchcock, Benjamin  8/6/05 Mrs Albert Hitchcock and Benjamin came to Church called took Dinner;  
Hitchcock, Clifford  4/9/01 Clifford Hitchcock Buried in Winsted;  
Hitchcock, John  10/13/05 Carried 2 Pigs to John Hitchcock;  8/13/06 took 2 Pigs to J Hitchcock W Hartland came back 
by J Feeley's;  
Hodges  5/12/05 Went to Magranis up to Hodges over across to Brunk's with cow Nell, did not find a Bull;  6/2/06 Went 
trouting in Hodges brook caught 22;  

Hodges, Mrs  6/25/07 Mrs Hodges & Mrs J P Hall came spent the day;  11/9/07 Mrs Hodges called to buy a Pig;  

Holcomb  3/8/00 Went to E Granville called to Holcomb Bros Shop;  3/29/00 Took off the Gear from main shaft took it 
to Holcomb Brothers Granville to have it fixed;  4/7/00 Went to East Granville...called to E H Seymour at Holcomb Bros 
Shop;  10/28/01 took 2 Pigs to M P Tinker Granville took a few apples to Holcomb Bros got 18 gallons cider;  11/18/06 
Went to Holcomb Bros with cider apples, brought back a Barrel of cider for G Miller;  11/8/04 took some apples to 
Holcomb Bros for a cask of Cider.  Stopped to Town Hall voted;  1906 taxes Holcomb Bros, $74.46;  
Holcomb, William C  1906 taxes William C Holcomb, $46.58;  
Holmes  July 1914  Estate of Emeline O Ives.  Accrued Interest on notes since appraisal on F T Ives note $6.25;  M C 
Miller $11.35;  Holmes & Sons $15.00;  
Holmes, Mrs  11/6/03 Went to Winsted took a Batrrel of apples to Mrs Holmes Spencer St;  
Hotchkiss, Mrs  7/22/00 O E Murphy & Wife called on their way home from calling on his Aunt Mrs Hotchkiss at 
Moodys, sick;  
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Hotchkiss, Georgia  May 15, 1897 Georgia Hotchkiss Estate of.  Inventory Household Goods $35.25; Mechanics 
Savings Bank $640.00; Winsted Bank $500.00.  May 22, 1897 Estate of Georgia Hotchkiss Received of Winsted 
Savings Bank $100.  Paid E M Northrop $35.00; Alice Catlin $18.58 [?]; C D Sweet $18.00; Fannie Metcalf $3.00; J E 
Pine $12.00; Mary E Acker $8.14; Total = $94.72.  Jones Undertaker $93.50; Dr Hulburt Bill $1.00.  Debts $93.50 + 
$94.72 + $1.00 = $187.92 [sic].  Legacies $550.00 Total = $737.92.  Legacies July 1897 Mrs Catlin $300.00, Emma 
Norton x $50.00, Mary E Reynolds x $100.00, Town Winchester $100.00.  1898 I owe the Estate $11.78.  March 15, 
1898 Wrote Dr E Ford Havens refusing to allow her claim of $52.28 against the estate of Georgianne Hotchkiss of 
Winsted CT.  Nov 1898  Georgia Hotchkiss Estate C W Ives Executor  Withdrew from Banks $890.00 minus $880.71 
Bills & Legacies Paid = Due Estate $9.29 + $8.32 = $17.61  Nov 10 Withdrawn $8.32  Paid Judge $18.45 minus $17.61 
= $0.84 + $24.94  = $25.78.
Howard, Alan  9/11/00 Al Howard came and got Peg $50;  
Howd, C  5/17/01 Went to Riverton carried a Pig to C Howd & Potatoes to A Gaylord Hartland;  5/27/07 H Ripley left 
Pair steers here for Howd he and C Murphy came after them;  9/21/07 Went to Winsted...Stopped on way home to Mr 
Howds rained all the way home from there;  
Huamason, Phelae  7/16/02 Went to Society in afternoon drove to Frost's.  Mr Bates married Tilden & Phelae [?] 
Huamason [?] of Otis they were to Society;  
Hubbard  9/26/01 Hubbard Fert Agt called;  

Humphrey, L S  2/15/01 Went to Winsted, took a quarter of Beef to L Humphrey & one to Mrs Sheperd;  10/23/01 Went 
to Winsted took 4 Lambs & 1 sheep to Moses & Green, 1 Lamb to Winchester, 12 cts, took Butter & Eggs 30 called to 
Humphrey's sold hen [?] 4 lbs;  1/30/04 Went to Winsted started at 9 slow going to Hartland drifted, took Eggs, 36 cts, 
and Butter, got home at 7, took dinner at Humphreys;  2/1/9/04 L Humphrey came took Dinner;  10/22/04 Went to 
Winsted with Potatoes took Dinner with Humphrey;  3/27/05 took Dinner with L Humphrey [in Winsted];  11/12/07 Went 
to Winsted with 9 bushel Potatoes for L S Humphrey, took Dinner there;  
Hunt, Mr  6/27/02 Carried Wife down street in afternoon to see Mr Hunt about papering Hall;  

Hunt, A  8/10/03 Mowed on Fenn place East side of drain A Hunt helped us, got in 3 load;  8/11/03 Mowed on the Fenn 
place got in 4 loads A Hunt helped us;  8/12/03 finished the Fenn place and mowed 2 loads in south lot.  Got in 3 small 
loads on Fenn place Hunt helped us;  11/30/04 Hunt came up with 200 feet of Tile, for Barnyard drain;  
Hunt, Amos  9/16/05 Anos [sic] Hunt called in forenoon;  
Hunt, Mrs Andrew  8/9/02 Mrs Andrew Hunt died at Duttons in eve, aged 67 yrs;  8/12/02 Wife & I attended the Funeral 
of Mrs Hunt at Church in afternoon;  
Hunt, Fred  12/3/07 Cut wood on Sheets Fenn lot, Fred Hunt helped me;  

Hunt, James  1896 Poll Tax payer;  March 1897 Due for shoveling snow x James Hunt 5 hours $0.75;  1/27/00 Em & I 
went down street in afternoon called at J Hunt's;  10/13/03 Went to J Hunts in Eve and to Millers;  1903 Memoranda 

Received of James Hunt on the rent of Hattie Smith place Nov 2nd $12.50;  Jan 25th '04 Cash $10.00;  Feb 19th '04 

$5.00;  July 16th '04 $10.00;  total = $37.50;  plus Harrington $10 = $47.50;  Due from James Hunt on rent $6.67 for 

Year Ending July 1st 1904;  4/14/04 N Frisbie came with Will Chapman & J Hunt & team got Shingle Mill;  6/28/04 Jim 
Hunt called in Eve;  6/13/05 Went to C W Deckers, called to Parsonage.  Decker & J Hunt digging a well;  
Hunt, Mrs James  12/19/00 Went to Winsted Eggs & Butter, Eggs 35 cts took some Chickens for Mrs Hunt 14 cts;  
10/15/02 took a load of wood to Mrs James Hunt;  7/10/03 Carried Wife to the Hall to help clean it Mrs Decker & Mrs 
Hunt helped;  10/6/03 Went to Academy Hall fixed so Mrs Hunt could paper the stairway;  5/27/04 Mrs Hunt papered 
our bedroom;  6/1/05 Mrs James Hunt helped us about cleaning house;  6/2/05 Whitewashed the sitting room in the 
morning, Mrs Hunt papered it;   
Hunt, Will  4/30/02 Will Hunt called at mill;  
Huschall  5/11/03 Attended Huschall [?] meeting at Parsonage in Eve;  
Hyde, Mrs K [nee Kate Hall? widow of C H Jones?]  9/29/00  Mrs K Hyde & sister Carrie Peck of Plainville came stayed 
all night;  9/30/00 Went to Church Mrs Hyde & sister Mrs Peck went with us they went to Slocums after tea;  10/1/00 
Kate Hyde & Carrie Peck stayed all night;  10/2/00 Mrs Hyde & Peck started for Blandford;  8/23/01 Mrs W C Hall & 
Kate of Plainville came stayed all night;  8/24/01 Mr [meant Mrs?] Hyde returned in morn;  8/27/04 Kate Hyde called in 
Eve;  

Ives, A S  2/15/04 Wrote to A S Ives Germantown Pa;  
Ives, Uncle Abiram  3/8/00 Abiram Ives died aged 79 - 6 months;  3/10/00 attended the funeral of Uncle Abiram Ives.  
Called to J Northway, took dinner.  Called to Father, about the same;  
Ives, Burton [died 1/11/98]  1896 Poll Tax payer;  5/2/00 took Rose bush set on Burt's Grave;  11/11/05 B Jones fixed 
the stones of Mr & Mrs Smith, Frost, Lawrence Smith, & Burts [Cyrus's son Burton];  5/10/06 Went to the cemetery in 
morning set out a Snow Ball by Burts grave;  
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Ives, Carrie  2/28/00 Carrie & I went to Winsted;  3/18/00 took Carrie to Church;  4/9/00 Went to Winsted ...Carrie went 
with me;  4/11/00 [Frank] & Wife, Carrie, & Cooley went to the ministers to tea;  6/1/00 took Carrie to Wm Bates to get 
a dress;  6/12/00 Went over to Pat's with Em & Carrie in the afternoon;  6/15/00 took Carrie to Winsted took dinner with 
Orpha Spear;  6/20/00 Carrie was married to Wm J Cooley in eve by Rev S B Andrews, 20 present;  6/21/00 Carrie & 
her Husband went to Winsted in afternoon;  6/23/00 Will & Carrie came up from Winsted went to Chicopee;  6/25/00 
took Carrie's trunk to E Granville sent it by Stage to Chicopee;  7/26/00 Went to Westfield got Carrie took Dinner with 
Mrs Parsons;  7/29/00 Went to prayer meeting in evening Carrie went with me;  8/4/00 took Carrie over to Granville 
Center to take Stage for Chicopee;  8/11/00 Cooley & Carrie came out in afternoon;  8/12/00 Cooley & Carrie drove to 
Magranis awhile started back at 4 PM;  9/7/00 Wife and I went to Westfield took dinner with Carrie;  10/1/00 Went to 
Westfield took 6 Bush Potatoes to Mrs Parsons, 1 to Carrie;
Ives Cooley, Carrie [contd]  10/12/00 took 3 sheep to Westfield...took dinner with Carrie;  10/17/00 Wife & I went to 
Westfield took Dinner with Carrie.  Started for Amherst at 12;  10/20/00 left Franks about 9 o'clock drove to Westfield 
took Dinner with Carrie.  Called on Mrs Parsons;  11/12/00 Carried Emeline to Westfield to Carrie's to stay a few days.  
Came back by Granville Corners brought Cooley out to work on Library;  12/7/00 [Carrie gave birth to Burton Loring 
Cooley];  12/21/00 Took Wife...to Westfield left her to Carrie's to spend a week;  1/1/01  Went to Granville Corners got 
Wife she had been in Westfield to see Carrie [& baby] for 10 days;  1/28/01 Em & I went to Westfield took Dinner with 
Carrie;  3/20/01 drove to Westfield at 9:30 got Carrie got home at 2.  Will walked out;  3/31/01 Went to Church Carrie 
went with me;  4/13/01  took Carrie to Westfield Will went with Magranis;  5/7/01 Em & I went to Westfield took Dinner 
with Carrie Charlie Cooley was there;  7/21/01 Carrie & Will here;  8/2/01 Carrie went to B Marganis spent the day;  
8/3/01 Went to Tolland carried Wife & Carrie out;  
Ives Cooley, Carrie [contd]  8/18/01 Carrie & [I] went to Church;  8/25/01 Mrs Hall Carrie & myself went to Church;  
8/26/01 took Carrie & Will to Westfield;  10/2/01 Em & I went to Amherst to Frank's took dinner with Carrie;  10/5/01 
Started for home called on Flora at So Hadley got to Westfield at 1:30 took Dinner at Carrie's got home at 6 o'clock;  
10/26/01 Carrie & boy spent the day with Mrs Sheets;  10/27/01 Carrie & I went to Church Wife took care of the Baby;  
11/5/01 drove to Westfield got Carrie;  11/9/01 Carrie went to Slocums with me;  11/17/01 Carrie & I went to Church;  
11/25/01 took Carrie to Winsted to Dentist got teeth filled;  11/28/01 Wife cooked Turkey made Chicken Pie Will Cooley 
and Carrie here to eat with us;  12/5/01 Frank & Carrie went over to see Len;  12/28/01 took Carrie & Boy to Len's;  
1/5/02 Went to Len's got Carrie & boy;  1/13/02 Went down got Mrs C W Magranis to come up and see Carrie's Baby, 
not well;  1/26/02 W Cooley & Wife, Harry, & I went to Church;  2/6/02 Carrie went to Magranis;  3/25/02 Carried Cooley 
& Carrie to Westfield;
Ives Cooley, Carrie [contd]  4/29/02 Wife and I went to Westfield took Dinner with Carrie, Bessie & Boy there;  6/7/02 
Wife & I drove to Westfield took a lunch at Carrie's drove to Holyoke to Frank's got there about 4 PM.  Stayed all night.  
A Daughter [Dorothy Cooley Parkman?] born to Carrie early in morning;  6/9/02 Started from Franks at 7:30 drove to 
Westfield, arrived at noon took Dinner at Carrie's done some trading drove home brought the Boy with us;  7/1/02 Wife 
and I went to Westfield took the little Boy in to Carrie;  8/29/02 Went to Westfield got Carrie & the children;  9/21/02 Will 
took Carrie and baby back to Westfield in afternoon, left the boy;  10/11/02 Wife & I went to Westfield...took Dinner with 
Carrie took the boy home;  12/8/02 W Cooley Telephoned that Carrie was sick.  Wife & I drove in brought the Boy 
home with us;  12/10/02 got letter from Will, Carrie has Diptheria;  12/23/02 Wife & I went to Westfield took Carries Boy 
home he was sick, they called a Dr said there was no symptoms of Diptheria, took Dinner with Carrie, got home about 
5:30;
Ives Cooley, Carrie [contd]  1/17/03 Went to Westfield...Emeline went with me stayed to Carrie's;  2/2/03 Em & I went to 
Westfield with big Sleigh got Carrie and the 2 Children, to stay awhile;  3/6/03 took some Corn to H Dickinson brought 
home some grain Carrie & Baby went with [sic] called to Gibbons;  3/15/03 Carrie and I went to Church;  3/18/03 drove 
to Hargers got a Gallon maple syrup.  Carrie & Children rode up with me;  3/29/03 went to Church Carrie went with me;  
4/2/03 Carrie & Children went to Magranis;  4/10/03 Carrie & I went up north way by Deckers & A Phelon to A Clapp.  I 
went to Bronson's;  4/12/03 Carrie, the boy, & I went to Church;  4/17/03 Attended meeting at Church Carrie went with 
me;  4/19/03 went to Church Carrie went with me;  4/28/03 Wife, Carrie & Children, & I went to Tolland to visit sisters;  
5/10/03 Carrie, Boy, & I went to Church;  5/12/03 took Carrie and children to Westfield, to stay awhile;  5/27/03 Got up 
at 3 AM loaded a fat Hog started at 4 went to Springfield weight 346, 7 cts per lb, took breakfast at Carries got back 
there at 1, home about 6;  
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Ives Cooley, Carrie [contd]  6/13/03 Wife & I went to...Carries found them gone to Vermont, to stay awhile;  10/24/03 
Em went to Westfield with Sheets to see Carrie;  11/10/03 to Westfield...took Dinner with Carrie brought the boy home 
with me;  11/26/03 Started at 9 o'clock for Westfield.  Wife, Harry Hakes, & Grandson Burton went with me to Carries to 
Thanksgiving Dinner had Turkey.  Frank came down came home with us;  12/12/03 Went to Westfield...took Dinner at 
Carrie's got home about 6;  1/6/04 went to Westfield got a Sleigh from Sears Roebuck Co, brought out 300 grain took 
Dinner at Carrie's;  1/12/04 Carried Hog to Egleston Westfield...took Dinner with Carrie.  Burton came home with me;  
1/25/04 drove to Westfield got Carrie and Dorothy;  1/29/04 Went to Millers got a can of Oil, Carrie and Children rode 
down;  2/23/04 took Carrie and Children to Magranis, for the day;  2/27/04 took Carrie and Children to Westfield, found 
Will at House;  4/9/04 Carried 3 pigs to E Granville took Sister Lib went on to Westfield took Dinner with Carrie, took 
Trolley to Holyoke and on to Amherst to Frank's;
Ives Cooley, Carrie [contd]  4/11/04 Lib & I came home took Trolley to Holyoke Nellie came with us.  Came to Westfield 
by way of W Springfield took Dinner with Carrie [Edith Emeline born 4/29/04] got home about 8;  9/16/04 went to 
Westfield got Carrie and 3 Children;  9/25/04 Myrtle, Carrie, and 2 of her children went to Church with me.  Em took 
care of Baby Edith;  10/2/04 Went to Church Carrie, Burton, & Dorothy went with me;  10/5/04 Carrie went to Magranis.  
I took Dinner there;  10/9/04 Went to Church Carrie and 2 children went with me;  10/19/04 Wife & Carrie went to 
Parsonage, sewed;  10/23/04 Carrie & 2 Children went to Church with me;  10/28/04 drove to Deckers in the morning, 
down to Frisbies mill to see Goodniss about plowing.  Carrie and 2 children went with me;  11/2/04 Took Carrie and 
children home to Westfield;  12/9/04 Went to Westfield took Wife and Fannie Smith, left them to Carrie's;  12/31/04 
Wife & I drove to Westfield to Carries took Dinner there good sleighing, got home about 6 PM, found the Children well;  
4/8/05 Went to Westfield got Carrie and children;

Ives Cooley, Carrie [contd]  4/12/05 took Carrie to PO left her and children to G Millers;  4/16/05 Went to Church Carrie 
and Burton went with me;  4/23/05 went to Church Carrie, Burton, and Dorothy went with me, Easter Service;  4/24/05 
took Carrie and children to Magranis for the day;  4/26/05 took Carrie and Children to Ladies Society;  4/27/05 Carrie & 
Edith went with Lib to Deckers in afternoon;  4/29/05 Took Carrie, Dorothy, and Baby Edith to Westfield;  6/24/05 Wife 
and I went to Westfield she done some trading went through Granville Center.  Brought out some of Carries things she 
left at Snows [Carrie & family to DC?];  8/29/05 Got letters from Carrie & Frank;  1/7/06 wrote to Harry and Carrie;  
1/30/06 Got letter from Carrie;  8/25/06 Carrie and Children came from Washington DC;  8/29/06 Prayer meeting Carrie 
went with me;  9/2/06 Went to Church, Carrie, Burton, and Dorothy went with me.  Carrie & I went to Prayer meeting in 
Eve;  9/9/06 Went to Church, Carrie, Burton, and Dorothy went with me.  Carrie & I went to prayer meeting in Eve;
Ives Cooley, Carrie [contd]  9/13/06 drove to Magranis, to Mr Coolidge had him Telephone to Mercy Hospital Springfield
to send ambulance after Burton.  Mr Magranis took Carrie to Springfield.  The ambulance took Burton;  9/14/06 
Magranis called in Eve, said Burton and Carrie got to Springfield all right;  9/17/05 Got letter from Carrie, Burton better;  
9/24/06 Carrie came from Springfield by Stage;  9/28/06 drove to Westfield took car to Springfield went to Mercy 
Hospital to see Burton Cooley, Carrie went with me, found him very sick did not speak to us;  10/3/06 Carrie went to 
Springfield in Stage;  10/6/06 Carrie & Will came in Stage;  10/7/06 Carrie & Dot, Will & Harry, & I went to Church.  Will 
& Carrie went to Magranis just at night.  Harry went after them in Eve;  10/9/06 Will, Carrie, & Harry went after 
chestnuts on Chestnut Hill;  10/13/06 Harry took horse carried Will and Carrie to Westfield going to Springfield to see 
Burton;  10/21/06 Carrie & I went to Prayer meeting in Eve;  10/24/06 Carried Em to Society...Carrie took Horse went to 
Society with Children;

Ives Cooley, Carrie [contd]  10/25/06 Em Carrie and the Children went to Tolland spent the day;  10/28/06 Carrie & I 
went to Prayer meeting;  10/29/06 Carrie went to Springfield;  10/30/06 Went to Westfield...Carrie came back with me;  
11/2/06 Went to Winsted...Carrie went with me;  11/4/06 Carrie went with me to Prayer meeting in Eve;  11/18/06 Went 
to Church, Carrie and Dorothy went with me;  11/21/06 drove to Rev Coolidge Carrie went to Springfield with him;  
11/24/06 Went to Granville in the morning, Carrie went with me Enroute [sic] for Springfield;  11/26/06 Started for 
Westfield at 9 AM got Burton and his Mother just out of Mercy Hospital;  11/29/06 Magranis called invited us down to 
Eat Thanksgiving dinner.  Wife & I, Carrie and 3 Children went;  12/2/06 Went to Church, Carrie went with me;  12/9/06 
Went to Church Carrie & I walked down;  12/16/06 Carrie, Burton, & I went to Church;  12/22/06 Carrie & Children went 
to Magranis;  12/23/06 Carrie & I went to Church;  12/24/06 Went with Carrie, Burton, and Dorothy to Church;
Ives Cooley, Carrie [contd]  12/27/06 Carried Carrie and 3 Children to Westfield left them at Mrs Parsons, they are 
going home to Washington DC;  3/8/07 Packed a Barrel of apples to send to Carrie to Washington DC;  10/14/07 Wife 
& I went to Westfield to F A Rich, Jefferson St packed crockery sent to Carrie, in Washington;  10/29/07 Got letters 
from Frank & Carrie;  12/22/07 Wrote to Carrie in the Eve;  12/31/07 Got a letter from Carrie;  July 7, 1914  Paid Carrie 
M Cooley $365. from Estate of Emeline O Ives.  C W Ives a'dm;  Aug 14, 1914.  Sent off to Carrie 2 Bonds Bank Book 
on Mechanics Savings Bank and cash to make her $822.13 in all, the same as Frank but not transferred to her at this 
date.  C W Ives adm;  Receipt from Carrie Estate of E O Ives  W Granville Mass Aug 14, 1914 $822.13;  Received of 
Cyrus W Ives Administrator of Emeline O Ives estate $113.33 Frank T Ives Amherst Mass July 16, 1915 & Carrie M 
Cooley Granville Mass July 20, 1915;  
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Ives, Charles A  9/27/01  C A Ives came here with pair Horses stayed all night;  10/26/01 Chas A Ives & Wife from 
Sandisfield came over took dinner;  4/5/02 Harry and Em went to New Boston to attend the funeral of Chas A Ives wife 
aged 22 yrs;  11/15/02 Chas A Ives came after Pig;  2/25/04 Charles and True Ives and J Weiman [?] here at noon with 
loads of goods for Westfied;  

Ives, Elizabeth ["Lib", sister]  3/18/00 drove out to Fathers found him very low...Lib came home;  3/26/00 funeral of 
Father at house...buried at Colebrook River.  Frank & Nellie went home with Len & Lib;  4/2/00 Len brought Lib over 
here in the morning.  I carried her to Mrs Wheeler's Barkhamsted Ct;  6/29/00 Lib came over;  7/1/00 Pat brought Lib 
over just at night, she stayed all night;  7/2/00 carried Lib to Barkhamsted;  10/7/00 Wrote to Lib in eve;  10/29/00 Len & 
Lib came over stayed awhile;  11/30/00 Frank & I went to Riverton to Pleseant Valley up to Barkhamsted to Dinner at 
Mrs Wheeler.  Saw Lib awhile came home;  2/23/01 Pat & Len called on way to see Lib;  2/24/01 Pat called on way 
home left Len to care for Lib;  2/27/01 Carried Wife to Barkhamsted to Mrs Wheelers to take care of Lib she has 
Pneumonia, brought Len up with me;  3/3/01 took Len to Mrs Wheelers, brought Em back.  Lib a little better;  3/10/01 
Carried Em to Barkhamsted to Mrs Wheelers to take care of Lib for a few days Pat went down got Len;
Ives, Elizabeth ["Lib", sister] [contd]  3/16/01 went to Mrs Vashti Wheeler after my Wife, Lib was not able to be left alone 
so left her and came home;  3/22/01 drove to Barkhamsted to Mrs Wheeler's, got my wife, Lib so she can get about a 
little;  9/18/01 Wife and I went to New Boston to Cattle Show, took Len & Lib;  10/22/01 Len & Lib came over took 
Dinner;  6/12/02 Lib & Len came over visited awhile with them;  8/27/02 M Stanard came up Lib sick.  Went over got 
Len to go back with him;  8/30/02 took Wife to Barkhamsted to take care of Lib, took Dinner with O E Murphy;  9/8/02 
Started for Barkhamsted about 9 to see Lib found her better took Dinner there got home about 5 PM;  9/14/02 Pat and 
Len came over in the morning, did not stay long...Carried Em to Barkhamsted to care for Lib got back at 9 Eve;  
10/26/02 Emeline & I went to Tolland to see Lib in afternoon;  12/1/02 Pat brought Lib over to stay awhile;  12/2/02 Pat 
came over got Lib;  12/22/02 Pat & Lib called on their way to Barkhamsted;  2/18/03 Wrote to Lib;  4/18/03 Em & I 
started for Barkhamsted to see Lib called to Cables found she had come home;
Ives, Elizabeth ["Lib", sister] [contd]  4/28/03 Wife, Carrie & Children & I went to Tolland to visit sisters;  6/18/03 Pat 
brought Lib over she stayed;  6/21/03 Made some Ice Cream Lib played on Organ Lovina & Sister Smith sung;  6/22/03 
Pat came over got Lib;  6/26/03 took Em, Lovina B, & Betsy Smith to Tolland took Dinner with Len & Lib;  8/16/03 Pat & 
Len called in Eve they came and brought Lib to Millers;  9/9/03 Em and I went to New Boston to the Fair Ruth Nelson 
rode over with us Len and Lib rode down with [sic].  Lib came back to Millers with us;  9/20/03 Went to Prayer meeting 
in Eve, Lib rode down with us;  9/22/03 Carried Sister Lib to Barkhamsted through the hollow;  10/14/03 Lib came up in 
afternoon;  10/23/03 Went to Winsted with Butter Lib went with me to do some trading;  11/1/03 Em went to Tolland 
with Lib & G Miller;  11/27/03 Lib came up to Dinner had Chicken Pie;  12/9/03 Em & I went to New Boston to John 
Northway to see about Aunt Electa affairs.  Lib rode over with us from Pat's;  12/31/03 went to Winsted...got home 
about 5, found Lib here with a good fire G Miller came up in Eve;
Ives, Elizabeth ["Lib", sister] [contd]  2/14/04 Lib came up to Dinner;  3/7/04 Carried Em to Millers in afternoon to stay 
with Lib;  4/9/04 Carried 3 pigs to E Granville took Sister Lib went on to Westfield took Dinner with Carrie, took Trolley 
to Holyoke and on to Amherst to Frank's;  4/10/04 Nellie & Lib, Frank & I went to So Amherst to Church;  4/11/04 Lib & 
I came home took Trolley to Holyoke Nellie came with us.  Came to Westfield by way of W Springfield took Dinner with 
Carrie got home about 8;  4/30/04 Pat & Len came over took Dinner Lib went home with them;  11/21/04 Lib came up 
Em went to Tolland with her;  1/1/05 Lib came up to supper;  1/19/05 B Jones, Lib, Mrs Coolidge, and Ruth Nelson 
called during the day;  2/14/05 G Miller and Lib started for Tolland roads bad they stopped here;  3/1/05 Em spent the 
afternoon with Lib at G Millers;  4/15/05 Lib came up in afternoon;  4/27/05 Carrie & Edith went with Lib to Deckers in 
afternoon;  5/28/05 Lib came up took supper;  5/29/05 Went to Colebrook River set up a Headstone for Father in the 
cemetery there.  Wife and Sister Lib went with me;
Ives, Elizabeth ["Lib", sister] [contd]  6/4/05 Wife...went to Tolland with Lib in afternoon;  6/10/05 Lib came up got some 
flowers to trim Church;  9/6/05 Lib came up stayed awhile;  9/13/05 Em called on Lib in afternoon;  2/12/06 Em went to 
School House called on Lib;  2/23/06 Wife, Lib, & myself attended the funeral of Dea J P Hall at Tolland Mr Coolidge 
preached the Sermon;  3/28/06 Wife & I went to Tolland...Met J Northway & S D Smith at Sisters took Dinner there;  
4/4/06 Carried Em and Lib down street to clean lamps in Hall;  4/12/06 Went to the Hall helped Em, Lib, & G Miller 
clean up after sugar Eaters;  5/22/06 Decker & Lib helped Em paper Kitchen.  Mrs Coolidge called carried them home;  
6/10/06 Lib came up in afternoon;  6/24/06 Lib, Nellie, & Wife drove to Tolland in afternoon;  1/2/07 Lib came up awhile; 
1/5/07 Lib came up towards night;  3/1/07 Went to Tolland to Pats.  Mrs Nelson, Lib, and Mrs Ives went with me;  
4/4/07 Pat & Len called Lib came up in afternoon;  5/2/07 Miller called, Lib came up in Eve, with some Butter;  5/14/07 
Em went to Tolland with Lib;  
Ives, Elizabeth ["Lib", sister] [contd]  6/6/07 Went to G Millers in the morning to see Lib she is sick;  8/18/07 Gilbert & 
Lib called Em rode to Sheets and around to Deckers with them;
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Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife]  1/7/00 Em & I drove out to Fathers in afternoon found them well;  1/27/00 Em & I went 
down street in afternoon called at J Hunt's;  2/8/00 Em & I went to Fathers found them well;  2/27/00 Em & I went to 
Fathers in afternoon found him not feeling very well;  3/4/00 Em & I went out to Fathers in afternoon found him 
comfortable;  3/13/00 Em & I went to Fathers she remained;  3/30/00 Em & I went out to Tolland in afternoon, brought 
home the farm wagon wheels;  4/15/00 Miss Ellen Fowler died at Geo W Treat at 11 AM.  Em & I went down there in 
afternoon;  4/22/00 Went to Church...Em & Nellie did not go;  6/12/00 Went over to Pat's with Em & Carrie in the 
afternoon;  6/24/00 E & I went to New Boston to Church it was Childrens day, drove to the cemetery, took dinner at J 
Northways;  6/28/00 Em & I went to store;  8/16/00 took Mrs Parsons & friend [&] Em and drove to Goodness [?] up to 
cemetery;  9/5/00 Carried Wife to Ladies Society;  9/7/00 Wife and I went to Westfield took dinner with Carrie.  Wife 
done some trading.  Harness broke and Horse run with us broke carriage.  Walked home;
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  9/13/00 attended the fair at Blandford.  Wife and Aunt Electa went with me;  9/16/00 
Wife & I went to Church;  9/19/00 Wife, Harry, and I went to New Boston to Cattle Show;  10/17/00 Wife & I went to 
Westfield took Dinner with Carrie.  Started for Amherst at 12 drove to Holyoke, So Hadley to Frank's got there at 4 PM;  
10/30/00 Wife & I went to Winsted took some Potatoes Butter to Mrs Spear took Dinner there;  11/12/00 Carried 
Emeline to Westfield to Carrie's to stay a few days...brought Cooley out to work on Library;  11/15/00 Went to Granville 
Center got Wife she came out from Westfield on Stage;  12/6/00 Went to Winsted with Butter, Frank & Wife & pig.  
Mother went to Tolland spent the day;  12/21/00 Took Wife to Mrs W Bates to see about getting dress made.  Went 
from there to Westfield left her to Carrie's to spend a week;  1/1/01  Went to Granville Corners got Wife she had been 
in Westfield to see Carrie [& baby] for 10 days;  1/4/01 Carried Wife to Mrs Bates to get a dress fitted;  1/9/01 Wife & I 
spent eve at M Nelson's;  
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  1/12/01 Carried Wife to Mrs Bates to get a Dress;  1/24/01 Went to Blandford Em 
went as far as Mrs H Peebles;  1/28/01 Em & I went to Westfield took Dinner with Carrie;  2/2/01 took Wife and Ruth 
down to Hall to clean up after the Supper;  2/3/01 Harry helped Mr Nelson do his chores Em & I called on him in eve 
found him better;  2/19/01 Em went with Mrs Nelson to East Granville;  2/20/01 Em & I went to see Len in afternoon;  
2/23/01 Em & I went to Mr Hargers;  2/27/01 Carried Wife to Barkhamsted to Mrs Wheelers to take care of Lib she has 
Pneumonia, brought Len up with me;  3/3/01 took Len to Mrs Wheelers, brought Em back.  Lib a little better;  3/10/01 
Carried Em to Barkhamsted to Mrs Wheelers to take care of Lib for a few days;  3/16/01 went to Mrs Vashti Wheeler 
after my Wife, Lib was not able to be left alone so left her and came home;  3/22/01 drove to Barkhamsted to Mrs 
Wheeler's, got my wife, Lib so she can get about a little;  5/7/01 Em & I went to Westfield took Dinner with Carrie;  
5/11/01 Went out to Pats in afternoon with Wife;  
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  6/21/01 Went to Westfield Wife went with me;  6/24/01 helped Wife about Balling 
Butter;  7/4/01 Em & Mrs Nelson went to Fire works;  7/29/01 Harry, Wife, & I picked berries awhile on upper lot;  
7/30/01 Wife, Harry, & I picked Berries awhile;  8/3/01 Went to Tolland carried Wife & Carrie out;  8/11/01 Wife & I went 
to New Boston attended Church, took lunch at J Northways he was gone to Mill River.  Ed came.  Called to Pats;  
8/14/01 Wife & I picked [berries] in afternoon awhile;  8/20/01 Em & I went on north lot berrying;  9/1/01 Wife, Myrtle, 
and myself attended Church;  9/14/01 Em was sick done the chores for her in morning;  9/18/01 Wife and I went to 
New Boston to Cattle Show, took Len & Lib;  9/22/01 Wife & I drove to E H Magranis in Eve;  10/2/01 Em & I went to 
Amherst to Frank's took dinner with Carrie;  10/4/01 Wife & I drove to Mr Atkins in afternoon Nellie & Boy went with us;  
10/15/01 took Wife to Deckers & to Welchs just at night;  10/20/01 Em & I drove to see Len she is not very well;  
10/27/01 Carrie & I went to Church Wife took care of the Baby;  
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  10/30/01 carried Wife to the Church;  11/2/01 took Wife to Ladies room to clean up, 
after the Supper;  11/6/01 Wife & I, Harry, Ruth Nelson, & Ella Clark went to H Peebles to a Social in eve;  11/28/01 
Wife cooked Turkey made Chicken Pie Will Cooley and Carrie here to eat with us;  12/12/01 Wife & I went to Winsted 
took Dinner with Orpha, done some trading at E H Persons;  12/19/01 Wife & I went to Winsted took Eggs & Butter;  
1/7/02 Wife went to Geo Treats to help care of measles patients;  1/22/02 Wife and I drove to S W Deckers just at night 
they have the measles;  1/30/02 Frank Magranis, Will, & Harry went to the Hall Pond fishing carried them up, took Wife 
to Parsonage;  2/1/02 Carried Wife to the Parsonage she & Mrs Frisbie worked at cleaning it;  2/5/02 Wife went down 
street;  2/6/02 Wife went to Sheets;  2/11/02 Carried Wife to Parsonage to clean some.  Went after her just at night;  
2/16/02 Em & I, Cooley, & Harry went to Church;  3/12/02 took Wife to Ladies Society V E Barnes there;  3/23/02 Wife 
& I & Cooley & Harry went to Church;  
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Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  4/2/02 Wife & Ruth Nelson went down swept the Church;  4/5/02 Harry and Em 
went to New Boston to attend the funeral of Chas A Ives wife aged 22 yrs;  4/6/02 Wife & Harry went to Church;  
4/12/02 Em and I went to Tolland to see Len;  4/18/02 Carried Wife to the Parsonage to do some papering;  4/29/02 
Wife and I went to Westfield took Dinner with Carrie, Bessie & Boy there;  5/18/02 Wife & I and Lovina went to Church 
stayed to Sunday School;  5/22/02 Carried Em, Lovina, & Theda to Tolland took Dinner;  6/7/02 Wife & I drove to 
Westfield took a lunch at Carrie's drove to Holyoke to Frank's got there about 4 PM.  Stayed all night.  A Daughter born 
to Carrie early in morning;  6/27/02 Carried Wife down street in afternoon to see Mr Hunt about papering Hall;  7/1/02 
Wife and I went to Westfield took the little Boy in to Carrie;  7/2/02 Em went to Society in afternoon;  7/4/02  Wife & I 
went to Picnic in Welch's yard;  7/20/02 went to Church Mertie & Gertie went with me, Wife did not go;  7/22/02 Carried 
Wife to Mrs Wm Bates;  
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  7/26/02 Harry & Em went to Hall in afternoon put up Lamps;  7/30/02 Wife and I 

went to Granville Center Attended the 100th anniversary of the Church.  Mrs J W Gibbs stayed with us all night;  8/3/02 
attended Church, Wife did not go;  8/6/02 Carried Wife to Wm Bates in afternoon;  8/12/02 Wife & I attended the 
Funeral of Mrs Hunt at Church;  8/30/02 took Wife to Barkhamsted to take care of Lib;  9/4/02 Pat brought Wife home 
from Barkhamsted;  9/13/02 Wife and I went to Mrs Bates after her dress in afternoon;  9/14/02 Carried Em to 
Barkhamsted to care for Lib;  9/28/02 Wife & I went to Pats in afternoon;  10/17/02 Wife & I went to Academy Hall in 
Eve to discuss the S S lesson;  10/26/02 Emeline & I went to Tolland to see Lib in afternoon;  11/8/02 Wife & Harry 
went to the Hall to clean up;  11/9/02 Went to Church, Wife did not go, felt too tired;  11/18/02 Went to Hargers got a 
trowel patched the Kitchen.  Wife & I painted it;  12/8/02 W Cooley Telephoned that Carrie was sick.  Wife & I drove in 
brought the Boy home with us got back at 6;  12/20/02 helped Wife work & Ball Butter;
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  12/23/02 Wife & I went to Westfield took Carrie's Boy home he was sick, they called 
a Dr said there was no symptoms of Diptheria, took Dinner with Carrie, got home about 5:30;  12/28/02 Attended 
Church and Sunday School Mrs Ives did not go;  1/2/03 went to Winsted Em went with me she bought her a coat.  We 
took Dinner at C Deweys Mrs Nellie Rood there;  1/14/03 Carried Em to Hall in afternoon Ladies Society took supper 
with them;  1/17/03 Went to Westfield got pump for Barn well brought back some grain for Welch.  Emeline went with 
me stayed to Carrie's;  1/22/03 Went to Westfield to W J Cooley got Mrs Ives got home about 4;  2/2/03 Em & I went to 
Westfield with big Sleigh got Carrie and the 2 Children, to stay awhile;  2/15/03 Em & I went to Church Mr Bates 
preached;  2/24/03 Wife & I went to New Boston to J Northway's, he had gone to Winsted took Dinner there called at A 
Snow & J P Hall's & at Len;  3/1/03 Wife & I went to Church;  3/4/03 Attended Fund & Society meeting in afternoon.  
Em stayed at Frisbies;  3/22/03 Wife and I went to Church;
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  4/1/03 Carried Wife to Ladies room Society day;  4/5/03 Attended Church Wife went 
with me;  4/18/03 Em & I started for Barkhamsted to see Lib called to Cables found she had come home, drove to Ben 
Clark's made a call;  4/28/03 Wife, Carrie & Children & I went to Tolland to visit sisters;  5/31/03 Wife & I attended 
Church;  6/1/03 Em & I went to Frosts in Eve got some wool;  6/10/03 Wife & I went to Ladies Society took supper;  
6/13/03 Wife & I went to Westfield muddy going.  Went to Carries found them gone to Vermont, to stay awhile, done 
some trading called at Mrs Parsons;  6/18/03 Carried Wife to the Ladies room to clean [after strawberry & ice crea 
Social];  6/26/03 took Em, Lovina B, & Betsy Smith to Tolland took Dinner with Len & Lib;  6/27/03 took Em & Sister 
Smith to Westfield they took Trolley for Amherst to visit Frank;  6/29/03 Harry went to Westfield got Em & Sister Smith;  
7/9/03 drove to Deckers in Eve with Wife;  7/10/03 Carried Wife to the Hall to help clean it Mrs Decker & Mrs Hunt 
helped;  7/19/03 Em & I drove out to Tolland in afternoon;

Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  7/28/03 Em & Murdocks went berrying;  8/19/03 Carried Wife to Society;  9/9/03 Em 
and I went to New Boston to the Fair Ruth Nelson rode over with us Len and Lib rode down with [sic].  Lib came back to 
Millers with us;  9/20/03 Wife & I attended Church;  9/23/03 Wife went to Ladies Society;  9/29/03 Wife & I went to S 
Deckers in Eve to see Mr Bates he had gone;  10/2/03 Carried Wife to the Hall she cleaned and filled the Lamps I put 
up some brackets;  10/8/03 Carried Wife to clean up the Hall in morning;  10/18/03 Wife & I went to Church;  10/20/03 
Em & I went to New Boston to see Aunt Electa found her quite well;  10/24/03 Em went to Westfield with Sheets to see 
Carrie;  10/26/03 Em came home in Stage;  11/1/03 Em went to Tolland with Lib & G Miller;  11/3/03 Wife & I went to M 
Nelsons spent the Eve;  11/5/03 Carried Em to Brunks and Martha went to New Boston with her;  11/18/03 Carried Em 
to L A S came home done chores went down Eat Supper;  11/24/03 Carried Em to Parsonage in morning;
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Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  11/26/03 Started at 9 o'clock for Westfield.  Wife, Harry Hakes, & Grandson Burton 
went with me to Carries to Thanksgiving Dinner had Turkey.  Frank came down came home with us;  12/3/03 Ed Miner 
came over to tell us of Aunt Electa's death.  Em & I went over to J Northways where she died stayed all night;  12/5/03 
Wife and I went to New Boston attended the funeral of Aunt Electa Dimock at John Northway's buried at Otis, drove 
home through E Otis got home at 5 o'clock;  12/9/03 Em & I went to New Boston to John Northway to see about Aunt 
Electa affairs.  Lib rode over with us from Pat's;  12/11/03 Wife & I called to Parsonage;  12/16/03 Em went to Sheets.  

Chaffee sick with measels;  12/19/03 drove to Hargers paid him for Beef, 51/2 cts 119 lbs Em rode up too, found Mrs H 
in bed with measles;  12/22/03 Carried Em to Granville Center to take afternoon Stage for Westfield going to Amherst;  
1/1/04 Wife came home from Frank's been gone 10 days she caring for him sick with measles;  1/5/04 Em went to 
Millers;  1/10/04 Wife & I went to Church;
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  1/31/04 Em & Burton & I went to Church;  2/3/04 Carried Wife to Ladies Society, 
done chores went after her in Eve;  2/13/04 Em & I went to the Parsonage to a party;  2/14/05 Em & I went to Church 
took Burton;  2/21/04 Wife and Burton & myself went to Church;  3/6/04 Em & I went to Church had Service in Hall had 
communion.  Mr Coolidge about sick;  3/7/04 Carried Em to Millers in afternoon to stay with Lib;  3/13/04 Wife & I went 
to Church;  3/19/04 Em & I went to New Boston got 2 trunks full of Aunt Electas things;  3/23/04 Em went to Millers 
spent the afternoon;  4/1/04 Em & I went to Millers in Sleigh got 2 bags grain;  4/23 04 Wife & I went to J Northway's 
New Boston got some of Aunt Electas things;  5/10/04 Went to Westfield Wife and Grandon Burton Cooley went with 
me;  5/25/04 Em went to Society;  6/12/04 Nellie, William, Wife, & I went to Church Children's day, they had Exercises;  
6/21/04 Em & Nellie went to Tolland;  6/23/04 Em & Nellie went to A Hitchcocks in morning;  6/26/04 Mrs Ives, William, 
Nellie, and myself went to Church;  
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  7/20/04 Wife went to Society in afternoon;  7/24/04 Frank & I went to Church Wife 
went also;  7/26/04 Carried Wife to Geo Treats in morning;  8/1/04 Frank & his Mother picked [berries] till it rained;  
8/21/04 Nellie, William, Wife, & I went to Church...Frank not feeling well;  8/31/04 Harry carried Em to Society Supper;  
9/7/04 Em & I went to G Millers in Eve;  9/11/04 Wife and I drove to Cemetery.  Mrs Frisbie rode up with us;  9/25/04 
Myrtle, Carrie, and 2 of her children went to Church with me.  Em took care of Baby Edith;  10/16/04 Went to Church, 
Wife, Burton, & Dorothy Cooley went with me;  10/19/04 Wife & Carrie went to Parsonage, sewed;  10/30/04 Went to 
Church Wife and Burton Cooley went with me;  11/1/04 Carried Wife down street to help clean up [after chicken pie 
supper];  11/6/04 Wife & I went to Church;  11/7/04 White-washed the sitting room.  Em cleaned it took up carpet;  
11/9/04 Carried Em to Society, went after her in Eve;  11/16/04 Em & I went to Tolland in Eve to Chicken Pie Supper;  
11/20/04 Em & I went to Church;  
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  11/21/04 Lib came up Em went to Tolland with her;  11/27/04 Went to Church Em 
did not feel like going;  12/9/04 Went to Westfield took Wife and Fannie Smith, left them to Carrie's;  12/13/04 Wife 
came from Westfield on Stage;  12/17/04 Wife & I went to Magranis in Eve;  12/18/04 Wife & I went to Church;  
12/31/04 Wife & I drove to Westfield to Carries took Dinner there good sleighing, got home about 6 PM, found the 
Children well;  1/1/05 Wife & I attended Church;  1/15/05 Wife & I went to Church;  1/16/05 drove to G Millers in 
morning got a can of Oil Em rode down with me;  1/17/05 Drove to N Hargers with Wife to see about Society;  1/18/05 
took Wife to Ladies Society in afternoon annual meeting;  2/1/05 Wife & I went to N Frisbie in Eve to a Social, about 40 
present.  Mr Colton of Granville Center talked on what he saw in England;  3/1/05 Em spent the afternoon with Lib at G 
Millers;  3/14/05 Em went to Sheets in forenoon and to Millers in afternoon;  3/29/05 had a sugar Eat at the Hall, muddy 
traveling.  Wife & I went down;  4/9/05 Wife & I went to Church Burton went with us;
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  4/30/05 Wife & I went to Church Burton Cooley went with us;  5/10/05 Carried Em to 
Ladies Society in afternoon;  5/14/05 Wife & I went to Church, Mr Coolidge was sick but he preached;  5/28/05 
Attended Church Wife did not go;  5/29/05 Went to Colebrook River set up a Headstone for Father in the cemetery 
there.  Wife and Sister Lib went with me;  6/4/05 Wife & I went to Church, she went to Tolland with Lib in afternoon;  
6/11/05 Wife & I went to Church, Children's day;  6/16/05 Wife made soap;  6/18/05 Wife & I went to Tolland Church in 
afternoon several from here went, it was Childrens day;  6/19/05 Em went to Sheets towards night;  6/24/05 Wife and I 
went to Westfield she done some trading went through Granville Center.  Brought out some of Carries things she left at 
Snows;  7/4/05 Made some ice cream, Wife & I went to Picnic in B F Jones yard;  7/6/05 Wife & I went to meeting in 
Eve, Dr Emerick and Wife here, he preached;  7/27/05 Wife helped sweep Church;  8/7/05 Frank and his Mother went 
to Pat's in the morning spent the day;  
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Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  8/27/05 Wife and I went to Church;  9/2/05 Carried Wife to Mrs Wm Bates found her 
gone, called on Mrs Henry Peebles;  9/5/05 carried Wife to Mrs Bates went up North Lane road;  9/10/05 Wife and I 
drove up north and to Deckers in Eve;  9/13/05 Em called on Lib in afternoon;  9/27/05 Carried Wife to Society;  10/1/05 
Went to Church Em had tooth ache so did not go;  10/4/05 Carried Wife to S Deckers and to Frisbies;  10/7/05 Em 
went down street;  10/11/05 Carried Wife to the Hall, came back done chores, took Ruth to Chicken Pie supper at the 
Hall;  10/12/05 Carried Wife to the Hall to help clean up the rooms;  10/14/05 raked up the rowen got it in in the 
afternoon.  Wife helped me, 2 small loads;  10/15/05 Went to Church, Wife did not go;  10/16/05 Wife & I went to G 
Millers in Eve;  11/8/05 Society at Hall drove down got Em;  11/19/05 Went to Church Nellie went with me.  Wife stayed 
home with William;  11/21/05 Carried Em to Mrs Frisbies;  11/25/05 Went to Westfield Em went with me took Nellie & 
William they went home to Amherst;  
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  12/3/05 lay on the couch till noon and slept Em went to bed;  12/27/05 Went to 
Frisbies mill in afternoon got a load of sawdust.  Em rode down street with me;  1/1/06 Wife & I went to Sister J S [Len] 
Ives took Dinner Major Tucker and Benj Mills of New Boston came took Dinner also;  1/3/06 Carried Em to Society in 
afternoon annual meeting;  1/7/06 Wife & I went to Church Mr Coolidge preached;  1/10/06 Dickinson Library meeting 
in afternoon.  Wife went down to Ladies room;  1/17/06 Carried Wife to Hall to help clean up;  1/26/06 Em went to 
Millers in afternoon;  2/5/06 Em & I went to P Miners Dim went with us called to W Munn's;  2/12/06 Em went to School 
House called on Lib;  2/23/06 Wife, Lib & myself attended the funeral of Dea J P Hall at Tolland Mr Coolidge preached 
the Sermon;  3/28/06 Wife & I went to Tolland...Met J Northway & S D Smith at Sisters took Dinner there;  4/4/06 
Carried Em and Lib down street to clean lamps in Hall;  4/7/06  Carried Wife to Harger's, drove to Booth's W Hartland;  
4/8/06 Went to Church, Wife and Teacher went with me;  
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  4/12/06 Went to the Hall helped Em, Lib & G Miller clean up after sugar Eaters;  
4/26/06 carried Wife to the Hall and helped her sweep it out;  5/10/06 Went to the cemetery in morning set out a Snow 
Ball by Burts grave.  Em went down swept the Hall;  5/22/06 Decker & Lib helped Em paper Kitchen;  6/1/06 helped 
clear out sitting room took up carpet whitewashed the room Wife cleaned the ceiling;  6/6/06 Went to the Hall helped 
Wife about cleaning it;  6/9/06 Em and I went to Westfield done a little trading.  Called on Mrs Parsons;  6/16/06 Wife & 
I went to Deckers in afternoon;  6/24/06 Lib, Nellie, & Wife drove to Tolland in afternoon;  6/27/04 Em and Nellie went 
down to Hall cleaned it up [after strawberry Social];  8/8/06 Em & I picked berries in afternoon on north lot;  8/9/06 Wife 
and I went on north lot picked Huckleberries to send to Frank;  8/25/06 Sick, Em got Albert to do chores;  10/24/06 
Carried Em to Society;  10/25/06 Em, Carrie, and the Children went to Tolland spent the day;  11/4/06 Went to Church 
wife and Dorothy went with me;  
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  11/10/06 Carried Wife to Hall to clean it up [chicken pie supper yesterday];  
11/29/06 Magranis called invited us down to Eat Thanksgiving dinner.  Wife & I, Carrie and 3 Children went;  12/21/06 
Got out the sleigh Wife & I went to Winsted started at 10 got home at 6;  12/26/06 Carried Wife to Mr Coolidge in 
afternoon;  1/20/07 Wife and I went to Church;  1/23/07 Carried Wife down to Mr Coolidge Expected to have a Ladies 
Society but did not;  1/30/07 Carried Wife to Aid Society Annual meeting Mrs Decker chosen President;  2/3/07 Em & I 
went to Church;  2/22/07 Carried wife to Hall to help clean up [after yesterday's Oyster Supper];  3/1/07 Went to Tolland 
to Pats.  Mrs Nelson, Lib, and Mrs Ives went with me;  3/3/07 Wife and I went to Church;  3/12/07 Em & I went to New 
Boston to John Northway called to Dr Ward's got some medicine for my Rheumatism, called to Pats;  3/27/07 Em, 
Ruth, & I went to Sheets got sugar;  4/8/07 took Em to Hall in afternoon in a sleigh, to Ladies business meeting;  
4/11/07 Em & I called on Mr Coolidge in Eve;  
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  5/14/07 Em went to Tolland with Lib;  5/23/07 Went to Miller, Em went too took 
Dinner there;  5/24/07 Em & I went to Social in Eve;  5/28/07 Carried Em and Mrs Nelson to Ladies room to repair 
Church cushions;  6/4/07 Carried Wife to the Hall to work on cushions for Church;  6/21/07 Went to Westfield carried 
my wool shipped it to Agawam.  Em went with me went up to Frank [in] Amherst;  6/24/07 Em came home William 
came with her;  8/18/07 Gilbert & Lib called Em rode to Sheets and around to Deckers with them;  9/22/07 Em & I 
drove to Pease, Hall, & Hayes place, in afternoon;  9/28/07 Went to Mr Magranis with Wife & Burton;  10/3/07 Went to 
E Hartland to Cattle Show, Wife and Burton Cooley went with me;  10/10/07 Harry started back via Westfield Emeline & 
Burton rode in with him;  10/14/07 Wife & I went to Westfield to F A Rich, Jefferson St packed crockery sent to Carrie, 
in Washington;
Ives, Emeline Smith [Wife] [contd]  April 1914  Estate of Emeline O Ives Paid Joseph Welch $0.50;  Paid for Advertising 
$2.63;  Paid H W Hallbound counsel fee $25.00.  Sept 29 Paid Tax $21.85 total = $49.98;  July 1914  Estate of Emeline 
O Ives.  Accrued Interest on notes since appraisal on F T Ives note $6.25;  M C Miller $11.35;  Holmes & Sons $15.00;  
Loop [?] Note $6.50;  Mechanics Bank $3.70;  Interest on Westfield Sav Bank $9.74;  Cash from Bank $8.25 = $60.79 
minus $8.25 = $52.54.  over  July 7, 1914  Paid Carrie M Cooley $365. from Estate of Emeline O Ives.  C W Ives a'dm;  
July 7, 1914  Paid Frank T Ives $656.25/100 [sic]  from Estate of Emeline O Ives.  C W Ives, a'dm;  Aug 14, 1914  Sent 
off to Frank T Ives $165.88 making $822.13  Eight hundred Twenty two 13/100 Dollars from Estate of Emeline O Ives.  
C W Ives;  April 21, 1915.  Undivided interest of Estate of Emeline O Ives $323.36 plus July 1st 1915 Interest $19.30 = 
$342.66 Undivided;  
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Ives, Frank Truman  1896 Poll Tax payer;  1897 Paid by Town of Granville Frank T Ives Cutting bushes [$]2.00;  
Shoveling snow [$]2.00;  3/17/00 went to PO in eve, got a letter from Frank;  3/24/00 Telephoned to Frank Ives...Frank 
& Nellie came home;  3/26/00 funeral of Father at house...buried at Colebrook River.  Frank & Nellie went home with 
Len & Lib;  3/27/00 Carried Frank & Wife to Granville Center to take Stage for home;  4/5/00 Frank & Nellie came;  
4/6/00 worked on wood pile Frank helped me in forenoon he & Harry went to Winsted in afternoon to get some teeth 
pulled;  4/8/00 drove to Tolland to the old place Frank & Wife went too they stayed all night;  4/10/00 Frank & I went to 
the mill put on the Gear;  4/11/00 Frank & I took a load of logs to mill drew up a load of wood, packed and loaded 
goods to take to Amherst.  He & Wife, Carrie, & Cooley went to the ministers to tea;  4/12/00 Frank & Wife went to 
Tolland;  4/13/00 Frank & I went to the mill sawed for Magranis;  4/14/00 Frank went to Holyoke with goods with 
Charlie;  4/16/00 Frank & I run the mill;  4/17/00 Worked in the mill Frank helped me;
Ives, Frank Truman [contd]  4/19/00 Frank & Wife called to Hargers;  4/23/00 Frank & Nellie went out to Tolland in 
afternoon;  4/24/00 Frank & Wife started for Amherst took a cow & calf some hens;  7/15/00 Wrote to Frank;  8/19/00 
Wrote to Frank & Georgia;  10/17/00 Wife & I went to Westfield took Dinner with Carrie.  Started for Amherst at 12 
drove to Holyoke, So Hadley to Frank's got there at 4 PM;  10/18/00 Frank worked in forenoon I called on Truman Coe. 
Went in afternoon to Geo Atkins stayed to supper went back to Frank;  10/19/00 Mr Atkins came over to Frank's in 
morning.  We went up to Amherst College looked around came to Franks took dinner;  10/20/00 left Franks about 9 
o'clock drove to Westfield took Dinner with Carrie.  Called on Mrs Parsons, got home at 7;  11/28/00 Frank & Nellie 
came about dark;  11/29/00 Thanksgiving day had Chicken Pie & Pudding for Dinner Frank & Nellie here;  11/30/00 
Frank & I went to Riverton to Pleseant Valley up to Barkhamsted to Dinner at Mrs Wheeler.  Saw Lib awhile came 
home;  12/4/00 Mended Harness for Frank;  
Ives, Frank Truman [contd]  12/5/00 Frank & I went to the mill sawed...went to Sheets in eve;  12/6/00 Went to Winsted 
with Butter Frank & Wife & pig;  12/7/00 Frank & I went to the mill sawed a little in forenoon, he went to Mr Frosts in 
afternoon;  12/8/00 Frank & Wife started for home, So Amherst;  3/14/01 wrote to Frank;  5/18/01 Frank drove from 
Amherst, got here about 6 PM;  5/20/01 Frank & I went to Hargers in afternoon and to Mr Nelsons in eve;  5/21/01 
Frank & Wife went to Tolland, to Len;  5/22/01 Frank & Wife returned home;  10/2/01 Em & I went to Amherst to 
Frank's took dinner with Carrie;  10/3/01 helped Frank cut a little corn dug a few Potatoes.  Called on Truman Coe a 
few moments just at night.  Went with Frank to D Tiffany in eve;  10/4/01 Visited with Frank we picked a few apples in 
forenoon.  Wife & I drove to Mr Atkins in afternoon Nellie & Boy went with us;  11/29/01 Frank came about dark drove 
from Holyoke;  11/30/01 Frank & I went to G Miller got some sled pins went to mill got runners & Beams sticks worked 
at making sled;  12/1/01 Frank, Harry, & I went to Church;  
Ives, Frank Truman [contd]  12/2/01 Frank carried Cooley to Westfield got back at 1 PM...Frank & I worked on sled 
some in afternoon;  12/3/01 Worked on sled for Frank;  12/4/01 helped Frank on sled some.  Harry & Frank went to G 
Millers in eve;  12/5/01 Frank & Carrie went over to see Len;  12/6/01 helped Frank about getting started for Holyoke on 
way home, put his Carriage on sled, hitched sleigh behind;  12/29/01 Wrote to Frank in eve;  3/23/02 Wrote to Frank in 
eve;  4/20/02 Wrote to Frank in evening;  4/22/02 Received letter from Frank;  6/7/02 Wife & I drove to Westfield took a 
lunch at Carrie's drove to Holyoke to Frank's got there about 4 PM.  Stayed all night;  6/8/02 Spent the day at Franks.  
Mr G H Atkins and Wife called towards night;  6/9/02 Started from Franks at 7:30 drove to Westfield, arrived at noon 
took Dinner at Carrie's done some trading drove home brought the Boy with us;  6/29/02 Wrote to Frank in evening;  
7/20/02 Wrote to Frank in eve;  8/31/02 Wrote a letter to Frank in evening;  10/5/02 Wrote to Frank in eve;  12/10/02 
Wrote to Frank;
Ives, Frank Truman [contd]  2/7/03 went with Mr Fenn to East Meriden called on Alden & Abner Fenn at shop where 
they worked took 2:15 train to Springfield, changed for Holyoke & Trolley to Amherst to Frank's stayed all night;  2/8/03 
Stayed to Frank's;  2/9/03 left Frank at 10 on Trolley to Holyoke, to train to Westfield.  Harry met me with Horse & 
sleigh got home at 3 PM fair sleighing;  4/25/03 Frank and Harry & Will came;  4/26/03 Frank & Nellie, Harry, Will 
Cooley, & myself went to Church;  4/27/03 Frank & Will went trouting.  Frank & Nellie went to Tolland;  Frank went to 
Frosts...Frank set a few scions in apple trees;  4/30/03 Frank and Family started for home in Amherst;  6/27/03 took 
Em & Sister Smith to Westfield they took Trolley for Amherst to visit Frank;  11/26/03 Started at 9 o'clock for Westfield.  
Wife, Harry Hakes, & Grandson Burton went with me to Carries to Thanksgiving Dinner had Turkey.  Frank came down 
came home with us;  11/27/03 Harry & Nic Newton went to Hall Pond fishing Frank carried them up;  11/28/03 Harry & 
Frank went to Tolland got Horse shod at Munn's;
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Ives, Frank Truman [contd]  11/29/03 Frank, Harry, and I went to Church Rev Coolidge preached Frank carried Harry to 
Riverton, going to Salisbury in morning;  12/1/03 Frank went to A Frost, in morning.  We put on ridge boards took down 
staging;  12/4/03 Got out sleigh carried Frank to Granville Corners to take Stage for home;  12/15/03 got a letter from 
Nellie, Frank has the measles;  12/20/03 Wrote to Frank & Harry in Eve;  12/21/03 Got a letter from Nellie that Frank 
was quite bad off with measles;  1/1/04 Wife came home from Frank's been gone 10 days she caring for him sick with 
measles;  1/24/04 Wrote to Frank in Eve;  4/9/04 Carried 3 pigs to E Granville took Sister Lib went on to Westfield took 
Dinner with Carrie, took Trolley to Holyoke and on to Amherst to Frank's;  4/10/04 Nellie & Lib, Frank, & I went to So 
Amherst to Church;  6/4/04 Frank and Wife & Boy came;  6/5/04 Went to Church, Frank & family went;  6/6/04 Frank 
helped me take the calves on north lot...Carried Frank to Granville to Stage he went home;  7/2/04 Frank came on 
Stage;  7/3/04 Frank & Nellie here we all went to Church;
Ives, Frank Truman [contd]  7/5/04 Nellie and William started for Amherst, Frank stayed...Frank went to Tolland got 
Horse shod;  7/9/04 Frank finished cultivating the Potatoes...Frank carried Cooley to Granville Center;  7/10/04 Frank & 
I went to Church;  7/11/04 Frank cultivated the corn;  7/13/04 Frank & I went to Tolland club house in morning;  7/17/04 
Frank & I went to Church;  7/24/04 Frank & I went to Church also Wife went;  7/25/04 picked huckleberries on north lot 
with Frank;  7/26/04 Frank & I went berrying in afternoon;  8/1/04 Frank & his Mother picked [berries] till it rained;  
8/6/04 the Boys went fishing, opened hay.  Frank helped me get in 3 loads in afternoon;  8/7/04 Frank & I went to 
Church and prayer meeting in Eve.  Miss Augusta Cornwall [?] led the meeting;  8/13/04 Carried Frank to Tolland, in 
morning;  8/19/04 Frank went to Winsted with me, took 2 Lambs to Fancher market took dinner at Deweys;  8/21/04 
Nellie, William, Wife, & I went to Church...Frank not feeling well;  8/27/04 Frank & Nellie came back from Tolland;  
8/28/04 Frank & Wife and I went to Church;  
Ives, Frank Truman [contd]  8/29/04 Frank & family started for Amherst;  10/4/04 Wrote to Frank in Eve;  4/11/05 Got a 
letter from Frank;  4/12/05 put up some cobbler Potatoes to send to Frank;  4/14/05 Sent 13 Bushel Potatoes to Frank 
to Amherst;  6/14/05 Recieved letter from Frank & Wife;  8/1/05 Frank and William came in Stage;  8/2/05 bound the 
rye, Frank helped me;  8/3/05 Went on the north lot with Frank picked a few Huckleberries in forenoon;  8/4/05 Went 
berrying with Frank in afternoon;  8/5/05 Went to Frisbie mill got some shingle and sawdust, Frank went with me;  
8/6/05 Frank, William, and myself attended Church;  8/7/05 Frank and his Mother went to Pat's in the morning spent 
the day;  8/8/05 Frank helped me get in the rye west of House, in the morning.  We went up to Hargers and into north 
woods looked around;  8/9/05 Carried Frank & boy to Westfield, we went to Forest Park bought a Buck Lamb.  Frank 
went home;  8/29/05 Got letters from Carrie & Frank;  2/11/06 Wrote to Frank in Eve;  3/27/06 Wrote to Frank in Eve;  
5/27/06 Wrote to Frank in Eve;  
Ives, Frank Truman [contd]  8/9/06 Wife and I went on north lot picked Huckleberries to send to Frank;  2/26/07 Got 
letter from Frank;  3/23/07 Went to Westfield with team, took Trolley to Amherst.  Stayed with Frank, all night.  Called 
on Loomis Tiffany, Hadley;  3/24/07 Stayed with Frank.  We went to his new home in afternoon, looked around;  
3/25/07 Came home from Amherst by Springfield to Westfield;  3/30/07 Put a feather bed in a Barrel to send to Frank;  
6/21/07 Went to Westfield...Em went with me went up to Frank [in] Amherst;  9/13/07 Frank came about 6 PM drove 
down;  9/14/07 Visited with Frank;  9/15/07 Frank went up with me, we called to Hargers;  9/16/07 Went and looked at 
sheep with Frank.  He got back from Tolland about noon;  9/17/07 Went down to the Church in the morning with Frank, 
he went home;  10/29/07 Got letters from Frank & Carrie;  July 1914  Estate of Emeline O Ives.  Accrued Interest on 
notes since appraisal on F T Ives note $6.25;  July 7, 1914  Paid Frank T Ives $656.25/100 [sic]  from Estate of 
Emeline O Ives.  C W Ives, a'dm;

Ives, Frank Truman [contd]  Aug 14, 1914.  Sent off to Carrie 2 Bonds Bank Book on Mechanics Savings Bank and 
cash to make her $822.13 in all, the same as Frank but not transferred to her at this date C W Ives adm;  Aug 14, 1914  
Sent off to Frank T Ives $165.88 making $822.13  Eight hundred Twenty two 13/100 Dollars from Estate of Emeline O 
Ives.  C W Ives;  Aug 21, 1914 Have taken for my portion a note of $500 against Frank T Ives.   $500 plus 1 Bank Book 
Westfield Sav Bank $310.93 plus cash $11.20 = $822.13  C W Ives adms;  $165.88 due Frank to date C W Ives adm  
Aug 22 sent check for the above C W Ives. over;  Received of Cyrus W Ives Administrator of Emeline O Ives estate 
$113.33 Frank T Ives Amherst Mass July 16, 1915 & Carrie M Cooley Granville Mass July 20, 1915;  
Ives, George  5/29/05 Went to Colebrook River set up a Headstone for Father in the cemetery there.  Wife and Sister 
Lib went with me, called to George Ives a few minutes his wife gone;  
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Ives, Julia Selenda [Sister; "Len"]  3/26/00 funeral of Father at house...buried at Colebrook River.  Frank & Nellie went 
home with Len & Lib;  4/2/00 Len brought Lib over here in the morning;  10/29/00 Len & Lib came over stayed awhile;  
1/13/01 Drove out to Tolland in afternoon to see Len;  2/20/01 Em & I went to see Len in afternoon;  2/23/01 Pat & Len 
called on way to see Lib;  2/24/01 Pat called on way home left Len to care for Lib;  2/27/01 Carried Wife to 
Barkhamsted to Mrs Wheelers to take care of Lib she has Pneumonia, brought Len up with me;  3/3/01 Pat brought 
Len over in morning she went to Church with me...took Len to Mrs Wheelers, brought Em back.  Lib a little better;  
3/10/01 Carried Em to Barkhamsted...Pat went down got Len;  5/16/01 Len came over after Potatoes;  5/21/01 Frank & 
Wife went to Tolland, to Len;  9/15/01 Drove out to Tolland to see Len she is better;  9/18/01 Wife and I went to New 
Boston to Cattle Show, took Len & Lib;  10/20/01 Em & I drove to see Len she is not very well;  10/22/01 Len & Lib 
came over took Dinner;  12/5/01 Frank & Carrie went over to see Len;
Ives, Julia Selenda [Sister; "Len"] [contd]  12/28/01 took Carrie & Boy to Len's.  Went to New Boston got a Bureau at 
Northways;  1/5/02 Went to Len's got Carrie & boy;  4/12/02 Em and I went to Tolland to see Len;  6/12/02 Lib & Len 
came over visited awhile with them;  8/27/02 M Stanard came up Lib sick.  Went over got Len to go back with him;  
9/14/02 Pat and Len came over in the morning, did not stay long...Carried Em to Barkhamsted to care for Lib got back 
at 9 Eve;  12/30/02 Pat and Len came over in the afternoon stayed awhile;  2/24/03 Wife & I went to New Boston to J 
Northway's, he had gone to Winsted took Dinner there called at A Snow & J P Hall's & at Len;  4/28/03 Wife, Carrie & 
Children, & I went to Tolland to visit sisters;  6/26/03 took Em, Lovina B, & Betsy Smith to Tolland took Dinner with Len 
& Lib;  8/16/03 Pat & Len called in Eve they came and brought Lib to Millers;  9/9/03 Em and I went to New Boston to 
the Fair Ruth Nelson rode over with us Len and Lib rode down with us;  10/24/03 Pat & Len came over;  12/25/03 Pat & 
Len called;  2/27/04 Pat & Len came over;
Ives, Julia Selenda [Sister; "Len"] [contd]  4/23/04 Wife & I went to J Northway's New Boston got some of Aunt Electas 
things.  Burton stayed with Len;  4/30/04 Pat & Len came over took Dinner Lib went home with them;  6/19/04 Pat & 
Len came over to Church.  We went to Tolland Church in afternoon, Childrens day;  7/23/04 Pat & Len came over in 
afternoon;  9/12/04 Harry helped me finish digging Potatoes.  We all went to Sister Selenda's [56th] Birthday party in 
afternoon, about 20 present, had a quilting;  11/30/05 Thanksgiving day.  Cut wood awhile down west beside of the 
road.  Pat and Len came along.  We had a Chicken Pie and Indian Pudding for Dinner, we were alone;  1/1/06 Wife & I 
went to Sister J S [Len] Ives took Dinner Major Tucker and Benj Mills of New Boston came took Dinner also;  3/28/06 
Wife & I went to Tolland...Met J Northway & S D Smith at Sisters took Dinner there;  5/24/06 Len called in afternoon;  
11/4/06 Went to Church...Pat, Len, and Major Tucker attended;  1/6/07 Pat & Len came about noon stayed 2 hours;  
4/4/07 Pat & Len called Lib came up in afternoon;  
Ives, Julia Selenda [Sister; "Len"] [contd]  6/9/07 Pat & Len came over to Millers;  6/30/07 Pat & Len came over to 
Church, called a few minutes;  8/11/07 Mr Coolidge preached his farewell Sermon...Pat & Len came to Church, A Frost 
here;  8/27/07 Mrs Deming, Eva Smith, & Len came over took dinner;  
Ives, Lewis [Adelbert's son?]  10/12/01 Lewis Ives called going to Blair Pond;  10/18/01 Lewis Ives called;  
Ives, Lucy [Uncle Abiram's wife]  3/5/00 Aunt Lucy Ives Died Aged 81;  

Ives, Nellie Gage [Frank's wife]  3/24/00 Frank & Nellie came home;  3/26/00 funeral of Father at house...buried at 
Colebrook River.  Frank & Nellie went home with Len & Lib;  3/27/00 Carried Frank & Wife to Granville Center to take 
Stage for home;  4/5/00 Frank & Nellie came;  4/8/00 drove to Tolland to the old place Frank & Wife went too they 
stayed all night;  4/11/00 [Frank] & Wife, Carrie & Cooley went to the ministers to tea;  4/12/00 Frank & Wife went to 
Tolland;  4/20/00 Frank & Wife called to Hargers;  4/22/00 Went to Church...Em & Nellie did not go;  4/23/00 Frank & 
Nellie went out to Tolland in afternoon;  4/24/00 Frank & Wife started for Amherst;  11/28/00 Frank & Nellie came about 
dark;  11/29/00 Thanksgiving day had Chicken Pie & Pudding for Dinner Frank & Nellie here;  12/6/00 Went to Winsted 
with Butter, Frank & Wife, & pig;  12/8/00 Frank & Wife started for home, So Amherst;  5/15/01 drove to Westfield got 
Nellie & her Baby;  5/21/01 Frank & Wife went to Tolland, to Len;  5/22/01 Frank & Wife returned home;
Ives, Nellie Gage [Frank's wife] [contd]  10/4/01 Visited with Frank...Wife & I drove to Mr Atkins in afternoon Nellie & 
Boy went with us;  4/21/03 Started at 8:30 for Westfield got Nellie and the Boy, got back at 4:30;  4/26/03 Frank & 
Nellie, Harry, Will Cooley, & myself went to Church;  4/27/03 Frank & Nellie went to Tolland;  4/29/03 Nellie went in the 
Hollow;  8/25/03 Nellie and Sister came in Eve;  8/26/03 Nellie & Sister went to Tolland;  8/27/03 Nellie & Sister came 
back from Tolland went into the Hollow spent the night here;  12/15/03 got a letter from Nellie, Frank has the measles;  
12/21/03 Got a letter from Nellie that Frank was quite bad off with measles;  4/10/04 Nellie & Lib, Frank & I went to So 
Amherst to Church;  4/11/04 Lib & I came home took Trolley to Holyoke Nellie came with us.  Came to Westfield by 
way of W Springfield took Dinner with Carrie got home about 8;  6/4/04 Frank and Wife & Boy came;  6/12/04 Nellie, 
William, Wife, & I went to Church Children's day, they had Exercises, some over from Tolland.  Nellie & I went to prayer 
meeting in Eve;  6/21/04 Em & Nellie went to Tolland;
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Ives, Nellie Gage [Frank's wife] [contd]  6/23/04 Em & Nellie went to A Hitchcocks in morning;  6/26/04 Mrs Ives, 
William, Nellie, and myself went to Church.  Nellie, William, and myself attended prayer meeting in Eve, I led the 
meeting;  7/1/04 Nellie & William went to Tolland on visit;  7/3/04 Frank & Nellie here we all went to Church;  7/5/04 
Nellie and William started for Amherst, Frank stayed;  8/17/04 Nellie came;  8/21/04 Nellie, William, Wife, & I went to 
Church...Frank not feeling well;  8/27/04 Frank & Nellie came back from Tolland;  8/28/04 Frank & Wife and I went to 
Church;  6/14/05 Recieved letter from Frank & Wife;  11/16/05 Nellie & William came by Stage;  11/19/05 Went to 
Church Nellie went with me.  Wife stayed home with William.  Nellie & I went to prayer meeting in Eve;  11/21/05 Went 
to Millers in the morning we intended to go to Tolland but Nellie sick with hard cold;  11/25/05 Went to Westfield Em 
went with me took Nellie & William they went home to Amherst;  6/20/06 Nellie & William came;
Ives, Nellie Gage [Frank's wife] [contd]  6/24/06 Went to Church Nellie went with me.  Lib, Nellie, & Wife drove to 
Tolland in afternoon.  Nellie and I went to Prayer meeting in Eve;  6/27/06 Em and Nellie went down to Hall cleaned it 
up [after strawberry Social];  6/28/06 Nellie and William took Stage for home;  
Ives, Truman [Father]  1/7/00 Em & I drove out to Fathers in afternoon found them well;  2/8/00 Em & I went to Fathers 
found them well;  2/27/00 Em & I went to Fathers in afternoon found him not feeling very well;  3/4/00 Em & I went out 
to Fathers in afternoon found him comfortable;  3/10/00 attended the funeral of Uncle Abiram Ives...Called to Father, 
about the same;  3/13/00 Em & I went to Fathers she remained;  3/16/00 took 2 wagon wheels to Munn.  Went to 
Fathers found him poorly;  3/18/00 drove out to Fathers found him very low.  Came home and went back stayed all 
night.  Lib came home;  3/19/00 Came home from Fathers drew wood.  Went back to Fathers in eve, stayed all night;  
3/20/00 Stayed with Father all day he is failing Frank & Minnie Deming called;  3/21/00 Father quite poorly drove home 
stayed awhile then went back did not think he would live through the night;  3/22/00 Father very low drove home about 
noon went down to PO.  Went back to Fathers, he failed fast during night;  3/23/00 Father died about 11 AM aged 85 
yrs 8 mos.  Went to New Boston got Manchester to lay him out;
Ives, Truman [Father] [contd]  3/26/00 funeral of Father at house.  Rev S B Andrews preached assisted by Rev Bliss of 

New Boston from words in Job 5th chapter 26th verse ["Thou shalt come to thy grave in a full age, like as a shock of 
corn cometh in in his season."], buried at Colebrook River;  5/26/05 Went to Winsted took 2 Pigs to Theo Wachter, and 
2 Bushel Potatoes.  Got Headstone for Father left it Cemetery Colebrook River;  5/29/05 Went to Colebrook River set 
up a Headstone for Father in the cemetery there.  Wife and Sister Lib went with me, called to George Ives a few 
minutes his wife gone;  
Ives, Truman [son of Uncle Abiram, or brother Adelbert?] 9/24/00 True Ives & son came about noon took Dinner;  
10/8/03 Nephew T Ives and another Chap called got Dinner;  2/25/04 Charles and True Ives and J Weiman [?] here at 
noon with loads of goods for Westfied;  
Ives, William [Frank's son]  5/15/01 drove to Westfield got Nellie & her Baby;  10/4/01 Visited with Frank we picked a 
few apples in forenoon.  Wife & I drove to Mr Atkins in afternoon Nellie & Boy went with us;  4/21/03 Started at 8:30 for 
Westfield got Nellie and the Boy, got back at 4:30;  4/24/03 Went down street took some nails to shingle Hatties House 
the Boys went with me;  6/4/04 Frank and Wife & Boy came;  6/12/04 Nellie, William, Wife, & I went to Church 
Children's day, they had Exercises;  6/26/04 Mrs Ives, William, Nellie, and myself went to Church.  Nellie, William, and 
myself attended prayer meeting in Eve;  7/1/04 Nellie & William went to Tolland on visit;  7/5/04 Nellie and William 
started for Amherst, Frank stayed;  8/21/04 Nellie, William, Wife, & I went to Church...Frank not feeling well;  8/1/05 
Frank and William came in Stage;  8/4/05 Went to Frisbies mill got a load of shingle in forenoon William went with me;  
8/6/05 Frank, William and myself attended Church;  8/9/05 Carried Frank & boy to Westfield, we went to Forest Park 
bought a Buck Lamb.  Frank went home;
Ives, William [Frank's son] [contd]  11/16/05 Nellie & William came by Stage;  11/19/05 Went to Church Nellie went with 
me.  Wife stayed home with William;  11/25/05 Went to Westfield Em went with me took Nellie & William they went 
home to Amherst;  6/20/06 Nellie & William came;  6/28/06 Nellie and William took Stage for home;  6/24/07 Em came 
home William came with her;  7/4/07 took William and Burton to top of Ore Hill in Eve to see the fireworks we got quite 
cool;  7/7/07 Went to Church Burton & William went with me;  7/11/07 Went to Munn got Horse shod, the boys went 
with me;  7/12/07 Went to Winsted, William went with me, took Butter & Eggs;  7/14/07 The boys and I went to Church;  
8/3/07 Went to Westfield with a veal calf, 117 lbs 11 cts.  William my Grandson went with me, he went home to 
Amherst;  

Jackson, Dewey  11/23/00 Went to Southwick with 20 bushel Potatoes for S S Bodurtha took Dinner at D Jacksons;  
6/16/02 Went to Agawam with wool took Dinner at Dewey Jackson's.  Stayed all night with S S Bodurtha;  6/3/03 Went 
to Agawam with wool took dinner at D Jacksons.  Stayed all night with S S Bodurtha;  6/14/04 Went to Agawam with 
wool took Dinner with Dewey Jackson stayed all night with S S Bodurtha got 21 cents for wool.  Carried Welch, Decker, 
Sheets, & Hargers:  365 lbs;  
Jeffrey  5/15/00 Hoys, Carl & Jefrey [sic] came out to fish;  5/12/03 Hays, Carl, & Jeffies [sic] came from Westfield to go 
fishing;  
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Jensen, Peter  1/28/01 Em & I went to Westfield...engaged Oysters of Peter Jenson for Ladies Supper 120 Per Gal;  
Johnson, Abner  1/16/01 Went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs.  Came back by way of the River stopped to Cemetery 
called to Abner Johnson's;  
Johnson, James W  5/22/05 Jas W Johnson & Wife called about noon made out Insurance Policy;  
Johnson, Mrs  4/25/02 Attended the funeral of Mrs Johnson aged 88 yrs;  
Johnson, Mrs Louise  4/26/07 Mrs Louise Johnson & Estelle & Porter Frisbie called in Eve;  
Joice, Mrs  2/5/03 Called on Dr Moore and Albert Breckenridge [in Torrington], took train to Waterbury.  Went to Geo 
White [former husband of the late Jennie Brown] 102 Charles St took Dinner[.]  Went with Mrs White to Bank St called 
on Mrs Joice [?], returned to White stayed all night;  
Jones, Benjamin F  1896 Poll Tax payer;  7/24/00 Mowed the Parsonage lot...B Jones helped me;  11/4/00 B F Jones 
called towards night;  6/10/01 B F Jones called;  7/18/01 got in 3 loads [hay] B F Jones helped me;  7/20/01 got in 4 
loads from orchard & 1 from Granger lot...Ben helped us;  7/21/01 Carrie & Will here.  Ben Jones & Willie went to Mill 
Pond and washed;  7/22/01 Mowed with mower west side of Granger lot.  Ben finished the east side;  7/23/01 Ben 
helped us got in 3 loads [hay];  2/10/02 took flooring to the Parsonage.  B F Jones commenced laying them;  3/13/02 
Went to Winsted...Ben Jones came up with me;  12/18/02 Went to Winsted...B Jones came up with me;  6/29/04 B 
Jones called;  9/18/04 B F Jones & W Eaton called towards night;  10/23/04 B Jones called in afternoon;  12/23/04 Ben 
Jones came put in Register;  1/19/05 B Jones, Lib, Mrs Coolidge, and Ruth Nelson called during the day;  2/28/05 B 
Jones called;  7/4/05 Made some ice cream, Wife & I went to Picnic in B F Jones yard, had a good time, not a great 
many there;

Jones, Benjamin F [contd]  8/16/05 took Hubbard & Eaton down street called on B F Jones, Mr Coolidge.  Hubbard 
called on Snow;  9/17/05 Ben Jones called in afternoon;  11/8/05 B Jones helped me on Well House, he put covering 
on I drew water out and we cleaned it out;  11/11/05 B Jones fixed the stones of Mr & Mrs Smith, Frost, Lawrence 
Smith, & Burts [Cyrus's son Burton];  12/11/05 Went to B Jones got my match planes and called to Millers got some 
meal;  2/20/06 Jones & Eaton called;  3/11/06 B Jones called in Eve;  4/15/06 B Jones called in Eve;  9/30/06 Mrs 
Magranis called towards night & B F Jones;  2/18/07 Mr Coolidge and B F Jones called;  3/4/07 Went to Town meeting 
rode with G Miller he carried Decker, Jones, & Frisbie;  4/15/07 Ben Jones & Son called towards night;  6/27/07 Albert 
Sheets came down we went to Cemetery, we helped B Jones, C H Treat, Mr Coolidge mow it;  9/6/07 Went up to 
Cemetery helped Ben Jones mow the old yard;  12/29/07 B F Jones called;  
Jones, Dr Henry  5/20/06 Dr Henry Jones at Church;  
Jones, William  3/28/07 William Jones called;  
Joseph  7/4/06 Fire works in Eve at Josephs [Josips?];  
Judson  1/11/07 Went to Winsted with Butter and Eggs.  Eggs 35 cts retail, got some powders of Judson for Molly cow;  
11/4/07 Went to Winsted...Horse taken lame had Dr Judson see him, called it rheumatism;  11/5/07 Horse better got 
some Powders of Judson came home;  

Kate [cow?]  9/6/01 Sold Kate to E T Haynes Springfield $40;  
Kearney, Robert  7/13/00 Mowed awhile for Kearney;  7/14/00 Mowed awhile for Kearney;  7/23/00 Mowed with 
machine...for Kearney in afternoon;  7/12/01 Mowed Kearney north lot for him;  7/16/01 Mowed a piece for Kearney on 
corner So of road;  7/24/01 Mowed for Harger with machine in the forenoon and for Kearney in afternoon;  7/30/01 
Mowed awhile for Kearney;  
Kebbe, Rev  4/16/03 attended meeting Rev Kebbe [?] spoke;  
Keep, E A  12/8/00 Went to PO in eve, saw E A Keep;  
Keep, William A  5/6/03 Wm Keep came got a Pig;  11/20/03 Wm Keep came got a Pig $3.00;  3/25/04 Went with 
sleigh to Keep's got his wagon;  8/4/06 W A Keep called just at night;  
Kemp  6/9/04 Kemp & Newton from Springfield came in Eve to go fishing stayed all night;  6/10/04 Kemp & Newton 
stayed all night;  6/11/04 Kemp & Newton left;  
Kent, Charles  4/5/00 Chas Kent from New Britain passing with a Dog killed a Lamb.  Went to Welch's to see him, 
gone;  
Kilbrox, Rev  11/10/01 Rev Kilbrox [?] preached Text John 10th chapter 10th & 11th verses ["The thief cometh not, but for 
to steal...I am the good shepherd:  the good shepherd giveth his life for the sheep."].  Harry carried the minister to 
Tolland;  

Kit [cow]  5/4/00 Harry took Den & Kit to Marganis to Pasture;  [memoranda] Took Kit to Harger to Pasture May 31, Got 
her Home Aug 7;  1903 Memoranda Turned Kit Nov 30;  11/29/04 Kit calved;  1904 Memoranda Took Kit to Nelsons 
Feb 23.  Due Nov 23, 1904;  12/11/05 Cow Kit calved;  1906 Memoranda Kitt Due April 5, 1907;  4/16/07 Kit calved;  
1908 [?] Memoranda Turned Kit to Magranis July 28, Sept 17 & Oct 27.  Due July 27;  
Knox, Burt  1903 Memoranda Burt Knox Dr  To 1 Pig  $2.75;  Apr 7th by cash $2.50;  
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Latham  6/27/00 Went to Latham place got out Mower & Rake;  7/27/00 Mowed a piece for Geo Treat on Latham 
place;  2/28/01 got the wagon from the Latham place;  2/26/02 called at Parsonage, on Mr Bates.  Went to the Latham 
place, called at Mr Nelson's;  2/3/03 Got a load of Hay from the Latham Barn & 1 from Brodrib's;  12/11/03 took 2 
wagons to Latham place put them under shed;  4/2/04 took Sleigh to Fenn place got the buggy home from Latham 
place;  2/13/05 Decker started for Winsted about 6, with my Butter & Eggs, got home about 8 left sleigh near Latham 
place, roads all full of snow, had a hard day;  
Lee, Henry  1/1/00 H Lee called;  10/13/00 Henry Lee plowed turf for me;  
Legette, Charles  3/31/02 had sick cow, rode to Millers with Lygette.  Henry came up we gave a dose;  10/8/02 Chas 
Legette called;  
Leipsitz  8/31/06 Magranis and Leipsitz called, in morning;  
Lockwood, A L  1905 Memoranda A L Lockwood 58 Harrison Ave Springfield Mass Cutler;  
Lygette  4/7/05 Ly Gette went past with a load of calves;  2/25/07 Went to Winsted with Eggs Butter and apples.  Came 
back through the Hollow, found Ly Gette boy 2 Horses & 6 calves here, got stalled;  2/26/07 Got road so Ly Gette got 
away, helped shovel snow on main and south road, very badly drifted;  

MacDonald, James  11/5/02 J MacDonald came after 5 Pigs for Arnold;  12/6/03 Carried W Cooley to Twining Hollow 
going home to Westfield, James McDonald was going to carry him to Mundale;  
Magranis, Burt  2/12/00 packed the rest of Magranis shingle;  2/13/00 sawed for Magranis & Chapman;  2/14/00 sawed 
for Magranis & Chapman.  Magranis & Frank came to the mill;  2/16/00 Sawed a little for Magranis;  4/13/00 Frank & I 
went to the mill sawed for Magranis;  4/16/00 Magranis & Son came up in the afternoon drew out lumber;  4/19/00 
Sawed for Magranis;  5/4/00 Harry took Den & Kit to Marganis to Pasture;  5/22/00 sawed for Decker and Magranis, 
Pine;  8/12/00 Cooley & Carrie drove to Magranis awhile;  9/1/00 Went to the mill with Marganis got 33 feet Bass 
boards of E Moore;  11/27/00 sawed for Magranis;  11/28/00 Sawed for Magranis & Decker;  3/4/01 Went to Welch in 
morning got a discharge paper made out for Magranis;  3/5/01 Magranis called;  3/8/01 Magranis called made his last 
payment on his note;  4/13/01 took Carrie to Westfied Will went with Magranis;  4/27/01 Burt Magranis got in his logs;  
4/29/01 split up some of Burt Magranis logs into shingle blocks;  4/30/01 Sawed shingle for Burt Magranis;  5/1/01 
finished splitting B Magranis logs;  5/2/01 Sawed shingle for Burt Magranis;
Magranis, Burt [contd]  5/3/01 finished sawing Magranis shingle in the morning;  5/27/01 sawed a pair of sled runners 
for B Magranis;  6/3/01 sawed some timber for a Bridge and a few shingle for Magranis;  7/31/01 Harry worked for B 
Magranis;  8/2/01 Carrie went to B Marganis spent the day;  8/12/01 Harry worked for Magranis;  10/1/01 Harry worked 
for Burt Magranis;  11/22/01 Went to mill got 2 loads Bark took one top of hill near Magranis;  11/27/01 Cooley went to 
Magranis spent the day;  12/20/01 drew a load of Bark near to Magranis;  2/1/02 Harry & Will & Burt Magranis went 
hunting shot a fox, on Chestnut Hill;  2/6/02 Carrie went to Magranis;  4/14/02 Burt Magranis and his Father called to do 
some Fund business;  4/25/02 Went to G Millers got Magranis Harrow;  5/21/02 Harry worked for Magranis;  5/22/02 
Harry worked for Marganis;  5/24/02 Went to Magranis woods peeled some Hemlock logs;  5/29/02 helped Burt 
Magranis about plastering academy;  6/2/02 Harry & I went to Burt Magranis planted Potatoes;  6/24/02 Went to 
Magranis peeled some Hemlock logs for him;
Magranis, Burt [contd]  9/7/02 B Magranis & Wife called in afternoon;  11/4/02 I went to Election with Magranis;  12/8/02 
Went to Magranis got out some Bark;  1/27/03 Went to Magranis place got some wagon wheels took them to Munn;  
3/17/03 Painted a set of wagon wheels for the Burt Magranis wagon;  4/2/03 Painted the body to the Magranis 
wagon...Carrie & Children went to Magranis;  4/4/03 Painted the body to Magranis wagon;  10/6/03 Set shoe on 
Magranis Horse;  10/9/03 Magranis came up in morning;  11/17/03 rode to store with Magranis in morning called to 
Millers;  2/9/04 Magranis and Wife came up in afternoon;  2/23/04 took Carrie and Children to Magranis, for the day;  
3/13/04 Jim McDonald & boy called going to Magranis;  4/8/04 Harry helped about chores, and worked for Magranis;  
10/5/04 Carrie went to Magranis.  I took Dinner there;  12/17/04 Wife & I went to Magranis in Eve;  12/20/04 Went to 
Magranis after some grain Hanover was to leave there did not find it;  12/24/04 Went to Magranis got 3 Bags grain;  
4/24/05 took Carrie and children to Magranis for the day;
Magranis, Burt [contd]  5/12/05 Went to Magranis up to Hodges over across to Brunk's with cow Nell, did not find a Bull; 
6/7/05 took cow Nell to Magranis;  6/25/05 Went to Magranis with a cow in Eve;  8/28/05 Magranis called;  10/19/05 
Magranis came up got 2 Pigs;  3/24/06 Went through the Hollow found good sleighing from Barnes, came back through 
So W Street, hard getting through from School House to Magranis;  4/17/06 Magranis called paid Interest money;  
8/17/06 drove to Rivers south part Tolland...Wife went to Magranis;  8/31/06 Magranis and Leipsitz called in 
morning...Went to Tolland with Magranis in afternoon;  9/13/06 drove to Magranis, to Mr Coolidge had him Telephone 
to Mercy Hospital Springfield to send ambulance after Burton.  Mr Magranis took Carrie to Springfield.  The ambulance 
took Burton;  9/14/06 Magranis called in Eve, said Burton and Carrie got to Springfield all right;  10/7/06 Will & Carrie 
went to Magranis just at night.  Harry went after them in Eve;  12/22/06 Carrie & Children went to Magranis;  1/10/07 
Magranis called;
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Magranis, Burt [contd]  2/16/07 Took a load apples and Potatoes to Winsted.  Road had not been broke out south of 
Magranis I turned over had hard time getting through;  4/22/07 Magranis called;  6/13/07 Magranis called paid the 
Society note;  9/28/07 Went to Mr Magranis with Wife & Burton;  12/4/07 Magranis called;  1908 [?] Memoranda Turned 
Kit to Magranis July 28, Sept 17 & Oct 27.  Due July 27;  

Magranis, C W  10/13/02 Went to Mrs E A Magranis and appraised the property there with G M Miller & C W Magranis; 

Magranis, Mrs C W  3/23/01 Mrs Magranis called in afternoon;  1/13/02 Went down got Mrs C W Magranis to come up 
and see Carrie's Baby, not well;  4/26/03 Mrs Magranis & Ellen called a little while after Church;  2/9/04 Magranis and 
Wife came up in afternoon;  1/9/06 Mrs Magranis called;  9/30/06 Mrs Magranis called towards night;  
Magranis, Charles  8/5/01 Harry worked for Chas Magranis;  
Magranis, E A  11/3/01 Drove to E A Magranis in eve;  8/10/02 Attended the funeral of E A Magranis at the House a 
good many out;  10/13/02 Went to Mrs E A Magranis and appraised the property there with G M Miller & C W Magranis 
[memoranda] E A Magranis Estate of Dr  $15.12  Billed  Paid;  10/25/02 Went to Auction of E A Magranis Estate.  
Bought a Business Wagon and some other things;  
Magranis, E H [Seems to be the same person as E A Magranis]  9/22/01 Wife & I drove to E H Magranis in Eve.  E 
Ransom and wife there;  8/8/02 E H Magranis died last night;  
Magranis, Ellen  4/26/03 Mrs Magranis & Ellen called a little while after Church;  
Magranis, Frank  1/14/00 Magranis & Frank came to the mill;  4/18/00 Frank Magranis & C Cooley drew out lumber & 
got in logs;  5/6/00 E A & Frank Marganis & Wm J Cooley united with the Church;  6/9/00 Frank Magranis dragged 
some turf in afternoon;  8/10/01 Cooley & Harry, Mr Clum [?], & F Magranis went to Otis fishing;  1/30/02 Frank 
Magranis, Will, & Harry went to the Hall Pond fishing;  1/26/03 Wm Cooley and Frank Magranis went to the Hall Pond 
fishing;  2/13/06 J McDonald & Frank Magranis called in Eve;  

Manchester  3/23/00 Father died about 11 AM aged 85 yrs 8 mos.  Went to New Boston got Manchester to lay him out; 
Manser, M M  7/12/01 Mr Curtis called also M M Manser;  
Marble, Mr  7/25/03 Butchered a sheep Mr Marble from [Tolland, Tunxis?] Club House came after it and Jar of Butter in 
Eve;  
Maria [cow]  1907 Memoranda Turned Maria Dec 13  Due Sept 13, 1908;  
Marsh  4/11/03 Harry came home in Eve, he is working for Marsh marking lumber;  
Marshall  1/2/00 Went to Westfield carried a hog to Marshall & Denslow;  
Marshall  2/22/03 Marshall died;  
Marshall, Harry H  5/20/01 Harry Marshall came got 4 Pigs $3.50 each;  5/30/01 sawed 2 Spruce logs for Harry 
Marshall;  10/31/01 Harry Marshall came and got 9 Pigs;  11/9/01 carried some Pigs to H H Marshall.  Carrie went to 
Slocums with me;  
Marshall, Milo  9/30/02 Went to Tolland paid taxes called to Milo Marshalls & E Slocum;  11/28/02 Harry went to Milo 
Marshall's to Social in Eve;  9/10/03 Went to Milo Marshall in Eve sold him 10 Pigs;  

May [cow]  [memoranda] Cow May was there [Harger's] 4 weeks Took calf there May 1;  [memoranda] Turned May 

Aug 26;  [Turned May] Oct 12;  1903 Memoranda Turned May Sept 11th;  25th;  6/25/04 The cow May calved;  1904 
Memoranda cow May due June 25, 1904;  9/17/05 Got May Jr turned her in Granger lot;  1905 Memoranda Turned 
May to Millers Nov 20;  8/28/06 Albert Sheets...helped me find May she had a calf;  1906 Memoranda May Due Aug 20, 
1906;  8/17/07 Went on north lot to see cow May;  8/25/07 looked for cow, May, did not find her;  8/26/07 went on north 
lot looked for cow May found her on Brunks meadow, drove her home;  1909 [?] Turned May Nov 19;  
May Jr [cow]  9/17/05 Got May Jr turned her in Granger lot;  1906 Memoranda May Jr Nov 16;  
McArthur, Mrs  5/26/01 S C Downs and Wife & Mrs McArthur attended Church;  
McDonald, James  5/28/00 J McDonald came after Potatoes;  9/8/00 Went to J McDonald's got carriage;  5/28/01 Jim 
McDonald got some seed Potatoes;  9/17/01 J McDonald called;  3/13/04 Jim McDonald & boy called going to 
Magranis;  2/13/06 J McDonald & Frank Magranis called in Eve;  
Merrick, L  1903 Memoranda Paid Merrick L Co for shingle for Hattie Smith House $21.00;  Paid Joseph Welch $4.00;  
Nails $1.30;  Roof Boards $3.50;  total = $29.80;  plus Miller for Drawing Hanover for Shingle $12.00; tota = $41.80;  
Recieved of rent $32.50;  
Merrill, Miss Susan  6/16/01 Miss Susan Merrill led the [prayer] meeting;  
Metcalf, Fannie  May 22, 1897 Estate of Georgia Hotch[kiss] Received of Winsted Savings Bank $100.  Paid E M 
Northrop $35.00; Alice Catlin $18.58 [?]; C D Sweet $18.00; Fannie Metcalf $3.00; J E Pine $12.00; Mary E Acker 
$8.14;  
Millard, Leroy  6/13/05 L Millard came sold him Gray cow & calf $45;  6/14/05 took Gray cow & calf to C Osborne's W 
Hartland for Leroy Millard;  
Miller  8/6/01 Harry & Miller Boys went to Otis;  
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Miller, Franklin  1/4/02 Franklin Miller and Sherman Decker called on an errand;  2/9/02 Went to G M Miller just at night 
helped him about chores some.  Milo & Franklin down with measles;  3/22/04 Franklin Miller came up;  1/27/05 Franklin 
Miller came got ice tongs;  1/29/05 I went to Church Miller and Franklin rode down with me;  1/31/05 Franklin Miller & 
Nelson Harger called;  
Miller, Gilbert M  1897 Paid by Town of Granville G Miller $2.20;  1/5/00 called to G Miller paid him some money from 
Fund;  1/15/00 G Miller came settled with him;  2/7/00 got 5 gls Oil at Millers;  2/16/00 Went down to G M Millers in eve; 
2/19/00 called to G Miller's;  3/3/00 Went to PO & called to G Millers in the evening;  5/21/00 G Miller drew some logs 
broke his wagon wheel;  5/22/00 Sawed a little for Miller;  7/4/00 got Millers drag;  7/23/00 Went to G Millers & G Treats 
in evening;  10/19/00 Mrs G M Miller Died 11 PM aged 46 yrs;  10/21/00 Called at Mr Millers in morning...funeral of Mrs 
G M Miller at 2 PM;  11/1/00 picked up some apples on G Millers took them to H Peebles mill for Cider;  11/2/00 Went 
to Millers in eve;  11/27/00 G Miller drew 2 loads Chestnut logs for bridge;  11/28/00 Sawed...some plank for Miller for a 
bridge;  11/29/00 sawed a little for Miller Thanksgiving day;  12/12/00 took old sow to G Millers;  12/17/00 Went to 
Millers with young sow;  2/18/01 Went to PO in eve, called to Millers;  2/25/01 Called to...G Miller;  3/4/01 went to 
Millers in eve;  4/4/01 went to Millers he came up castrated Lambs;
Miller, Gilbert M [contd]  5/13/01 sawed for G Miller fence boards and Posts;  5/14/01 Sawed for G Miller;  6/1/01 G M 
Miller drew some logs to mill;  6/8/01 Went to PO in evening called at G Miller;  6/10/01 Went to PO in evening called at 
G Millers;  7/4/01 Went to G Millers got his wool, packed and loaded it;  10/16/01 Went to G Millers in eve;  10/29/01 
Went to G Miller in eve;  11/24/01 Went to Church G Miller Wm Chapman & myself comprised the congregation;  
11/30/01 Frank & I went to G Miller got some sled pins;  12/4/01 Harry & Frank went to G Millers in eve;  1/1/02 Called 
at G Miller, G Treat, Store, Linus Barnes, took Dinner with S W Decker;  2/3/02 Went to G Miller got a saw.  Will & 
Harry & I went on mill pond cut Ice awhile 22 inches;  2/7/02 Went to G Miller got a Can of K Oil;  2/9/02 Went to G M 
Miller just at night helped him about chores some.  Milo & Franklin down with measles;  2/28/02 Called to G Millers and 
at Mr Bates.  Went down south road to see if could get through with team;  3/6/02 Went to Millers in eve;  4/7/02 foot is 
getting better.  G M Miller called;
Miller, Gilbert M [contd]  4/25/02 Went to G Millers got Magranis Harrow;  5/15/02 Harry & I planted Potatoes for G 
Miller in afternoon in orchard;  5/27/02 Harry & I, G Miller & Milo went to academy tore off plaster in afternoon;  5/31/02 
G Miller & I went to the Church blocked up some of the timbers underside in the forenoon;  6/13/02 Went to the 
academy helped Miller clear out the upper room...Harry & Miller Boys went to Otis;  6/21/02 Miller, Decker, Harry, & I 
went to the Academy, cleaned the upper room.  Miller plastered a little;  8/18/02 Went to G Millers in Eve;  9/10/02 
Went to Blandford Fair rode up with G Miller;  9/30/02 Harry & I with G Miller & Milo worked on platform between 
Church and academy in afternoon;  10/1/02 Mr Miller & Milo, Harry & I worked at building platforms at the Church & 
Academy;  10/4/02 Went to Millers got can Oil in Eve;  10/7/02 Harry worked for Miller picking apples;  10/13/02 Went 
to Mrs E A Magranis and appraised the property there with G M Miller & C W Magranis;  10/24/02 Decker & Family, 
Miller, & Rev Bates here in Eve;  11/12/02 Harry & I picked up a load of Cider apples on G Millers;

Miller, Gilbert M [contd]  12/16/02 went to Welchs store called at G Treats, G Miller;  12/17/02 G Miller brought Rye 
back;  12/19/02 Went to G Millers to Social;  1/19/03 Went to G Miller's in Eve, Mr Bates was there;  2/16/03 Went to G 
Millers in Eve;  2/19/03 Went to G Millers in the morning;  2/21/03 called to G Millers;  2/28/03 went to Millers and down 
to store called at Mr Bates;  3/4/03 drove to Sheets, down to Millers got can Oil;  3/6/03 Attended prayer meeting at 
Millers;  3/23/03 Went in afternoon to G Millers, G Treats, Store, & Harrington.  Bridge at Valley brook down;  3/31/03 
Went to Millers in morning;  5/11/03 Miller came up & plowed in Hog lot;  5/13/03 Miller came up plowed awhile;  
5/23/03 Harry sheared Miller sheep;  5/26/03 Butchered a Hog in afternoon G Miller & G Chaffee helped;  6/8/03 G 
Miller came up in afternoon;  7/13/03 Got Millers rake and raked north of House;  8/16/03 Pat & Len called in Eve they 
came and brought Lib to Millers;  9/1/03 Went to Hargers in morning and to Millers...Went to Millers in Eve;
Miller, Gilbert M [contd]  9/2/03 Went to Frosts about 10, raked up some hay.  G Miller & Milo came down in afternoon 
got in 4 loads;  9/4/03 Went to A Frost's mowed some with machine G Miller worked;  9/6/03 Worked for A Frost on his 
upper lot.  G Chaffee worked there, [&] G Miller;  9/9/03 Em and I went to New Boston to the Fair Ruth Nelson rode 
over with us Len and Lib rode down with [sic].  Lib came back to Millers with us;  9/10/03 Miller came up in morning;  
9/26/03 Went to store in Eve, Em went to Millers we spent the Eve;  9/28/03 Went to G Millers in Eve;  10/4/03 Rev 
Underwood preached an Excellent Sermon.  Miller carried him to Tolland;  10/13/03 Went to J Hunts in Eve and to 
Millers;  10/16/03 Attended prayer meeting at G Millers;  10/31/03 Went to Deckers got Miller drag sowed some rye and 
dragged it in;  11/1/03 Em went to Tolland with Lib & G Miller;  11/2/03 Went to G Miller in Eve;  11/17/03 rode to store 
with Magranis in morning called to Millers;  11/18/03 Went to Holcomb Bros with cider apples, brought back a Barrel of 
cider for G Miller;  
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Miller, Gilbert M [contd]  12/11/03 Attended prayer meeting at G Miller's in Eve;  12/27/03 took Dinner with G Miller;  
12/31/03 G Miller came up in Eve;  1903 Memoranda Paid Merrick L Co for shingle for Hattie Smith House $21.00;  

Paid...Miller for Drawing Hanover for Shingle $12.00;  Wool 171/2 cts Sold at 19 cts;  Bought of Newton 89 [=$]15.05 

[calc=$15.575];  Stanard 411/2 [=$]7.25 [calc = $7.2625];  Brunk 61/2 [=$]1.13 [calc=$1.1375];  Miller 47 = [$]8.90 [calc = 
$8.225];  A Frost 19 $3.61 [calc = $3.325];  [sum =]201 [calc = 203];  Amount Wool 343;  1/5/04 Em went to Millers;  
1/7/04 took Millers Sleigh home;  1/11/04 drove to Geo Treats, called G Miller's, in forenoon heat water butchered an 
old sow.  G Miller, C Andrews, & G Chaffee helped;  1/27/04 Went to Millers got some Oil;  1/29/04 Went to Millers got 
a can of Oil, Carrie and Children rode down;  2/8/04 Went to Millers got some Horse nails shod the Horse;  2/10/04 
went to Miller in Eve;  2/28/04 Called on G Miller found him better;  2/29/04 Went to G Miller's in Eve;  3/7/04 Carried 
Em to Millers in afternoon to stay with Lib;  3/18/04 Went to Millers got can oil;
Miller, Gilbert M [contd]  3/23/04 Em went to Millers spent the afternoon;  4/1/04 Em & I went to Millers in Sleigh got 2 
bags grain;  4/16/04 Went to Millers in Sleigh got some meal;  4/22/04 Called on G Miller sick with Grippe;  4/27/04 
Went to G Miller's just at night;  6/7/04 Got G Millers drag, dragged the garden;  6/28/04 Went to Millers in Eve [took 
cow Molly];  8/16/04 Mowed awhile in south lot, got Miller to finish it;  8/17/04 Miller mowed the corner lot on Fenn;  
9/4/04 Went to Prayer meeting in Eve, G Miller led;  9/7/04 Em & I went to G Millers in Eve;  9/24/04 Went to Miller got 
drag & Fanning mill;  10/3/04 Went to G Millers in Eve;  10/19/04 Went to Millers got some ice;  11/3/04 Went to Millers 
got a Barrel of apples;  12/8/04 packed a Barrel of apples sent to Harry G Miller took them to Westfield;  1/2/05 took 
Belle to Millers;  1/3/05 Went to the Hall to Library meeting F A Robinson, C D Treat, G Miller, and myself there;  1/7/05 
Went to G M Millers just at night;  1/11/05 G Miller came up in morning;  1/16/05 drove to G Millers in morning got a can 
of Oil Em rode down with me;
Miller, Gilbert M [contd]  1/23/05 G Miller came up in morning got Saw and Ice tongs helped him shovel out cross road.  
Went with him to Parsons Pond got a load of Ice;  1/29/05 went to Church Miller and Franklin rode down with me;  
1/31/05 went to Millers with cow Doll;  2/14/05 G Miller and Lib started for Tolland roads bad they stopped here Miller 
plowed out the road helped Decker get sleigh home;  2/16/05 Miller & Frisbie drew 2 loads Ice each from Parsons Pond 
in afternoon;  2/17/05 Miller & Frisbie drew 4 loads Ice each from Parsons Pond;  2/27/05 Went down street got some 
grain at Rosies [Rasier?] went to store, called at G Miller's;  3/1/05 Em spent the afternoon with Lib at G Millers;  
3/12/05 Walked to Church called to Millers when came home;  3/14/05 Em went to Sheets in forenoon and to Millers in 
afternoon;  3/15/05 Went to Millers in Eve;  3/18/05 Went...to G Millers got a bag meal;  3/25/05 Went to Millers in 
forenoon;  4/12/05 took Carrie to PO left her and children to G Millers;  4/24/05 Miller called in afternoon;  4/28/05 

Decker came over got 1/2 Bush Potatoes 3 Bags Fertilizer at Millers;
Miller, Gilbert M [contd]  5/8/05 Went to Booths on Williams Hill got Millers Sow in forenoon;  7/3/05 Went down and 
shingled Millers and my Horse sheds at the Church;  7/16/05 Harry went to Westfield with the team he came out with 
last night, came back on Wheel to Millers;  10/14/05 Went to G Millers to S Deckers & to store in the Eve;  10/16/05 
Wife & I went to G Millers in Eve;  11/2/05 Went to Millers got some grain that he brought out from Westfield for me;  
11/4/05 Went to Nelson got a scalding tub to Millers got Pulleys Butchered Pig;  11/9/05 Went to G Millers got some 
Ice, and to Hargers got a cider Barrel;  11/20/05 Went to Millers with cow;  11/21/05 Went to Millers in the morning we 
intended to go to Tolland but Nellie sick;  11/24/05 Got a can of oil at Millers;  12/2/05 took a heifer to Millers in 
afternoon;  12/11/05 Went to B Jones got my match planes and called to Millers got some meal;  12/18/05 Went to G 
Millers in Eve;  1905 Memoranda Turned Granny to Millers Nov 19 due Aug 19, 1906.  Turned May to Millers Nov 20.  
Turned Red Heifer Dec 2;  1/4/06 Went to G Millers in Eve;

Miller, Gilbert M [contd]  1/19/06 took Doll to Millers;  1/22/06 Went to Millers in the morning;  1/26/06 Em went to 
Millers in afternoon;  1/27/06 Went to Millers we went up on cross road cut some pole wood to take to Church;  2/9/06 
drove to old sawmill and to Millers with sled and log behind;  2/12/06 Got a can of Kerosene at Millers;  2/26/06 Went to 

Millers in Eve;  3/1/06 Went to Millers in Eve;  3/20/06 H Miller came up helped me butcher a 2 yr old Heifer took 1/2 to 

Miller 1/4 to Decker;  3/21/06 Sheets, Miller, C H Treat, and Rev H A Coolidge called in Eve talked over Cemetery 
Corporation;  3/22/06 G Miller & Henry sawed wood for me at old mill yard in forenoon with Engine;  3/31/06 Went to 
Millers in morning and to John Swansons [Swensons?] got a little calf;  4/12/06 Went to the Hall helped Em, Lib, & G 
Miller clean up after sugar Eaters;  4/14/06 Went with G Miller to Tolland looked at timber on Society lot;
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Miller, Gilbert M [contd]  4/28/06 Butchered the cow Doll, G Miller helped me.  Weighed 384 without Hide or tallow.  
Miller had 1/2 Frisbie a quarter;  5/14/06 Went to G Millers in morning, to Nelsons got scalding tub butchered the old 
Sow Miller & Sheets helped me;  5/16/06 Got Millers drag, dragged over Potato piece;  15/24/06 helped Millers folks 
load a planer that they tipped over, west down the Hill;  7/2/06 G Miller helped me shingle Horse sheds at Church;  
7/6/06 Gave Hog dose salts in morning Miller helped me;  7/21/06 went to Millers got can oil;  7/30/06 Settled with Geo 
Treat for haying settled with Miller;  8/14/06 Raked and bound rye for G M Miller 6 hours;  8/15/06 helped Miller get in 
his rye in the morning...helped Miller on Hayes place, get in hay;  8/22/06 repaired mailbox that Millers Bull tore down;  
8/30/06 Got G Miller to help me take Pump out at the Barn;  9/1/06 Got G Miller to help me put Pump into the well;  
9/3/06 Went to Millers with cow;  9/25/06 got can oil at Millers;  10/10/06 Went to G Millers in afternoon got some Ice;  
10/16/06 Went to Prayer meeting at G Millers in Eve;
Miller, Gilbert M [contd]  11/16/06 Got sleigh out, drove to Millers;  12/8/06 drove to Millers got Oil and meal;  12/19/06 
went to Prayer meeting at G Millers in Eve;  1906 Memoranda G M Miller Dr  To 471, 1/2 inch Boards for shingle for 
Horse sheds at the Church.  Nails 25 cts Paid;  1906 Memoranda Aug 13 took Nell to Millers and Sept 26;  1906 taxes 
Gilbert Miller, $69.80;  1/6/07 G Miller called;  1/18/07 G Miller called in afternoon;  1/19/07 went to G Millers in 
afternoon;  2/8/07 Miller drew Ice for me;  2/13/07 Miller carried load to Gibbons Hall to caucus.  Sheets Decker Frisbie 
Treat & I went with him;  2/18/07 Went to G M Millers in Eve;  2/20/07 Went to Church in afternoon helped Miller put up 
stovepipe;  2/27/07 Miller called in Eve;  2/28/07 Went to the Church helped get Pews up into Gallery.  Miller & Albert 
helped;  3/2/07 Got can Oil to Millers;  3/4/07 Went to Town meeting rode with G Miller he carried Decker, Jones, & 
Frisbie;  3/13/07 Went to Library meeting with Miller in afternoon;  3/14/07 Miller came up got a little rye Bran;  3/20/07 
Went to Millers in morning;  3/31/07 Went to Millers in afternoon;
Miller, Gilbert M [contd]  4/1/07 Went with Miller to the Church to see about repairs;  4/20/07 Went to Millers and Frisbie 
mill;  4/29/07 Went to PO in Eve called to Millers;  5/2/07 Miller called, Lib came up in Eve, with some Butter;  5/9/07 G 
Miller & Milo plowed for me;  5/14/07 Got Millers drag;  5/17/07 Went to Winsted with Butter and Eggs, took 87 lbs 
Butter 20 of it Millers;  5/23/07 Went to Miller, Em went too took Dinner there;  5/31/07 G Miller came up helped milk;  
6/5/07 Went to Millers just at night;  6/6/07 Went to G Millers in the morning to see Lib she is sick;  6/9/07 Pat & Len 
came over to Millers;  7/8/07 Miller Teddered a piece for me;  7/11/07 Went to Millers;  8/8/07 Went to Millers in Eve;  
8/18/07 Gilbert & Lib called Em rode to Sheets and around to Deckers with them;  8/31/07 Miller called;  9/3/07 Miller 
came up, went down there got some grain;  10/2/07 Went to Millers in the morning got some Ice;  10/7/07 Went to 
Millers got some ice;  10/17/07 Went to Millers got some ice;  11/1/07 Got some ice at G Millers;  11/6/07 G Miller came 
up paid him for his Butter;
Miller, Gilbert M [contd]  11/11/07 Got 3 bags cotton seed at Millers;  11/12/07 Went to Winsted...bought 2 Barred Rock 
roosters of Wilson for G Miller;  11/20/07 Miller came up;  11/26/07 went to Millers and Welch store got K Oil;  12/11/07 
Went to Millers in morning got some ice;  12/18/07 Went to Millers got bag Bran & 1 of cotton seed...Went to Millers in 
Eve to Prayer meeting;  12/21/07 went to Millers got some grain;  12/30/07 went to Millers;  1908 Memoranda Turned 
Kit to Millers Bull Oct 23;  
Miller, Mrs Gilbert M  10/19/00 Mrs G M Miller Died 11 PM aged 46 yrs;  10/21/00 funeral of Mrs G M Miller at 2 PM, 
Rev Sutherland preached the sermon;  

Miller, Henry  2/26/02 Will, Harry, & Henry Miller went after Coons;  3/31/02 had sick cow, rode to Millers with Lygette.  
Henry came up we gave a dose;  4/22/03 got Henry Miller to help me load the young sow took her to E W Bronson's left
her;  3/13/06 Henry Miller sawed my wood pile with Gasoline Engine Charlie Chapman helped us;  3/19/06 H Miller 
drew his sawing outfit to mill yard sawed some wood;  3/20/06 H Miller came up helped me butcher a 2 yr old Heifer 

took 1/2 to Miller 1/4 to Decker;  3/22/06 G Miller & Henry sawed wood for me at old mill yard in forenoon with Engine;  
Miller, M B  11/13/05 M B Miller came up got scalding tub, and carried my Sow to Booths W Hartland Ct;  
Miller, M C  July 1914  Estate of Emeline O Ives.  Accrued Interest on notes since appraisal on F T Ives note $6.25;  M 
C Miller $11.35;  
Miller, Milo  5/21/00 Milo helped me [in mill] in afternoon;  5/22/00 Milo helped me [saw];  2/9/02 Went to G M Miller just 
at night helped him about chores some.  Milo & Franklin down with measles;  5/27/02 Harry & I, G Miller & Milo went to 
academy tore off plaster in afternoon;  9/30/02 Harry & I with G Miller & Milo worked on platform between Church and 
academy in afternoon;  10/1/02 Mr Miller & Milo, Harry & I worked at building platforms at the Church & Academy;  
8/17/03 Milo Miller helped us in afternoon, the last of the Haying;  9/2/03 Went to Frosts about 10, raked up some hay.  
G Miller & Milo came down in afternoon got in 4 loads;  12/25/03 Milo Miller came up to have me go down to Dinner 
[Em at Frank's, he bad with measles] did not go;  2/10/04 Milo came with a load of Fertilizer in morning;  2/15/05 
Decker doing my chores, he and Milo Miller shoveled snow on cross road north of School House;  2/16/05 Decker...and 
Millers folks finished breaking the cross road, in forenoon;  4/28/05 Milo plowed turf awhile;  5/1/05 Milo Miller drew a 
load of Fertilizer;  5/6/05 Milo brought Sow home for me;
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Miller, Milo [contd]  11/20/05 Milo came up with team we carted dirt into barn yard;  10/14/06 Harry started for Glens 
Falls, Milo carried him to Westfield;  11/5/06 Milo Miller plowed for me;  3/21/07 John Perkins of Blandford cut wood 
with his Gasoline Engine Milo, Chan, and Albert helped;  4/10/07 Milo took 3 Barrels of apples to Winsted for me;  
5/9/07 G Miller & Milo plowed for me;  
Mills, Benjamin  1/1/06 Wife & I went to Sister J S [Len] Ives took Dinner Major Tucker and Benj Mills of New Boston 
came took Dinner also;  
Miner, Ed  12/3/03 Ed Miner came over to tell us of Aunt Electa's death.  Em & I went over to J Northways where she 
died stayed all night;  
Miner, Pat  5/10/00 Pat came over with Potatoes;  6/12/00 Went over to Pat's with Em & Carrie in the afternoon;  7/1/00 
Pat brought Lib over just at night, she stayed all night;  8/8/00 Went out to Pats in afternoon.  Horse run tipped us over 
near Mrs Betsy Fowler place run to E Moores hurt us some.  Oliser [?] S Brought Gertie home;  2/23/01 Pat & Len 
called on way to see Lib;  2/24/01 Pat called on way home left Len to care for Lib;  2/26/01 Pat brought Harry over in 
eve;  3/3/01 Pat brought Len over in morning she went to Church with me...took Len to Mrs Wheelers, brought Em 
back.  Lib a little better;  3/10/01 Carried Em to Barkhamsted...Pat went down got Len;  3/13/01 took Harry to Tolland 
he is going out to help Pat on wood pile;  3/24/01 Harry came home from Pats;  4/20/01 Pat came over boil some 
maple sugar;  4/22/01 drove to Pats got a calf to fat;  5/11/01 Went out to Pats in afternoon with Wife.  B DeWolf & 
Wife drove in through shower;  5/30/01 drove to Tolland & out to Pat's Harry rode his Wheel as far as Wright place 
rode back with me;  6/8/01 Harry came back from Pats;
Miner, Pat [contd]  6/10/01 Harry went out to Tolland to help Pat;  8/11/01 Wife & I went to New Boston attended 
Church, took lunch at J Northways he was gone to Mill River.  Ed came.  Called to Pats;  9/4/02 Pat brought Wife home 
from Barkhamsted;  9/14/02 Pat and Len came over in the morning, did not stay long;  9/28/02 Wife & I went to Pats in 
afternoon;  11/27/02 Harry went to Pats stayed all night;  12/1/02 Pat brought Lib over to stay awhile;  12/2/02 Pat came
over got Lib;  12/17/02 P Minor came over on foot;  12/22/02 Pat & Lib called on their way to Barkhamsted;  12/30/02 
Pat and Len came over in the afternoon stayed awhile;  2/26/03 Harry went over to Pat's to help move hay;  6/18/03 Pat
brought Lib over she stayed;  6/22/03 Pat came over got Lib;  8/16/03 Pat & Len called in Eve they came and brought 
Lib to Millers;  10/24/03 Pat & Len came over;  12/9/03 Em & I went to New Boston to John Northway to see about Aunt 
Electa affairs.  Lib rode over with us from Pat's;  12/25/03 Pat & Len called;  2/27/04 Pat & Len came over;  4/30/04 Pat 
& Len came over took Dinner Lib went home with them;
Miner, Pat [contd]  6/19/04 Pat & Len came over to Church.  We went to Tolland Church in afternoon, Childrens day;  
7/23/04 Pat & Len came over in afternoon;  8/7/05 Frank and his Mother went to Pat's in the morning spent the day;  
11/30/05 Thanksgiving day.  Cut wood awhile down west beside of the road.  Pat and Len came along.  We had a 
Chicken Pie and Indian Pudding for Dinner, we were alone;  2/5/06 Em & I went to P Miners Dim went with us called to 
W Munn's;  10/12/06 Harry went to Pats towards night;  11/4/06 Went to Church...Pat, Len, and Major Tucker attended; 
1/6/07 Pat & Len came about noon stayed 2 hours;  3/1/07 Went to Tolland to Pats.  Mrs Nelson, Lib, and Mrs Ives 
went with me;  3/12/07 Em & I went to New Boston...called to Pats;  4/4/07 Pat & Len called Lib came up in afternoon;  
6/9/07 Pat & Len came over to Millers;  6/30/07 Pat & Len came over to Church, called a few minutes;  8/11/07 Mr 
Coolidge preached his farewell Sermon...Pat & Len came to Church, A Frost here;  1908 [?] Turned Nan [at?] Pat Aug 
25 and Sept 14 = Due June 14;  
Moffatt  6/6/05 took 10 Bushel Potatoes to Baldwin & Moffatt Winsted 50 cts per Bush;  
Molly  1902 [memoranda] Turned Molly June 29;  1904 Memoranda Took Mollie to Millers June 28, 1904 Due March 
28, 1905;  4/13/05 Mollie calved;  6/6/05 took calf to A B Fancher 10 cts 114 lbs, Hide $1.40 $12.80.  7 weeks old 
Mollies calf;  7/5/05 Went to E M Moore's with cow Mollie in Eve;  7/27/05 Fred took Mollie to E M Moores;  9/5/06 took 
cow Mollie on north lot;  12/8/06 Mollie had a calf Early in morn brought it into House;  1906 Memoranda Took Mollie to 
Nelson Feb 28 Due Nov 28;  1/11/07 Went to Winsted...got some powders of Judson for Molly cow;  1908 [1909?] 
Memoranda Took Mollie to Nelson May 15, Due Feb 15;  

Moody  7/22/00 O E Murphy & Wife called on their way home from calling on his Aunt Mrs Hotchkiss at Moodys, sick;  
Moody, Adelia  1/24/07 Mrs Adelia Moody burried;  
Moody, C H  5/14/03 George Darling shot and Killed himself at C Moody just at night;  5/17/03 The remains of Geo 
Darling buried in this Cemetery funeral at C H Moody's house;  
Moody, Charles  11/9/07 Chas Moody called to see about Cooleys stove;  
Moore, B E  10/25/00 B E Moore called;  2/16/06 Wrote to B E Moore in Eve;  
Moore, Burt  3/17/06 Burt Moore called, and Mr Coolidge in afternoon;  
Moore, Dr  2/5/03 Called on Dr Moore and Albert Breckenridge [in Torrington], took train to Waterbury.  Went to Geo 
White [former husband of the late Jennie Brown] 102 Charles St took Dinner.  Went with Mrs White to Bank St called 
on Mrs Joice [?], returned to White stayed all night;  2/8/07 Dimock & I called on Dr Moore [in Torrington].  Took 9:30 
Trolley to Winsted, finished delivering [butter & eggs] got home 4:30;  
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Moore, E M  8/8/00 Went out to Pats in afternoon.  Horse run tipped us over near Mrs Betsy Fowler place run to E 
Moores hurt us some.  Oliser [?] S Brought Gertie home;  9/1/00 Went to the mill with Marganis got 33 feet Bass 
boards of E Moore;  5/3/01 sawed some [shingle] for E Moore;  6/26/05 Went to E M Moores Tolland with cow Nell;  
7/5/05 Went to E M Moore's with cow Mollie in Eve;  7/27/05 Fred took Mollie to E M Moores;  
Moore, Luke  5/1/00 drove over to Munns shop in the afternoon saw Luke Moore;  11/16/01 Went to Munn's got Horse 
shod, drove to Luke Moore's called to John Rogers;  5/20/02 Went down street in morning went to Luke Moores got the 
old sow, took the young sow over;  5/26/02 Went to Luke Moore's got Sow home just at night;  5/29/02 Harry took the 
young sow to Luke Moores;  11/14/02 We all went to Luke Moore's Tolland near Pond to Oyster Supper.  A very 
pleseant night several went from here;  11/24/02 Harry took the old Sow to Ernest Clarks & Luke Moore;  12/6/02 Harry 
went to Luke Moore's with Sow;  3/5/03 Luke Moore called;  
Mosely  3/9/00 Mosely & wife took dinner here;  
Moses & Green  10/23/01 Went to Winsted took 4 Lambs & 1 sheep to Moses & Green, 1 Lamb to Winchester, 12 cts, 
took Butter & Eggs 30 called to Humphrey's sold hen [?] 4 lbs;  5/23/02 Went to Winsted with Butter and Eggs took a 
veal to Moses & Green;  
Mubb, C [Tunxis Clubhouse, Tolland ?]  1903 Memoranda C Mubb Sheep;  1 lamb 32 lbs 12 cts/lb $3.84;  1 lamb 30 lbs 

$3.60;  Eggs 7.25 doz at 27 cts/doz  $1.96; sum =$9.40;  Aug 1st 2 lambs 59 lbs $7.08;  6th 2 lambs 69 lbs at 12 cts per lb 

$8.28;  Aug 13th 2 Lambs 671/2 lbs 1.5 [possibly 15 cts/lb?];  19th 2 lambs 661/2;  

Munn, Wilbert  3/16/00 took 2 wagon wheels to Munn.  Went to Fathers found him poorly;  3/30/00 Em & I went out to 
Tolland in afternoon, brought home the farm wagon wheels;  4/15/00 Miss Ellen Fowler died at Geo W Treat at 11 AM.  
Em & I went down there in afternoon W Munn & Wife there;  4/24/00 went to Munn got wagon wheels;  5/1/00 drove 
over to Munns shop in the afternoon saw Luke Moore;  7/28/00 Went to Munn's shop;  8/10/00 drove to Munns shop;  
8/14/00 Went to Munns shop in morning;  4/15/00 Went to Munns got Horse shod;  4/22/01 Went to Munns shop got 
some hoops fixed for tube, drove to Pats got a calf;  7/6/01 Went to Tolland got 2 shoes set on Horse at H Munn's 
drove to J Chandler's;  10/15/01 Went to Munn got Horse shod;  11/16/01 Went to Munn's got Horse shod, drove to 
Luke Moore's called to John Rogers;  12/10/01 Harry went to Munn;  12/17/01 Harry went to Munn got some hoops 
fixed for [the tube];  12/30/01 Harry took Hind axle to Munns to get bolts out;  4/19/02 Went to Munns got Horse shod;  
9/4/02 Harry went to Munn shop got Horse shod;
Munn, Wilbert [contd]  10/18/02 Went to Munns got Horse shod;  1/21/03 Harry went to Munn got Horse shod;  1/27/03 
Went to Magranis place got some wagon wheels took them to Munn;  4/7/03 went to Munns blacksmith shop got 
wagon repaired and Horse shod;  6/1/03 Went to Munns got Horse shod and one tire set on wagon;  7/11/03 Went to 
Munns with rake wheels in afternoon;  7/18/03 took 2 wheels off from farm wagon to Munns to get repaired;  7/20/03 
drove to lower club house Tolland, up to Munn's shop got 2 wagon wheels, 2 Murdock boys went with me;  10/17/03 
Went to Munn got Horse shod;  11/28/03 Harry & Frank went to Tolland got Horse shod at Munn's;  Memoranda 1903 
Wilbert Munn Dr  To 4 Bushel Potatoes 90 $3.60;  Fertilizer $4.10;  Paid;  11/15/04 Got Horse shod at Munn;  2/23/05 
Went to Munn's got Horse shod;  3/4/05 took the red Sleigh to Munns to get shoes on;  3/17/05 took farm wagon to 
pieces put 3 wheels and axle into sleighs to take to Tolland;  4/12/05 Went to Munns shop got my farm wagon wheels;  
5/25/05 went to Munns got Horse shod;

Munn, Wilbert [contd]  8/25/05 went to Munns to get Horse shod had a lame back could not do it;  11/10/05 Went to 
Tolland to get Horse shod.  Munn gone to Winsted, put shoes on behind myself when got home;  12/18/05 took a load 
of rye straw to Tolland for Burt Roberts put it in Munns barn;  1905 Memoranda Fertilizer W Munn 3 bags $6.40;  1905 
Memoranda W Munn Dr 1904 Fertilizer $6.90;  1905 Fertilizer $5.40; sum =$12.30.  "X"ed;  2/5/06 Em & I went to P 
Miners Dim went with us called to W Munn's;  5/26/06 Went to Munns in morning got Horse shod and tires set on light 
wagon;  7/9/06 Went to Munn got Horse shod;  9/10/06 Took light wagon to Munns shop to have axles put in;  3/6/07 
took double run sleigh to Munn to get repaired;  3/8/07 Went to Tolland got my Bob sleighs at Munns;  5/4/07 Went to 
Tolland to Munns got Horse shod;  7/11/07 Went to Munn got Horse shod;  

Murdock  7/20/03 drove to lower club house Tolland, up to Munn's shop got 2 wagon wheels, 2 Murdock boys went with
me;  7/28/03 Em & Murdocks went berrying;  8/1/03 Went to Club House with 2 sheep, Murdock rode over with me;  
Murdock, John  5/13/06 Wrote to Rev E C Fuller NH, and to John Murdock in Eve;  
Murphy, C  5/27/07 H Ripley left Pair steers here for Howd he and C Murphy came after them;  
Murphy, John P  1896 Poll Tax payer;

Murphy, O E  7/22/00 O E Murphy & Wife called on their way home from calling on his Aunt Mrs Hotchkiss at Moodys, 
sick;  10/6/00 Murphy took 2 Pigs;  8/30/02 took Wife to Barkhamsted to take care of Lib, took Dinner with O E Murphy;  
12/3/02 O E Murphy came up got a Pig;  10/21/05 Went to Winsted...Saw O E Murphy at Lamphier Stable;  
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Nan [cow]  1908 Memoranda Turned Nan...Oct 30;  1909 [?] Turned Nan [at?] Pat Aug 25 and Sept 14 = Due June 14;  
Nellie [cow]  12/11/00 Went to Terretts with Nellie a cow;  1901 Got Nell home Sept 13 [at Nelson Harger's] 7 weeks;  
1902 Took Nell to Harger July 21, got her home Sept 22 10 weeks [calc=9].  Settled with Harger Oct 27;  1903 

Memoranda Turned Nellie about June 20th;  5/26/04 took Nell to Nelson;  1904 Memoranda Took Nell to Nelsons May 
26 & June 17, 1904 Due March 17, 1905;  3/25/05 Nell calved;  4/24/05 went to Brunk with Nell;  5/12/05 Went to 
Magranis up to Hodges over across to Brunk's with cow Nell, did not find a Bull;  6/7/05 took cow Nell to Magranis;  
6/26/05 Went to E M Moores Tolland with cow Nell;  12/3/06 took Nell to D Barnes;  1906 Memoranda Nell Due April 
10, 1907;  1906 Memoranda Aug 13 took Nell to Millers and Sept 26;  
Nelson, Gust B  1902 [back of diary] Gust. B Nelson Plumtree Road Springfield Mass  Owner of Property that the W 
Granville Ministerial Asso. hold mortgage on of $500 Interest 5 per ct semi annualny Oct 4 March 4;  1/5/06 Wrote to 
Gust B Nelson Springfield, & Chas Alison;  

Nelson, Leland  4/3/05 took a young calf to M Nelsons in a wheel barrow.  Mr Nelson gone to Westfield Leland there;  
Nelson, Major  6/11/00 called on Mr Nelson in eve;  8/31/00 Mr Nelson helped [mow] had 35 heaps very fine hay;  
10/6/00 picked apples on Mr Nelsons;  12/31/00 Mr Nelson called in morning;  1/9/01 Wife & I spent eve at M Nelson's;  
1/20/01 Mr Nelson came in eve;  2/3/01 Harry helped Mr Nelson do his chores Em & I called on him in eve found him 
better;  2/6/01 went to Mr Nelsons;  2/26/01 helped shovel out the road south of Nelsons;  5/20/01 Frank & I went to 
Hargers in afternoon and to Mr Nelsons in eve;  6/25/01 Harry & I peeled Bark down west south side of road next to Mr 
Nelson lot;  7/4/01 helped Mr Nelson put a Horse Rake together in forenoon...Em & Mrs Nelson went to Fire works;  
9/27/01  Mowed a piece of rowen for Mr Nelson;  9/28/01 helped Mr Nelson get in rowen;  9/28/01 helped Mr Nelson 
get in rowen;  10/7/01 Mowed some rowen for Mr Nelson;  10/24/01 Mr Nelson & Ruth called in eve;  11/15/01 Geo 
Chaffee, Harry, & I helped M Nelson kill his hog;  12/18/01 Went to Mr Nelsons in eve got some Eggs;  12/27/01 Mr 
Nelson called in evening;  
Nelson, Major [contd]  2/15/02 Will Cooley helped me cut 2 maple trees near M Nelsons lot;  2/19/02 Went to Mr 
Nelsons in forenoon;  2/26/02 called at Parsonage, on Mr Bates.  Went to the Latham place, called at Mr Nelson's;  
3/31/02 Split shingle logs for M Nelson;  4/1/02 Worked in mill for M Nelson, sawed Plank & Pine Boards;  4/2/02 
sawed for M Nelson;  4/3/02 Sawed shingle for M Nelson;  4/15/02 Sawed for M Nelson;  5/1/02 finished sawing 
Nelsons shingles;  5/14/02 Went to Mr Nelson's in eve, with women;  6/25/02 helped unload Piano at Nelson's;  8/3/02 
Stone Girls at Nelsons;  9/9/02 looked about with Mr Fenn on the old place, called to Nelsons;  9/16/02 Cleaned the rye 
6 bush, had Mr Nelson's [fanning] mill;  10/8/02 Went to Nelson's got some wire staples fixed fence;  11/17/02 helped 
Mr Nelson butcher 2 Hogs;  1/6/03 Prayer meeting at Nelson's;  1/31/03 Called on Major Nelson awhile in afternoon;  
5/16/03 Nelson called;  5/30/03 Went to Mr Nelsons helped about sawing off his Bulls horns, his sons home.  Decker 
sawed them off;  6/15/03 Mr Nelson called;
Nelson, Major [contd]  8/9/03 Went to Church Rev I W Smith preached came here to lunch.  Called on Campers at 
Nelsons in Eve;  8/14/03 Mowed a piece in south lot had G Chaffee in afternoon Mr Nelson and Lewis Barnes helped 
awhile;  11/3/03 Wife & I went to M Nelsons spent the Eve;  11/23/03 G Chaffee helped me butcher hog for M Nelson in 
forenoon.  We butchered one for Mr Harger in afternoon;  12/11/03 called to M Nelson's they were sick with colds;  
1/7/04 went on the River below bridge on Nelsons cut a load of Ice drew it home;  3/4/04 Went to M Nelsons to a 
Prayer meeting in the Eve;  3/17/04 M Nelson & W Eaton called in Eve;  5/26/04 took Nell to Nelson;   6/3/04 M Nelson 
came up with his colt, drew 2 loads [manure];  10/5/04 M Nelson called in Eve;  11/1/04 pulled the turnips M Nelson 
helped pull them;  12/11/04 M Nelson called in the morning on an Errand;  1/29/05 Went to PO got some mail took 
Nelsons down to him;  3/8/05 M Nelson called in afternoon took a cow [Kit] there;  3/13/05 M Nelson & N Harger called 
in afternoon;  3/14/05 M Nelson and Sheets called in the Eve;  
Nelson, Major [contd]  4/3/05 took a young calf to M Nelsons in a wheel barrow.  Mr Nelson gone to Westfield Leland 
there;  7/2/05 Mr Nelson sick the boys came home I called on him just at night;  7/10/05 A party at M Nelsons gave 
Ruth a chair;  7/12/05 Went to M Nelsons looked at his mower;  8/15/05 Visited with Hubbard some, he and Eaton went 
to Nelsons in afternoon;  9/28/05 Went to PO paid my tax M Nelson rode down with me;  11/4/05 Went to Nelson got a 
scalding tub to Millers got Pulleys Butchered Pig;  11/27/05 M Nelson here in Eve;  11/28/05 M Nelson here in Eve;  
1905 Memoranda Fertilizer M Nelson 4 bags $6.40;  1/29/06 Went to M Nelsons in Eve Mabel Rivers there;  2/28/06 
Went to M Nelsons in afternoon with a cow;  3/23/06 Frisbie and Fred Chapman broke road to Nelsons;  5/14/06 Went 
to G Millers in morning, to Nelsons got scalding tub butchered the old Sow;  12/26/06 Chopped wood in forenoon south 
of road near Nelsons line;  1906 taxes Major Nelson, $65.98;  3/7/07 Went to Sheets & to Nelson in morning.  
Butchered Pig, Albert and Mr Nelson helped;
Nelson, Major [contd]  9/2/07 J Alden Wife and 2 children took tea with us, they were stopping at Mr Nelson's;  11/13/07 
Went to M Nelsons to a Social in Eve;  1908 [?] Memoranda Took Granny to Nelsons March 11 Due Dec 11.  Took 
Mollie to Nelson May 15, Due Feb 15;  
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Nelson, Mrs  2/19/01 Em went with Mrs Nelson to East Granville;  7/4/01 Em & Mrs Nelson went to Fire works;  
10/16/01 Harger & Mrs Nelson called;  12/25/04 Went to Church Mrs Nelson rode down with us.  Christmas Exercises 
by Children;  6/15/05 Went to Winsted...Got some Pansie plants for Mrs Nelson;  2/17/07 went to Church Mrs Nelson 
rode up with me;  2/21/07 We went to Hall to an Oyster Supper, had Entertainment in Church Mrs Nelson went with us;  
3/1/07 Went to Tolland to Pats.  Mrs Nelson, Lib, and Mrs Ives went with me;  3/10/07 Went to Church Mrs Nelson rode 
down with us;  5/28/07 Carried Em and Mrs Nelson to Ladies room to repair Church cushions;  
Nelson, Olin  5/26/01 Olin Nelson and Ruth called in the eve;  10/28/06 J Alden Fenn called, came up with Olin Nelson; 
10/20/07 Alden Fenn called, he came last night with the Nelsons;  
Nelson, Ruth  11/18/00 Went to Church Ruth Nelson rode down with us;  2/2/01 took Wife and Ruth down to Hall to 
clean up after the Supper;  5/26/01 Olin Nelson and Ruth called in the eve;  10/24/01 Mr Nelson & Ruth called in eve;  
10/25/01 Ruth Nelson went with us to Tolland in eve to a Chicken pie supper;  11/6/01 Wife & I, Harry, Ruth Nelson, & 
Ella Clark went to H Peebles to a Social in eve;  4/2/02 Wife & Ruth Nelson went down swept the Church;  5/17/02 
Harry, Theda Smith, and Ruth Nelson went to Harry Clark's to a surprise party;  9/9/03 Em and I went to New Boston to 
the Fair Ruth Nelson rode over with us;  9/16/04 went to Westfield got Carrie and 3 Children.  Ruth Nelson rode into 
Mundale with me;  1/1/05 Geo H Chaffee, John Brice [Boice?], Fred Chapman, Ruth Nelson united with the Church by 
confession.  Mrs Dora Coolidge, Miss Augusta Cornwell by letter;  1/8/05 Went to Church Ruth Nelson went with me;  
1/19/05 B Jones, Lib, Mrs Coolidge, and Ruth Nelson called during the day;  1/22/05 We went to Church Ruth Nelson 
rode down with us;  3/1/05 Ruth Nelson & Miss Emma Fisher called;
Nelson, Ruth [contd]  4/30/05 Went to prayer in the Evening, led the meeting, Ruth and Miss Smith rode up with me;  
6/11/05 Attended prayer meeting in Eve Ruth Nelson led;  7/10/05 A party at M Nelsons gave Ruth a chair;  7/30/05 
Went to Church not many out, Ruth & Ella rode up with me;  8/20/05 Prayer meeting in Eve Decker led the meeting, 
Ruth rode down with me;  10/11/05 Carried Wife to the Hall, came back done chores, took Ruth to Chicken Pie supper 
at the Hall;  1/6/06 Mr Coolidge & Wife and Ruth Nelson called in afternoon;  3/4/06 Went to Church carried Ruth down; 
1/4/07 Mr Coolidge, Mabel Rivers, Ruth Nelson called in Eve;  3/27/07 Em, Ruth, & I went to Sheets got sugar;  9/4/07 
Ruth Nelson & Mabel Rivers called in Eve;  11/10/07 Burton & I went to Church, Ruth Nelson went with us;  12/4/07 Mr 
Aldrich & Ruth Nelson called in Eve;  12/8/07 Went to Prayer meeting in Eve, Ruth rode down with me;  12/15/07 went 
to Church Ruth went with us;  
Newton  6/9/04 Kemp & Newton from Springfield came in Eve to go fishing stayed all night;  6/10/04 Kemp & Newton 
stayed all night;  6/11/04 Kemp & Newton left;  
Newton, A  11/20/03 A Newton called;  11/27/03 Harry & Nic Newton went to Hall Pond fishing Frank carried them up, 

got 111/2 lbs...Al Newton came in Evening after Nic;  10/4/07 A Newton called;  

Newton, F  9/17/01 drove to F Newtons with Butter;  

Newton, Nic  11/27/03 Harry & Nic Newton went to Hall Pond fishing Frank carried them up, got 111/2 lbs...Al Newton 
came in Evening after Nic;  

Newton, Pearl  10/31/00 Went to Pearl Newton, in eve;  10/1/03 Pearl Newton came up got a Lamb;  10/15/03 took a 

Lamb to P Newton;  10/21/03 Newton got a Lamb;  1903 Memoranda Wool 171/2 cts Sold at 19 cts;  Bought of Newton 

89 = $15.05 [calc=$15.575];  Stanard 411/2 = $7.25 [calc = $7.2625];  Brunk 61/2 = $1.13 [calc=$1.1375];  Miller 47 = 
$8.90 [calc = $8.225];  A Frost 19 $3.61 [calc = $3.325];  sum = 201 [calc = 203];  Amount Wool 343;  10/31/04 Went to 
Deckers got Newton Buck carried him home;  11/2/04 Pearl Newton called got some Eggs, in Eve;  12/4/05 P Newton 
brought a carcass of a Lamb;  7/26/07 Went to P Newton Telephoned to Winsted tried to sell a calf;  
Nichols, Estella  10/4/00 Orpha & Estella Nichols of Washington DC spent the night;  
Noble, Mrs  11/24/03 took cow Sylvia to Mrs Noble Granville $42.50, rode back with Soules team;  
Noble, Charlotte A  1906 taxes Charlotte A Noble, $201.50;  
Northrop, E M  May 22, 1897 Estate of Georgia Hotchkiss Received of Winsted Savings Bank $100.  Paid E M 
Northrop $35.00; Alice Catlin $18.58 [?]; C D Sweet $18.00; Fannie Metcalf $3.00; J E Pine $12.00; Mary E Acker 
$8.14;
Northway, John  3/10/00 attended the funeral of Uncle Abiram Ives.  Called to J Northway, took dinner.  Called to 
Father, about the same;  4/28/00 John Northway came over brought Aunt Electa;  6/24/00 E & I went to New 
Boston...took dinner at J Northways;  5/16/01 John Northway came over after Potatoes stayed to Dinner;  8/11/01 Wife 
& I went to New Boston attended Church, took lunch at J Northways he was gone to Mill River.  Ed came.  Called to 
Pats;  12/28/01 took Carrie & Boy to Len's.  Went to New Boston got a Bureau at Northways;  2/24/03 Wife & I went to 
New Boston to J Northway's, he had gone to Winsted took Dinner there called at A Snow & J P Hall's & at Len;  12/3/03 
Ed Miner came over to tell us of Aunt Electa's death.  Em & I went over to J Northways where she died stayed all night; 
12/5/03 Wife and I went to New Boston attended the funeral of Aunt Electa Dimock at John Northway's buried at Otis;  
12/9/03 Em & I went to New Boston to John Northway to see about Aunt Electa affairs.  Lib rode over with us from 
Pats;
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Northway, John [contd]  4/23/04 Wife & I went to J Northway's New Boston got some of Aunt Electas things;  10/9/05 
John Northway and Wife came stayed all night on their way to Springfield;  10/10/05 John Northway & Wife started for 
Springfield;  3/28/06 Wife & I went to Tolland...Met J Northway & S D Smith at Sisters took Dinner there;  3/12/07 Em & 
I went to New Boston to John Northway called to Dr Ward's got some medicine for my Rheumatism, called to Pats;  
Norton, Emma  [Georgia Hotchkiss] Legacies July 1897 x Emma Norton x $50.00;  
Norton, R  9/20/03 Wife & I attended Church, R Norton & Wife from Otis there;  

Osborne, Carl  2/26/01 Went to Carl Osborne's got 10,00 [sic] Bran;  6/14/05 took Gray cow & calf to C Osborne's W 
Hartland for Leroy Millard;  9/19/07 Went to Carl Osbornes West Hartland got a Barrel of Flour $6.50;  

Osborne Bros  11/10/03 Carried 11/2 Pigs to Westfield to Osborne Bros 231 lbs 71/2 cts, took Dinner with Carrie brought 
the boy home with me;  

Osborne, Charles  12/11/01 Charlie Osborne came and got Buck;  6/12/02 Osborne & Gowdy [?] came with wool;  
Oysler  6/15/04 Came home from Agawam.  Got 2 shoes set on Horse at Oyslers;  3/26/06 Went to E Granville got 
Horse shod at Oysler, got some grain at Dickinson & Gibbons;  

Parker  11/8/04 took some apples to Holcomb Bros for a cask of Cider.  Stopped to Town Hall voted for Parker & Davis 
for President and Vice President;  
Parks  9/22/05 Parks from Russell broke his wagon axle stayed here all night;  9/23/05 Parks took my wagon to go to 
Tolland to get his axle mended, went away after dinner;  

Parsons Pond  1/23/05 G Miller came up in morning got Saw and Ice tongs helped him shovel out cross road.  Went 
with him to Parsons Pond got a load of Ice;  1/24/05 Drew 4 loads of Ice from Parsons Pond 37 cakes 20 inches thick.  
Chapman boys cut, left 75 cakes on Pond;  2/16/05 Miller & Frisbie drew 2 loads Ice each from Parsons Pond in 
afternoon;  2/17/05 Miller & Frisbie drew 4 loads Ice each from Parsons Pond;  3/10/06 Went to Goodniss and Parsons 
pond in the morning;  3/12/06 Fred Chapman sawed ice on Parsons Pond, Goodniss drew 4 loads, I packed it;  
Parsons  9/8/05 went to Winsted...Horse went through small Bridge south of Williams place, threw him down tore off a 
shoe, put on another at Parsons;  

Parsons, Mrs Fannie  7/26/00 Went to Westfield got Carrie took Dinner with Mrs Parsons;  8/14/00 Mrs Parsons & a 
friend came by Stage stayed all night;  8/16/00 took Mrs Parsons & friend Em and drove to Goodness [?] up to 
cemetery;  8/17/00 Mrs Parsons & friend went on Stage;  10/1/00 Went to Westfield took 6 Bushel Potatoes to Mrs 
Parsons, 1 to Carrie;  10/20/00 left Franks about 9 o'clock drove to Westfield took Dinner with Carrie.  Called on Mrs 
Parsons;  10/11/02 Wife & I went to Westfield carried some Potatoes to Mrs Parsons, took Dinner with Carrie took the 
boy home got home at 6:30;  6/13/03 Wife & I went to Westfield muddy going.  Went to Carries found them gone to 
Vermont, to stay awhile, done some trading called at Mrs Parsons;  12/12/03 Went to Westfield took some Potatoes to 
Mrs Parsons & J J Hearn bought a center tobe [?] and some grain took Dinner at Carrie's got home about 6;
Parsons, Mrs Fannie [contd]  In back pocket of 1903 diary [a handwritten verse in very fine Hand]  Cyrus - "I Live for 

those who love me"  1st  I Live for those who love me  Whose hearts are fond and true  For the heaven that smiles 
above me  And waits my spirit too  For every tie that binds me  For every task assigned me  For bright hopes left 

behind me  And the good that I may do.  2nd  I live to hold communion  With all that is divine  To feel that there's a union 
Twixt Nature's God and mine  To profit by affliction  Reap truth's [sic] from every fiction  And wiser from conviction  

Help on the grand design.  3rd  I Live to hail the season  By gifted minds foretold  When man shall live by reason  And 
not alone by gold  When man to man united  And every wrong thing righted  The whole world shall be lighted  As eden 
[sic] was of old.  For Cyrus - with compliments of your friend Fannie [Bidwell Parsons]  {PS Remember the visit of Aug. 
1867}  F.  [Abridged, from "What I Live For" by George Linnaeus Banks];  4/8/05 Went to Westfield got Carrie and 
children, took a bushel Potatoes to Mrs Parsons;
Parsons, Mrs Fannie [contd]  8/12/05 Mrs Parsons, Sarah, & a Mr Curtis of Westfield came out spent the night;  
8/13/05 went to Church with Mrs Parsons and family, they drove to Beech Hill after Dinner came back to prayer 
meeting and back here for the night;  8/14/05 Mrs Parsons left here about 9 AM;  12/5/05 Went to Westfield with 4 
Bushel Potatoes for Mrs Parsons;  1/24/06 wrote to Mrs Parsons in Eve;  6/9/06 Em and I went to Westfield done a little 
trading.  Called on Mrs Parsons;  11/26/06 Started for Westfield at 9 AM got Burton and his Mother just out of Mercy 
Hospital took dinner with Mrs Parsons;  12/27/06 Carried Carrie and 3 Children to Westfield left them at Mrs Parsons, 
they are going home to Washington DC;  9/15/07 Mrs Parsons and Sarah, Will Curtis and Mother drove out about 
noon;  10/10/07 Harry started back via Westfield Emeline & Burton rode in with him.  I took 4 Bushel Potatoes to Mrs 
Parsons;  
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Parsons, Sarah  8/12/05 Mrs Parsons, Sarah & a Mr Curtis of Westfield came out spent the night;  9/15/07 Mrs 
Parsons and Sarah, Will Curtis and Mother drove out about noon;  
Pease  3/6/05 Drew 2 loads of sawdust from Frisbie mill south of West Granville on Pease place;  5/16/05 drew 2 loads 
of sawdust from Frisbie mill on Pease lot put 1 in Ice House;  9/22/07 Em & I drove to Pease, Hall & Hayes place, in 
afternoon;  
Peck, Mrs Carrie [nee Carrie Hall?]  9/29/00 Mrs K Hyde & sister Carrie Peck of Plainville came stayed all night;  
9/30/00 Went to Church Mrs Hyde & sister Mrs Peck went with us they went to Slocums after tea;  10/1/00 Kate Hyde & 
Carrie Peck stayed all night;  10/2/00 Mrs Hyde & Peck started for Blandford;  
Peebles  10/28/05 Went to the Peebles place got a box of sand;  
Peebles, Edward  1896 Poll Tax payer;  11/17/02 Ed Peebles got 2 Pigs;  
Peebles, H  10/8/00 Harry & [I] went to Wm Champlin, bought 2 sheep & a Lamb.  Went to H Peebles;  11/1/00 picked 
up some apples on G Millers took them to H Peebles mill for Cider;  11/5/00 Went to H Peebles got some Cider;  
11/6/01 Wife & I, Harry, Ruth Nelson, & Ella Clark went to H Peebles to a Social in eve;  6/26/02 Went to H Peebles in 
eve got a Jack Screw Decker went with me;  11/12/02 Harry & I picked up a load of Cider apples on G Millers he took 
them to H Peebles;  1906 taxes estate of Henry H Peebles, $60.30;  
Peebles, Henry M  May 1896 Dog Owners Henry M Peebles 1;  1/5/04 H M Peebles buried;  
Peebles, Mrs Henry  9/7/01 Harry & Myrtie went to Mrs H Peebles in afternoon;  10/24/01 Mrs H Peebles called 
canvassing for ACR [?], took dinner;  1/24/01 Went to Blandford Em went as far as Mrs H Peebles;  7/22/02 Carried 
Wife to Mrs Wm Bates Mertie went to Mrs Peebles;  11/16/02 We all attended Church.  Mrs Peebles was there, Ward 
Coe and Mother;  11/22/04 Attended a Social at Mrs Henry Peebles on Beech Hill.  Several from here went;  9/2/05 
Carried Wife to Mrs Wm Bates found her gone, called on Mrs Henry Peebles;  
Peebles, Louis  May 1896 Dog Owners Louis Peebles 1;  
Peg [cow]  9/6/00 Peg calved in morning;  9/11/00 Al Howard came and got Peg $50;  
Penders, M C  May 1896 Dog Owners M C Penders 1;  
Pendleton, Grace  8/13/03 Went to Winsted...Grace Pendleton & Mary Welch rode down with me;  8/11/05 Went to 
Winsted...brought up Mary Welch & Grace Pendleton;  
Pendleton, Mrs  8/2/03 Mrs Pendleton and Children of Winsted there [Church];  

Perkins, John  1906 [C A Sheets] Memoranda  Cr  Oct 5th 14 Lbs Butter @ 25 $3.50;  22nd 12 Lbs Butter $3.00;  Nov 
1st 12 $3.00;  21/2 doz Eggs @ 35 $0.87;  17th 7 Lbs Butter @ 30 $2.10;  30th 6 Lbs Butter $1.80;  Dec 14th 5 Butter 
$1.50;  April 07 apples $3.50;  sum = $19.27;  Sawing wood with Perkins  Paid;  3/15/07 F A Rolinson called with John 
Perkins to see about cutting up wood pile;  3/21/07 John Perkins of Blandford cut wood with his Gasoline Engine Milo, 
Chan, and Albert helped me.  Cut it in forenoon, and he went to Sheets in afternoon;  
Persons, E H  12/12/01 Wife & I went to Winsted took Dinner with Orpha, done some trading at E H Persons;  
Phelon  10/16/02 Went to Barnes mill on Phelon lot got some sticks for sleepers got them in ready to lay floor;  
Phelon, Austin  May 1896 Dog Owners Austin Phelon 1;  4/10/03 Carrie & I went up north way by Deckers & A Phelon 
to A Clapp.  I went to Bronson's;  1906 taxes Austin Phelon, $89.92;  

Phelon, John W  5/10/02 Went to mill with John Phelon;  5/12/06 Went with Chas H Treat to J W Phelon in Eve;  

Pine, J E  May 22, 1897 Estate of Georgia Hotchkiss Received of Winsted Savings Bank $100.  Paid E M Northrop 
$35.00; Alice Catlin $18.58 [?]; C D Sweet $18.00; Fannie Metcalf $3.00; J E Pine $12.00; Mary E Acker $8.14;  
Potter  8/22/05 Eaton...went to Potter place in morning got 75 feet Pine for Eave troughs;  
Poudra; L  [Town Accts book] March 1897 Due for shoveling snow x L Poudra 5 hours x $0.75;  Town Accts book Jan 
4, 1899  Due Hattie E Smith for rent of her place from Poudra $13.14.  Poudra paid tax $9.36 + Discount on rent $7.50 
= $16.86.  Rent was $30.00 minus $16.86 = $13.14;  

Randall, James  11/27/00 Sold Pig to James Randall;  
Ransom, Ed  5/9/01 Ed Ransom came up in eve, got 6 Bags Fertilizer;  9/22/01 Wife & I drove to E H Magranis in Eve.  
E Ransom and wife there;  11/18/02 Ed Ransom came up got a Pig;  3/30/03 Went to Ed Ransoms got a shoat;  5/6/03 
Ed Ransom came just at night got Pig & Fertilizer;  12/7/03 started for Winsted about 8, took Butter carried a Pig to Ed 
Ransom, weighed 70 lbs;  11/9/04 Ransom sent after 2 Pigs;  1905 Memoranda Ed Ransom Dr To 2 Pigs $7.00; 1 lb 
Butter $0.25; Oct 13 Paid;  
Recoer  8/3/00 Mowed with Horse for Mr Frost...Recoer [?] & Harrington worked;  
Reeves, Charles  4/13/07 helped Charlie Reeves dig out some foxes, west side of old road, got 2 old ones and 5 small 
young ones;  

Reeves, William  March 1897 Due for shoveling snow x Will Reeves 5 hours $0.75;  5/1/05 Took a Pig to Wm Reeves;  
Reynolds, Mary E  [Georgia Hotchkiss] Legacies July 1897 x Mary E Reynolds x $100.00;  
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Rich, F A  Wife & I went to Westfield to F A Rich Jefferson St packed crockery sent to Carrie, in Washington;  
Richards, Rev  8/18/01 Carrie & [I] went to Church Rev Richards of W Hartland preached Text Matthew 7th chapter 21st 

23rd verses inclusive ["Not every one that sayeth unto me, Lord, Lord, shall enter into the kingdom of heaven; but he 
that doeth the will of my Father which is in heaven...depart from me, ye that work iniquity."];  5/24/03 Went to Church 
Rev Richards of W Hartland preached;  
Richardson, Rev  7/8/00 Rev Richardson of Montague preached as a Candidate;  
Richmond, Rev Mr  10/11/03 went to Church a small attendance.  Rev Mr Richmond from New Hampshire preached as 
a candidate, Text from Job, I know that my Redeemer liveth;  10/15/03 Rev Richmond stayed with us, all night;  
10/16/03 Attended prayer meeting at G Millers.  Rev Richmond stayed here all night;  10/18/03 Wife & I went to Church 
Rev Richmond from Chichester NH as a candidate;  

Ripley, H  9/21/00 drove to L Granger's & to H Ripley bought a cow;  9/22/00 Went to PO in eve, got the cow I bought of
Ripley;  1/1/01 Attended Dickinson Library meeting.  Chosen one of Committee with H Ripley & A Frost;  9/19/03 H 
Ripley called to see Pigs;  5/27/07 H Ripley left Pair steers here for Howd he and C Murphy came after them;  
Ripley, Henry M  May 1896 Dog Owners Henry M Ripley 1;  1906 taxes Henry Ripley, $110.50;  
Ripley, Hubert  10/9/05 Hubert Ripley came got 2 Pigs;  
Ripley, Leon  1896 Poll Tax payer;  
Rivers  8/17/06 drove to Rivers south part Tolland got 10 qts berries;  
Rivers, Mabel  1/29/06 Went to M Nelsons in Eve Mabel Rivers there;  1/4/07 Mr Coolidge Mabel Rivers Ruth Nelson 
called in Eve;  9/4/07 Ruth Nelson & Mabel Rivers called in Eve;  
Roach  10/25/00 Roach came over got 2 Pigs;  
Roberts, Burt  10/12/01 took 908 lbs straw to Burt Roberts;  1/26/03 drew 3 loads of logs to Roberts mill on Slocum lot;  
2/26/03 Harry & I went over on Slocum lot to Burt Roberts mill drew in my logs drew back 2 loads;  2/27/03 took a log to 
Cables for shingle, went to Roberts mill on Slocum lot drew out my lumber;  4/14/03 drew 2 loads logs to Burt Roberts 
mill for fence posts;  4/17/03 drew some chestnut logs to Roberts mill for fence posts;  4/20/03 went to Roberts mill got 
a load of stuff went after another load broke King bolt came home got another broke that did not do much;  4/24/03 
Went to Roberts mill got 2 loads lumber in afternoon;  5/2/03 Harry went to Roberts mill on Slocum lot got some posts;  
12/10/03 loaded some straw on sled took it to B Roberts E Granville 880 lbs;  2/6/04 Went to Roberts mill got a load of 
sawdust;  2/24/04 Went to Roberts mill got load saw dust;  3/15/04 Went to Roberts mill got a load of sawdust;  4/20/04 
Went to Roberts mill got a load of sawdust put on Ice;  12/16/05 Weighed some rye straw for B Roberts Albert Sheets 
helped me;
Roberts, Burt [contd]  12/18/05 took a load of rye straw to Tolland for Burt Roberts put it in Munns barn;  1906 taxes 
Burt J Roberts, $127.20;  
Robinson, Franklin A  1/3/05 Went to the Hall to Library meeting F A Robinson, C D Treat G Miller and myself there;  
4/28/06 F A Robinsons Barns burned at noon;  1906 taxes Franklin A Robinson, $82.64;  3/15/07 F A Rolinson called 
with John Perkins to see about cutting up wood pile;  
Rockwell  6/29/00 Rockwell came looked at sheep;  
Rockwell, Dr  7/7/01 Went to East Granville after Dr Rockwell for Mr Harger;  
Rogers, Dwight  1903 [back pocket of diary] Clipping "For Sale Eight extra fine grade Shropshire ewes and two ewe 
lambs.  Wanted a young ox or a pair.  Dwight Rogers, West Cornwall, Ct.";  
Rogers, John  10/31/01 Harry went to Tolland got some Ice of J Rogers [?];  11/16/01 Went to Munn's got Horse shod, 
drove to Luke Moore's called to John Rogers;  11/20/01 took Sow to J Rogers Tolland;  12/5/01 took Sow to John 
Rogers in afternoon Frank & Carrie went over to see Len;  9/4/03 John Rogers lost a boy with scarlet fever, sick but few 
hours;  5/9/04 Hill & J Rogers got Fertilizer;  

Rood, Mrs Nellie  1/2/03 went to Winsted Em went with me...We took Dinner at C Deweys Mrs Nellie Rood there;  
Rosie  2/27/05 Went down street got some grain at Rosies [Rasier?] went to store, called at G Miller's;  
Rowley  12/26/05 Welch & Rowley came along looking at town lines;  3/5/06 Welch, Sullivan & Rowley Selectmen 
Assessors & Overseers of Poor;  
Russell, Mrs  7/20/07 dressed 4 chickens took them to Mrs Russell & another lady;  

S, Oliser  8/8/00 Oliser [?] S Brought Gertie home;  
Sargent, Mr  6/24/04 Mr Coolidge & Mr Sargent called;  
Sargent, Rev Silas  11/10/07 Burton & I went to Church, Ruth Nelson went with us.  Rev Silas Sargent from Halifax 
preached as a candidate;  11/16/07 Rev Sargent came stayed with us all night;  10/17/07 Rev Sargent preached as a 
candidate, stayed with us;  12/1/07 Mr Sargent preached;  
Sauers  March 1897 Due for shoveling snow [to several men] [Total =] $8.25 + 40;  Received order from Sauers [?] for 
same on Selectmen of Granville;  
Scott, Rev  8/18/07 Rev Scott from So Williamstown preached as a candidate;  
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Severance, Mr  7/8/03 S W Decker and Mr Severance called here in Eve;  
Seymour, E H  4/7/00 Went to East Granville...called to E H Seymour at Holcomb Bros Shop;  11/16/03 E H Seymour 
called inspecting cattle.  Eat his lunch here;  11/20/03 E H Seymour called looked at Sylvia;  
Shaw, Riley  1/7/01 Went over to Riley Shaws to get some hay he was away did not get it;  1/11/01 Drew home a ton of 
hay from Riley Shaw 2 loads with Horse;  2/12/01 2 year old steer meat weighed 375 lbs took fore quarter to Shaw 93 
lbs;  12/23/05 Riley Shaw called in morning;  
Sheets, Albert  12/31/00 Mr Harger & Albert Sheets [called] in afternoon;  1/3/02 Mr Harger and Albert Sheets called;  
11/1/03 Albert Sheets drove my young cattle down I put them in Barn till towards night put them in Fenn lot;  2/16/04 
Albert Sheets came down;  3/15/04 Albert Sheets came down got a calf;  1/27/05 Geo Chaffee & Albert Sheets called 
they were shoveling out the roads;  2/11/05 Albert Sheets watered the cattle at noon;  2/13/05 Albert Sheets done 
chores;  2/18/05 Sherman came over butchered Pig Albert Sheets and Shermie helped, they went home after dinner.  
Albert came down helped do chores stayed all night;  2/19/05 Albert Sheets helped me about doing chores in morning 
and at night;  9/23/05 went down street sawed up some more shingle for shed roof, in forenoon put up a staging and 
shingled in afternoon.  Sheets and Albert came down in afternoon worked awhile;  6/27/05 Albert Sheets came down 
helped me get into the House Well;  7/7/05 Albert Sheets helped me get in some hay west of House;  9/14/05 went to 
the Fair at Blandford.  Albert Sheets went with me;
Sheets, Albert [contd]  9/30/05 Worked at the rowen Albert Sheets helped me;  10/3/05 took 9 sheep to Deckers Albert 
helped;  11/4/05 Butchered Pig 240 lbs.  Sheets and Albert helped me;  12/16/05 Weighed some rye straw for B 
Roberts Albert Sheets helped me;  2/22/06 Butchered pig in afternoon Albert helped me;  3/23/06 Albert Sheets came 
down;  8/7/06 Albert Sheets helped [haying];  8/13/06 got in some hay Albert Sheets helped;  8/23/06 Albert Sheets 
came down we got up part of the sheep;  8/25/06 Sick Em got Albert to do chores;  8/26/05 felt better Albert helped do 
chores;  8/28/06 Went to Winsted...Albert Sheets went with me got a Wheel, he helped me find May she had a calf;  
9/29/06 Albert Sheets helped [haying];  10/1/06 Albert helped [haying];  10/3/06 Albert Sheets helped [haying];  
11/20/06 Butchered a Pig Albert helped me;  12/30/06 Went to bed sick got Albert Sheets to do the chores;  1/2/07 
Albert Sheets doing the chores;  1/8/07 Albert took my young Sow to Booths left her;  2/6/07 drove to Sheets to get 
Albert to do chores tomorrow;  2/11/07 Albert Sheets helped me finish packing Ice;
Sheets, Albert [contd]  2/28/07 Went to the Church helped get Pews up into Gallery.  Miller & Albert helped;  3/7/07 
Went to Sheets & to Nelson in morning.  Butchered Pig, Albert and Mr Nelson helped;  3/14/07 Albert Sheets called;  
3/21/07 John Perkins of Blandford cut wood with his Gasoline Engine Milo, Chan, and Albert helped;  6/27/07 Albert 
Sheets came down we went to Cemetery, we helped B Jones, C H Treat, Mr Coolidge mow it;  7/5/07 Albert helped 
[haying];  7/6/07 got in 2 loads Albert Sheets helped;  7/8/07 helped Albert Sheets hoe Potatoes in forenoon he helped 
me get in 3 loads hay in afternoon;  7/13/07 Albert helped me in afternoon [haying];  8/3/07 Eaton & Albert Sheets 
worked [haying];  8/5/07Albert & Eaton worked [haying];  8/7/07 Wm Eaton & Albert Sheets helped [haying];  8/8/07 Will 
& Albert helped [haying];  9/12/07 Burton and I went to Blandford to the Fair, Albert Sheets went with us;  11/1/07 
Butchered 2 Lambs for Albert Sheets;  11/4/07 Went to Winsted...carried 2 Lambs for Albert Sheets;  11/6/07 Albert 
came down in morning;

Sheets, Albert [contd]  12/27/07 went to bed did not sit up all day.  Albert done chores;  12/28/07 Albert done chores;  

1907 Memoranda Expenses for Haying.  Wm Eaton 181/2 day $25.75.  Albert Sheets $9.00.  Total = $34.75;  
Sheets, Charles A  2/2/00 Went up to Sheets & Harger's in the evening;  2/3/00 drew 9 loads of ice...Chas Sheets 
packed in forenoon;  3/1/00 Went up to Chas Sheets in afternoon;  3/12/00 Mr Sheets & Albert called in eve;  4/20/00 
Slocum & Wife, Sheets & Wife spent the eve here;  5/14/00 Went up to Sheets in eve;  6/18/00 Sheets came with wool 
also Chas Farnham;  7/10/00 Mowed for Sheets in forenoon;  7/17/00 Mowed a piece for Sheets;  7/19/00 put Paris 
Green on Potatoes for Sheets;  8/6/00 killed 2 Lambs had one of them of Sheets;  10/9/00 Sheets called;  11/7/00 
Went to Chas A Sheets to a social, in eve;  11/24/00 Helped Sheets butcher Hargers 2 Pigs;  12/5/00 Frank & I...went 
to Sheets in eve;  12/25/00 Went to Chas Sheets in evening;  12/29/00 Went to Mr Sheets in the morning;  1/18/01 
Chas A Sheets came down in eve;  1/21/01 Went to Chas Sheets in evening;  2/16/01 Cut a large Birch near Sheets 
fence beside the river;  4/29/01 went up to Sheets in eve;  5/6/01 Went to Sheets in eve;  5/20/01 Sheets came down 
got 2 Pigs;  5/31/01 Sheets brought his wool;
Sheets, Charles A [contd]  7/25/01 Sheets came down after Dinner cradled a part of the Rye, I bound it;  7/26/01 
Sheets finished the Rye, in morning.  I mowed for him in afternoon with machine;  8/1/01 Mowed awhile for Sheets;  
8/29/01 drove up to Sheets went down on Frosts upper lot mowed with machine;  9/5/01 Got Sheets and Horse to go to 
Tolland with me finished brought home 2 small loads of hay;  10/19/01 I went to Sheets on an Errand;  10/30/01 Went 
to Sheets on an errand;  11/11/01 Went to Sheets in morning;  1/1/02 went to C Sheets N Harger got some Eggs;  
2/6/02 Wife went to Sheets;  3/17/02 Went up to Sheets in eve;  4/15/02 Sheets came down in Eve;  9/23/02 Went to 
Sheets in Eve;  2/10/03 Went in woods East of Sheets looked around;  2/19/03 Went to G Millers in the morning, and to 
Sheets in afternoon carried Society warrant up;  3/4/03 drove to Sheets, down to Millers got can Oil;  4/3/03 Attended 
prayer meeting at Sheets in Eve;  4/11/03 went to Sheets, in forenoon;  8/1/03 Sheets cut my rye;  9/23/03 cleaned out 
the creamery had to take 2 cans to Sheets got them mended;
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Sheets, Charles A [contd]  10/24/03 Em went to Westfield with Sheets to see Carrie;  11/6/03 Attended Social at C A 
Sheets in Eve 45 present;  12/6/03 went up to Sheets on an Errand in Eve;  12/16/03 Em went to Sheets.  Chaffee sick 
with measels;  12/23/03 Went to Sheets to see how the sick were;  12/26/03 Sheets came down about 2 in morning to 
have me go to East Granville after Nurse Mrs Davis, went got back at 7;  12/27/03 drove to Sheets to see how sick 
were;  2/19/04 Went to Sheets to Prayer meeting;  3/1/04 Went to Sheets in morning;  3/12/04 Sheets came down sold 
him young calf;  5/2/04 Went to Sheets in Eve;  6/14/04 Went to Agawam with wool took Dinner with Dewey Jackson 
stayed all night with S S Bodurtha got 21 cents for wool.  Carried Welch, Decker, Sheets, & Hargers:  365 lbs;  
10/12/04 Went to Sheets just at night;  10/13/04 Went to Sheets in morning;  12/19/04 A Frost got Sheets Buck from 
here;  3/14/05 Em went to Sheets in forenoon and to Millers in afternoon.  M Nelson and Sheets called in the Eve;  
3/21/05 Chas A Sheets called in afternoon;
Sheets, Charles A [contd]  3/25/05 Went to Sheets in Eve, he sent down some Beef;  3/28/05 Went to Sheets in the 
morning saw Harger there;  4/4/05 Sheets called in afternoon;  4/21/05 Sheets came down got 2 small loads hay from 
Fenn place;  5/28/05 went to Prayer meeting in Eve, Sheets led;  6/19/05 Em went to Sheets towards night;  6/23/05 
went down street sawed up some more shingle for shed roof, in forenoon put up a staging and shingled in afternoon.  
Sheets and Albert came down in afternoon worked awhile;  6/29/05 Went to Winsted...brought up a Barrel of Flour for 
Sheets;  7/9/05 prayer meeting in Eve, Sheets led;  7/13/05 Fred worked for Sheets;  7/29/05 Chas Sheets cradled a 
piece of rye in Hog lot;  8/21/05 dug holes for posts between my pasture and Sheets, got 20 Posts of Sheets East of his 
House on Fenn lot;  8/22/05 dug holes and set in Posts for Barbed wire fence between Sheets & me;  8/23/05 finished 
the wire fence between Sheets lot and mine;  9/4/05 Went to Sheets in Eve;  9/12/05 Went to Sheets got his flail;  
9/18/05 Got Sheets to help me clean up the rye;
Sheets, Charles A [contd]  10/10/05 Went to Sheets in Eve;  11/4/05 Butchered Pig 240 lbs.  Sheets and Albert helped 
me;  11/9/05 helped Sheets about packing apples;  12/13/05 Went to Sheets in Eve settled with him;  12/29/05 Annual 
Church Dinner at the Hall and roll call, also business meeting.  S W Decker Clerk C A Sheets Treasurer, about 15 
present;  1905 Memoranda Chas A Sheets  Dr  Apr To Hay;  Sept 22 To Beef $1.10;  Carpet warp $0.75;  Hyderangia 
[sic] $0.50;  1 Chicken $0.50;  Nov 17 Sugar $1.00; sum = $3.85;  Fertilizer $8.85; sum = $12.70;  plus $5.17; sum 
=$17.87;  Paid;  1905 Memoranda Cutting Rye   Chas A Sheets Cr  To 4 lbs Butter @ 25 = $1.00;  Sept 8 5 lbs $1.25;  
22 5 lbs $1.25;  11 lbs Chickens @ 20 $2.20;  Oct 6 7 lbs Butter $1.75;  20 8 lbs $2.00;  Nov 3 10 lbs $2.50;  17 13 lbs 

$3.25;  Dec 1 7 lbs $1.75; 11/2 Doz Eggs $0.60;  sum = $17.55;  plus Rye $0.75;  Posts $1.00;  sum = $19.35 minus 
$17.87 = $1.43;  3 Bags P M 185 = $5.55;  2 Bags K P 165 = $3.30;  sum = $8.85.  Paid;  1905 Memoranda Apr 1905 
Dr to C A Sheets  Apr 10 Due on Butter $0.50;  22 $1.00;  Paid;

Sheets, Charles A  2/6/06 Went to Sheets in Eve;  3/2/06 Went to Sheets in afternoon;  3/21/06 Sheets, Miller, C H 
Treat, and Rev H A Coolidge called in Eve talked over Cemetery Corporation;  5/14/06 Went to G Millers in morning, to 
Nelsons got scalding tub butchered the old Sow Miller & Sheets helped me;  6/20/06 repaired fence between me & 
Sheets, went north got a load rails to fix it;  7/3/06 Went to Winsted bought 2 Grindstones of J L Carroll, $7.  Sheets 

had one of them;  11/22/06 Went to Sheets in Eve;  1906 Memoranda Chas A Sheets Dr  Oct 5th 1 shovel $0.75;  

Benzoine $0.10;  22nd Sugar $1.00;  Tin $0.32;  Nov 1st Stove Reservoir $3.50;  17th sugar $1.00;  1 chicken $0.75;  

Medicine $0.80; sum =$8.22 plus 06 & 07 Fertilizer $15.75 = $23.97;  Billed May 30th 07;  May 31st 07 1 Bag Fertilizer 

$1.85;  Paid;  Next page 1906 Memoranda  Cr  Oct 5th 14 Lbs Butter @ 25 $3.50;  22nd 12 Lbs Butter $3.00;  Nov 1st 12 

$3.00;  21/2 doz Eggs @ 35 $0.87;  17th 7 Lbs Butter @ 30 $2.10;  30th 6 Lbs Butter $1.80;  Dec 14th 5 Butter $1.50;  Apr
Sheets, Charles A [contd]  1/10/07 Went to Sheets in afternoon;  1/25/07 Went to Sheets in morning;  2/6/07 drove to 
Sheets to get Albert to do chores tomorrow;  2/13/07 Miller carried load to Gibbons Hall to caucus.  Sheets, Decker, 
Frisbie, Treat, & I went with him;  3/21/07 John Perkins of Blandford cut wood with his Gasoline Engine...in forenoon, 
and he went to Sheets in afternoon;  3/27/07 Em, Ruth, & I went to Sheets got sugar;  7/16/07 Mowed some for Sheets 
on his back lot;  7/18/07 Mowed with Horse...for Sheets ...Will Eaton worked for him in afternoon;  8/18/07 Gilbert & Lib 
called Em rode to Sheets and around to Deckers with them;  9/20/07 Went to Sheets in Eve to a Social;  11/7/07 Went 
to Sheets;  11/25/07 helped Sheets get up Soules sheep;  11/27/07 Went up to Sheets and into his East woods;  
12/2/07 Cut wood on Sheets on Fenn lot;  12/3/07 Cut wood on Sheets Fenn lot;  12/11/07 Cut wood in afternoon on 
Sheets, Fenn lot;  
Sheets, Harriet  12/7/07 Burtons [7th] birthday.  Harriet Sheets came down stayed awhile with him;  
Sheets, Mrs  10/26/01 Carrie & boy spent the day with Mrs Sheets;  1/4/04 Went to Sheets to see how they were Mrs S 
has measles;  2/20/04 Mrs Sheets & Children Mr Coolidge the Pastor & Wife & baby came in afternoon;  1/21/06 
Prayer meeting in Eve, Mrs Sheets led;  7/22/06 Prayer meeting in Eve, Mrs Sheets led;  3/16/07 Mrs Harger and Mrs 
Sheets called in afternoon;  3/28/07 Mrs Sheets helped paper in afternoon;  
Sheperd, Mrs  2/15/01 Went to Winsted, took a quarter of Beef to L Humphrey & one to Mrs Sheperd;  
Slocum  1/17/04 A Treat called in Evening going to his work on Slocum Job;  
Slocum, Clifford  5/23/05 Went to P L C Slocum to the funeral of his Son Clifford aged 24 years died in Hartford Ct of 
Heart Disease;  
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Slocum, Fred  7/12/03 Fred Slocum and Will Webber of Tolland called took supper;  7/23/05 Fred Slocum took Harry to 
Westfield he is going back to his work Glens Falls;  
Slocum, O E  4/20/00 Slocum & Wife Sheets & Wife spent the eve here;  5/16/00 Went to O E Slocum got a bushel 
Potatoes;  9/30/00 Went to Church Mrs Hyde & sister Mrs Peck went with us they went to Slocums after tea;  11/2/00 
Went to Slocums;  5/6/01 sawed for Slocum;  11/9/01 carried some Pigs to H H Marshall.  Carrie went to Slocums with 
me;  9/30/02 Went to Tolland paid taxes called to Milo Marshalls & E Slocum;  11/3/02 O E Slocum sent me $8.00 to 
apply on acc't;  12/12/02 Went to O E Slocums in Eve to a Social;  1/24/03 got a load of saw dust from Slocum lot in 
forenoon & one in afternoon for bedding;  1/26/03 drew 3 loads of logs to Roberts mill on Slocum lot;  2/26/03 Harry & I 
went over on Slocum lot to Burt Roberts mill drew in my logs;  2/27/03 took a log to Cables for shingle, went to Roberts 
mill on Slocum lot drew out my lumber;  5/2/03 Harry went to Roberts mill on Slocum lot got some posts;  5/5/03 Oliver 
E Slocum came over in Eve got 4 Bags Fertilizer;  10/13/05 Oliver E Slocum came got a young calf;  11/20/06 A 
wedding at O E Slocums;  

Slocum, Mrs O E  1/4/01 Mrs O E Slocum Died aged 64 yrs;  [Newspaper clipping] Mrs Watson I Hale, 43, died after a 
short illness of typhoid fever.  Watson Hale is stopping in Winsted, Ct, where his youngest son is quite ill with typhoid 
fever.  Jan 4 Mrs O E Slocum died, aged 64.  Mrs Slocum was mother of the late Mrs Hale and cared for her in her last 

illness;  1/6/01 Attended funeral of Mrs Slocum at house burial at Winsted Text Psalms 17th chapter 15th verse ["As for 
me, I will behold thy face in righteousness:  I will be satisfied when I awake, with thy likeness"];  
Slocum, P L C  10/21/02 P L C Slocum came in morning bought 2 Pigs;  10/13/03 P Slocum came got 3 Pigs;  5/23/05 
Went to P L C Slocum to the funeral of his Son Clifford aged 24 years died in Hartford Ct of Heart Disease;  7/18/05 
Harry...went to P L Slocum on his wheel stayed all night;  
Smith, Atwell P  [1901 Memoranda]  J H Williams 34 Harrison Ave Springfield Mass, Payee of Interest on Atwell P 
Smith note held by Charitable Assn;  

Smith, Betsy  6/19/03 Went to Winsted with Butter Eggs Potatoes & Lamb brought Lovina Breckenridge & Betsy Smith 
home with me;  6/21/03 Made some Ice Cream Lib played on Organ Lovina & Sister Smith sung;  6/26/03 took Em, 
Lovina B, & Betsy Smith to Tolland took Dinner with Len & Lib;  6/27/03 took Em & Sister Smith to Westfield they took 
Trolley for Amherst to visit Frank;  6/29/03 Harry went to Westfield got Em & Sister Smith;  6/30/03 Carried Sister Smith 
to Warren Hawleys Cold Spring, met Henry Spring there Lovina went with us;  
Smith, D P  9/13/05 recieved letter from D P Smith Waupaca Wis;  

Smith, Dimock [S Dimock, Emeline's brother]  8/15/00 Went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs took dinner with Orpha.  Ira, 
Dim, & Lovina there & Myrtie, she & Mary Welch came home with me;  1/7/04 went on the River below bridge on 
Nelsons cut a load of Ice drew it home.  S D Smith here;  11/23/05 Dimock Smith came just at night stayed all night;  
11/24/05 Carried Dimock Smith to Booths Hartland;  2/1/06 S D Smith came and stayed all night;  2/3/06 Dimock Smith 
here;  2/5/06 Em & I went to P Miners Dim went with us;  3/28/06 Wife & I went to Tolland...Met J Northway & S D 
Smith at Sisters took Dinner there;  2/7/07 Went to Winsted...noon Trolley to Torrington...funeral of Wm F 
Breckenridge...S D Smith, Mrs J G Spear, & Stilman Breckenridge there;  2/8/07 Dimock & I called on Dr Moore;  
Smith, Elbridge E  May 1896 Dog owners Elbridge E Smith 1;  12/21/05 Wrote to E E Smith Springfield;  
Smith, Miss Eva  4/30/05 Went to prayer in the Evening, led the meeting, Ruth and Miss Smith rode up with me;  4/1/06 
prayer meeting in Eve.  Miss Smith came;  4/2/06 Miss Eva Smith commenced Ore hill School, boarding here;  4/8/06 
Went to Church, Wife and Teacher went with me;  4/10/06 Carried teacher to School in morning;  4/13/06 Teacher 
went to Tolland in Stage;  5/16/06 prayer meeting at the Hall in Eve, Teacher went with me;  8/27/07 Mrs Deming, Eva 
Smith, & Len came over took dinner;  
Smith, Fannie  12/1/04 Went to Winsted with Eggs & Butter...Went to Orpha's got Fannie Smith brought her home with 
me;  12/4/04 Went to Church, Fannie went with us;  12/9/04 Went to Westfield took Wife and Fannie Smith, left them to 
Carrie's;  
Smith, George  4/13/02 We all went to Church, George Smith was there;  11/12/05 Geo Smith from New Bedford at 
Church;  
Smith, Hattie  1/4/99 Due Hattie E Smith for rent of her place from Poudra $13.14.  Poudra paid tax $9.36 + Discount 
on rent $7.50 = $16.86.  Rent was $30.00 minus $16.86 = $13.14;  11/15/00 drove to C D Treat's paid Hattie Smith tax; 
6/5/01 Saw Hattie at Orpha Spears [Winsted];  4/24/03 Went down street took some nails to shingle Hattie's House the 
Boys went with me.  Went to Roberts mill got 2 loads lumber in afternoon;  4/25/03 took some Boards to Hattie's 
House;  1903 Memoranda  Frank Harrington Dr  To Hattie Smith for rent of place $40.  Cr Cash $30.  Balance due for 

rent April 15th $10;  Received of James Hunt on the rent of Hattie Smith place Nov 2nd $12.50;  Jan 25th '04 Cash 

$10.00;  Feb 19th '04 $5.00;  July 16th '04 $10.00;  [total =] $37.50;  [plus] Harrington $10 [=] $47.50;  Due from James 

Hunt on rent $6.67 for Year Ending July 1st 1904;
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Smith, Hattie [contd]  1903  Hattie E Smith Dr  To 5000 shingle cedar $3.70;  Shingle and 1000 cheap shingle $2.50 
per M;  1000 of J Welch $4.10;  330 feet Boards;  Shingle Nails $0.80;  Hanover laying shingle and making well curb 
$12.00;  Shingle $25.10;  Boards $3.30;  Nails $0.80;  Expense [total =] $41.20;  Hattie Smith Cr $10.00 money 
received of Harrington;  received of J Hunt Sept $5.00;  Oct $5.00;  Nov 2nd $2.50;  Feb $5.00;  [total = $]37.50;  Paid 
Merrick L Co for shingle for Hattie Smith House $21.00;  Paid Joseph Welch $4.00;  Nails $1.30;  Roof Boards $3.50;  
[total =$]29.80;  [plus] Miller for Drawing Hanover for Shingle $12.00; [total =$]41.80;  Recieved of rent $32.50;  Hattie 
Smith Brought forward.  Expense for Shingling House $41.80;  Paid 1904 Tax $8.80;  [sum =$]50.60;  [minus] Received 
of rent $47.50;  Balance $3.10;  Received of James Hunt July 05, Balance on rent $6.00;  Due from Frank Harrington 
$10.00;  $6.00 [minus $]3.10 [= $]2.90;  $47.50 [+] $6 [= $]53.50;  Sent check Jan 1, '06 [?] to Balance;  
Smith, Ira W  8/15/00 Went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs took dinner with Orpha.  Ira, Dim, & Lovina there & Myrtie, 
she & Mary Welch came home with me;  8/16/00 Ira & Wife came in eve;  8/17/00 Ira & Wife stayed till 3 PM, had 
Orpha's team;  8/9/03 Went to Church Rev I W Smith preached came here to lunch.  Called on Campers at Nelsons in 
Eve;  4/15/06 Wrote to Ira in Eve;  
Smith, Jack  8/22/02 Went to A Frosts mowed some with machine.  Jack Smith & H Treat came there to work for A 
Frost;  
Smith, L  1/2/00 received a letter from Smith Agt Fertilizer Co;  
Smith, Lawrence  11/11/05 Carried A Frost to the cemetery and B Jones fixed the stones of Mr & Mrs Smith, Frost, 
Lawrence Smith, & Burts [Cyrus's son Burton];  
Smith, Theda  10/10/01 Went to Winsted...Met Theda Smith at Orpha's;  5/8/02 Lovina Breckenridge & Theda Smith 
came about 1 o'clock;  5/11/02 Went to Church took Lovina.  Theda walked down with Harry;  5/12/02 Harry & Theda 
went to PO in Eve;  5/17/02 Harry, Theda Smith, and Ruth Nelson went to Harry Clark's to a surprise party;  5/21/02 
Went to Ladies Society...Lovina and Theda went down;  5/22/02 Carried Em, Lovina, & Theda to Tolland took Dinner.  
Theda & I went after wintergreen berries after we got home;  

Smith, Weld I  1903 Weld I Smith 194 Brown St Waltham Mass;  1906 Weld I Smith 247 Moody St Waltham Mass;  
Snow  6/24/05 Wife and I went to Westfield she done some trading went through Granville Center.  Brought out some 
of Carries things she left at Snows;  8/16/05 took Hubbard & Eaton down street called on B F Jones, Mr Coolidge.  
Hubbard called on Snow;  
Snow, A  2/24/03 Wife & I went to New Boston to J Northway's, he had gone to Winsted took Dinner there called at A 
Snow & J P Hall's & at Len;  
Soule, Andrew J  5/9/00 Soule came to shear sheep;  5/10/00 Soule finished shearing sheep;  5/17/01 Soule sheared 
the sheep;  10/21/01 drove to Uhl's place got Sam Gibbs came back to A Soule drove sheep into his barn caught 9 
brought them home;  5/29/02 Soule came to shear sheep;  5/30/02 Soule sheared sheep;  9/14/02 A Soule family at 
Church;  4/24/03 A Soule called just at night;  11/24/03 took cow Sylvia to Mrs Noble Granville $42.50, rode back with 
Soules team;  5/18/04 Andrew Soule called been shearing sheep;  5/31/04 A Soule came;  6/1/04 A Soule helped me 
get up sheep he sheared them;  6/8/04 Went to Tolland County Commission met, had hearing on Soules road;  6/23/04 
Went to A Soule E Otis in forenoon got a young calf;  5/12/05 A Soule came sheared my sheep;  6/13/05 A Soule & 
Wife called;  5/21/06 Got up the sheep.  Expected Soule to shear them he did not come;  5/24/06 A J Soule sheared 
my sheep;  5/21/07 A Soule came in afternoon to shear sheep;  5/22/07 Soule finished shearing sheep in forenoon;  
7/2/07 A J Soule called;

Soule, Andrew J [contd]  11/25/07 helped Sheets get up Soules sheep;  11/26/07 Albert came down got Soules sheep;  
Spear, Graham  8/28/00 Went to Winsted...Orpha & Graham came up stayed all night;  8/29/00 Orpha & Graham 
Spear were here visited with them;  8/30/00 Orpha & Graham went home;  5/5/02 Orpha Spear & Graham came stayed 
all night;  
Spear, J G  12/7/03 started for Winsted about 8, took Butter carried a Pig to Ed Ransom, weighed 70 lbs.  Called at J G 
Spears he was at home;  6/17/04 Went to Winsted with Butter and Eggs...took Dinner with Orpha, Mr Spear sick 
confined to bed;  1906 J G Spear 33 Meringo Park Springfield Mass;  
Spear, Orpha [nee Brown]  6/15/00 took Carrie to Winsted took dinner with Orpha Spear;  8/15/00 Went to Winsted 
with Butter & Eggs took dinner with Orpha.  Ira, Dim, & Lovina there, & Myrtie she & Mary Welch came home with me;  
8/17/00 Ira & Wife stayed till 3 PM, had Orpha's team;  8/28/00 Went to Winsted with Butter & Eggs.  Harry came back.  
Orpha & Graham came up stayed all night;  8/29/00 Orpha & Graham Spear were here visited with them;  8/30/00 
Orpha & Graham went home;  10/3/00 Went to Winsted...took...7 bushel Potatoes to Orpha 70 cts;  10/4/00 Orpha & 
Estella Nichols of Washington DC spent the night;  10/5/00 Orpha & friend started for Southwick about 9;  10/30/00 
Wife & I went to Winsted took some Potatoes Butter to Mrs Spear took Dinner there;  6/5/01 Saw Hattie at Orpha 
Spears [Winsted];  10/10/01 Went to Winsted...Met Theda Smith at Orpha's;  11/18/01 Went to Winsted carried 9 
Bushel Potatoes to Orpha Spear, took dinner there;  12/12/01 Wife & I went to Winsted took Dinner with Orpha;  5/5/02 
Orpha Spear & Graham came stayed all night;
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Spear, Orpha [nee Brown]  10/9/02 Went to Winsted...brought up 3 barrels from Orpha's;  11/13/02 Went to Winsted 
with Potatoes to Spear;  6/17/04 Went to Winsted with Butter and Eggs...took Dinner with Orpha, Mr Spear sick 
confined to bed;  10/15/04 Went to Winsted with apples and Potatoes got 4 cts [per] Bushel for apples 60 cts for 
Potatoes, took 2 bushel to Orpha, at 70 cts;  12/1/04 Went to Winsted with Eggs & Butter...Went to Orpha's got Fannie 
Smith brought her home with me;  5/19/05 Went to Winsted...Went to Orphas she was all packed ready to move to 
Springfield;  2/7/07 Went to Winsted...noon Trolley to Torrington...funeral of Wm F Breckenridge...S D Smith, Mrs J G 
Spear, & Stilman Breckenridge there;  
Spencer, Rev  11/3/07 Spencer from Amherst preached a good Sermon;  

Sperry, Mrs Julia  1896 Mrs Julia Sperry Property sold:  Cattle $51.50;  Grass $10.00;  4 Hens $2.00;  Manure $5.00, 
Total $68.50.  Real Estate $175.00;  May 19 sold the Real Estate for $200, and Deeded it to Mary A Downs May 24 
received check for same;  1897 Estate of Julia Sperry Dr:  C W Ives expense to Springfield to Probate court $4.00;  
March 14 Inventory $1.50;  March 14 Probate court $4.00;  May 14 Paid V E Barnes Mortgage + Int $70.00;  Paid W W 
Wallace $7.00;  Paid Town Granville 1896 $61.50;  Paid C Decker $3.75;  Paid H Blakesly $4.00;  
Spring, Henry  6/30/03 Carried Sister Smith to Warren Hawleys Cold Spring, met Henry Spring there Lovina went with 
us;  

Squiers, Rev Mr  1/18/02 Rev Mr Squiers came spent the night;  1/19/02 Went to Church Rev Squiers from Vt 
preached as a candidate was liked very well.  Stayed all night with us;  1/20/02 Rev Squiers left on Stage in morning;  

Stanard  5/18/03 Stanard brought his wool;  1903 Memoranda Wool 171/2 cts Sold at 19 cts;  Bought of Newton 89 

[=$]15.05 [calc=$15.575];  Stanard 411/2 [=$]7.25 [calc = $7.2625];  Brunk 61/2 [=$]1.13 [calc=$1.1375];  Miller 47 = 
[$]8.90 [calc = $8.225];  A Frost 19 $3.61 [calc = $3.325];  [sum =]201 [calc = 203];  Amount Wool 343;  

Stancliff, Mrs  11/4/03 Got a Barrel of apples at Mrs Stancliff to carry to Winsted for her;  3/9/06 Mrs Stancliff called;  
11/8/06 Went down street in the morning carried 2 chickens to Mrs Stancliff;  6/14/07 Went to Winsted with Eggs and 
Butter Mrs Stancliff rode down with me;  
Stannard, Morgan  8/27/02 M Stanard came up Lib sick.  Went over got Len to go back with him;  [Newspaper clipping] 
Morgan Stannard, a veteran of the civil war, died Dec 5, aged 70;  
Stevens, Fred  10/12/05 Fred Stevens & Wife called in Eve;  11/16/05 Fred Stevens got 2 Pigs;  11/21/07 W Bates & 
Fred Stevens came after Pigs;  
Stevens, P  2/16/05 Decker here doing chores, he...went to P Stevens in afternoon to Dr cow;  

Stewart  6/5/03 Frank Thompson rode [from Winsted] up to Hartland with me, & Stewart to Riverton from Hartland;  
Stone, Miss Lizzie  8/3/02 Stone Girls at Nelsons;  8/17/02 Miss Lizzie Stone spoke in evening about her work among 
the colored folks at the South;  
Stone, Rev  8/4/00 Rev Stone from Westchester Ct preached;  
Stone, Rev E  6/16/00 Rev E Stone came stayed all night;  6/17/00 Church Rev E Stone preached as a candidate took 
him to Tolland Children's exercises there;  
Stratton, J W  4/2/06 J W Stratton called;  
Sullivan  3/5/06 Welch, Sullivan, & Rowley Selectmen Assessors & Overseers of Poor;  
Sullivan, Jerry  10/4/00 Jerry Sulivan [sic] came over got 3 Pigs;  
Sutherland, Rev  10/21/00 The funeral of Mrs G M Miller at 2 PM, Rev Sutherland preached the sermon;  
Swanson, John  3/31/06 Went to Millers in morning and to John Swansons [Swensons?] got a little calf;  

Sweet, C D  May 22, 1897 Estate of Georgia Hotchkiss Received of Winsted Savings Bank $100.  Paid E M Northrop 
$35.00; Alice Catlin $18.58 [?]; C D Sweet $18.00; Fannie Metcalf $3.00; J E Pine $12.00; Mary E Acker $8.14;  
Swift, Joe  11/3/02 Harry drew a load of wood to Joe Swift & one to C Frisbie;  
Sylvia [cow]  1902 [memoranda] Sylvia due Feb 20[th] '03;  11/20/03 E H Seymour called looked at Sylvia;  11/24/03 
took cow Sylvia to Mrs Noble Granville $42.50, rode back with Soules team;  

Terrell, Mrs A  9/3/03 Went to Winsted by way of Club House took Gertie & Mertie down.  Got Horse shod called on 
Mrs A Terrell;  
Terrett, C W  12/11/00 Went to Terretts with Nellie a cow;  3/19/01 drove to C W Terretts down to A Frost;  
Terrett, Malvina  8/27/01 took Mrs Hall to Malvina Terretts;  
Thompson, B  5/28/03 Harry went to B Thompsons W Hartland sheared sheep;  5/29/03 Harry came home from 
Thompson;  
Thompson, Frank  6/5/03 Frank Thompson rode [from Winsted] up to Hartland with me, & Stewart to Riverton from 
Hartland;  
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Tiffany, D  10/3/01 helped Frank cut a little corn dug a few Potatoes.  Called on Truman Coe a few moments just at 
night.  Went with Frank to D Tiffany in eve;  
Tiffany, Loomis  3/23/07 Went to Westfield with team, took Trolley to Amherst.  Stayed with Frank, all night.  Called on 
Loomis Tiffany, Hadley;  
Tift, Augusta R  May 1896 Dog Owners Agusta [sic] R Tift 1;  
Tift, [Fift?] William C  1896 Poll tax payer;  
Tilden  7/16/02 Went to Society in afternoon drove to Frost's.  Mr Bates married Tilden & Phelae [?] Huamason [?] of 
Otis they were to Society;  
Tinker, M P  10/28/01 took 2 Pigs to M P Tinker Granville took a few apples to Holcomb Bros;  4/17/05 Sent 2 Pigs to M 
P Tinker;  
Treat, Asa  1897 Paid by Town of Granville Asa Treat $0.50;  March 1897 Due for shoveling snow Asa Treat 5 hours 
$0.75;  1/17/04 A Treat called in Evening going to his work on Slocum Job;  
Treat, Charles D  6/2/00 Went to a surprise party at C D Treat, presented Charlie & Wife a Couch;  10/29/00 Went to C 
D Treat's to see about books for Library;  11/15/00 drove to C D Treat's paid Hattie Smith tax;  11/21/02 Went to Chas 
D Treats in Eve to a Social a good number there;  1/3/05 Went to the Hall to Library meeting F A Robinson, C D Treat, 
G Miller, and myself there;  9/18/05 went to C D Treats got fanning mill;  12/11/06 Chas Treat came got the Buck;  
9/10/07 took Buck to Deckers, went to C D Treats got fanning mill;  
Treat, Mrs Charles D  6/2/00 Went to a surprise party at C D Treat, presented Charlie & Wife a Couch;  5/21/01 Mrs 
Treat called in eve;  
Treat, C H  5/13/00 Went to Church C H Treat & Bride out;  10/17/03 took 2 Lambs to C H Treat brought home Fanning 
Mill;  11/4/03 Carried a Lamb to Chas H Treat;  1905 Memoranda Fertilizer C Treat 2 bags $3.60;  3/21/06 Sheets, 
Miller, C H Treat, and Rev H A Coolidge called in Eve talked over Cemetery Corporation;  5/12/06 Went with Chas H 
Treat to J W Phelon in Eve;  2/27/07 C H Treat & Wife called, brought Buck home;  6/27/07 Albert Sheets came down 
we went to Cemetery, we helped B Jones, C H Treat, Mr Coolidge mow it;  
Treat, G G  9/5/01 G G Treat died in California;  
Treat, George W  1/31/00 drew ice from the River G W Treat cut;  2/1/00 drew 8 loads ice from the River 16 inches 
thick.  Geo W Treat cut;  2/2/00 Cut and drew 7 loads of ice Geo W Treat helped me;  2/19/00 Went to Geo Treat 
settled with him;  4/15/00 Miss Ellen Fowler died at Geo W Treat at 11 AM.  Em & I went down there in afternoon W 
Munn & Wife there;  5/28/00 helped Geo Treat kill calf;  6/13/00 Went to Geo W Treat's to Ladies Society in eve;  
7/23/00 Went to G Millers & G Treats in evening;  7/27/00 Mowed a piece for Geo Treat on Latham place;  9/5/00 
Carried Wife to Ladies Society called to G Treats, J W Gibbs & Wife & Wesley Gibbs there;  1/1/02 Called at G Miller, 
G Treat, Store, Linus Barnes took Dinner with S W Decker in afternoon went to C Sheets N Harger got some Eggs;  
1/6/02 went to Geo Treats in Eve they have measles there;  1/7/02 Wife went to Geo Treats to help care of measles 

patients;  3/8/02 went down street towards night called at Treats & Linus Barnes;  5/6/02 Went to G W Treat got 1/2 a 
pig;  6/23/02 took Wife to Mrs G W Treat's;

Treat, George W [contd]  12/16/02 went to Welchs store called at G Treats G Miller;  3/13/03 Went to G Treats in Eve 
to a prayer meeting;  3/23/03 Went in afternoon to G Millers, G Treats, Store, & Harrington.  Bridge at Valley brook 
down;  5/1/03 Went to prayer meeting to Geo Treats;  9/18/03 Went to Prayer meeting at Geo Treats in Eve;  9/19/03 
dug Potatoes Geo Treat helped me awhile;  9/21/03 dug Potatoes in the forenoon, Geo Treat helped me awhile;  
12/28/03 Geo Treat came in Eve to borrow a wagon wheel;  12/29/03 G Treat called in Eve;  1/11/04 drove to Geo 
Treats, called G Miller's;  4/22/04 attended prayer meeting at G Treat;  5/23/04 went to Treats got drag;  5/31/04 Went 
down street stuck up some boards drove to Gorham place called to Parsonage, Store, and G Treats repaired fence up 
north;  7/26/04 Carried Wife to Geo Treats in morning;  2/28/05 Shermie Decker came in morning with G Treats Horse 
got my sleigh for his mother to go to Winsted;  5/17/05 weighed out some hay for Geo Treat, 375 lbs;  6/28/05 finished 
hoeing Potatoes and corn, Geo Treat helped me part of the day;
Treat, George W [contd]  9/29/05 Set a shoe on G Treat's Horse;  1905 Memoranda Geo W Treat Dr Apr To 2 Bushel 
Potatoes $0.80; May To 375 Hay $1.88; sum = $2.68;  June 28 work Cr $0.70;  balance = $1.90  Paid;  5/17/06 Planted 
Potatoes Geo W Treat helped;  7/6/06 Geo Treat helped me got in 2 loads [hay];  7/7/06 Geo Treat helped me part of 
the day;  7/16/06 got in 3 loads [hay], Geo Treat helped me;  7/25/06 Geo Treat worked part of the day [haying];  

7/30/06 Settled with Geo Treat for haying;  1906 Memoranda  Geo W Treat, work.  July 6th 61/2 hours;  7th 51/2;  10th 

11/2;  11th 5, 61/2;  12th 7;  13th 61/2, 7;  [sum =] 32 Hours[.]  July 16th 7, 1/2;  17th 4;  18th 41/2;  19th 8;  20th 61/2;  25th 61/2;  

26th 7;  [sum =] 751/2[.]  15x76 = $11.40 [minus] [$]2.63 [= $]8.77;  1906 Memoranda Geo W Treat  Dr  July 14th To 

Rope .55 cts;  Ham $1.58;  Potatoes $0.25;  16th 1/2 Butter $0.13;  18th 1 Doz Eggs $0.25;  [sum = $]2.63;  2/13/07 
Miller carried load to Gibbons Hall to caucus.  Sheets, Decker, Frisbie, Treat, & I went with him;  6/29/07 Geo W Treat 
helped me hoe Potatoes;  
Treat, Mrs George W  1/13/03 Mrs Geo W Treat called just at night took supper with us;  2/21/04 Went to Prayer 
meeting in Eve, Mrs Geo Treat led;  10/2/04 went to prayer meeting in Eve Mrs Geo Treat led;  [Inside back cover of 
"Town Accounts book"]  Mrs Treat $106.90;  
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Treat, H  8/22/02 Went to A Frosts mowed some with machine.  Jack Smith & H Treat came there to work for A Frost;  
Tucker, Major  1/1/06 Wife & I went to Sister J S [Len] Ives took Dinner Major Tucker and Benj Mills of New Boston 
came took Dinner also;  11/4/06 Went to Church...Pat, Len and Major Tucker attended;  
Twining  5/30/02 Twining & Brazee from Westfield came early in morning fishing.  Hays, Carl, and 3 others came later, 
did not catch many;  

Uhl  10/21/01 drove to Uhl's [Vehl's?] place got Sam Gibbs came back to A Soule drove sheep into his barn caught 9 
brought them home;  
Underwood, Rev Mr 10/3/03 Mr Underwood from Long Meadow came stayed all night;  10/4/03 Rev Underwood 
preached an Excellent Sermon.  Miller carried him to Tolland, he held a meeting in Hall in Eve;  9/5/03 Rev Underwood 
returned by Stage;  

Wachter, Theo  1902 memoranda Dec 11  Dr to Theo Watchter [?]  4 Bags Cot seed $6.00;  4 Bags mixed feed $4.40;  
Dec 19  4 Bags  $4.40;  2 cot seed $3.00;  1 corn $1.50;  1 Oats [blank];  29  3 Bags Mixed Feed $3.30;  31  3 Bags 
Cot Seed $4.50;  Oats [blank];  Jan 23  12 Bags Bran $13.20;  Feb 4 Oats [blank];  [total = $40.30];  Dec 11 Cash To 
Theo Watcher $5.00;  31 Cash $5.00;  Jan 15 Cash $10.00;  March 12 Cash $10.00;  3/29/03 Went to Riverton took 5 
Barrels of apples, sent by Wachter to Winsted to ship to H H Fenn;  9/30/03 Went to Winsted got Barrel flour at 
Woodruffs $5.65 some grain at Watchers;  11/18/04 took 4 Barrels of apples to Riverton sent by Wachter to Winsted to 
go to H H Fenn;  5/26/05 Went to Winsted took 2 pigs to Theo Wachter, and 2 bushel potatoes;  7/8/05 Started about 7 
for Woodruffs Feed mill got a Barrel of Flour, some grain at Wachter, got home about 2;  8/19/05 went to 
Winsted...brought up some grain from Wachter;  
Wachter, Theo [contd]  11/14/05 put up 2 Barrels of apples, 1 to send to Hartford, 1 to H H Fenn Meriden Ct.  Carried 
them to Riverton, Wachter to take them to Winsted;  1905 Memoranda Dr To Theo Wachter March 3.  1 Bag meal 
$1.20;  80 Rye Bran $1.40,  $1.12;  2 Bags Cotton Seed $2.90;  5 Bags Mixed feed at $1.25, $6.25.  Cr To Theo 
Wachter March 3 Check F L Dutton $3.75;  Cash $5.00;  March 27 Cash $5.00;  Apr 20 Cash $5.00;  April 22 Check 
$7.50;  1905 Memoranda Theo Wachter Jan 10 1 Bag meal $1.30; 2 Bags Cotton seed; 1 Rye Bran; 1 Oats; Cr Cash 
$10.  16th 3 Bags Cotton 145 $4.35;  5 Bags W Mixed Feed 125 $6.25;  2 Bags Feed;  10/27/06  Went to Riverton took 
4 Barrels of apples to Wachter to go to Fenn;  3/5/07 Went to Riverton got load of Grain of Wachter, broke Double run 
sleighs coming home;  
Waldron, Rev  1/11/03 Rev Waldron of Otis preached by Exchange;  1/14/03 Carried Em to Hall in afternoon Ladies 
Society took supper with them.  Rev Mr Waldron of Otis delivered a lecture on Hawaian Islands;  4/17/03 Attended 
meeting at Church Carrie went with me.  Rev Waldron of Otis spoke;  
Wallace, W W   1897 Paid by Town of Granville W W Wallace for shoveling snow $1.80;  Paid W W Wallace $7.00 
[from the Estate of Julia Sperry];  March 1897 Due for shoveling snow x W Wallace 5 hours x $0.75;  

Ward, Dr  2/7/05 Chapman boys watered the cattle Fred stayed all night and done chores.  Mr Coolidge called said I 

needed a Dr so called Ward from New Boston.  Came about 10 found temperature 104 left medicine for 1/2 hour;  
2/8/05 Dr Ward came about 10 AM said I had no fever left me medicine.  S W Decker came to stay and help take care 
of me and do chores;  12/31/06 Sick in bed with Grippe.  Mr Coolidge called to see me and Telephoned for Dr Ward of 
N Boston he came over;  1/1/07 Dr Ward of New Boston called to see me left medicine;  3/12/07 Em & I went to New 
Boston to John Northway called to Dr Ward's got some medicine for my Rheumatism, called to Pats;  

Warner, Frank  March 1897 Due for shoveling snow Frank Warner 40 [cents?];  

Watson, Mr  5/18/00 Mr Watson of New Marlboro stayed all night;  5/19/00 Mr Watson started for home in afternoon;  
Watson  7/30/03 Watson of Westfield fed horse and got Dinner;  
Webber, Will   7/12/03 Fred Slocum and Will Webber of Tolland called took supper;  
Webster, George  5/16/00 Webster helped me [plant potatoes];  8/13/00 Eaton, Webster, Harry, & I went to Otis 
Reservoir after Bullheads caught some;  12/18/00 Cut bushes in pasture, Geo Webster helped me about 3 hours in 
afternoon;  
Weiman, J  2/25/04 Charles and True Ives and J Weiman [?] here at noon with loads of goods for Westfied;  



Page 63 PTI1977

Welch, Joseph  May 1896 Dog owners Joseph Welch 1;  4/5/00 Chas Kent from New Britain passing with a Dog killed 
a Lamb.  Went to Welch's to see him, gone;  5/4/00 J Brodrik [?] came went to Welch's got a box of tiles took them to 
him;  8/30/00 took a Barrel of apples to Welch for Brodrik;  3/4/01 Went to Welch in morning got a discharge paper 
made out for Magranis;  9/21/01 drove to Welch's store in evening;  10/15/01 took Wife to Deckers & to Welchs just at 
night;  7/4/02  Wife & I went to Picnic in Welch's yard;  9/18/02 Harry carried Welch's roll home drew dirt;  12/16/02 
went to Welchs store called at G Treats, G Miller;  1/17/03 Went to Westfield got pump for Barn well brought back 
some grain for Welch;  1903 Memoranda Paid Merrick L Co for shingle for Hattie Smith House $21.00;  Paid Joseph 
Welch $4.00;  6/13/04 Went to Welchs got his wool;  6/14/04 Went to Agawam with wool took Dinner with Dewey 
Jackson stayed all night with S S Bodurtha got 21 cents for wool.  Carried Welch, Decker, Sheets, & Hargers:  365 lbs;  

11/10/04 took 1/2 Pig to Welch 137 lbs 7 cts per lb;

Welch, Joseph [contd]  12/21/04 Went to Welchs to Ladies Society in Eve;  5/24/05 planted some sweet corn west of 
orchard.  Went to Welch store got some more to plant in afternoon;  12/22/05 Ward Coe called on his way to Wech's 
[meant Welch's?] with a dead pig;  12/26/05 Welch & Rowley came along looking at town lines;  3/5/06 Welch, Sullivan, 
& Rowley Selectmen, Assessors, & Overseers of Poor;  1906 taxes Joseph Welch, $153.60;  3/7/07 Butchered 

Pig...took 1/2 to Joe Welch;  3/18/07 Went to Welchs Store got 2 barrels and pay for Pork;  1/26/07 went to Millers and 
Welch store got K Oil;  April 1914  Estate of Emeline O Ives Paid Joseph Welch $0.50;  
Welch, L E  1905 Reciept for Registered Mail:  Letter No. 5  PO W Granville  Jan 28, 1905 from C W Ives addressed to 
Harry F Hakes Albany NY 1 class postage prepaid.  Postmaster, per L E Welch;  
Welch, Mary  8/15/00 Went to Winsted...took dinner with Orpha.  Ira, Dim, & Lovina there & Myrtie, she & Mary Welch 
came home with me;  7/25/02 Harry carried his Sisters & Mary Welch to Winsted;  8/1/02 Went to Winsted...Mary 
Welch rode up with me;  8/13/03 Went to Winsted...Grace Pendleton & Mary Welch rode down with me;  8/11/04 Went 
to Winsted with Butter & Eggs calf & Lamb.  Mary Welch rode down with me;  8/11/05 Went to Winsted...brought up 
Mary Welch & Grace Pendleton;  10/5/06 Went to Winsted with Eggs & Butter Mary Welch went down with me;  
10/22/06 Went to Winsted...Mary Welch came up with me;  
Wetherwax  3/24/04 Eaton and Wetherwax called;  
Wheeler, Mrs Vashti Merrill  4/2/00 Len brought Lib over here in the morning.  I carried her to Mrs Wheeler's 
Barkhamsted Ct;  11/30/00 Frank & I went to Riverton to Pleseant Valley up to Barkhamsted to Dinner at Mrs Wheeler.  
Saw Lib awhile came home;  3/3/01 took Len to Mrs Wheelers, brought Em back.  Lib a little better;  3/10/01 Carried 
Em to Barkhamsted to Mrs Wheelers to take care of Lib for a few days Pat went down got Len;  3/16/01 went to Mrs 
Vashti Wheeler after my Wife Lib was not able to be left alone so left her and came home;  3/22/01 drove to 
Barkhamsted to Mrs Wheeler's, got my wife Lib so she can get about a little;  
White, George  2/5/03 Called on Dr Moore and Albert Breckenridge [in Torrington], took train to Waterbury.  Went to 
Geo White [former husband of the late Jennie Brown] 102 Charles St took Dinner.  Went with Mrs White to Bank St 
called on Mrs Joice [?], returned to White stayed all night;  2/6/03 left Whites on Charles St went to Mill plain called on L 
Barnes took Dinner, took 6:15 train to Meriden stayed with Mr Fenn;  [Addresses, back of 1903 diary] [George] White 
102 Charles St [Waterbury Conn.  Married Jennie Brown]...Jennie Brown White wife of George White Died April 8, 
1900;  
Wilder  7/16/02 Burse [Binse?] & Wilder called for Butter;  
Williams Hill  5/8/05 Went to Booths on Williams Hill [W Hartland] got Millers Sow in forenoon;  
Williams  9/8/05 went to Winsted took 3 Lambs Butter and Eggs...Horse went through small Bridge south of Williams 
place, threw him down tore off a shoe, put on another at Parsons;  
Williams, J H  6/21/01 Went to Westfield Wife went with me.  Went to Springfield on Trolley collected Fund money of J 
H Williams;  [Addresses] J H Williams 34 Harrison Ave Springfield Mass;  Payee of Interest on Atwell P Smith note held 
by Charitable Assn;  
Wilson,  11/12/07 Went to Winsted with 9 bushel Potatoes for L S Humphrey, took Dinner there, bought 2 Barred Rock 
roosters of Wilson for G Miller;  
Wilson, R D  6/25/06 Went to R D Wilson's near Winsted got a crate of strawberries for Social;  
Woodruff  9/30/03 Went to Winsted got Barrel flour at Woodruffs $5.65 some grain at Watchers;  7/8/05 Started about 
7 for Woodruffs Feed mill got a Barrel Flour, some grain at Wachter, got home about 2;  12/28/05 Went to 
Winsted...bought a Barrel Flour at Woodruff $5.75;  
Wright  5/30/01 drove to Tolland & out to Pat's Harry rode his Wheel as far as Wright place rode back with me;  

Yale  7/28/04 Went to Winsted took 2 Lambs 76 lbs took Butter & Eggs.  Lottie Frisbie came up with me rained hard 
drove under Yales [?] shed;  


